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st United Bancorp, Inc.

Subsequent Event

1ST UNITED BANCORP, INC. TO ACQUIRE ENTERPRISE BANK

On March 22, 2013, 1st United Bancorp, Inc. ("Bancorp™) (NASDAQ
Global Select: FUBC) and Enterprise Bancorp, Inc. \”FB! ) announced
the signing of a definitive ac;re ment (the "Agreement”) under which
Bancorp and 1st United Bank (" 1st United”), the wholly-owned sub-
sidiary of Bancorp, will acquire EBl and its wholly owned subsidiary

Enterprise Bank of Florida ("Enterprise Bank”) for approximately

$45 million total consideration. In accordance with the Agreement,
the total consideration of approximately $45 million will be paid in
$6 million in cash, $24 million consisting of all Enterprise Bank no
performing assets and certain other classified Enterprise Bank loans,
and $15 million in impaired and below investment grade investments
of Enterprise Bank. In accordance with the Agreement, the value of
the non-cash consideration will be based on the carrying value of the
assets prior to the closing. The transaction, unanimously approved
by the board of directors of both companies, expands 1st United’s
existing franchise in the northern Palm Beach County market place.

Established in 1990 and headquartered in North Palm Beach, Florida,
Enterprise Bank operates three banking centers (North Palm Beach,
Jupiter, and Palm Beach Gardens). EBl has approximately $233.4
million in total assets, $170.3 in net loans, $171.4 million in total
deposits, and $38 million in total shareholder equity at December 31,
2012, Enterprise Bank gives 1st United continued expansion within

the attractive Southeast Florida mar ketplace, providi ing opportunities
for new loan and deposit growth. psr uvmpi stion of the acquisition,
Bancorp will have approximately $1.75 billion in assets, $1.45 billion

in total deposits and 25 full service bam@r‘sg offices.

Bancorp expects the merger to be mmwisat@ ly accretive to earnings
per share after the integration of the companies and expects to
continue to have strong capital ratios available for further growth.
The merger is expected to be completed during the second h a\f of
2013, after satisfaction of customary closing conditions, including
regulatory approval and the approval by EBI shareholders.
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o After acquiring Old Harbor Bark from the FDIC in late
2011, we successtully integrated the bank in March of 2012.

¢ We were pleased to acquire a healthy bank in that same
market, Anderen Financial Inc. (Anderen Bank), in April
of 2012 and integrated its operations in June of 2012;
further expanding our central Florida markets, as well
as adding to our management team and our Boards
with two new Directors.

» We implemented a selective but meaningful expense
recduction plan throughout the Company that began to
bear fruit in the fourth quarter of 2012.

» As an acknowledgement to you our shareholders and
anticipating pending tax rate changes, we were pleased to
pay a year-end special dividend of $.10 per common share
and announced regular quarterly dividends to begin in 2013,
At the same time we also adopted a stock repurchase plan.

As you can see, 2012 was a very active year for the Company. In
addition to the above achievements, we added significantly to
our compliment of professional bankers, to grow our loan and
deposit portfolios in all of our markets at a time when Florida
has restored growth.

So what do we see about the future for 15t United? Unlike the

last few years, we are hopeful that a sustained economy recovery
in Florida will enable us to realize our growth and profitability
goals on a faster timeline. To support this outlook, we are seeing
an increase in our loan pipeline and loan closings in 2012 and early
2013. With an abundance of capital and liquidity on the balance
sheet with which to grow the bank, we are also encouraged by L g
the prospect of more M&A activity this year. All of this gives . ~ Warren $. Orlando
rise to our optimistic prospects for 2013 and beyond. . Chairman of the Board

As always, we will continue to work hard on your behalf to increase
the value of your investment. We will not waiver in our relentless
attention to the safety and soundness of your bank. Proud of our
strong regulatory compliance program throughout all aspects of
the organization, we continue to strengthen our BSA/AML admin-
istration, credit underwriting and risk management, as we face the
growing burden of regulation. None of us can predict the future;
however, those who prepare for the worst while striving to be the
best will overcome any obstacles in the road. We intend to be one
of those organizations.

Let us take this opportunity to thank our TEAM which includes
you, our shareholders, who make this all possible; our committed
Boards of Directors who diligently strive to successfully guide our
path; our extraordinary staff who work tirelessly and effectively
to help us achieve excellence; and our customers who have
confidence in our ability to exceed their expectations.

John Marino
President & Chief Financial Officer

We invite you to review the details of our financial results in the
pages that follow.
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UNITED STATES ReC e'Ned SEC

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, DC 20549 X
APR 16 2013

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR mwéghmgton, DC 20549
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012
OR
[0 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

fistUnited Bancorp, Inc.

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)

Florida 001-34462 65-0925265
(State of Incorporation) (Commission File Number) (IRS Employer Identification No.)
One North Federal Highway, Boca Raton, Florida 33432
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(561) 362-3435
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on which Registered
Common Stock, $0.01 par value The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes 0 No [X]

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act.
Yes ONo X

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes X1 No 0

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§ 232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes X1 No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part ITI of this Form 10-K
or any amendment to this Form 10-K. [X]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer. See definition of
“accelerated filer and large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer [1 Accelerated filer X1 Non-accelerated filer O Smaller Reporting Company [

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes [0 No [X]

The aggregate market value of the registrant’s common stock, $0.01 par value per share, held by non-affiliates of the registrant on June 30,
2012, the last business day of the registrant’s most recently completed second fiscal quarter, was approximately $195 million (based on the sales
price at which of the Registrant’s common stock was last sold on that date). Shares of the registrant’s common stock held by each officer and director
and each person known to the registrant to own 10% or more of the outstanding voting power of the registrant have been excluded in that such
persons may be deemed to be affiliates. This determination of affiliate status is not a determination for other purposes.

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer’s classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable date.

Class QOutstanding at January 31, 2013
Common Stock, $0.01 par value per share 34,070,270 shares

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Portions of our Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 28, 2013 are incorporated by reference in Part III.
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INTRODUCTORY NOTE

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking statements include, among others, statements about our
beliefs, plans, objectives, goals, expectations, estimates and intentions that are subject to significant risks and uncertainties
and are subject to change based on various factors, many of which are beyond our control. The words “may,” “could,”
“should,” “would,” “believe,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “plan,” “target,” “goal,” and similar expressions
are intended to identify forward-looking statements.

All forward-looking statements, by their nature, are subject to risks and uncertainties. Our actual future results may differ
materially from those set forth in our forward-looking statements. In addition to those risks discussed in this Annual Report
under Item 1A Risk Factors, factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking
statements include, without limitation:

. our ability to comply with the terms of the loss sharing agreements with the FDIC;

. legislative or regulatory changes, including the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection
Act and Basel I1I;

. our ability to integrate the business and operations of companies and banks that we have acquired and those
we may acquire in the future;

. the failure to achieve expected gains, revenue growth, and/or expense savings from past and future
acquisitions;

. the strength of the United States economy in general and the strength of the local economies in which we
conduct operations;

. the accuracy of our financial statement estimates and assumptions, including the estimate for our loan loss

provision and the FDIC loss share receivable;

. the frequency and magnitude of foreclosure of our loans;

. the reduction in FDIC insurance on certain non-interest bearing accounts due to the expiration of the
Transaction Account Guarantee program;

. increased competition and its effect on pricing, including the impact on our net interest margin from repeal
of Regulation Q;

. our customers’ willingness to make timely payments on their loans;

. the effects of the health and soundness of other financial institutions, including the FDIC’s need to increase
Deposit Insurance Fund assessments;

. changes in the securities and real estate markets;

. changes in monetary and fiscal policies of the U.S. Government;

. inflation, interest rate, market and monetary fluctuations;

. the effects of our lack of a diversified loan portfolio, including the risks of geographic and industry
concentrations;

. our need and our ability to incur additional debt or equity financing;

. the effects of harsh weather conditions, including hurricanes, and man-made disasters;

. our ability to comply with the extensive laws and regulations to which we are subject;

. the willingness of clients to accept third-party products and services rather than our products and services
and vice versa;



technological changes;

negative publicity and the impact on our reputation;

the effects of security breaches and computer viruses that may affect our computer systems;
changes in consumer spending and saving habits;

changes in accounting principles, policies, practices or guidelines;

the limited trading activity of our common stock;

the concentration of ownership of our common stock;

our ability to retain key members of management;

anti-takeover provisions under federal and state law as well as our Articles of Incorporation and our
Bylaws;

other risks described from time to time in our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission; and

our ability to manage the risks involved in the foregoing.

However, other factors besides those listed in Item 14 Risk Factors or discussed in this Annual Report also could adversely
affect our results, and you should not consider any such list of factors to be a complete set of all potential risks or
uncertainties. Any forward-looking statements made by us or on our behalf speak only as of the date they are made. We do
not undertake to update any forward-looking statement, except as required by applicable law.



PARTI
Item 1. Business

About Us
General
We are a financial holding company headquartered in Boca Raton, Florida. Our principal subsidiary, 1* United Bank, is a
Florida-chartered commercial bank, which operates 22 banking centers in Florida, from Central Florida through the Treasure
Coast to Southeast Florida, including Brevard, Broward, Hillsborough, Indian River, Miami-Dade, Orange, Palm Beach,

Pasco and Pinellas Counties. Over the past nine years, we have grown under the stewardship of our highly experienced
executive management team. Specifically, we have

. increased total assets from $66.8 million to $1.567 billion;

. increased total net loans from $39.6 million to $904.0 million;

. grown non-interest bearing deposits from $4.6 million to $427.0 million; and
. expanded our branch network from one location to 22 locations.

In this report, the terms “Company,” “Bancorp,” “we,” “us,” or “our” mean 1** United Bancorp, Inc. and all of its
consolidated subsidiaries. “1* United” or the “Bank” means 1* United Bank, a Florida chartered commercial bank.

Our Competitive Advantage
We believe we distinguish ourselves from our competitors through the following competitive strengths:

Community Bank Philosophy. We operate with a community banking philosophy where we seek to develop broad
customer relationships based on service and convenience while maintaining our conservative approach to lending and strong
asset quality. We operate with a private bank ethic for our business, professional, and individual clients. Due to large banking
organizations moving their focus to large corporate clients rather than customers in our local communities and the heightened
level of consolidation activity among banks in Florida, we believe that our emphasis on personal service will enhance our
ability to compete successfully and capitalize on dissatisfaction among customers of larger institutions.

Experienced Management. We believe our success has been built on the strength of our management team and board of
directors. Our executive management team has extensive Florida banking experience, collectively over 124 years in the
Florida banking market, as well as valuable community and business relationships in our core markets.

Growth Strategies. We have maintained our focus on a strategy of opportunistic expansion and have sought to enhance our
franchise by increasing market share in our core markets. As a result, we have completed three FDIC-assisted transactions
and one whole bank acquisition since December 2009. Our executive management team has extensive merger and acquisition
experience which we intend to leverage along with our favorable financial position to take advantage of acquisitions that may
become available in our market areas, including additional FDIC-assisted transactions. We will continue to be disciplined as
it pertains to future acquisitions and only pursue those opportunities that meet our strategic objectives.

Market Opportunity. We operate in what we believe to be some of the most attractive markets in Florida. The community
banking industry in these markets remains distressed. We believe that this distress will give us opportunities to acquire other
institutions and increase our market share. We believe we are well-positioned to capitalize on these opportunities.

Focus on Asset Quality. We strive to maintain a high-quality loan portfolio and maintain the quality of our assets. As a
result of what we believe to be conservative underwriting standards, prudent loan approval authority levels and procedures,
experienced loan officers with an intimate knowledge of the local market, and diligent monitoring of the loan portfolio, our
asset quality continues to compare favorably relative to industry and local peers.



Core Deposit Growth. A key source of our strong balance sheet growth has been the generation of a stable base of core
deposits. It is our strategy to have a mix of core deposits, which favors non-interest deposits in the range of 15.0% to 30.0%
of total deposits with time deposits comprising 50.0% or less of total deposits. As of December 31, 2012, approximately 33%
and 24% of our total deposits were comprised of noninterest deposits and time deposits, respectively.

Net Interest Margin. Our stable funding base consisting primarily of core deposits, coupled with our credit quality results in
a higher net interest margin compared to our peer group of Florida-chartered commercial banks with assets between $500
million and $2 billion, based on data derived from the FDIC Call Reports. Our net interest margin for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2012, was 5.13%. Although the historical low interest rate environment has reduced the relative benefit of our
low cost funding base, we believe the consistency and low cost nature of our deposits will prove to be more of a competitive
advantage in a rising rate environment.

Our Business Strategy

Our business strategy has been to maintain a community bank philosophy, which we believe has been enhanced despite the
prodigious growth we have experienced recently, of focusing on and understanding the individualized banking needs of the
businesses, professionals and other residents of the local communities surrounding our banking centers. We believe this focus
allows us to be more responsive to our customers’ needs and provide a high level of personal service and differentiates us
from larger competitors. As a locally managed institution with strong ties to the community, our core customers are primarily
comprised of small- to medium-sized businesses, professionals and community organizations who prefer to build a banking
relationship with a community bank that offers and combines high quality, competitively priced banking products and
services with personalized service. Because of our identity and origin as a locally-owned and operated bank, we believe that
our level of personal service provides a competitive advantage over the larger out-of-state banks, which tend to consolidate
decision-making authority outside local communities.

A key aspect of our current business strategy is to foster a community-oriented culture where our customers and employees
establish long-standing and mutually beneficial relationships. We believe that with our focus on community banking needs
and customer service, together with a comprehensive suite of deposit and loan products typically found at larger banks, a
highly experienced management team and strategically located banking centers, we are well-positioned to be a strong
competitor within our market area. A central part of our strategy is generating core deposits to support growth of a strong and
stable loan portfolio.

Growth Through Acquisitions

We intend to continue to opportunistically expand and grow our business by building on our business strategy and increasing
market share in our key Florida markets. We believe the demographics and growth characteristics within the communities we
serve will provide significant franchise enhancement opportunities to leverage our core competencies while acquisitive
growth will enable us to take advantage of the extensive infrastructure and scalable platform that we have assembled.

A significant portion of our growth has been through acquisitions. Under our current management team, we have announced
seven transactions since 2004:

Acquired Bank Headquarters Year Acquired
First Western Bank Cooper City, Florida 2004
Equitable Bank Fort Lauderdale, Florida 2008
Citrus Bank, N.A.(" Vero Beach, Florida 2008
Republic Federal Bank, N.A. @ Miami, Florida 2009
The Bank of Miami, N.A.® Miami, Florida 2010
0l1d Harbor Bank of Florida® Clearwater, Florida 2011
Anderen Bank Palm Harbor, Florida 2012

W Branch acquisition

@ FDIC-assisted transaction



Recent Developments

Acquisition of Anderen Financial, Inc.

On April 1, 2012, the Company completed its acquisition of Anderen Financial, Inc., a Florida corporation, and its wholly
owned subsidiary Anderen Bank, a Florida-chartered commercial bank (Anderen Financial, Inc. and Anderen Bank are
subsequently referred to herein collectively as “AFI” or “Anderen”), pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated
October 24, 2011 (the “Merger Agreement”). Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, each share of AFI common
stock, $0.01 par value per share, was cancelled and automatically converted into the right to receive cash, common stock of
the Company or a combination of cash and common stock of the Company. AFI shareholders could elect to receive cash,
stock, or a combination of 50% cash and 50% stock, provided, however, that each election was subject to mandatory
allocation procedures to ensure the total consideration was approximately 50% cash and 50% stock. The value of the AFI per
share consideration was $7.73 calculated per the Merger Agreement. The total value of the consideration paid to AFI
shareholders was $38.3 million which consisted of approximately $19.1 million in cash and 3,140,354 shares of the
Company’s common stock. The Company’s common stock was valued at $6.09 per share with a total value of $19.1 million,
net of approximately $61,000 of costs. The Company recorded goodwill of $5.8 million as a result of the acquisition which is
not deductible for tax purposes. Total net deferred tax assets acquired was $5.7 million, primarily related to loss carry
forwards. The Company completed the integration of AFI in June 2012.

The Company estimated the acquisition fair value of the acquired assets and assumed liabilities in accordance with Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 805, Business Combinations
(ASC Topic 805) and ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements which requires purchased assets and assumed liabilities to
be recorded at their respective acquisition date fair value. See Note 2 for additional information related to the fair value of
loans acquired. The Company uses third party valuations to determine the fair value of the core deposit intangible, securities,
fixed assets and deposits. The fair value of other real estate owned was based on recent appraisals of the properties. The
estimated fair values are subject to refinement as additional information relative to the closing date fair values becomes
available during the measurement period, not to exceed one year. While additional significant changes to the closing date fair
values are not expected, any information relative to the changes in these fair values will be evaluated to determine if such
changes are due to events and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date. During the measurement period, any such
changes will be recorded as part of the closing date fair value.

The acquisition of AFI is consistent with the Company’s plans to continue to enhance its footprint and competitive position
within the state of Florida. This acquisition complemented the initial expansion into the Florida Gulf Coast markets with the
acquisition of Old Harbor. The Company believes it is well-positioned to deliver superior customer service, achieve stronger
financial performance and enhance shareholder value through the synergies of combined operations. All of these factors
contributed to the resulting goodwill in the transaction.

Acquisition of Old Harbor Bank of Florida

On October 21, 2011, 1* United entered into an agreement with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) to
acquire substantially all of the assets of Old Harbor Bank of Florida (“Old Harbor™). The fair value of the assets acquired
included $24.7 million in cash and cash equivalents, $31.0 million in securities available for sale, $115.3 million in loans and
$2.3 million in other real estate owned. 1% United also assumed approximately $209.6 million in deposits. Old Harbor
operated seven banking centers in Pasco and Pinellas Counties, Florida, and had 42 employees.

The deposits were acquired with a 0% premium and assets were acquired at a discount of approximately $8.5 million, subject
to customary adjustments. The terms of the Old Harbor Agreement provide for the FDIC to indemnify 1* United against
claims with respect to liabilities and assets of Old Harbor or any of its affiliates not assumed or otherwise purchased by 1
United and with respect to certain other claims by third parties.

In connection with the acquisition of Old Harbor, 1* United entered into loss sharing agreements (the “Old Harbor Loss
Sharing Agreements”) with the FDIC that collectively cover a substantial portion of the loan portfolio and all of the other real
estate owned (the “Covered Assets”). None of the other acquired assets of Old Harbor are covered by the Old Harbor Loss
Sharing Agreements with the FDIC. The Old Harbor Loss Sharing Agreements provide for the reimbursement of 70% of
losses with respect to Covered Assets, up to approximately $49 million. The loss sharing agreement applicable to single-
family residential mortgage loans and to commercial loans and other real estate owned are for ten and five years,
respectively. The Old Harbor Loss Sharing Agreements are subject to certain servicing procedures as specified in the
agreements.



The Company accounted for the transaction under the acquisition method of accounting which requires purchased assets and
assumed liabilities to be recorded at their respective acquisition date fair value. Previously reported fair values were
preliminary and subject to refinement for up to one year after the closing date of the acquisition as new information relative
to the closing date of the acquisition became available. Specifically, additional information related to the fair value over loans
and other real estate and the FDIC loss share receivable changed as new information became available. As a result, the
Company updated the previously reported consolidated balance sheets and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
ended December 31, 2011 for the final measurement period adjustments. The Company recorded goodwill of $7.5 miilion as
a result of the acquisition which is not deductible for tax purposes as well as an estimated receivable from the FDIC in the
amount of $19.1 million which represents the fair value of the FDIC’s portion of the losses that are expected to be incurred
and reimbursed.

On the date of acquisition, 1* United did not immediately acquire the furniture or equipment or any of the owned facilities of
Old Harbor. However, 1* United had the option to purchase the furniture and equipment and any owned facilities from the
FDIC. Management of 1* United assessed each location and determined not to assume three branches, two of which were
leased and one of which was owned. 1* United agreed to purchase the facilities and related furniture and equipment of two
locations for $2.2 million and assumed the leases of two other facilities.

The Bank of Miami Acquisition

On December 17, 2010, the Company, through our banking subsidiary 1* United, entered into a purchase and assumption
agreement with the FDIC, as receiver for The Bank of Miami (“TBOM?”). Per the agreement, the Company assumed all
deposits, except certain brokered deposits, and borrowings and acquired certain assets of TBOM including loans, other real
estate owned and cash and investments. All of the loans acquired are covered under two loss sharing agreements (the “TBOM
Loss Sharing Agreements”). The TBOM Loss Sharing Agreements cover 80% of losses incurred on acquired loans and other
real estate as well as third party collection costs and 90 days of accrued interest on covered loans. The term of the loss
sharing and loss recoveries is ten years for residential real estate loans and five years with respect to losses on non-residential
real estate loans and eight years with respect to loss recovery. The reimbursable losses from the FDIC are based on the book
value of the relevant loan as determined by the FDIC as the date of the transaction. New loans made after that date are not
covered under the TBOM Loss Sharing Agreements with the FDIC.

1¥ United received a $38.0 million net discount on the assets acquired. TBOM operated three banking centers in Miami-Dade
County, Florida. None of the centers were retained by the Company and the related deposits were serviced from existing 1*
United branch facilities.

The Company accounted for the transaction under the acquisition method of accounting which requires purchased assets and
assumed liabilities to be recorded at their respective acquisition date fair value. The purchased assets and assumed liabilities
were recorded at their respective acquisition date fair values, and identifiable intangible assets were recorded at fair value.
The Company recorded an estimated receivable from the FDIC in the amount of $36.3 million which represents the fair value
of the FDIC’s portion of the losses that are expected to be incurred and reimbursed to us. The TBOM Loss Sharing
Agreements are subject to certain servicing procedures as specified in the agreements. An acquisition gain of $10.1 million
was recorded as a component of non-interest income in gain on acquisitions in the consolidated statement of operations for
the year ended December 31, 2010.

Investment Activity

Our consolidated securities portfolio is managed to minimize interest rate risk, maintain sufficient liquidity, and optimize
return. The portfolio includes residential mortgage-backed securities, residential collateralized mortgage obligations as well
as a municipal security. Our financial planning anticipates income streams generated by the securities portfolio based on
normal maturity and reinvestment.



The following table sets forth the carrying amount of our investments portfolio, all of which were classified as available-for-
sale as of December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010:

(Dollars in thousands) December 31,
2012 2011 2010

Fair value of investment in:

U.S. agency residential $ — $ — § 4,038

Municipal SECUTILIES .......coeeruermrenerirriirrersnsccrisesnisinessnessens 469 — —

Residential collateralized mortgage obligations ...............c..... 3,759 7,757 14,695

Residential mortgage-backed.........coovervviniciiinnicnnieccinninnnes 255,894 193,965 83,556
$260,122 $201,722 $102,289

The following table sets forth the combined fair value and weighted average yield of our securities available for sale portfolio
as of December 31, 2012. Securities not due at a single maturity date, primarily mortgage-backed securities, are shown
separately. :

Weighted
Fair Average
Value Yield

(Dollars in thousands)

Municipal Securities

ONE YEAT OF 1ESS ...vcuerrrreenierrrrenetsennesetstnsesesceesessenessssssesesssnssssesmssssssens $ — —%
Over one year through five years......c.coovveienicniciniiininnninncsineenns — —
Over five through ten Years .......ccceceeeeveeerrsmrncensneinnnisesinessssisseses — —
OVET tE11 YEATS ...cuvereerrerersaersrseesesseeseesssseesesssessessestssusssssssssssnssssssessessessesses 469 2.0
TOMAL...creereeie ettt s s sa st sRe s s e $ 469 2.0%
Residential Collateralized Mortgage Obligations

ONE YEAT OF 1€SS ..vvvvrerirerrrerereseresererererereresesesosisessssssssssssssisssssssmsssssssnsens $ — —%
Over one year through five years..........covievviincnninnnncincnesscnnne — —
Over five through ten years ........c.ueiviiiininiinicnisiniescneeensenesnsnns — —
OVET 111 YEAIS ....oeueeeiiiiiiiiicnicistisacsstesstisaresssssesassssnsosnsssssssesssssessssesas — —
Residential collateralized mortgage obligations ...........ccecevueivrvrnvnennne 3,759 2.84
{0171 SO OO $ 3,759 2.84%
Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities

ONE YEAT OF 1ESS .veenerererrireeieeietee st esssesesesssessssassassens $ — —%
Over one year through five years.......c..cocconinininniniinmnininnnnnnnnieennnn — —

. Over five year through ten years.........cocuivvevnnirvniennsinninicnininseniennes — —
OVET 1E11 YEAIS ..vereerenrrieriiseiicsissisiseesestssssnssisssstersssssnsssssssssanssessssessssessons —_ —
Residential mortgage-backed..........couvvvcvmvmnrrirnniriniiniiccninnienennnnns 255,894 1.99
TOMAL...covieereeeere et sasessaesesasss et st sasasbe b sn st s b e s R es $ 255,894 1.99%
Total FAir VAIUE......ccvoveueereeniccctererencctnensescnssesissistsssssssssenssesesssssasseses $ 260,122 2.00%
Total AMOTHIZEA COSt ....cvvvverreereirrererrerrerrersesrassesessersesssessesssssesessnsssessesees $ 256,501 2.00%

As of December 31, 2012, we did not hold any tax-exempt obligations or instruments from issuers where the amortized cost
or market value represented more than ten percent of shareholders’ equity.

Lending Activity

We have adopted the strategy of presenting a robust and diverse series of lending channels and a suite of loan and loan-
related products normally associated with larger banks. While this strategy demands an investment in experienced personnel
and enabling systems, we believe it distinguishes us from competing community banks. We intend to continue to provide for
the financing needs of the community we serve by offering a variety of loans, including:

. commercial loans, which will include collateralized loans for working capital (including inventory and
receivables), business expansion (including real estate construction, acquisitions and improvements), and
purchase of equipment and machinery;



. small business loans, including SBA lending;
. Export-Import Bank insured or guaranteed loans;

. residential real estate loans to enable borrowers to purchase, refinance, construct upon or improve real
property, and home equity loans; and

. consumer loans, including collateralized and uncollateralized loans for financing automobiles, boats, home
improvements, and personal investments.

We follow a lending policy that permits us to take prudent risks to assist consumers and businesses in our market area. We do
not originate any subprime loans. Loan-related interest rates will vary depending on our cost of funds, the loan maturity, and
the degree of risk. We are expected to meet the credit needs of customers in the communities we serve while allowing
prudent liquidity through our securities portfolio. We expect this positive, community-oriented lending philosophy to
translate into a sustainable volume of quality loans into the foreseeable future.

We also help enhance loan quality by staffing with experienced, well-trained lending officers capable of soliciting loan
business. Our lending officers, as well as our credit officers and loan committees, recognize and appreciate the importance of
exercising care and good judgment in underwriting loans, which supports our safety and profitability goals.

At December 31, 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008, the composition of our loan portfolio was as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) December 31,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
% of % of % of % of % of
Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total
Residential real estate .............ccoee...  $165,917 18% $196,511  22% $228,354  26%$200,877 30%$100,571  20%
Commercial ..........ccoorereecceeerneneeace 179,498 20% 170,183  20% 165,203  19% 115,781 17% 90,968  19%
Commercial real estate ..................... 514,574 56% 457,276 52% 434,855 50% 282,783 43% 203,734 42%
Construction and land development.. 42,262 5% 43,473 5% 33,893 4% 55,689 8% 83,161 17%
Consumer and others .............cveeeee. 11,290 1% 12,093 1% 13,626 1% 11,873 2% 7,865 2%
Total 10ans .........ccccceemrurnrncccncernnnn $913,541 __100% $879,536 =_L0‘_2% $875,931 =&%%67,003 100%$486,299 i%
Allowance for loan losses................. (9,788) (12,836) (13,050) (13,282) (5,799)
Net deferred (fees) costs ............c...... 220 53 138 137 (52)
Net 10ans...........ccceceeeerririecccneeenrnens $903,973 $866,753 $862,743 $653,858 $480,448

The following charts illustrate the number of loans in our loan portfolio as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011.



Loan Portfolio as of December 31, 2012

Total Percent of Percent of
(Dollars in thousands) Loans Total Loan Portfolio Total Assets
Loan Types
Residential:
First Mmortgages ......ccceeveevueneerececrecensresseecsessnneneas 461 $ 109,562 11.99% 6.99%
HELOCS and eqUity ........ccceceererreccnersrvencneseseesenne 315 56,355 6.17% 3.60%
Commercial:
Secured — non-real estate .........cceeeeereeveceenienneans 669 127,514 13.96% 8.14%
Secured — real estate 86 43,613 4.77% 2.78%
UNSECUIEd ....eeeeeereeenreeereeerreeeerecnneecnnessnnessessennennes 43 8,371 0.92% 0.53%
Commercial Real Estate:
OWNET OCCUPIEA ......vevercreerrrenvenreresesassnesesrsarenes 233 187,007 20.47% 11.94%
Non-owner occupied 268 290,858 31.84% 18.56%
Multi-family ........cocereeeereevecseceenerceesesnnsesseseesrones 71 36,709 4.02% 2.34%
Construction and Land Development:
Construction...... 6 3,481 0.38% 0.22%
Improved land 34 20,117 2.20% 1.28%
Unimproved 1and ..........ccccvvinnvcncvencnccrennnnnans 25 18,664 2.04% 1.19%
Consumer and other 196 11,290 1.24% 0.72%
Total December 31, 2012.....c..oeevvevrrerverieererecennnnn 2,407 $913,541 100.00% 58.29%
Loan Portfolio as of December 31,2011
Total Percent of Percent of
(Dollars in thousands) Loans Total Loan Portfolio Total Assets
Loan Types
Residential:
First MOTtZAZES -.c.eererverrcrmrerseeceserieennsessesensens 540 $ 139,896 15.91% 9.84%
HELOCs and equity 334 56,615 6.44% 3.98%
Commercial:
Secured — non-real estate ...........ccceeeveeerenreeverneones 573 116,561 13.25% 8.20%
Secured — real estate 88 43,198 4.91% 3.04%
UNSECUTEA ...ovveiereecrereeeriveenvesssnesssessssesseneronsens 39 10,424 1.19% 0.73%
Commercial Real Estate:
Owner occupied 202 172,733 19.64% 12.15%
Non-oWner 0CCUPIEd........cereeemrreriscsesseressusansanne 243 244,178 27.76% 17.18%
Multi-family 96 40,365 4.59% 2.84%
Construction and Land Development:
Construction....... 7 8,173 0.93% 0.57%
Improved land... 34 18,342 2.09% 1.29%
Unimproved land ..........cconnnnnnnncnninnnns 27 16,958 1.93% 1.19%
Consumer and Other ..........ccccverevecneereenveeecrerecrennns 224 12,093 1.36% 0.85%
Total December 31, 201 1.....cc.cevrveveeienceeccecueanens 2,407 $ 879,536 100.00% 61.86%




Of the loan portfolio as of December 31, 2012, 892 loans with a carrying value of $327.1 million (35.8%) are subject to the
Old Harbor Loss Sharing Agreements, TBOM Loss Sharing Agreements and Republic Federal Bank (“Republic”) loss
sharing agreements with the FDIC (collectively “Loss Sharing Agreements”) as compared to 1,138 loans with a carrying
value of $405.1 million (46.1%) which were subject to the Loss Sharing Agreements with the FDIC at December 31, 2011. In
addition, at December 31, 2012, included in commercial non-real estate secured loans are approximately $16.7 million in
Export -Import Bank (“EXIM”) loans which have either insurance or a guarantee of between 90% and 100% from the
Export-Import Bank of the United States.

At December 31, 2012, our loan interest rate sensitivity was as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) Maturity and/or Re-pricing Period

1to 5 1to5

years years >5 years >5years

<l year <l year Fixed Adjustable  Fixed Adjustable
Total Fixed Adjustable Rate Rate Rate Rate

Commercial ........cccoceveevnencnnenenncne $179,498 $29,190 $ 101,382 § 11,848 $ 12,712 $ 23,745 % 620
Residential real estate ..................... 109,562 7,683 65,078 8,851 18,257 9,693 —
Commercial real estate.................... 514,574 41,806 151,463 132,365 88,671 94,057 6,212
Construction Land Development.... 42,262 8,947 27,665 5,292 85 274 —
Home Equity Lines of Credit.......... 56,355 76 55,215 415 110 492 47
Consumer and other........................ 11,290 2,564 7,765 867 — 94 e
Total 10ans ......c.cocoeeecceneccerrcercneenes $913,541 $90,266 $ 408,568 $ 159,638 § 119,835 $128,355§ 6,879

As shown in the table above, a majority of our loan portfolio has either adjustable rates (approximately 59% of the loan
portfolio) or shorter maturity terms.

Real Estate Loans
Real Estate Loans — Commercial

Through our lending division, our commercial real estate loan portfolio includes loans secured by office buildings,
warehouses, retail stores and other properties, which are primarily located in or near our markets. Commercial real estate
loans are generally originated in amounts up to 70 to 80% of the appraised value of the property securing the loan. In
determining whether to originate or purchase multi-family or commercial real estate loans, we consider such factors as the
financial condition of the borrower and the debt service coverage provided by the property, business enterprise, related
borrowing entities, and guarantors.

Appraisals on properties securing commercial real estate loans originated by us are performed by an independent appraiser at
the time the loan is made and are reviewed internally by our Credit and Risk Management division. In addition, our
underwriting procedures generally require verification of the borrower’s credit history, income and financial condition,
banking relationships, and income and expenses for the property. We generally obtain personal guarantees for our
commercial real estate loans.

Real Estate Loans — Residential

We originate a mix of fixed rate and adjustable rate residential mortgage loans. Lending officers contact local builders,
realtors, government officials, community leaders, and other groups to determine the residential credit needs of the
communities we serve.

We offer adjustable rate mortgages, which are commonly referred to as ARMs, and maintain these ARMs in our portfolio or
sell the ARMs in the secondary market. The ability to retain ARMs in the portfolio will also from time to time allow us the
opportunity to originate loans to borrowers who may not fully meet the underwriting criteria of strict secondary market
standards but are still reasonable credit risks. We also originate fixed rate loans from within our primary service area. The
majority of fixed rate loans are sold in the secondary mortgage market.

10



Our ARMs generally have interest rates that adjust annually at a margin over the weekly average yield on U.S. Treasury
securities published by the Federal Reserve, adjusted to a constant maturity of one year. The maximum interest rate
adjustment of our ARMs are generally 2% annually and 6% over the life of the loan, above or below the initial rate on the
loan.

We embrace written, non-discriminatory underwriting standards for use in the underwriting and review of every loan
considered for origination or purchase. Our board of directors reviews and approves these underwriting standards annually.

Our underwriting standards for residential mortgage loans generally conform to standards established by Fannie Mae and
Freddie Mac. Our underwriters and secondary market buyers obtain or review each loan application to determine the
borrower’s ability to repay, and confirm significant information through the use of credit reports, financial statements,
employment and other verifications.

When originating a residential real estate mortgage loan, we obtain a new appraisal of the property from an independent third
party to determine the adequacy of the collateral, and the appraisal will be reviewed by one of the underwriters. Borrowers
are required to obtain casualty insurance and, if applicable, flood insurance in amounts at least equal to the outstanding loan
balance or the maximum amount allowed by law.

We require that a survey be conducted and title insurance be obtained, insuring the priority of our mortgage lien.
Underwriters review all loans to ensure that guidelines are met or that waivers are obtained in limited situations where
offsetting factors exist.

Construction - Residential and Commercial Real Estate Loans

The construction loan portfolio includes residential real estate, commercial real estate and homeowners’ association projects.
Generally, construction loans have terms which match permanent financing offered by us. During the construction phase, the
borrower may pay interest only.

Through our business lending divisions, we originate real estate construction loans to individuals for the construction of their
residences, to businesses and business owners primarily for owner-occupied, commercial real estate, and to homeowners’
associations for general repair and/or improvements to the properties. Our construction loans typically have terms up to 18
months, and generally, the maximum loan-to-value ratio at origination is 80%. The loan-to-cost maximum ratio is generally
70 to 80% for residential and commercial construction and up to 100% for homeowners’ associations.

We provide construction loans on commercial real estate projects secured by industrial properties, office buildings or other
property. We emphasize projects that are owner-occupied. Following the construction phase, loans will be converted to
permanent financing.

Land Loans
Our portfolio includes exposure to land development, both residential and commercial. Typically, borrowers have or had

preliminary plans for development and were waiting for final plans to be completed to submit for construction financing. Due
to current adverse market conditions, original development plans for some financed projects may now be altered or on hold.
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The following chart illustrates the composition of our construction and land development loan portfolio in relation to total
loans as December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010.

(Dollars in thousands) December 31,
2012 2011 2010
% of % of % of
Balance Loans Balance Loans Balance Loans
Construction
Residential.........ccococcevemmmrrninrcerreceeeeeenne $ 2,721 0.30% $ 3,135 0.36% $ — —%
Residential Spec......ccccoovevevurerenencnerensnnennne — —% 1,492 0.17% — —%
Commercial....................... 760 0.08% 263 0.03% — —%
Commercial Spec .........coomeveeceeercacannecns — —% 3,283 0.37% — —%
Land Development
Residential.......ccccccoeeiiicnnnnennnseerereneen. 4,798 0.53% 1,918 0.22% 2,384 0.27%
Residential Spec..........ccecceeneeverunvenrnsnnennns 11,829 1.28% 18,473 2.11% 12,997 1.48%
Commercial................ cereveretererae s teaeneeaees 8,911 0.98% 1,048 0.12% 7,600 0.87%
Commercial Spec ........cccoeevuevececieceereerernenne 13,243 1.45% 13,861 1.57% 10,912 1.25%
Total...coooeeeirereceerenne reeteeestesnneeeae e eananes $ 42,262 4.62% $ 43,473 495% $ 33,893 3.87%

Approximately $8.4 million or 20% of the construction and land development loan portfolio at December 31, 2012 is covered
by the Loss Sharing Agreements. This compares to $15.6 million or 36% of the construction and land development loan
portfolio at December 31, 2011 covered by the Loss Sharing Agreements.

Consumer Loans

We originate consumer loans bearing both fixed and prime-based variable interest rates. We originate our loans directly
through our banking centers, business bankers and residential lenders. Residential real estate secured loans are originated
through our lenders who are licensed to make these loans.

We focus our consumer lending on the origination of direct second mortgage loans and home equity loans (secured by a
junior lien on residential real property), and home improvement loans. These loans are typically based on a maximum 60% to
80% loan-to-value ratio. Second mortgage and home improvement loans generally will originate on either a line of credit or a
fixed term basis ranging from 5 to 15 years. We also extend personal loans, which may be secured by various forms of
collateral, both real and personal, or to a minimal extent, on an unsecured basis.

Commercial Loans

We focus on the commercial loan market comprised of small- to medium-sized businesses with combined borrowing needs
generally up to $10.0 million. These businesses include professional associations (physicians, law firms, and accountants),
medical services, retail trade, construction, transportation, wholesale trade, manufacturing, and tourism-related service
industries.

Our commercial loans are primarily derived from our market area and underwritten on the basis of the borrowers’ ability to
service such debt from recurring income. As a general practice, we will take as collateral a security interest in any available
real estate, equipment, or other assets, although such loans may also be made on an uncollateralized, but guaranteed, basis.
Short-term assets primarily secure collateralized working capital loans, whereas long-term assets primarily collateralize term
loans.

In certain situations, we use various loan programs sponsored by the SBA. Properly utilized, SBA loans can help to reduce
our loan portfolio risk and can generate non-interest income.

As part of the acquisition of Republic Federal Bank (“Republic), we obtained an EXIM lending operation. Our EXIM lending
operation makes loans to companies that export U.S. goods and services to international markets and makes loans to foreign
companies to facilitate the purchase of U.S. goods. Loans made under this program are insured or guaranteed between 90%
and 100% by the Export Import Bank of the United States. At December 31, 2012, we had approximately $16.7 million in
EXIM loans.
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Loan Administration and Underwriting

Through our Credit and Risk Management division, we use our loan origination underwriting procedures to assess both the
borrower’s ability to make principal and interest payments and the value of the collateral securing the loan. Our Credit and
Risk Management division is responsible for a battery of management and board risk management monitoring and for
reporting to various management and board committees. To manage risk, we have adopted written loan policies and
procedures, and our loan portfolio is administered under a defined process. That process includes guidelines for loan
underwriting standards and risk assessment, procedures for loan approvals, loan grading, ongoing identification and
management of credit deterioration and portfolio reviews to assess loss exposure and to test compliance with our credit
policies and procedures.

Our Board of Directors has approved set levels of lending authority to the Management Loan Committee, as well as limited
authority for certain officers based on the loan type and amount. All use of delegated loan authorities is preceded by a
determination of the worthiness of the loan request by the Credit and Risk Management division. Typically, the Management
Loan Committee reviews loan requests and if a particular request exceeds the loan authority limits delegated to this
committee, these requests, if approved, are presented to 1* United’s Board Loan Committee for final approval.

Before and after loan closing, our loan operations personnel review all loans for adequacy of documentation and compliance
with regulatory requirements. Our loan review personnel analyze loans over certain size thresholds, problem loans and loans
with certain loan quality ratings to ensure that appropriate credit risk ratings are assigned and ultimately to assist in
determining the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses.

Loan Quality

Management seeks to maintain a high quality portfolio of loans through sound underwriting and lending practices. As of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, approximately 83.9% and 84.2%, respectively, of the total loan portfolio was collateralized by
commercial and residential real estate mortgages.

Unlike residential mortgage loans, which generally are made on the basis of the borrower’s ability to repay from employment
and other income and which are collateralized by real property whose value tends to be more readily ascertainable, non-real
estate secured commercial loans typically are underwritten on the basis of the borrower’s ability to make repayment from the
cash flow of its business activities and generally are collateralized by a variety of business assets, such as accounts
receivable, equipment and inventory. As a result, the availability of funds for the repayment of commercial loans may be
substantially dependent on the success of the business itself, which is subject to adverse conditions in the economy.
Commercial loans are generally repaid from operational earnings, collection of rent or conversion of assets. Commercial
loans also entail certain additional risks since they usually involve large loan balances to single borrowers or a related group
of borrowers, resulting in a more concentrated loan portfolio. Further, the collateral underlying the loans may depreciate over
time, cannot be appraised with as much precision as residential real estate, and may fluctuate in value based on the success of
the business.

Loan concentrations are defined as loans to borrowers engaged in similar business-related activities, which would cause them
to be similarly impacted by economic or other conditions. We, on a routine basis, monitor these concentrations in order to
consider adjustments in our lending practices to reflect economic conditions, loan-to-deposit ratios, and industry trends. As of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, there was no concentration of loans within any portfolio category to any group of borrowers
engaged in similar activities or in a similar business (other than noted below) that exceeded 10.0% of total loans, except that
as of such dates loans collateralized with mortgages on real estate represented 83.9% and 84.2%, respectively, of the loan
portfolio and were to borrowers in varying activities and businesses.

Generally, interest on loans accrues and is credited to income based upon the principal balance outstanding. It is
management’s policy to discontinue the accrual of interest income and classify a loan as non-accrual when principal or
interest is past due 90 days or more unless, in the determination of management, the principal and interest on the loan are
well collateralized and in the process of collection. Consumer installment loans are generally charged-off after 90 days of
delinquency unless adequately collateralized and in the process of collection. Loans are not returned to accrual status until
principal and interest payments are brought current and future payments appear reasonably certain. Interest accrued and
unpaid at the time a loan is placed on non-accrual status is charged against interest income.
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Real estate acquired by us as a result of foreclosure or by deed in lieu of foreclosure is classified as other real estate owned
(“OREQ”). OREO properties are recorded at the lower of cost or fair value less estimated selling costs, and the estimated
loss, if any, is charged to the allowance for credit losses at the time it is transferred to OREO. Further write-downs in OREO
are recorded at the time management believes additional deterioration in value has occurred and are charged to non-interest
expense. At December 31, 2012, we had $19.5 million of OREO property of which $13.2 million were a result of the Old
Harbor, TBOM and Republic acquisitions and are covered under their respective Loss Sharing Agreements. We had $13.5
million of OREO property as of December 31, 2011, of which $11.0 million were a result of the Old Harbor, TBOM and
Republic acquisitions and covered under their respective Loss Sharing Agreements.

The following is a summary of other real estate owned as of December 31, 2012 and 2011:

(Dollars in thousands) 2012 2011
Assets Not Assets Not
Subject Subject
to Loss Assets Subject to to Loss Assets Subject
Share Loss Share Share to Loss Share
Agreements Agreements Total Agreements _ Agreements _Total

Commercial Real Estate............... $ 5,708 $ 10,372 $16,080 $ 1,922 § 8,067 $ 9,989
Residential .........c..cccecenvrervrreennens 646 2,803 3,449 532 2,941 3,473
Total....ccconreeciercccerecaiaens $ 6,354 § 13,175 $19,529 § 2,454 § 11,008 $ 13,462

As of December 31, 2012, we had approximately $777,000 of the total of $19.5 million in other real estate under contract to
sell at approximately the carrying value of the asset.

We have identified certain assets as risk elements. These assets include non-accruing loans, foreclosed real estate, loans that
are contractually past due 90 days or more as to principal or interest payments and still accruing, and troubled debt
restructurings. These assets present more than the normal risk that we will be unable to eventually collect or realize their full
carrying value.
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Our risk elements at December 31, 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008 were as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Assets Not Assets Assets Not Assets
Subjectto  Subject to Subjectto  Subject to
Loss Loss Loss Loss
Sharing Sharing Sharing Sharing

Agreements Agreements _ Total  Agreements Agreements _ Total

Non-Accrual Loans
Residential real estate $ 2,019 §$ 4,085 § 6,104 $ 5,103 § 4,622 $§ 9,725

Home equity lines 796 103 899 644 323 967

Commercial real estate 3,430 6,393 9,823 13,038 5,612 18,650
Construction and land development 3,440 288 3,728 264 167 431
Commercial 185 539 724 11,812 1,241 13,053

Consumer 29 — 29 3 — 3

Total $ 9,899 § 11,408 $ 21,307 $ 30,864 $ 11,965 $ 42,829

Accruing => 90 days past due

Residential real estate $ — $ — 3 — 8 — 3 — 3 —

Home equity lines — — — — — —

Commercial real estate 1,457 — 1,457 647 — 647

Construction and land development — — — — — —

Commercial 620 32 652 — —_ —

Consumer — — — — — —

Total $ 2,077 $ 32 § 2,109 § 647 §$ — $ 647

Total non-accruing loans $ 9,899 § 11,408 $ 21,307 $ 30,864 $ 11,965 $ 42,829

Accruing => 90 days past due 2,077 32 2,109 647 — 647

Foreclosed real estate 6,354 13,175 19,529 2,454 11,058 13,512

Total non-performing assets 18,330 24,615 42,945 33,965 23,023 56,988
Performing troubled debt restructured

loans 23,844 429 24,273 21,781 56 21,837

Total non-performing assets and
performing troubled debt restructured
loans $§ 42,174 $ 25044 $ 67,218 $§ 55746 $ 23,079 § 78,825

Ratios
Total non-accruing and accruing => 90
days past due loans to total loans 1.31% 1.25% 2.56% 3.58% 1.36% 4.94%
Total non-performing assets to total
assets 1.17% 1.57% 2.74% 2.39% 1.62% 4.01%

Total non-performing assets and
performing troubled debt restructured
loans to total assets 2.69% 1.60% 4.29% 3.92% 1.62% 5.55%
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(Dollars in thousands)

Non-Accrual Loans

Accruing => 90 days past due

Residential real estate

Home equity lines

Commercial real estate
Construction and land development
Commercial

Other

Total

Residential real estate

Home equity lines

Commercial real estate
Construction and land development
Commercial

Other

Total

Total non-accruing loans
Accruing => 90 days past due
Foreclosed real estate

Total non-performing assets

Performing troubled debt restructured loans

Total non-performing assets and performing troubled debt restructured

loans

Ratios

Total non-accruing loans to total loans
Total non-performing assets to total assets

Total non-performing assets and performing troubled debt restructured

loans to total assets

December 31

2010 2009 2008
9,784 § 469 —
1,638 — 324
8,885 8,566 6,792
1,877 5,258 —

314 1,277 1,433
289 — —
22,787 $ 15,570 8,549
— 3 — 2,059
— 54 —
— 3 54 2,059
27,787 $ 15,570 8,549
— 54 2,059
7,409 635 —
30,196 16,259 10,608
14,672 1,990 —
48,868 § 18,249 10,608
2.60% 2.34% 1.76%
2.38% 1.60% 1.72%
3.54% 1.80% 1.72%

Included in non-accrual loans at December 31, 2012 are $5.5 million purchase credit impaired loans for which cash flows
could not be reasonably estimated with $4.3 million of these loans subject to Loss Sharing Agreements. Of the
nonperforming assets and performing troubled debt restructuring at December 31, 2012, $25.0 million were acquired in the
Old Harbor, TBOM and Republic transactions and are all covered under the Loss Sharing Agreements as compared to $23.1
million at December 31, 2011 for an increase of $1.9 million. These assets were initially recorded at fair value and as such we
do not expect to incur any additional future losses on these assets.

At December 31, 2012, we had approximately $777,000 in other real estate owned and loans approved for sale and pending
closing for which no additional losses are expected.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, for nonperforming assets not subject to Loss Sharing Agreements, we had
approximately $9.1 million in non-accrual loans which were charged-off, $19.5 million were paid off or transferred to
OREO, $8.5 million were added to non-accrual and $692,000 were returned to accrual status.
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Past due loans, categorized by loans subject to Loss Sharing Agreements and those not subject to Loss Sharing Agreements,
at December 31, 2012 and 2011 were as follows:

December 31, 2012

(Dollars in thousands)

Non-Accrual/Accrual

Accruing 30 - 59 Accruing 60-89 90 days and over Total
Loans Loans Not Loans Loans Not Loans Loans Not Loans Loans Not
Subject to Subject to Subject to Subject to Subject to Subject to Subject to Subject to

Loss Sharing Loss Sharing Loss Sharing Loss Sharing Loss Sharing Loss Sharing
Agreements Agreements _Agreements _Agreements Agreements Agreements

Loss Sharing Loss Sharing
Agreements _Agreements

Residential
Real Estate ................... $ 1,013 § 292 $ 1,207 $ — 3 4,188 § 2815 §$ 6,408 $ 3,107
Commercial .........ccconunns — 200 — 94 571 805 571 1,099
Commercial
Real Estate.................... 581 1,873 — 1,707 6,393 4,887 6,974 8,467
Construction and Land
Development................ — 2,767 — —— 288 3,440 288 6,207
Consumer and other ......... — 99 — — — 29 — 128
Total December 31,
2012 oo $ 1,594 $ 5231 § 1,207 $ 1,801 $ 11,440 $ 11,976 § 14,241 $ 19,008
December 31, 2011
Non-Accrual/accrual and
(Dollars in thousands) Accruing 30 - 59 Accruing 60-89 90 days and over Total
Loans Not Loans
Loans Loans Not Loans Subject to Loans Loans Not Subject Loans Not
Subject to Subject to Subject to Loss Subject to Subject to to Loss Subject to
Loss Sharing Loss Sharing Loss Sharing Sharing Loss Sharing Loss Sharing  Sharing  Loss Sharing
_Agreements Agreements _Agreements Agreements  Agreements Agreements Agreements Agreements
Residential
Real Estate. . $ 1,864 § 402 § — 3 — 8 4945 § 5747 $ 6,809 § 6,149
Commercial ........ccooecunuene 666 479 — 146 1,241 11,812 1,907 12,437
Commercial
Real Estate..........oneunue 356 272 — 318 5,612 13,685 5,968 14,275
Construction and Land
Development................. — — — — 167 264 167 264
Consumer and other ......... — — — — — 3 — 3
Total December 31,
2011 i $ 2,886 $ 1,153 § — $ 464 $ 11,965 $ 31,511 § 14,851 § 33,128

Total past due loans decreased $14.8 million from $48 million at December 31, 2011 to $33.2 million at December 31, 2012.
Past due loans subject to Loss Sharing Agreements decreased by $610,000 from $14.9 million at December 31, 2011 to $14.2
million at December 31, 2012. The decrease was due to a reduction in loans past due 30-59 days of approximately $1.3
million offset by an increase in loans 60 to 89 days past due of $1.2 million due to the addition of one loan offset by a slight
reduction in nonaccrual loans. Inclusive in loans 30-59 days due and covered under Loss Sharing Agreements are $1.4
million in loans for which a payment was received and processed in early January 2013. Past due loans not subject to Loss
Sharing Agreements decreased by $14.1 million from $33.1 million at December 31, 2011 to $19.0 million at December 31,
2012. The decrease was due to a reduction of nonaccrual loans over 90 days past due of $19.5 million due to resolutions
during the year ended December 31, 2012. In addition, there were two loans totaling $1.8 million which are included in 90
days and over and accruing which made payments and we modified in January 2013. This reduction was offset by an increase
in loans past due 30 to 59 days and 60 to 89 days and not covered under Loss Sharing Agreements by $4.1 million and $1.3
million, respectively. Loans past due 30-59 days past due at December 31, 2012 included $4.8 million in loans for which a
renewal was pending and was finalized and closed in early January 2013. The increase in loans 60-89 past due is due to the
inclusion of a new loan at December 31, 2012.

17



Modifications of terms for our loans and their inclusion as troubled debt restructurings are based on individual facts and
circumstances. Loan modifications that are included as troubled debt restructurings may involve a reduction of the stated
interest rate on the loan, extension of the maturity date at a stated rate of interest lower than the current market rate for new
debt with similar risk, deferral of principal payments and/or forgiveness of principal, regardless of the period of the
modification. Generally, we will allow interest rate reductions for a period of less than two years after which the loan reverts
back to the contractual interest rate. Each of the loans included as troubled debt restructurings at December 31, 2012 had
either an interest rate modification ranging from 6 months to 2 years before reverting back to the original interest rate and/or
a deferral of principal payments which can range from 6 to 12 months before reverting back to an amortizing loan. All of the
loans were modified due to financial stress of the borrower. The following is a summary of the unpaid principal balance of
loans classified as troubled debt restructurings as of December 31, 2012, and December 31, 2011, which are performing in
accordance with their modification agreements.

(Dollars in thousands)

2012 Unpaid 2011 Unpaid

Principal Principal
Loan Amount Loan Amount
RESIAENIAL ......eevveieeeieeereeeerierce e tereeres e sssesessesssesssessesensenens $ 605 $ 2,306
Commercial Real EState........c.ccooveveiviinieiiienineeinieennneceesenseessesesanens 17,315 11,394
Construction and Land............cccceevveveeirevnreeneneeeeneeoseensesssesssesssssennes 2,654 6,013
COMMETICIZL ...eevvveereiereeereecrecerrcente e eeseeestesesbesseeseesssesseeesssensaeens 3,699 2,124
Total......... ebeereesseessesssesesssessaeereestsesenseestesbretenabeseraesseebeerseeasenrenanans $ 24,273 § 21,837

At December 31, 2012, there were 12 loans which were troubled debt restructured loans with a carrying amount of $5.7
million and specific reserves of $66,000 that were non-accrual and included in non-accrual loans. There were five loans
classified as troubled debt restructured loans with a carrying value of $7.1 million and specific reserves of $684,000 that were
non-accrual and included in non-accrual loans at December 31, 2011. Loans retain their accrual status at their time of
modification. As a result, if the loan is on non-accrual at the time that it is modified, it stays on non-accrual, and if a loan is
accruing at the time of modification, it generally stays on accrual. A loan on non-accrual will be individually evaluated based
on sustained adherence to the terms of the modification agreement prior to being placed on accrual status. Troubled debt
restructurings are considered impaired. The average yield on the loans classified as troubled debt restructurings was 4.76%
and 4.63% at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we had approximately $11.8 million in loans on which we lowered the interest
rate prior to maturity to competitively retain a loan. During the year ended December 31, 2011, we had approximately $5.0
million in commercial rzal estate loans on which we lowered the interest rate prior to maturity to competitively retain the
loan. Due to the borrowers’ significant deposit balances and/or the overall quality of the loans, these loans were not included
in troubled debt restructurings. In addition, each of these borrowers was not considered to be in financial distress and the
modified terms matched current market terms for borrowers with similar risk characteristics. We had no other loans where we
extended the maturity or forgave principal that were not already included in troubled debt restructurings or otherwise
impaired.
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Impaired Loans
The following table presents loans individually evaluated for impairment by class of loan as of December 31, 2012:

Recorded Investment in Impaired Loans

With Allowance With No Allowance
Loans Loans Not
Loans Not Subject to Subject to Subject to Loss
Loans Subject to Loss Loss Loss Sharing Sharing
December 31, 2012 Sharing Agreements Sharing Agreements  _Agreements Agreements
Allowance Allowance
for Loan for Loan
Recorded Losses Recorded Losses Recorded Recorded
(Dollars in thousands) Investment Allocated Investment Allocated Investment Investment
Residential Real Estate ............ $ 1,454 § 395 § 549 § 79 $ 1,065 $ 2,757
Commercial ........ceeeecercercnennenens 473 122 1,453 388 — 2,242
Commercial Real Estate........... 3,880 506 7,220 622 648 12,258
Construction and Land
Development .........cccccereeuennes — — 2,654 1,002 — 3,440
Consumer and other ................. — — — — — —
Total December 31, 2012 ..... $ 5,807 $ 1,023 § 11,876 § 2,091 § 1,713 § 20,697

The following table presents loans individually evaluated for impairment by class of loan as of December 31, 2011:

Recorded Investment in Impaired Loans

With Allowance With No Allowance
Loans Loans Not
Loans Not Subject to Subjectto  Subject to Loss
Loans Subject to Loss Loss Loss Sharing Sharing
December 31, 2011 Sharing Agreements Sharing Agreements  _Agreements Agreements
Allowance Allowance
for Loan for Loan
Recorded Losses Recorded Losses Recorded Recorded
(Dollars in thousands) Investment Allocated Investment Allocated  Investment Investment
Residential Real Estate............. $ 810 § 165 § 1,992 § 23 § 423 § 6,006
Commercial .......ccceeveveeceereennes — — 2,396 1,719 e 11,540
Commercial Real Estate........... 995 124 13,650 2,439 1,616 8,565
Construction and Land
Development...........cccecuecvenee — — 2,516 892 — 3,761
Consumer and other................. — — — — — —
Total December 31, 2011..... $ 1,805 $ 289 $§ 20,554 § 5073 $ 2,039 $ 29,872

Overall, impaired loans decreased from $54.3 million at December 31, 2011 to $40.1 miilion at December 31, 2012,
primarily due to resolutions, including sales, payoffs and transfers to other real estate owned, during the year ended
December 31, 2012. Impaired loans subject to Loss Sharing Agreements increased by $3.7 million due to our evaluation of
the portfolio. Impaired loans not subject to Loss Sharing Agreement decreased by $17.9 million from $50.4 million at
December 31, 2011 to $32.6 million at December 31, 2012 primarily due to transfers to other real estate owned and
resolutions, including sales and payoffs of loans during the year ended December 31, 2012.

During the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009, and 2008, interest income not recognized on non-accrual
loans (but would have been recognized if these loans were current) was approximately $1.3 million, $1.5 million, $858,000,
$436,000, and $338,000, respectively. Excluded from impaired loans are $5.5 million of purchase credit impaired loans
subject to Loss Sharing Agreements in which cash flows could not be reasonably estimated which are included in non-accrual
loans.

19



Allowance for Loan Losses

At December 31, 2012, the allowance for loan losses was $9.8 million or 1.07% of total loans. At December 31, 2011, the
allowance for loan losses was $12.8 million or 1.46% of total loans.

The overall reduction in the allowance for loan losses at December 31, 2012 as compared to December 31, 2011 was
approximately $3.0 million. The majority of the decrease relates to the resolution, including sales, payoffs and transfers to
other real estate owned, of impaired loans with specific reserves at December 31, 2011 as compared to December 31, 2012.
At December 31, 2011, we had $20.6 million of impaired loans not covered by Loss Sharing Agreements with an allocated
allowance for loan loss of $5.1 million, as compared to $11.9 million of impaired loans not covered by Loss Sharing
Agreements with an allocated allowance of $2.1 million at December 31, 2012. In addition, overall loans graded special
mention and substandard not covered by Loss Sharing Agreements decreased by $29.3 million (or 30.6%) from December
31, 2011 to December 31, 2012 which had a positive impact on the allowance for loan losses.

In originating loans, we recognize that credit losses will be experienced and the risk of loss will vary with, among other
things: general economic conditions; the type of loan being made; the creditworthiness of the borrower and guarantors over
the term of the loan; insurance; whether the loan is covered by a Loss Sharing Agreement; and, in the case of a collateralized
loan, the quality of the collateral for such a loan. The allowance for loan losses represents our estimate of the amount
necessary to provide for probable incurred losses in the loan portfolio. In making this determination, we analyze the ultimate
collectability of the loans in our portfolio, feedback provided by internal loan staff, the independent loan review function and
information provided by examinations performed by regulatory agencies.

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated at the portfolio segment level using the same methodology for each segment. The
historical net losses for a rolling two-year period is the basis for the general reserve for each segment which is adjusted for
each of the same qualitative factors (i.e., nature and volume of portfolio, economic and business conditions, classification,
past due and non-accrual trends) evaluated by each individual segment. Impaired loans and related specific reserves for each
of the segments are also evaluated using the same methodology for each segment. The qualitative factors added
approximately 11 and 20 basis points to the general reserve of the allowance for loan losses at December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Company will be unable
to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement.
Loans, for which the terms have been modified, and for which the borrower is experiencing financial difficulties, are
considered troubled debt restructurings and generally classified as impaired.

Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the probability of
collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays (loan
payments made within 90 days of the due date) and payment shortfalls (which are tracked as past due amounts) generally are
not classified as impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-
case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of
the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower’s prior payment record, the borrower’s and guarantor’s financial condition
and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed.

Charge-offs of loans are made by portfolio segment at the time that the collection of the full principal, in management’s
judgment, is doubtful. This methodology for determining charge-offs is consistently applied to each segment.

On a quarterly basis, management reviews the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. Commercial credits are graded by
risk management and the loan review function validates the assigned credit risk grades. In the event that a loan is
downgraded, it is included in the allowance analysis at the lower grade. To establish the appropriate level of the allowance,
we review and classify loans (including all impaired and non performing loans) as to potential loss exposure.

Our analysis of the allowance for loan losses consists of three components: (i) specific credit allocation established for
expected losses resulting from analysis developed through specific credit allocations on individual loans for which the
recorded investment in the loan exceeds the fair value; (ii) general portfolio allocation based on historical loan loss
experience for each loan category; and (iii) qualitative reserves based on general economic conditions as well as specific
economic factors in the markets in which we operate.
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The specific credit allocation component of the allowance for loan losses is based on a regular analysis of loans where the
loan is determined to be impaired as determined by management. The amount of impairment, if any, is determined based on
either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, the market price of the
loan, or, if the loan is collateral dependent, the fair value of the underlying collateral less cost of sale. Third party appraisals
are used to determine the fair value of underlying collateral. At a minimum a new appraisal is obtained annually for all
impaired loans based on an “as is” value. Generally no adjustments, other than a reduction for estimated disposal costs, are
made by the Company to third party appraisals to determine the fair value of the assets. The impact on the allowance for loan
losses of new appraisals are reflected in the period the appraisal is received. A loan may also be classified as substandard and
not be classified as impaired by management. A loan may be classified as substandard by management if, for example, the
primary source of repayment is insufficient, the financial condition of the borrower and/or guarantors has deteriorated or
there are chronic delinquencies. The following is a summary of our loan classifications at December 31, 2012 and 2011:

Loans Subject to Loss Sharing Agreements Loans Not Subject to Loss Sharing Agreements

Special Special

(Dollars in thousands) Total Pass Mention Substandard Pass Mention Substandard
December 31, 2012
Residential Real Estate......................... $ 165917 $ 80,215 § 2,578 $ 4,188 % 65,484 § 7,927 § 5,525
Commercial 179,498 32,080 405 540 135,488 6,516 4,469
Commercial Real Estate........................ 514,574 182,009 10,264 6,393 284,184 17,563 14,161
Construction and

Land Development:...........ccccccenennce 42,262 7,921 — 505 24,317 3,138 6,381
Consumer and other ..............cccccrunen.n. 11,290 11 — — 10,552 584 143

Total December 31, 2012................. $ 913,541 % 302,236 $ 13,247 § 11,626 $ 520,025 $ 35,728 § 30,679

Loans Subject to Loss Sharing Agreements Loans Not Subject to Loss Sharing Agreements
Special Special

(Dollars in thousands) Total Pass Mention Substandard Pass Mention Substandard
December 31,2011
Residential Real Estate............cccccouue.e. $ 196,511 $ 104,038 $ 1,363 § 4945 8% 65,930 §$ 11,016 $ 9,219
Commercial 170,183 42,097 999 1,241 103,800 7,823 14,223
Commercial Real Estate...............cccco.... 457,276 211,389 16,659 5,612 178,317 23,489 21,810
Construction and Land

Development: .........occcommmecrmrmececennnn 43,473 15,248 222 167 19,820 1,290 6,726
Consumer and other 12,093 1,079 — — 10,877 5 132

Total December 31, 2011................. $ 879,536 § 373,851 § 19,243 § 11,965 $ 378,744 § 43623 § 52,110

Substandard loans totaled $42.3 million at December 31, 2012 (of which $11.6 million were subject to the Loss Sharing
Agreements) and $64.1 million at December 31, 2011 (of which $12.0 million were subject to the Loss Sharing Agreements).
The decrease of $21.8 million since December 31, 2011 was primarily due to the resolution, including sales, payoffs and
transfers to other real estate owned, of loans not covered under Loss Sharing Agreements of $21.4 million through sale,
charge-off or foreclosure and transfer to OREO during the year. There was a slight decrease in substandard loans covered
under Loss Sharing Agreements of $339,000 from December 31, 2011 to December 31, 2012. We regularly evaluate the
classifications of loans and recommend either upgrades or downgrades to credits as events or circumstances warrant. In
addition, at December 31, 2012, we had $40.1 million (or 4.4% of total loans) in loans we classified as impaired. This
compares to $54.3 million or 6.2% of total loans at December 31, 2011. The decrease was primarily due to the resolution,
including sales, payoffs and transfers to other real estate owned, of loans during the year. At December 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2011, the specific credit allocation included in the allowance for loan losses for loans impaired was
approximately $3.1 million and $5.4 million, respectively. The specific credit allocation for impaired loans is adjusted based
on appraisals obtained at least annually. All loans classified as substandard that are collateralized by real estate are also re-
appraised at a minimum on an annual basis.

We also have loans classified as Special Mention. We classify loans as Special Mention if there are declining trends in the
borrower’s business, questions regarding condition or value of the collateral, or other weaknesses. At December 31, 2012, we
had $49.0 million (5.4% of outstanding loans), which included $13.2 million in loans subject to Loss Sharing Agreements,
which compares to $62.9 million (7.2% of outstanding loans) of which $19.2 million were subject to Loss Sharing
Agreements, at December 31, 2011. Special Mention loans not subject to Loss Sharing Agreements decreased by $7.9
million to $35.7 million at December 31, 2012, as compared to $43.6 at December 31, 2011. The decrease is attributable to
the resolution, including sales, payoffs and transfers to other real estate owned, of loans and ongoing reviews of loans
classified as special mention. If there is further deterioration on these loans, they may be classified substandard in the future,
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and depending on whether the loan is considered impaired, a specific credit allocation may be needed resulting in increased
provisions for loan losses. .

We determine the general portfolio allocation component of the allowance for loan losses statistically using a loss analysis
that examines historical loan loss experience adjusted for current environmental factors. We perform the loss analysis
quarterly and update loss factors regularly based on actual experience. The general portfolio allocation element of the
allowance for loan losses also includes consideration of the amounts necessary for concentrations and changes in portfolio
mix and volume.

We base the allowance for loan losses on estimates and ultimate realized losses may vary from current estimates. We review
these estimates quarterly, and as adjustments, either positive or negative, become necessary, we make a corresponding
increase or decrease in the provision for loan losses. The methodology used to determine the adequacy of the allowance for
loan losses is consistent with prior years.

Management remains watchful of credit quality issues. Should the economic climate deteriorate from current levels,
borrowers may experierice difficuity repaying loans. As a result, the level of non-performing loans, charge-offs and
delinquencies could rise: and require further increases in loan loss provisions.

During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, we recorded $6.4 million and $7.0 million, respectively, in provision
for loan losses primarily as a result of charge-offs during the period, changes within classified and impaired loans and a
moderation of real estate values on the underlying collateral of impaired loans.

During the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009, and 2008, the activity in our allowance for loan losses was as
follows:

(Dollars in thousands) Year ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Balance at beginning of period........cccccocceceeeunescnievenncne $ 12,836 $ 13,050 $ 13282 § 5799 $ 2,070
Provision charged to €Xpense .........cococceeevceeereesirueinns 6,350 7,000 13,520 13,240 1,910
Effect of aCqUISILION....c.ccviveveermrnrnreesnseseeresnssesessissassonse — — — — 2,731
Charge-offs .....c.coecvnericrinincirccinncnicrenieser e (9,826) (7,366) (13,933) (5,788) 915)
RECOVETIES ..covireiririn et esesceeeeaeseessssaeneonesees 428 152 181 31 3
Balance at end of period .........c.oceeveveeervirerrinrnnneninnne $ 9788 § 1283 $ 13,050 § 13282 §$§ 5799
Net charge-offs /average total loans ..........ccocvveiveinnen 1.01% 0.87% 2.01% 1.14% 0.21%

The following table reflects the allowance allocation per loan category and percent of loans in each category to total loans for
the periods indicated:

As of December 31, 2012:
Construction
Residential Commercial and Land Consumer
(Dollars in thousands) Commercial Real Estate Real Estate  Development and Other Total
Specific Reserves:
Impaired 10ans ...........ccocoeevrerrreierecinene. $ 510 $ 474 $ 1,128 § 1,002 §$ — $ 3114
Purchase credit impaired loans ............. 355 359 306 — — 1,020
Total specific reserves... 865 833 1,434 1,002 — 4,134
General reserves..........c.cooeevevvrevveevenenn 1,870 1,036 1,964 743 41 5,654
TOtal. ..ot ceeert e aesasnenens $ 2,735 § 1,869 § 3,398 §$ 1,745 $ 41 § 9,788
Total Loans........ . $ 179,498 § 165917 § 514,574 $ 42,262 § 11,290 $§ 913,541
Allowance as percent of lcans per ‘
category as of December 31,2012........ 1.52% 1.13% 0.66% 4.13% 0.36% 1.07%
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As of December 31, 2011:

Construction
Residential Commercial and Land Consumer
(Dollars in thousands) Commercial Real Estate Real Estate Development and Other Total
Specific Reserves:
Impaired loans .........cceceeveereeee. $ 1,719 § 188 $ 2,563 $ 892 $ — 3 5,362
Purchase credit impaired loans . — 110 542 — — 652
Total specific reserves............... 1,719 298 3,105 892 — 6,014
General reserves ..............couuuue...... 1,392 1,647 2,197 1,517 69 6,822
Total......coeeveererenenne $ 3,111 § 1,945 § 5302 §$ 2,409 $ 69 $ 12,836
Total Loans ) $ 170,183 $ 196,511 § 457276 $ 43473 $ 12,093 $ 879,536
Allowance as percent of loans
per category as of
December 31, 2011 ................... 1.83% 0.99% 1.16% 5.54% 0.57% 1.46%
As of December 31, 2010:
Construction
Residential Commercial and Land Consumer
(Dollars in thousands) Commercial Real Estate Real Estate Development and Other Total
Specific Reserves:
Impaired loans .........c.ccccueueenene $ 260 $ 1,781 $ 1,497 $ 822 § 108 $ 4,468
Purchase credit impaired loans . — 89 215 — — 304
Total specific reserves 260 1,870 1,712 822 108 4,772
General reserves .............ccouenne... 3,572 1,156 2,433 1,073 44 8,278
Total..... $ 3832 § 3,026 $ 4,145 § 1,895 § 152 $ 13,050
Total Loans.......ccc.ccooeveveeeecenncne $ 165,203 $ 228,354 § 434,855 $ 33,893 §$ 13,626 $ 875,931
Allowance as percent of loans
per category as of
December 31, 2010................... 2.32% 1.33% 0.95% 5.59% 1.12% 1.49%
(Dollars in thousands) December 31,
2009 2008
% of loans % of loans
in each in each
Amount category Amount category
Commercial 10ans .........ccoeemeeverennne $ 3,415 17% $ 636 20%
Real estate loans 8,973 81% 1,165 77%
Consumer loans 232 2% 48 3%
Other......... rereessreaeeeraareesaaseesane 662 — 221 —
Total ..o raaenae e $ 13,282 100% $ 2,070 100%

The decrease in the general reserves for construction and land development loans from $1.5 million at December 31, 2011 to
$743,000 at December 31, 2012 primarily related to the improvement in historical loss factors over the previous period. In
addition, the overall balance in loans held as construction and land development decreased from December 31, 2011 to
December 31, 2012 by $1.2 million which was driven by resolutions and payments of $10.5 million during the year, offset by
the addition of AFI balances of $8.7 million which did not have a general reserve at December 31, 2012.

The decrease in the allowance as a percentage of commercial real estate loans from December 31, 2011 to December 31,
2012 is due to the resolution and charge off of a loan in 2012 which had a specific reserve of approximately $1.4 million and
the inclusion of approximately $61.0 million in AFI loans in this category, for which no general reserve was allocated at
December 31, 2012. Excluding these loans, the allowance as a percentage of commercial real estate loans would be 0.75% at
December 31, 2012 as compared to 0.86% at December 31, 2011.
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The general reserve for commercial loans decreased to $1.39 million at December 31, 2011 from $3.57 million at
December 31, 2010, due to the transfer of loans and related reserves to impaired during the year.

The overall general reserve as a percentage of loans collectively evaluated for impairment was 0.72% at December 31, 2012
which compares to 0.95% at December 31, 2011 and 1.09% at December 31, 2010. Excluding loans acquired as a result of
the AFI merger on April 1, 2012, which as of December 31, 2012 did not have a general reserve allocated, the general reserve
as a percentage of loans collectively evaluated for impairment would be 0.82%. The 13 basis point decrease in this general
reserve ratio as compared to December 31, 2011 was primarily a result of a decrease of 22.1% ($13.9 million) in special
mention loans from December 31, 2011 to December 31, 2012 which have a higher allocation of general reserve and the
improvement in historical loss factors related to construction and land loans.

The following table reflects charge-offs and recoveries per loan category:

(Dollars in thousands) December 31,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Charge- Charge- Charge- Charge- Charge-
offs Recoveries offs Recoveries offs Recoveries offs Recoveries offs Recoveries
Commercial real estate ........ $ 3,159% 1108 1,937 % 358 2204 8% 468 2394 $ 28 6718 —
Residential real estate .......... 1,019 189 2,829 13 2,069 26 — — — —
Construction and land
development — 36 1,162 36 7,125 15 1,805 — — —
Commercial .........ccocceuennenc. 5,648 43 1,306 63 1,617 80 1,549 27 244 3
Consumer and others ........... — 50 132 5 918 14 40 2 — —
Total ...ccoeveeeeeiereeeiereereerenn e $ 9,826 §$ 428 $ 7,366 $ 152 $13,933 § 1818 5,788 $ 318 9158 3

Net charge-offs for the year ended December 31, 2012 were approximately $9.4 million compared to $7.2 million for the
year ended December 31, 2011. During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company strategically resolved an $11.4
million non-performing loan collateralized by 15 gas stations through acceptance of a bulk sale offer at below appraised
values. The resolution resulted in a $5.4 million charge off during the year.

Deposits

We maintain a full range of deposit products, accounts and services to meet the needs of the residents and businesses in our
primary service area. Products include an array of checking account programs for individuals and small businesses, including
money market accounts, certificates of deposit, IRA accounts, and sweep investment capabilities. We seek to make our
services convenient to the community by offering 24-hour ATM access at some of our facilities, access to other ATM
networks available at other local financial institutions and retail establishments, telephone banking services to include
account inquiry and balance transfers, and courier service to certain customers who meet minimum qualifications. We also
take advantage of the use of technology by allowing our customers banking access via the Internet and various advanced
systems for cash management for our business customers. The rapid decline in the price of technology is now allowing
smaller banks the ability to offer many of the sophisticated products previously only available to customers of large banks. It
is our strategy to have a mix of core deposits, which favors non-interest bearing deposits in the range of 15% to 30% of total
deposits with time deposits comprising 50% or less of total core deposits. This strategy, to be successful, requires high levels
of relationship banking supported by strong distribution and product strategies. At December 31, 2012, we had approximately
$315.4 million in deposits by foreign nationals banking in the United States which were primarily assumed as part of the
TBOM and Republic transactions. At December 31, 2012, we had no wholesale certificates of deposit. However, 1% United
participates in the Certification of Deposit Account Registration System (“CDARS”) and maintained $24.9 million of
reciprocal deposits at December 31, 2012.
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As of December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, the average distribution by type of our deposit accounts was as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) December 31,
2012 2011 2010

Average Avg Average Avg Average Avg

Balance Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate
Noninterest bearing accounts $ 385,066 — $ 325277 — $ 222970 —
Interest bearing accounts
NOW accounts........ccccoeerirreenreesesreresseressseeenes $ 154,687 0.15% $ 125267 0.18% $ 108,275 0.18%
Money market accounts.............coeevveeeeereereenennen 338,242 0.46% 278,104 0.79% 180,999 0.95%
Savings accounts...........oeeeerererrererennnns 63,736 0.30% 44,696 0.53% 37,270 0.61%
Certificates of deposit.........cccoceeeeeenerrenienennne 336,970 0.98% 297,806 1.12% 301,428 1.70%
Average interest bearing deposits $ 893,695 0.59% § 745,873 0.80% $ 627,972 1.16%
Average total deposits...........ccccceceererueeeuernnnenne $ 1,278,701 041% $ 1,071,150 0.56% $ 850,942 0.86%

As of December 31, 2012, certificates of deposit of $100,000 or more mature as follows:

Weighted
Average
(Dollars in thousands) Amount Rate
Up to 3 months $ 51,351 0.82%
3 to 6 months.......... 45,595 1.19%
610 12 MONLNS ...ooerriineiiirieeeeeee et trees s ses e 64,599 1.11%
Over 12 months 46,298 1.44%
$ 207,843 1.13%

Maturity terms, service fees and withdrawal penalties are established by us on a periodic basis. The determination of rates
and terms is predicated on funds acquisition and liquidity requirements, rates paid by competitors, growth goals and federal

regulations.

Borrowings

The following tables reflect borrowing activity for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010:

(Dollars in thousands) December 31,2012 December 31, 2011
Avg Avg
Weighted YTD Rate Weighted YTD Rate
Actual  Avg Rate Avg Paid Actual  Avg Rate Avg Paid
Repurchase agreements $ 19,855 0.12% $ 11,779 0.13% $ 8,746 0.13% $ 11,998 0.13%
FHLB advances ............. — 4.68% 137 4.60% 5,000 4.60% 5,000 4.60%
Other borrowings.......cceeeveeeevecrecvennene. — — — — — — 4,053 2.80%
Total ....... $ 19,855 $ 11916 $ 13,746 $ 21,051
December 31, 2010
Avg
Weighted YTD Rate
Actual Avg Rate Avg Paid
RePUIChASE QZIEEIMENLS ........ccvoueueueecrrueuircirietseseeueaenenentttetetasesenencatetssaststassasasasasmtacasssnsens $ 12,886 0.16% $ 14,227 0.16%
Fed FUnds pUrChased ............covviceeinenenierinieiensecsseestsesssssssssesessssessesessssesesssessssssessanssssseses — — 1 0.35%
FHLB advances ..........coceeeeveereerererrenesesesersonas 5,000 4.60% 5,000 4.68%
Other borrowings..........ccceeeeeeeecevrnennne 4,750 2.75% 5,141 4.40%
TOAL c.ecerriireierereeeeereesreresresesassesessesaseesesssssnsssanen $ 22,636 $ 24,369
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Maximum balance at any given month end during the periods of analysis is reflected in the following tables:

(Dollars in thousands) December 31,
2012 2011 2010
Maximum Balance at Maximum Balance at Maximum Balance
any month-end any month-end at any month-end

Repurchase agreements.............c.c..ee... $ 20,201 Nov-12 § 17,405 Jan-11$§ 22,849 Jan-10
Fed Funds purchased .........cococveuenenns — — — — 100 Aug-10
FHLB advances ........cccooueeeevveervevnneenns — — 5,000 Jan-11 5,000 Mar-10
Other borrowings.........c.ccccvuecruciinienins — —_ 4,750 Jan-11 5,036 Jan-10
Competition

Commercial banking in Florida, including our market, is highly competitive, due in large part to Florida’s historical profile of
population growth and wealth. Our markets contain not only community banks, but also significant numbers of the country’s
largest commercial and wealth management/trust banks.

Interest rates, both on loans and deposits, and prices of fee-based services are significant competitive factors among financial
institutions generally. Other important competitive factors include office location, office hours, the quality of customer
service, community reputation, continuity of personnel and services, and, in the case of larger commercial customers, relative
lending limits and the ability to offer sophisticated cash management and other commercial banking services. Many of our
larger competitors have greater resources, broader geographic markets, more extensive branch networks, and higher lending
limits than we do. They also can offer more products and services and can better afford and make more effective use of media
advertising, support services and electronic technology than we can.

Our largest competitors in the market include Wells Fargo & Company, Bank of America Corporation, SunTrust Banks Inc.,
PNC Bank, Citigroup Inc., JPMorgan Chase & Co., Regions Financial Corporation, Raymond James Financial, Inc.,
BankUnited, Inc. and BB&T Corporation. These institutions capture the majority of the deposits in the market. According to
data provided by the FDIC, as of June 30, 2012, the latest date for which data was publicly available, our market share, on a
pro forma basis, was less than 2% in each county where we operate. As of June 30, 2012, there were a total of 166 depository
institutions operating in our markets. We believe that community banks can compete successfully by providing personalized
service and making timely, local decisions and thus draw business away from larger institutions in the market. We also
believe that further consolidation in the banking industry is likely to create additional opportunities for community banks to
capture deposits from affected customers who may become dissatisfied as their financial institutions change ownership. In
addition, we believe that the continued growth of our banking markets affords us an opportunity to capture new deposits from
new residents.

Seasonalii
We do not believe our base of business to be seasonal in nature.
Marketing and Distribution

In order to market our deposit products, we use local print advertising, provide sales incentives for our employees and offer
special events to generate customer traffic.

Our Board of Directors and management team realize the importance of forging partnerships within the community as a
method of expanding our customer base and serving the needs of our community. In this regard, we are an active participant
in various community activities and organizations. Participation in such events and organizations allows management to
determine what additional products and services are needed in our community as well as assisting in our efforts to determine
credit needs in accordance with the Community Reinvestment Act.
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Regulatory Considerations

We must comply with state and federal banking laws and regulations that control virtually all aspects of our operations.
These laws and regulations generally aim to protect our depositors, not necessarily our shareholders or our creditors. Any
changes in applicable laws or regulations may materially affect our business and prospects. Proposed legislative or
regulatory changes may also affect our operations. The following description summarizes some of the laws and regulations
to which we are subject. References to applicable statutes and regulations are brief summaries, do not purport to be
complete, and are qualified in their entirety by reference to such statutes and regulations.

Proposed Changes to Regulatory Capital Requirements

In June 2012, the federal banking agencies issued a series of proposed rules to conform U.S. regulatory capital rules with the
international regulatory standards agreed to by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision in the accord referred to as
“Basel III”. The proposed revisions, if adopted, would establish new higher capital ratio requirements, narrow the definitions
of capital, impose new operating restrictions on banking organizations with insufficient capital buffers and increase the risk
weighting of certain assets. The proposed new capital requirements would apply to all banks, savings associations, bank
holding companies with more than $500 million in assets and all savings and loan holding companies regardless of asset

size. It is unclear whether, if, or in what form Basel III will be adopted. A summary of the proposed regulatory changes is set
forth below.

. New and Increased Capital Requirements. The proposed rules would establish a new capital measure called
“Common Equity Tier I Capital” consisting of common stock and related surplus, retained earnings,
accumulated other comprehensive income and, subject to certain adjustments, minority common equity
interests in subsidiaries. Unlike the current rules which exclude unrealized gains and losses on available-
for-sale debt securities from regulatory capital, the proposed rules would generally require accumulated
other comprehensive income to flow through to regulatory capital. Depository institutions and their
holding companies would be required to maintain Common Equity Tier I Capital equal to 4.5% of risk-
weighted assets by 2015. Additionally, the proposed regulations would increase the required ratio of Tier I
Capital to risk-weighted assets from the current 4% to 6% by 2015. Tier I Capital would consist of
Common Equity Tier I Capital plus Additional Tier I Capital which would include non-cumulative
perpetual preferred stock. Neither cumulative preferred stock (other than certain preferred stock issued to
the U.S. Treasury) nor trust preferred securities would qualify as Additional Tier I Capital but could be
included in Tier II Capital along with qualifying subordinated debt. The proposed regulations would also
require a minimum Tier I leverage ratio of 4% for all institutions. The minimum required ratio of total
capital to risk-weighted assets would remain at 8%.

- Capital Buffer Requirement. In addition to increased capital requirements, depository institutions and their
holding companies may be required to maintain a capital buffer of at least 2.5% of risk-weighted assets
over and above the minimum risk-based capital requirements. Institutions that do not maintain the required
capital buffer would be subject to progressively more stringent limitations on the percentage of earnings
that can be paid out in dividends or used for stock repurchases and on the payment of discretionary bonuses
to senior executive management. The capital buffer requirement would be phased in over a four-year
period beginning in 2016. The capital buffer requirement effectively raises the minimum required risk-
based capital ratios to 7% Common Equity Tier I Capital, 8.5% Tier I Capital and 10.5% Total Capital on a
fully phased-in basis.

. Changes to Prompt Corrective Action Capital Categories. The Prompt Corrective Action rules would be
amended to incorporate a Common Equity Tier I Capital requirement and to raise the capital requirements
for certain capital categories. In order to be adequately capitalized for purposes of the prompt corrective
action rules, a banking organization would be required to have at least an 8% Total Risk-Based Capital
Ratio, a 6% Tier I Risk-Based Capital Ratio, a 4.5% Common Equity Tier I Risk Based Capital Ratio and a
4% Tier I Leverage Ratio. To be well capitalized, a banking organization would be required to have at
least a 10% Total Risk-Based Capital Ratio, an 8% Tier I Risk-Based Capital Ratio, a 6.5% Common
Equity Tier I Risk-Based Capital Ratio and a 5% Tier I Leverage Ratio.
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. Additional Deductions from Capital. Banking organizations would be required to deduct goodwill and
certain other intangible assets, net of associated deferred tax liabilities, from Common Equity Tier I
Capital. Deferred tax assets arising from temporary timing differences that could not be realized through
net operating loss (“NOL”) carrybacks would continue to be deducted but deferred tax assets that could be
realized through NOL carrybacks would not be deducted but would be subject to 100% risk
weighting. Defined benefit pension fund assets, net of any associated deferred tax liability, would be
deducted from Common Equity Tier I Capital unless the banking organization has unrestricted and
unfettered access to such assets. Reciprocal cross-holdings of capital instruments in any other financial
institutions would now be deducted from capital, not just holdings in other depository institutions. For this
purpose, financial institutions are broadly defined to include securities and commodities firms, hedge and
private equity funds and non-depository lenders. Banking organizations would also be required to deduct
non-significant investments (less than 10% of outstanding stock) in other financial institutions to the extent
these exceed 10% of Common Equity Tier I Capital subject to a 15% of Common Equity Tier I Capital
cap. Greater than 10% investments must be deducted if they exceed 10% of Common Equity Tier I
Capital. If the aggregate amount of certain items excluded from capital deduction due to a 10% threshold
exceeds 17.65% of Common Equity Tier I Capital, the excess must be deducted.

. Changes in Risk-Weightings. The proposed rules would apply a 250% risk-weighting to mortgage
servicing rights, deferred tax assets that cannot be realized through NOL carrybacks and significant (greater
than 10%) investments in other financial institutions. The proposal also would also change the risk-
weighting for residential mortgages and would create a new 150% risk-weighting category for “high
volatility commercial real estate loans” which are credit facilities for the acquisition, construction or
development of real property other than one- to four-family residential properties or commercial real
projects where: (i) the loan-to-value ratio is not in excess of interagency real estate lending standards; and
(ii) the borrower has contributed capital equal to not less than 15% of the real estate’s “as completed” value
before the loan was made.

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010

On July 21, 2010, President Obama signed into law the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of
2010 (the “Dodd-Frank Act”). The Dodd-Frank Act will continue to have a broad impact on the financial services industry as
a result of the significant regulatory and compliance changes including, among other things, (i) enhanced resolution authority
over troubled and failing banks and their holding companies; (ii) increased capital and liquidity requirements; (iii) increased
regulatory examination fees; (iv) changes to assessments to be paid to the FDIC for federal deposit insurance; and (v)
numerous other provisions designed to improve supervision and oversight of, and strengthening safety and soundness for, the
financial services sector. Additionally, the Dodd-Frank Act establishes a new framework for systemic risk oversight within
the financial system to be distributed among new and existing federal regulatory agencies, including the Financial Stability
Oversight Council, the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the “F ederal Reserve”), the Office of the
Comptroller of the Currency, and the FDIC. A summary of certain provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act is set forth below, along
with information set forth in applicable sections of this “Regulatory Considerations” section.

. Minimum Capital Requirements and Enhanced Supervision. On June 14, 2011, the federal banking
agencies published a final rule regarding minimum leverage and risk-based capital requirements for banks
and btank holding companies consistent with the requirements of Section 171 of the Dodd-Frank Act. For a
more detailed description of the minimum capital requirements see “Regulatory Considerations — 1* United
Bank — Capital Regulations”. The Dodd-Frank Act also increased regulatory oversight, supervision and
examination of banks, bank holding companies and their respective subsidiaries by the appropriate
regulatory agency.

. Changes in Capital Treatment of Trust Preferred Securities. Dodd-Frank requires all trust preferred

securities, or TRUPs, issued by bank or thrift holding companies after May 19, 2010 to be counted as Tier
II Capital.
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. The Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (“Bureau”). The Dodd-Frank Act created the Bureau within
the Federal Reserve. The Bureau is tasked with establishing and implementing rules and regulations under
certain federal consumer protection laws with respect to the conduct of providers of certain consumer
financial products and services. The Bureau has rulemaking authority over many of the statutes governing
products and services offered to bank consumers. In addition, the Dodd-Frank Act permits states to adopt
consumer protection laws and regulations that are more stringent than those regulations promulgated by the
Bureau and state attorneys general are permitted to enforce consumer protection rules adopted by the
Bureau against state-chartered institutions. Because this is an entirely new agency, the impact on us is
largely uncertain. However, any new regulatory requirements or modified interpretations of existing
regulations will affect our consumer business practices and operations potentially resulting in increased
compliance costs.

. Deposit Insurance. The Dodd-Frank Act makes permanent the $250,000 deposit insurance limit for insured
deposits. Amendments to the Federal Deposit Insurance Act also revise the assessment base against which
an insured depository institution’s deposit insurance premiums paid to the Deposit Insurance Fund (“DIF”)
will be calculated. Under the amendments, the assessment base will no longer be the institution’s deposit
base, but rather its average consolidated total assets less its average tangible equity during the assessment
period. Additionally, the Dodd-Frank Act makes changes to the minimum designated reserve ratio of the
DIF, increasing the minimum from 1.15 percent to 1.35 percent of the estimated amount of total insured
deposits and eliminating the requirement that the FDIC pay dividends to depository institutions when the
reserve ratio exceeds certain thresholds. In December 2010, the FDIC increased the designated reserve ratio
to 2.0 percent.

. Payment of Interest on Demand Deposits. On July 21, 2011, the Federal Reserve’s final rule repealing
Regulation Q, Prohibition Against Payment of Interest on Demand Deposits, became effective. Regulation
Q was promulgated to implement the statutory prohibition against payment of interest on demand deposits
by institutions that are member banks of the Federal Reserve.

. Transactions with Affiliates. The Dodd-Frank Act enhances the requirements for certain transactions with
affiliates under Section 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act, including an expansion of the definition
of “covered transactions” and increasing the amount of time for which collateral requirements regarding
covered transactions must be maintained. These requirements became effective on July 21, 2011.

. Transactions with Insiders. Insider transaction limitations are expanded through the strengthening of loan
restrictions to insiders and the expansion of the types of transactions subject to the various limits, including
derivative transactions, repurchase agreements, reverse repurchase agreements and securities lending or
borrowing transactions. Restrictions are also placed on certain asset sales to and from an insider to an
institution, including requirements that such sales be on market terms and, in certain circumstances,
approved by the institution’s board of directors. These requirements became effective on July 21, 2011.

. Enhanced Lending Limits. The Dodd-Frank Act strengthened the previous limits on a depository
institution’s credit exposure to one borrower which limited a depository institution’s ability to extend credit
to one person (or group of related persons) in an amount exceeding certain thresholds. The Dodd-Frank Act
expanded the scope of these restrictions to include credit exposure arising from derivative transactions,
repurchase agreements, and securities lending and borrowing transactions.

. Compensation Practices. The Dodd-Frank Act provides that the appropriate federal regulators must
establish standards prohibiting as an unsafe and unsound practice any compensation plan of a bank holding
company or other “covered financial institution” that provides an insider or other employee with “excessive
compensation” or compensation that gives rise to excessive risk or could lead to a material financial loss to
such firm. In June 2010, prior to the Dodd-Frank Act, the bank regulatory agencies promulgated the
Interagency Guidance on Sound Incentive Compensation Policies, which requires that financial institutions
establish metrics for measuring the impact of activities to achieve incentive compensation with the related
risk to the financial institution of such behavior. Together, the Dodd-Frank Act and the recent guidance on
compensation may impact the current compensation policies at 1% United.

Although a significant number of the rules and regulations mandated by the Dodd-Frank Act have been finalized, many of the
new requirements called for have yet to be implemented and will likely be subject to implementing regulations over the
course of several years. Given the uncertainty associated with the manner in which the provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act will
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be implemented by the various regulatory agencies, the full extent of the impact such requirements will have on financial
institutions’ operations is unclear. The changes resulting from the Dodd-Frank Act may impact the profitability of our
business activities, require changes to certain of our business practices, impose upon us more stringent capital, liquidity and
leverage ratio requirements or otherwise adversely affect our business. These changes may also require us to invest
significant management attention and resources to evaluate and make necessary changes in order to comply with new
statutory and regulatory requirements.

The Company

We are registered with the Federal Reserve as a financial holding company under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act and are
registered with the Federal Reserve as a bank holding company under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956. As a result,
we are subject to supervisory regulation and examination by the Federal Reserve. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, the Bank
Holding Company Act, and other federal laws subject financial holding companies to particular restrictions on the types of
activities in which they may engage, and to a range of supervisory requirements and activities, including regulatory
enforcement actions for violations of laws and regulations.

Permitted Activities.

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act modernized the U.S. banking system by: (i) allowing bank holding companies that qualify as
“financial holding companies” to engage in a broad range of financial and related activities; (ii) allowing insurers and other
financial service companies to acquire banks; (iii) removing restrictions that applied to bank holding company ownership of
securities firms and mutual fund advisory companies; and (iv) establishing the overall regulatory scheme applicable to bank
holding companies that also engage in insurance and securities operations. The general effect of the law was to establish a
comprehensive framework to permit affiliations among commercial banks, insurance companies, securities firms, and other
financial service providers. Activities that are financial in nature are broadly defined to include not only banking, insurance, and
securities activities, but also merchant banking and additional activities that the Federal Reserve, in consultation with the
Secretary of the Treasury, determines to be financial in nature, incidental to such financial activities, or complementary activities
that do not pose a substantial risk to the safety and soundness of depository institutions or the financial system generally.

In contrast to financial holding companies, bank holding companies are limited to managing or controlling banks, furnishing
services to or performing services for its subsidiaries, and engaging in other activities that the Federal Reserve determines by
regulation or order to be so closely related to banking or managing or controlling banks as to be a proper incident thereto. In
determining whether a particular activity is permissible, the Federal Reserve must consider whether the performance of such
an activity reasonably can be expected to produce benefits to the public that outweigh possible adverse effects. Possible
benefits include greater convenience, increased competition, and gains in efficiency. Possible adverse effects include undue
concentration of resources, decreased or unfair competition, conflicts of interest, and unsound banking practices. Despite
prior approval, the Federal Reserve may order a bank holding company or its subsidiaries to terminate any activity or to
terminate ownership or control of any subsidiary when the Federal Reserve has reasonable cause to believe that a serious risk
to the financial safety, soundness or stability of any bank subsidiary of that bank holding company may result from such an
activity.

Changes in Control.

Subject to certain exceptions, the Bank Holding Company Act and the Change in Bank Control Act, together with the
applicable regulations, require Federal Reserve approval (or, depending on the circumstances, no notice of disapproval) prior
to any person or company acquiring “control” of a bank or bank holding company. A conclusive presumption of control
exists if an individual or company acquires the power, directly or indirectly, to direct the management or policies of an
insured depository institution or to vote 25% or more of any class of voting securities of any insured depository institution. A
rebuttable presumption of control exists if a person or company acquires 10% or more but less than 25% of any class of
voting securities of an insured depository institution and either the institution has registered securities under Section 12 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or as we will refer to as the Exchange Act, or no other person will own a greater percentage
of that class of voting securities immediately after the acquisition. Our common stock is registered under Section 12 of the
Exchange Act.

The Federal Reserve maintains a policy statement on minority equity investments in banks and bank holding companies, that
generally permits investors to (i) acquire up to 33 percent of the total equity of a target bank or bank holding company,
subject to certain conditions, including (but not limited to) that the investing firm does not acquire 15 percent or more of any
class of voting securities, and (ii) designate at least one director, without triggering the various regulatory requirements
associated with control.
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As a bank holding company, we are required to obtain prior approval from the Federal Reserve before (i) acquiring all or
substantially all of the assets of a bank or bank holding company, (ii) acquiring direct or indirect ownership or control of
more than 5% of the outstanding voting stock of any bank or bank holding company (unless we own a majority of such
bank’s voting shares), or (iii) merging or consolidating with any other bank or bank holding company. In determining
whether to approve a proposed bank acquisition, federal bank regulators will consider, among other factors, the effect of the
acquisition on competition, the public benefits expected to be received from the acquisition, the projected capital ratios and
levels on a post-acquisition basis, and the acquiring institution’s record of addressing the credit needs of the communities it
serves, including the needs of low and moderate income neighborhoods, consistent with the safe and sound operation of the
bank, under the Community Reinvestment Act of 1977.

Under Florida law, a person or entity proposing to directly or indirectly acquire control of a Florida bank must also obtain
permission from the Florida Office of Financial Regulation. Florida statutes define “control” as either (i) indirectly or directly
owning, controlling or having power to vote 25% or more of the voting securities of a bank; (ii) controlling the election of a
majority of directors of a bank; (iii) owning, controlling, or having power to vote 10% or more of the voting securities as well
as directly or indirectly exercising a controlling influence over management or policies of a bank; or (iv) as determined by the
Florida Office of Financial Regulation. These requirements will affect us because 1* United is chartered under Florida law
and changes in control of us are indirect changes in control of 1* United.

Tying.

Bank holding companies and their affiliates are prohibited from tying the provision of certain services, such as extending
credit, to other services or products offered by the holding company or its affiliates, such as deposit products.

Capital; Dividends; Source of Strength.

The Federal Reserve imposes certain capital requirements on bank holding companies under the Bank Holding Company
Act, including a minimum leverage ratio and a minimum ratio of “qualifying” capital to risk-weighted assets. These
requirements are described below under “Capital Regulations.” Subject to its capital requirements and certain other
restrictions, we are able to borrow money to make a capital contribution to 1% United, and such loans may be repaid from
dividends paid from 1* United to us.

The ability of 1% United to pay dividends, however, is subject to regulatory restrictions that are described below under
“Dividends.” We are also able to raise capital for contributions to 1* United by issuing securities without having to receive
regulatory approval, subject to compliance with federal and state securities laws.

In accordance with Federal Reserve policy, which has been codified by the Dodd-Frank Act, we are expected to act as a
source of financial strength to 1* United and to commit resources to support 1% United in circumstances in which we might
not otherwise do so. In furtherance of this policy, the Federal Reserve may require a financial holding company to terminate
any activity or relinquish control of a nonbank subsidiary (other than a nonbank subsidiary of a bank) upon the Federal
Reserve’s determination that such activity or control constitutes a serious risk to the financial soundness or stability of any
subsidiary depository institution of the bank holding company. Further, federal bank regulatory authorities have additional
discretion to require a financial holding company to divest itself of any bank or nonbank subsidiary if the agency determines
that divestiture may aid the depository institution’s financial condition.

1" United Bank

1* United is a banking institution that is chartered by and headquartered in the State of Florida, and it is subject to supervision
and regulation by the Florida Office of Financial Regulation. The Florida Office of Financial Regulation supervises and
regulates all areas of 1* United’s operations including, without limitation, the making of loans, the issuance of securities, the
conduct of 1* United’s corporate affairs, the satisfaction of capital adequacy requirements, the payment of dividends, and the
establishment or closing of banking centers. 1* United is also a member bank of the Federal Reserve System, which makes 1°*
United’s operations subject to broad federal regulation and oversight by the Federal Reserve. In addition, 1* United’s deposit
accounts are insured by the FDIC to the maximum extent permitted by law, and the FDIC has certain enforcement powers
over 1* United.

As a state-chartered banking institution in the State of Florida, 1* United is empowered by statute, subject to the limitations
contained in those statutes, to take and pay interest on, savings and time deposits, to accept demand deposits, to make loans
on residential and other real estate, to make consumer and commercial loans, to invest, with certain limitations, in equity

securities and in debt obligations of banks and corporations and to provide various other banking services for the benefit of
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1* United’s customers. Various consumer laws and regulations also affect the operations of 1* United, including state usury
laws, laws relating to fiduciaries, consumer credit and equal credit opportunity laws, and fair credit reporting. In addition, the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 (“FDICIA”) prohibits insured state chartered institutions
from conducting activities as principal that are not permitted for national banks. A bank, however, may engage in an
otherwise prohibited activity if it meets its minimum capital requirements and the FDIC determines that the activity does not
present a significant risk to the Deposit Insurance Fund.

Reserves.

The Federal Reserve requires all depository institutions to maintain reserves against some transaction accounts (primarily
NOW and Super NOW checking accounts). The balances maintained to meet the reserve requirements imposed by the
Federal Reserve may be used to satisfy liquidity requirements. An institution may borrow from the Federal Reserve Bank
“discount window” as a secondary source of funds, provided that the institution meets the Federal Reserve Bank’s credit
standards.

Dividends.

1* United is subject to legal limitations on the frequency and amount of dividends that can be paid to us. The Federal Reserve
may restrict the ability of 1* United to pay dividends if such payments would constitute an unsafe or unsound banking
practice. These regulations and restrictions may limit our ability to obtain funds from 1* United for our cash needs, including
funds for acquisitions and the payment of dividends, interest, and operating expenses.

In addition, Florida law also places restrictions on the declaration of dividends from state chartered banks to their holding
companies. Pursuant to the Florida Financial Institutions Code, the board of directors of state-chartered banks, after charging
off bad debts, depreciation and other worthless assets, if any, and making provisions for reasonably anticipated future losses
on loans and other assets, may quarterly, semi-annually or annually declare a dividend of up to the aggregate net profits of
that period combined with the bank’s retained net profits for the preceding two years and, with the approval of the Florida
Office of Financial Regulation and Federal Reserve, declare a dividend from retained net profits which accrued prior to the
preceding two years. Before declaring such dividends, 20% of the net profits for the preceding period as is covered by the
dividend must be transferred to the surplus fund of the bank until this fund becomes equal to the amount of the bank’s
common stock then issued and outstanding. A state-chartered bank may not declare any dividend if (i) its net income (loss)
from the current year combined with the retained net income (loss) for the preceding two years aggregates a loss or (ii) the
payment of such dividend would cause the capital account of the bank to fall below the minimum amount required by law,
regulation, order or any written agreement with the Florida Office of Financial Regulation or a federal regulatory agency.

Insurance of Accounts and Other Assessments.

We pay our deposit insurance assessments to the Deposit Insurance Fund, which is determined through a risk-based
assessment system. Our deposit accounts are currently insured by the Deposit Insurance Fund generally up to a maximum of
$250,000 per separately insured depositor.

Beginning in November 2008, the FDIC issued a final rule under its Transaction Account Guarantee Program (“TAGP”),
pursuant to which the FDIC fully guaranteed all non-interest bearing transaction deposit accounts, including all personal and
business checking deposit accounts that do not earn interest, lawyer trust accounts where interest does not accrue to the
account owner (IOLTA), and NOW accounts with interest rates no higher than 0.25%. Thus, under TAGP, all money in these
accounts were fully insured by the FDIC regardless of dollar amount. This increase to coverage was originally in effect
through December 31, 2009, but was extended several times until it expired on December 31, 2012.

Under the current assessment system, the FDIC assigns an institution to one of four risk categories designed to measure risk.
Total base assessment rates currently range from 0.025% of deposits for an institution in the highest rated sub-category of the
highest rated category to 0.45% of deposits for an institution in the lowest rated category. On November 12, 2009, the FDIC
adopted a new rule requiring insured institutions to prepay on December 30, 2009, estimated quarterly risk-based assessments
for the fourth quarter of 2009 and for all of 2010, 2011, and 2012. We prepaid an assessment of $3.3 million, which
incorporated a uniform 3.00 basis point increase effective January 1, 2011 and assumed 5% annual deposit growth.

In addition, all FDIC insured institutions are required to pay assessments to the FDIC at an annual rate of approximately six
tenths of a basis point of insured deposits to fund interest payments on bonds issued by the Financing Corporation, an agency
of the federal government established to recapitalize the predecessor to the Savings Association Insurance Fund. These
assessments will continue until the Financing Corporation bonds mature in 2017 through 2019.

32



Under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act (the “FDIA”), the FDIC may terminate deposit insurance upon a finding that the
institution has engaged in unsafe and unsound practices, is in an unsafe or unsound condition to continue operations, or has
violated any applicable law, regulation, rule, order or condition imposed by the FDIC.

Transactions With Affiliates.

Pursuant to Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act and Regulation W, the authority of 1¥ United to engage in
transactions with related parties or “affiliates” or to make loans to insiders is limited. Loan transactions with an “affiliate”
generally must be collateralized and certain transactions between 1% United and its “affiliates”, including the sale of assets,
the payment of money or the provision of services, must be on terms and conditions that are substantially the same, or at least
as favorable to 1 United, as those prevailing for comparable nonaffiliated transactions. In addition, 1¥ United generally may
not purchase securities issued or underwritten by affiliates.

Loans to executive officers, directors or to any person who directly or indirectly, or acting through or in concert with one or
more persons, owns, controls or has the power to vote more than 10% of any class of voting securities of a bank, which we
refer to as “10% Shareholders”, or to any political or campaign committee the funds or services of which will benefit those
executive officers, directors, or 10% Shareholders or which is controlled by those executive officers, directors or 10%
Shareholders, are subject to Sections 22(g) and 22(h) of the Federal Reserve Act and their corresponding regulations
(Regulation O) and Section 13(k) of the Exchange Act relating to the prohibition on personal loans to executives (which
exempts financial institutions in compliance with the insider lending restrictions of Section 22(h) of the Federal Reserve Act).
Among other things, these loans must be made on terms substantially the same as those prevailing on transactions made to
unaffiliated individuals and certain extensions of credit to those persons must first be approved in advance by a disinterested
majority of the entire board of directors. Section 22(h) of the Federal Reserve Act prohibits loans to any of those individuals
where the aggregate amount exceeds an amount equal to 15% of an institution’s unimpaired capital and surplus plus an
additional 10% of unimpaired capital and surplus in the case of loans that are fully secured by readily marketable collateral,
or when the aggregate amount on all of the extensions of credit outstanding to all of these persons would exceed 1% United’s
unimpaired capital and unimpaired surplus. Section 22(g) identifies limited circumstances in which 1* United is permitted to
extend credit to executive officers.

Community Reinvestment Act.

The Community Reinvestment Act and its corresponding regulations are intended to encourage banks to help meet the credit
needs of their service area, including low and moderate income neighborhoods, consistent with the safe and sound operations
of the banks. These regulations provide for regulatory assessment of a bank’s record in meeting the credit needs of its service
area. Federal banking agencies are required to make public a rating of a bank’s performance under the Community
Reinvestment Act. The Federal Reserve considers a bank’s Community Reinvestment Act rating when the bank submits an
application to establish banking centers, merge, or acquire the assets and assume the liabilities of another bank. In the case of
a financial holding company, the Community Reinvestment Act performance record of all banks involved in the merger or
acquisition are reviewed in connection with the filing of an application to acquire ownership or control of shares or assets of
a bank or to merge with any other financial holding company. An unsatisfactory record can substantially delay or block the
transaction. 1* United received a satisfactory rating on its most recent Community Reinvestment Act assessment.

Capital Regulations.

The Federal Reserve has adopted risk-based capital adequacy guidelines for financial holding companies and their subsidiary
state-chartered banks that are members of the Federal Reserve System. As described above, the federal banking regulators
have issued proposed rules that, if adopted, would change these capital requirements to substantially conform with the Basel
III international standards. However, final rules have not yet been adopted and, therefore, the new and heightened Basel III
capital requirements are not yet applicable.

The current guidelines require all financial holding companies and federally regulated banks to maintain a minimum risk-
based total capital ratio equal to 8%, of which at least 4% must be Tier I Capital. Tier I Capital, which includes common
shareholders’ equity, noncumulative perpetual preferred stock, and a limited amount of cumulative perpetual preferred stock
and certain trust preferred securities, less certain goodwill items and other intangible assets, is required to equal at least 4% of
risk-weighted assets. The remainder (“Tier II Capital””) may consist of (i) an allowance for loan losses of up to 1.25% of risk-
weighted assets, (ii) excess of qualifying perpetual preferred stock, (iii) hybrid capital instruments, (iv) perpetual debt, (v)
mandatory convertible securities, and (vi) subordinated debt and intermediate-term preferred stock up to 50% of Tier I
Capital. Total capital is the sum of Tier I and Tier II Capital less reciprocal holdings of other banking organizations’ capital
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instruments, investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and any other deductions as determined by the appropriate regulator
(determined on a case by case basis or as a matter of policy after formal rule making).

In computing total risk-weighted assets, bank and financial holding company assets are given risk-weights of 0%, 20%, 50%
and 100%. In addition, certain off-balance sheet items are given similar credit conversion factors to convert them to asset
equivalent amounts to which an appropriate risk-weight will apply. Most loans will be assigned to the 100% risk category,
except for performing first mortgage loans fully secured by 1- to 4-family and certain multi-family residential property,
which carry a 50% risk rating. Most investment securities (including, primarily, general obligation claims on states or other
political subdivisions of the United States) will be assigned to the 20% category, except for municipal or state revenue bonds,
which have a 50% risk-weight, and direct obligations of the U.S. Treasury or obligations backed by the full faith and credit of
the U.S. Government, which have a 0% risk-weight. In covering off-balance sheet items, direct credit substitutes, including
general guarantees and standby letters of credit backing financial obligations, are given a 100% conversion factor.
Transaction-related contingencies such as bid bonds, standby letters of credit backing non-financial obligations, and undrawn
commitments (including commercial credit lines with an initial maturity of more than one year) have a 50% conversion
factor. Short-term commercial letters of credit are converted at 20% and certain short-term unconditionally cancelable
commitments have a 0% factor.

The federal bank regulatory authorities have also adopted regulations that supplement the risk-based guidelines. These
regulations generally require banks and financial holding companies to maintain a minimum level of Tier I Capital to total
assets less goodwill of 4% (the “leverage ratio™). The Federal Reserve permits a bank to maintain a minimum 3% leverage
ratio if the bank achieves a 1 rating under the CAMELS rating system in its most recent examination, as long as the bank is
not experiencing or anticipating significant growth. The CAMELS rating is a non-public system used by bank regulators to
rate the strength and weaknesses of financial institutions. The CAMELS rating is comprised of six categories: capital
adequacy, asset quality, management, earnings, liquidity, and sensitivity to market risk.

Banking organizations experiencing or anticipating significant growth, as well as those organizations which do not satisfy the
criteria described above, will be required to maintain a minimum leverage ratio ranging generally from 4% to 5%. The bank
regulators also continue to consider a “tangible Tier I leverage ratio” in evaluating proposals for expansion or new activities.

The tangible Tier I leverage ratio is the ratio of a banking organization’s Tier I Capital, less deductions for intangibles
otherwise includable in Tier I Capital, to total tangible assets.

Federal law and regulations establish a capital-based regulatory scheme designed to promote early intervention for troubled
banks and require the FDIC to choose the least expensive resolution of bank failures. The capital-based regulatory framework
contains five categories of compliance with regulatory capital requirements, including “well capitalized,” “adequately
capitalized,” “undercapitalized,” “significantly undercapitalized,” and “critically undercapitalized.” To qualify as a “well-
capitalized” institution, a bank must have a leverage ratio of no less than 5%, a Tier I Capital ratio of no less than 6%, and a
total risk-based capital ratio of no less than 10%, and the bank must not be under any order or directive from the appropriate
regulatory agency to meet and maintain a specific capital level. Generally, a financial institution must be “well capitalized”
before the Federal Reserve will approve an application by a financial holding company to acquire or merge with a bank or
bank holding company.

Under the regulations, the applicable agency can treat an institution as if it were in the next lower category if the agency
determines (after notice and an opportunity for hearing) that the institution is in an unsafe or unsound condition or is
engaging in an unsafe or unsound practice. The degree of regulatory scrutiny of a financial institution will increase, and the
permissible activities of the institution will decrease, as it moves downward through the capital categories. Institutions that
fall into one of the three undercapitalized categories may be required to (i) submit a capital restoration plan; (ii) raise
additional capital; (iii) restrict their growth, deposit interest rates, and other activities; (iv) improve their management; (v)
eliminate management fees; or (vi) divest themselves of all or a part of their operations. Financial holding companies
controlling financial institutions can be called upon to boost the institutions’ capital and to partially guarantee the institutions’
performance under their capital restoration plans.

1t should be noted that the minimum ratios referred to above are merely guidelines and the bank regulators possess the
discretionary authority to require higher capital ratios.

As of December 31, 2012, we exceeded the requirements contained in the applicable regulations, policies and directives

pertaining to capital adequacy to be classified as “well capitalized”, and are unaware of any material violation or alleged
violation of these regulations, policies or directives. Rapid growth, poor loan portfolio performance, or poor earnings
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performance, or a combination of these factors, could change our capital position in a relatively short period of time, making
additional capital infusions necessary.

Prompt Corrective Action.

Immediately upon becoming undercapitalized, a depository institution becomes subject to the provisions of Section 38 of the
FDIA, which: (i) restrict payment of capital distributions and management fees; (ii) require that the appropriate federal
banking agency monitor the condition of the institution and its efforts to restore its capital; (iii) require submission of a
capital restoration plan; (iv) restrict the growth of the institution’s assets; and (v) require prior approval of certain expansion
proposals. The appropriate federal banking agency for an undercapitalized institution also may take any number of
discretionary supervisory actions if the agency determines that any of these actions is necessary to resolve the problems of
the institution at the least possible long-term cost to the deposit insurance fund, subject in certain cases to specified
procedures. These discretionary supervisory actions include: (i) requiring the institution to raise additional capital;

(ii) restricting transactions with affiliates; (iit) requiring divestiture of the institution or the sale of the institution to a willing
purchaser; and (iv) any other supervisory action that the agency deems appropriate. These and additional mandatory and
permissive supervisory actions may be taken with respect to significantly undercapitalized and critically undercapitalized
institutions.

Interstate Banking and Branching.

The Bank Holding Company Act was amended by the Interstate Banking Act. The Interstate Banking Act provides that
adequately capitalized and managed financial and bank holding companies are permitted to acquire banks in any state.

State laws prohibiting interstate banking or discriminating against out-of-state banks are preempted. States are not permitted
to enact laws opting out of this provision; however, states are allowed to adopt a minimum age restriction requiring that
target banks located within the state be in existence for a period of years, up to a maximum of five years, before a bank may
be subject to the Interstate Banking Act. The Interstate Banking Act, as amended by the Dodd-Frank Act, establishes deposit
caps which prohibit acquisitions that result in the acquiring company controlling 30% or more of the deposits of insured
banks and thrift institutions held in the state in which the target maintains a branch or 10% or more of the deposits
nationwide. States have the authority to waive the 30% deposit cap. State-level deposit caps are not preempted as long as they
do not discriminate against out-of-state companies, and the federal deposit caps apply only to initial entry acquisitions.

Under the Dodd-Frank Act, national banks and state banks are able to establish branches in any state if that state would
permit the establishment of the branch by a state bank chartered in that state. Florida law permits a state bank to establish a
branch of the bank anywhere in the state. Accordingly, under the Dodd-Frank Act, a bank with its headquarters outside the
State of Florida may establish branches anywhere within Florida.

Anti-money Laundering.

The Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of
2001 (“USA PATRIOT Act”), provides the federal government with additional powers to address terrorist threats through
enhanced domestic security measures, expanded surveillance powers, increased information sharing and broadened anti-
money laundering requirements. By way of amendments to the Bank Secrecy Act (“BSA”), the USA PATRIOT Act puts in
place measures intended to encourage information sharing among bank regulatory and law enforcement agencies. In addition,
certain provisions of the USA PATRIOT Act impose affirmative obligations on a broad range of financial institutions.

Among other requirements, the USA PATRIOT Act and the related Federal Reserve regulations require banks to establish
anti-money laundering programs that include, at a minimum:

. internal policies, procedures and controls designed to implement and maintain the savings association’s
compliance with all of the requirements of the USA PATRIOT Act, the BSA and related laws and
regulations;

. systems and procedures for monitoring and reporting of suspicious transactions and activities;

. a designated compliance officer;

. employee training;
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. an independent audit function to test the anti-money laundering program,

. procedures to verify the identity of each customer upon the opening of accounts; and
. heightened due diligence policies, procedures and controls applicable to certain foreign accounts and
relationships.

Additionally, the USA PATRIOT Act requires each financial institution to develop a customer identification program
(“CIP”) as part of our anti-money laundering program. The key components of the CIP are identification, verification,
government list comparison, notice and record retention. The purpose of the CIP is to enable the financial institution to
determine the true identity and anticipated account activity of each customer. To make this determination, among other
things, the financial institution must collect certain information from customers at the time they enter into the customer
relationship with the financial institution. This information must be verified within a reasonable time through documentary
and non-documentary methods. Furthermore, all customers must be screened against any CIP-related government lists of
known or suspected terrorists. We and our affiliates have adopted policies, procedures and controls to comply with the BSA
and the USA PATRIOT Act.

Regulatory Enforcement Authority.

Federal and state banking laws grant substantial enforcement powers to federal and state banking regulators. This
enforcement authority includes, among other things, the ability to assess civil money penalties, to issue cease and desist or
removal orders and to initiate injunctive actions against banking organizations and institution-affiliated parties. In general,
these enforcement actions may be initiated for violations of laws and regulations and unsafe or unsound practices. Other
actions or inactions may provide the basis for enforcement action, including misleading or untimely reports filed with
regulatory authorities. '

Federal Home Loan Bank System.

1* United is a member of the FHLB of Atlanta, which is one of 12 regional Federal Home Loan Banks. Each FHLB serves as
a reserve or central bank for its members within its assigned region. It is funded primarily from funds deposited by member
institutions and proceeds from the sale of consolidated obligations of the FHLB system. It makes loans to members (i.e.
advances) in accordance with policies and procedures established by the board of trustees of the FHLB.

As a member of the FHLB of Atlanta, 1* United is required to own capital stock in the FHLB in an amount at least equal to
0.15% (or 15 basis points) of the 1* United’s total assets at the end of each calendar year, plus 4.5% of its outstanding
advances (borrowings) from the FHLB of Atlanta under the activity-based stock ownership requirement. On December 31,
2012, 1* United was in compliance with this requirement.

Privacy.

Under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, federal banking regulators adopted rules limiting the ability of banks and other
financial institutions to dlisclose nonpublic information about consumers to nonaffiliated third parties. The rules require
disclosure of privacy policies to consumers and, in some circumstances, allow consumers to prevent disclosure of certain
personal information to nonaffiliated third parties.

Consumer Laws and Regulations.

1* United is also subject to other federal and state consumer laws and regulations that are designed to protect consumers in
transactions with banks. While the list set forth below is not exhaustive, these laws and regulations include the Truth in
Lending Act, the Truth in Savings Act, the Electronic Funds Transfer Act, the Expedited Funds Availability Act, the Check
Clearing for the 21st Century Act, the Fair Credit Reporting Act, the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, the Fair Housing Act, the
Home Mortgage Disclosure Act, the Fair and Accurate Transactions Act, the Mortgage Disclosure Improvement Act, and the
Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act, among others. These laws and regulations mandate certain disclosure requirements
and regulate the manner in which financial institutions must deal with customers when taking deposits or making loans to
such customers. 1* United must comply with the applicable provisions of these consumer protection laws and regulations as
part of its ongoing customer relations.
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Future Legislative Developments.

Various legislative acts are from time to time introduced in Congress and the Florida legislature. This legislation may change
banking statutes and the environment in which our banking subsidiary and we operate in substantial and unpredictable ways.
We cannot determine the ultimate effect that potential legislation, if enacted, or implementing regulations with respect
thereto, would have upon our financial condition or results of operations or that of our banking subsidiary.

Effect of Governmental Monetary Policies.

The commercial banking business in which 1* United engages is affected not only by general economic conditions, but also
by the monetary policies of the Federal Reserve. Changes in the discount rate on member bank borrowing, availability of
borrowing at the “discount window,” open market operations, the imposition of changes in reserve requirements against
member banks’ deposits and assets of foreign banking centers and the imposition of and changes in reserve requirements
against certain borrowings by banks and their affiliates are some of the instruments of monetary policy available to the
Federal Reserve. These monetary policies are used in varying combinations to influence overall growth and distributions of
bank loans, investments and deposits, and this use may affect interest rates charged on loans or paid on deposits. The
monetary policies of the Federal Reserve have had a significant effect on the operating results of commercial banks and are
expected to continue to do so in the future. The monetary policies of the Federal Reserve are influenced by various factors,
including inflation, unemployment, and short-term and long-term changes in the international trade balance and in the fiscal
policies of the U.S. Government. Future monetary policies and the effect of such policies on the future business and earnings
of 1* United cannot be predicted.

Income Taxes

We are subject to income taxes at the federal level and subject to state taxation in Florida. We file a consolidated federal
income tax return with a fiscal year ending on December 31.

Employees

As of December 31, 2012, we had a total of approximately 298 employees, including approximately 292 full-time employees.
The employees are not represented by a collective bargaining unit. We consider relations with employees to be good.

Segment Reporting
We have one reportable segment.
Website Access to Company’s Reports

Our Internet website is www. 1stunitedbankfl.com. Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q,
current reports on Form 8-K, including any amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to section 13(a) or 15(d),
and reports filed pursuant to Section 16, 13(d), and 13(g) of the Exchange Act are available free of charge through our
website as soon as reasonably practicable after they are electronically filed with, or furnished to, the Securities and Exchange
Commission. The information on our website is not incorporated by reference into this report.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

An investment in our common stock contains a high degree of risk. You should consider carefully the following risk factors
before deciding whether to invest in our common stock. Our business, including our operating results and financial
condition, could be harmed by any of these risks. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we
currently deem to be immaterial also may materially and adversely affect our business. The trading price of our common
stock could decline due to any of these risks, and you may lose all or part of your investment. In assessing these risks, you
should also refer to the other information contained in our filings with the SEC, including our financial statements and
related notes.
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Risks Related to Our Business
Failure to comply with the terms of the Loss Sharing Agreements with the FDIC may result in significant losses.

On October 21, 2011, 1* United entered into an Assumption Agreement — Whole Bank; All Deposits (“Old Harbor Purchase
and Assumption Agreement”) with the FDIC, pursuant to which 1% United assumed all deposits and certain identified assets
and liabilities of Old Harbor Bank, a Florida-chartered commercial bank headquartered in Clearwater, Florida. 1* United also
entered into Loss Sharing Agreements with the FDIC. Under the Loss Sharing Agreements, 1* United will share losses in the
losses on assets covered under the Old Harbor Purchase and Assumption Agreement. The FDIC will reimburse 1* United for
70% of up to $49 million of losses with respect to the acquired $116.7 million loan portfolio and the $2.3 million of other
real estate owned, or “OREQ” at fair value.

On December 17, 2010, 1* United entered into an Assumption Agreement — Whole Bank; All Deposits (“Bank of Miami
Purchase and Assumption Agreement”) with the FDIC, pursuant to which 1* United assumed all deposits and certain
identified assets and liabilities of The Bank of Miami, a national association headquartered in Miami, Florida. 1% United also
entered into Loss Sharing Agreements with the FDIC. Under the Loss Sharing Agreements, 1* United will share in the losses
on assets covered under the Bank of Miami Purchase and Assumption Agreement. The FDIC will reimburse 1% United for
80% of losses with respect to the $218.2 million loan portfolio and the $8.2 million of OREQ, at fair value on the date
acquired.

On December 11, 2009, 1* United entered into an Assumption Agreement — Whole Bank; All Deposits (“Republic Purchase
and Assumption Agreement”’) with the FDIC, pursuant to which 1* United assumed all deposits (except certain broker
deposits) and certain identified assets and liabilities of Republic Federal Bank, a national association headquartered in Miami,
Florida. 1* United also entered into Loss Sharing Agreements with the FDIC. Under the Loss Sharing Agreements, 1* United
will share in the losses on assets covered under the Republic Purchase and Assumption Agreement. The FDIC will reimburse
1¥ United for 80% of losses of up to $36 million with respect to the entire $185 million acquired loan portfolio at fair value.
The FDIC will reimburse 1% United for 95% of losses in excess of $36 million with respect to the $238 million acquired loan
portfolio.

The Old Harbor Purchase and Assumption Agreement, the Republic Purchase and Assumption Agreement and the Bank of
Miami Purchase and Assumption Agreement and their respective Loss Sharing Agreements have specific, detailed and
cumbersome compliance, servicing, notification and reporting requirements, inctuding certain restrictions on our change of
control. The loss-sharing agreements prohibit the assignment by 1* United of its rights under the Loss Sharing Agreements
and the sale or transfer of any subsidiary of 1% United holding title to assets covered under the Loss Sharing Agreements
without the prior written consent of the FDIC. An assignment would include (i) the merger or consolidation of 1* United with
or into another bank; (ii) our merger or consolidation with or into another company; (iii) the sale of all or substantially all of
the assets of 1* United to another company or person; (iv) a sale by any one or more shareholders of more than 9% of the
outstanding shares of 1* United Bancorp, Inc., 1* United, or any subsidiary holding assets subject to the Loss Sharing
Agreements or (v) the sale of shares by 1* United Bancorp, Inc., 1* United, or any subsidiary holding assets subject to the
Loss Sharing Agreements, in a public or private offering, that increases the number of outstanding shares by more than 9%.
1* United’s rights under the Loss Sharing Agreements will terminate if any assignment of the Loss Sharing Agreements
occurs without the prior written consent of the FDIC.

Our failure to comply with the terms of the Loss Sharing Agreements or to properly service the loans and OREO under the
requirements of the Loss Sharing Agreements may cause individual loans or large pools of loans to lose eligibility for loss
sharing payments from the FDIC. This could result in material losses that are currently not anticipated.

Our business may be adversely affected by conditions in financial markets and economic conditions generally.

Our business is concentrated in the South and Central Florida market areas. As a result, our financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows are subject to changes if there are changes in the economic conditions in these areas. A prolonged
period of economic recession or other adverse economic conditions in these areas could have a negative impact on us. A
significant decline in general economic conditions nationally, caused by inflation, recession, acts of terrorism, outbreak of
hostilities or other international or domestic occurrences, unemployment, changes in securities markets, declines in the
housing market, a tightening credit environment or other factors could impact these local economic conditions and, in turn,
have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations which occurred during this past year.

Economic conditions began deteriorating during the latter half of 2007 and have not fully recovered since that time. Business
activity across a wide range of industries and regions, including South and Central Florida, has been greatly reduced and
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many businesses are experiencing serious difficulties due to a lack of consumer spending and the lack of liquidity in credit
markets. Unemployment in the U.S. and our market areas has continued to exceed recent historical levels prior to 2007. As a
result of this economic crisis, many lending institutions, including us, have experienced declines in the performance of their
loans, including construction, land development and land loans, commercial loans and consumer loans. Moreover,
competition among depository institutions for deposits and quality loans has increased significantly. In addition, the values of
real estate collateral supporting many commercial loans and home mortgages have declined and may continue to decline.
Overall, the general business environment has had an adverse effect on our business, and the environment may not improve
in the near term. Accordingly, unless and until conditions improve, our business, financial condition and results of operations
could continue to be adversely affected.

Our success is highly dependent upon our ability to retain the members of our senior management team and the loss of
key personnel may adversely affect us.

Our success is, and expected to remain, highly dependent on our senior management team, including Messrs. Orlando,
Schupp, Marino, Jacobson, and Ostermayer. As a community bank, it is our management’s extensive knowledge of and
relationships in the community that generate business for us. Successful execution of our growth strategy will continue to
place significant demands on our management and the loss of any such services may adversely affect our growth and
profitability.

An inadequate allowance for loan losses would reduce our earnings.

We are exposed to the risk that our clients will be unable to repay their loans according to their terms and that any collateral
securing the payment of their loans will not be sufficient to assure full repayment. This will result in credit losses that are
inherent in the lending business. We evaluate the collectability of our loan portfolio and provide an allowance for loan losses
that we believe is adequate based upon such factors as:

. the risk characteristics of various classifications of loans;
. previous loan loss experience;

. specific loans that have loss potential;

. delinquency trends;

. estimated fair market value of the collateral;

. current economic conditions; and

. geographic and industry loan concentrations.

As of December 31, 2012, 1** United’s allowance for loan losses was $9.8 million, which represented approximately 1.07%
of its total amount of loans. 1% United had $21.3 million in non-accruing loans as of December 31, 2012, of which
approximately $11.4 million are covered by Loss Sharing Agreements. The allowance may not prove sufficient to cover
future loan losses. Although management uses the best information available to make determinations with respect to the
allowance for loan losses, future adjustments may be necessary if economic conditions differ substantially from the
assumptions used or adverse developments arise with respect to 1% United’s non-performing or performing loans. In addition,
regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the estimated losses on loans. Such
agencies may require us to recognize additional losses based on their judgments about information available to them at the
time of their examination. Accordingly, the allowance for loan losses may not be adequate to cover loan losses or significant
increases to the allowance may be required in the future if economic conditions should worsen. Material additions to 1¥
United’s allowance for loan losses would adversely impact our net income and capital.

If our nonperforming assets increase, our earnings will suffer.

At December 31, 2012, our nonperforming assets (which consist of non-accruing loans, accruing loans 90+ days delinquent,
and foreclosed real estate assets) totaled $42.9 million, or 2.74% of total assets, which is a decrease of $14.0 million or
24.6% over nonperforming assets at December 31, 2011. At December 31, 2011, our nonperforming assets were $57.0
million, or 4.01% of total assets. Nonperforming assets included $24.6 million and $23.0 million assets covered by Loss
Sharing Agreements as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively. Our nonperforming assets adversely
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affect our net income in various ways. We do not record interest income on non-accrual loans or real estate owned. We must
reserve for probable losses, which is established through a current period charge to the provision for loan losses as well as
from time to time, as appropriate, write down the value of properties in our other real estate owned portfolio to reflect
changing market values. Additionally, there are legal fees associated the resolution of problem assets as well as carrying costs
such as taxes, insurance and maintenance related to our other real estate owned. Further, the resolution of nonperforming
assets requires the active involvement of management, which can distract them from more profitable activity. Finally, if our
estimate for the recorded allowance for loan losses proves to be incorrect and our allowance is inadequate, we will have to
increase the allowance accordingly.

The required accounting treatment of troubled loans we acquired through acquisitions could result in higher net interest
margins and interest income in current periods and lower net interest margins and interest income in future periods.

Under U.S. GAAP, we are required to record troubled loans acquired through acquisitions at fair value which may
underestimate the actual performance of such loans. As a result, if these loans outperform our original fair value estimates,
the difference between our original estimate and the actual performance of the loan (the “discount™) is accreted into net
interest income. Thus, our net interest margins may initially appear higher. In 2012 and 2011 our net interest margins were
increased by 1.5% and 1.04%, respectively, because of these discount accretions. We expect the yields on our loans to
decline as our acquired loan portfolio pays down or matures and we expect downward pressure on our interest income to the
extent that the runoff on our acquired loan portfolio is not replaced with comparable high-yielding loans. This could result in
higher net interest margins and interest income in current periods and lower net interest rate margin and lower interest income
in future periods.

Our loan portfolio includes loans with a higher risk of loss which could lead to higher loan losses and nonperforming
assets.

We originate commercial real estate loans, construction and development loans, consumer loans, and residential mortgage
loans primarily within our market area. Commercial real estate, commercial, and construction and development loans tend to
involve larger loan balances to a single borrower or groups of related borrowers and are most susceptible to a risk of loss
during a downturn in the business cycle. These loans also have historically had greater credit risk than other loans for the
following reasons:

. Commercial Real Estate Loans. Repayment is dependent on income being generated in amounts
sufficient to cover operating expenses and debt service. These loans also involve greater risk because they
are generally not fully amortizing over a loan period, but rather have a balloon payment due at maturity. A
borrower’s ability to make a balloon payment typically will depend on being able to either refinance the
loan or timely sell the underlying property. As of December 31, 2012, commercial real estate loans,
including multi-family loans, comprised approximately 56.3% of our total loan portfolio.

. Commercial Loans. Repayment is generally dependent upon the successful operation of the borrower’s
business. In addition, the collateral securing the loans may depreciate over time, be difficult to appraise, be
illiquid, or fluctuate in value based on the success of the business. As of December 31, 2012, commercial
loans comprised approximately 19.7% of our total loan portfolio.

. Construction and Development Loans. The risk of loss is largely dependent on our initial estimate of
whether the property’s value at completion equals or exceeds the cost of property construction and the
availability of take-out financing. During the construction phase, a number of factors can result in delays or
cost overruns. If our estimate is inaccurate or if actual construction costs exceed estimates, the value of the
property securing our loan may be insufficient to ensure full repayment when completed through a
permanent loan, sale of the property, or by seizure of collateral. As of December 31, 2012, construction and
development loans comprised approximately 4.6% of our total loan portfolio.

The increased risks associated with these types of loans result in a correspondingly higher probability of default on such

loans (as compared to single-family real estate loans). Loan defaults would likely increase our loan losses and nonperforming
assets and could adversely affect our allowance for loan losses.

We may need additional capital resources in the future and these capital resources may not be available on acceptable
terms or at all.
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We may need to incur additional debt or equity financing in the future to make strategic acquisitions or investments, for
future growth, to fund losses or additional provisions for loan losses in the future, or to maintain certain capital levels in
accordance with banking regulations. Such financing may not be available to us on acceptable terms or at all. Our ability to
raise additional capital may also be restricted by the loss-sharing agreements we entered into with the FDIC if the capital
raise would effect a change in control of 1* United.

Further, in the event that we offer additional shares of our common stock in the future, our Articles of Incorporation do not
provide shareholders with preemptive rights and such shares may be offered to investors other than our existing shareholders
for prices at or below the then current market price of our common stock, all at the discretion of the Board. If we do sell
additional shares of common stock to raise capital, the sale could reduce market price per share of common stock and dilute
your ownership interest and such dilution could be substantial.

We may incur losses if we are unable to successfully manage interest rate risk.

Our profitability depends to a large extent on 1™ United’s net interest income, which is the difference between income on
interest-earning assets, such as loans and investment securities, and expense on interest-bearing liabilities such as deposits
and borrowings. We are unable to predict changes in market interest rates, which are affected by many factors beyond our
control, including inflation, recession, unemployment, money supply, domestic and international events and changes in the
United States and other financial markets. Our net interest income may be reduced if: (i) more interest-earning assets than
interest-bearing liabilities reprice or mature during a time when interest rates are declining or (ii) more interest-bearing
liabilities than interest-earning assets reprice or mature during a time when interest rates are rising.

Changes in the difference between short- and long-term interest rates may also harm our business. For example, short-term
deposits may be used to fund longer-term loans. When differences between short-term and long-term interest rates shrink or
disappear, as is likely in the current zero interest rate policy environment, the spread between rates paid on deposits and
received on loans could narrow significantly, decreasing our net interest income.

If market interest rates rise rapidly, interest rate adjustment caps may limit increases in the interest rates on adjustable rate
loans, thereby reducing our net interest income.

Since we engage in lending secured by real estate and may be forced to foreclose on the collateral property and own the
underlying real estate, we may be subject to the increased costs associated with the ownership of real property, which
could result in reduced net income.

Since we originate loans secured by real estate, we may have to foreclose on the collateral property to protect our investment
and may thereafter own and operate such property, in which case we are exposed to the risks inherent in the ownership of real
estate.

The amount that we, as mortgagee, may realize after a default is dependent upon factors outside of our control, including, but
not limited to:

. General or local economic conditions;

. Environmental cleanup liability;

. Neighborhood values;

. Interest rates;

- Real estate taxes;

. Operating expenses of the mortgaged properties;

. Supply and demand for rental units or properties;

. Our ability to obtain and maintain adequate occupancy of the properties;
. Zoning laws;
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. Governmental rules, regulations and fiscal policies; and
. Acts of God.

Certain expenditures associated with the ownership of real estate, principally real estate taxes and maintenance costs, may
adversely affect the income from the real estate. Therefore, the cost of operating real property may exceed the rental income
earned from such property, and we may have to advance funds in order to protect our investment or we may be required to
dispose of the real property at a loss.

Changing conditions in Latin America could adversely affect our business.

A substantial number of our customers have economic and cultural ties to Latin America and, as a result, we are likely to feel
the effects of adverse economic and political conditions in Latin America. As of December 31, 2012, approximately $315.4
million of our deposits were from foreign nationals whose primary residence is Latin America. U.S. and global economic
policies, political or political tension, and global economic conditions may adversely impact the Latin American economies.
If economic conditions in Latin America change, we could experience an outflow of deposits by those of our customers with
connections to Latin America.

Liquidity risk could impair our ability to fund operations and jeopardize our financial condition.
Liquidity is essential to our business. An inability to raise funds through deposits, borrowings, and other sources, could have
a substantial negative effect on our liquidity. Our access to funding sources in amounts adequate to finance our activities on

terms that are acceptable to us could be impaired by factors that affect us specifically or the financial services industry or
economy in general. Factors that could negatively impact our access to liquidity sources include:

. a decrease in the level of our business activity as a result of an economic downturn in the markets in which
our loans are concentrated;

. adverse regulatory action against us; or
. our inability to attract and retain deposits.
Our ability to borrow could be impaired by factors that are not specific to us or our region, such as a disruption in the

financial markets or negative views and expectations about the prospects for the financial services industry and the unstable
credit markets.

We may face risks with respect to future expansion.
As a strategy, we have sought to increase the size of our operations by aggressively pursuing business development

opportunities. We have made acquisitions of financial institutions and may continue to seek whole bank or branch
acquisitions in the future. Acquisitions and mergers involve a number of risks, including:

. the time and costs associated with identifying and evaluating potential acquisitions and merger partners;
. the ability to finance an acquisition and possible ownership and economic dilution to existing shareholders;
. diversion of management’s attention to the negotiation of a transaction, and the integration of the

operations and personnel of the acquired institution;

. the incurrence and possible impairment of goodwill associated with an acquisition and possible adverse
short-term effects on results of operations; and

. the risk of loss of key employees and customers.
We may incur substantial costs to expand, and such expansion may not result in the levels of profits we seek. Integration

efforts for any future mergers and acquisitions may not be successful and following any future merger or acquisition, after
giving it effect, we may not achieve financial results comparable to or better than our historical experience.
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Future acquisitions may dilute shareholder value.

We regularly evaluate opportunities to acquire other financial institutions. As a result, merger and acquisition discussions
and, in some cases, negotiations may take place and future mergers or acquisitions involving cash, debt, or equity securities
may occur at any time. Acquisitions typically involve the payment of a premium over book and market values, and, therefore,
some dilution of our tangible book value and net income per common share may occur in connection with any future
acquisitions.

An impairment in the carrying value of our goodwill could negatively impact our earnings and capital.

Goodwill is initially recorded at fair value and is not amortized, but is reviewed for impairment at least annuaily or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Given the current
economic environment and conditions in the financial markets, we could be required to evaluate the recoverability of
goodwill prior to our normal annual assessment if we experience disruption in our business, unexpected significant declines
in our operating results, or sustained market capitalization declines. These types of events and the resulting analyses could
result in goodwill impairment charges in the future. These non-cash impairment charges could adversely affect our results of
operations in future periods, and could also significantly impact certain financial ratios and limit our ability to obtain
financing or raise capital in the future. A goodwill impairment charge does not adversely affect the calculation of our risk
based and tangible capital ratios. As of December 31, 2012, we had $58.3 million in goodwill, which represented
approximately 3.72% of our total assets.

Confidential customer information transmitted through 1" United’s online banking service is vulnerable to security
breaches and computer viruses, which could expose 1™ United to litigation and adversely affect its reputation and ability to
generate deposits.

1* United provides its customers the ability to bank online. The secure transmission of confidential information over the
Internet is a critical element of online banking. 1* United’s network or those of its customers could be vulnerable to
unauthorized access, computer viruses, phishing schemes and other security problems. 1* United may be required to spend
significant capital and other resources to protect against the threat of security breaches and computer viruses, or to alleviate
problems caused by security breaches or viruses. To the extent that 1* United’s activities or the activities of its customers
involve the storage and transmission of confidential information, security breaches and viruses could expose 1* United to
claims, litigation and other possible liabilities. Any inability to prevent security breaches or computer viruses could also
cause existing customers to lose confidence in 1* United’s systems and could adversely affect its reputation and its ability to
generate deposits.

Our future success is dependent on our ability to compete effectively in the highly competitive banking industry.

We face vigorous competition from other banks and other financial institutions, including savings and loan associations,
savings banks, finance companies and credit unions for deposits, loans and other financial services in our market area. A
number of these banks and other financial institutions with whom we compete for business and deposits are significantly
larger than we are and have substantially greater access to capital and other resources, as well as larger lending limits and
branch systems, and offer a wider array of banking services. To a limited extent, we also compete with other providers of
financial services, such as money market mutual funds, brokerage firms, consumer finance companies, insurance companies
and governmental organizations which may offer more favorable financing than we can. Many of our non-bank competitors
are not subject to the same extensive regulations that govern us.

As aresult, these non-bank competitors have advantages over us in providing certain services. We expect competition to
increase in the future as a result of legislative, regulatory and technological changes and the continuing trend of consolidation
in the financial services industry. Our profitability depends upon our continued ability to compete successfully in our primary
market area and our lending territory. Consolidation and increasing competition may reduce or limit our margins, net interest
income and our market share which could adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Risks Related to Regulation and Legislation
Recently enacted legislation, particularly the Dodd-Frank Act, could materially and adversely affect us by increasing

compliance costs, heightening our risk of noncompliance with applicable regulations, and changing the competitive
landscape in the banking industry.
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From time to time, the U.S. Congress and state legislatures consider changing laws and enact new laws to further regulate the
financial services industry. On July 21, 2010, President Obama signed the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer
Protection Act of 2010, or the Dodd-Frank Act, into law. The Dodd-Frank Act has resulted in sweeping changes in the
regulation of financial institutions. As discussed in the section entitled “Business-Regulatory Considerations,” the Dodd-
Frank Act contains numerous provisions that affect all banks and bank holding companies. Many of these provisions remain
subject to regulatory rule-making and implementation, the effects of which are not yet known. Although we cannot predict
the specific impact and long-term effects that the Dodd-Frank Act and the regulations promulgated thereunder will have on
us and our prospects, our target markets and the financial industry more generally, we believe that the Dodd-Frank Act and
the regulations promulgated thereunder are likely to impose additional administrative and regulatory burdens that will
obligate us to incur additional expenses and will adversely affect our margins and profitability. We will also have a
heightened risk of noncompliance with the additional regulations. Finally, the impact of some of these new regulations is not
known and may affect our ability to compete long-term with larger competitors.

The expiration of unlimited FDIC insurance on certain noninterest-bearing transaction accounts may increase our
interest expense and reduce our liquidity.

On December 31, 2012, unlimited FDIC insurance on certain noninterest-bearing transaction accounts under the Transaction
Account Guarantee program expired. Under this program, prior to its expiration, all funds in a noninterest-bearing transaction
account were insured in full by the FDIC from December 31, 2010, through December 31, 2012. This temporary unlimited
coverage was in addition to, and separate from, the coverage of at least $250,000 available to depositors under the FDIC's
general deposit insurance rules.

The reduction in FDIC insurance on these noninterest-bearing transaction accounts to the standard $250,000 maximum may
cause depositors to move funds previously held in such noninterest-bearing accounts to interest-bearing accounts, which
could increase our costs of funds and negatively impact our results of operations, or may cause depositors to withdraw their
deposits and invest funds in investments perceived as being more secure, such as securities issued by the United States
Treasury. This could reduce our liquidity, or require us to pay higher interest rates to retain deposits and maintain our
liquidity and could adversely affect our earnings.

The Federal Reserve’s repeal of the prohibition against payment of interest on demand deposits (Regulation Q) and the
elimination of the FDIC’s TAG program may increase competition for such deposits and ultimately increase interest
expense.

A major portion of our net income comes from our interest rate spread, which is the difference between the interest rates paid
by us on amounts used tc fund assets and the interest rates and fees we receive on our interest-earning assets. Our interest-
earning assets include outstanding loans extended to our customers and securities held in our investment portfolio. We fund
assets using deposits and other borrowings. Our goal has been to maintain non-interest-bearing deposits in the range of 15%
to 25% of total deposits, and we currently maintain approximately 32.8% of deposits as non-interest bearing.

On July 14, 2011, the Federal Reserve issued final rules to repeal Regulation Q, which had prohibited the payment of interest
on demand deposits by institutions that are member banks of the Federal Reserve System. The final rules implement Section
627 of the Dodd-Frank Act, which repealed Section 19(i) of the Federal Reserve Act in its entirety effective July 21, 2011.
As a result, banks and thrifts are now permitted to offer interest-bearing demand deposit accounts to commercial customers,
which were previously forbidden under Regulation Q. The repeal of Regulation Q may cause increased competition from
other financial institutions for these deposits. If we decide to pay interest on demand accounts, we would expect our interest
expense to increase.

We are subject to extensive regulation that could restrict our activities and impose financial requirements or limitations
on the conduct of our business and limit our ability to receive dividends from the 1” United.

1* United is subject to extensive regulation, supervision and examination by the Florida Office of Financial Regulation, the
Federal Reserve, and the FDIC. Our compliance with these industry regulations is costly and restricts certain of our activities,
including payment of dividends, mergers and acquisitions, investments, loans and interest rates charged, interest rates paid on
deposits, access to capital and brokered deposits and locations of banking offices. If we are unable to meet these regulatory
requirements, our financial condition, liquidity and results of operations would be materially and adversely affected.

1* United must also meet regulatory capital requirements imposed by our regulators. An inability to meet these capital

requirements would result in numerous mandatory supervisory actions and additional regulatory restrictions, and could have
a negative impact on our financial condition, liquidity and results of operations.
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In addition to the regulations of the Florida Office of Financial Regulation, the Federal Reserve, and the FDIC, as a member
of the Federal Home Loan Bank, 1* United must also comply with applicable regulations of the Federal Housing Finance
Agency and the Federal Home Loan Bank.

1 United’s activities are also regulated under consumer protection laws applicable to our lending, deposit and other
activities. In addition, the Dodd-Frank Act imposes significant additional regulation on our operations. Regulation by all of
these agencies is intended primarily for the protection of our depositors and the Deposit Insurance Fund and not for the
benefit of our shareholders. Our failure to comply with these laws and regulations, even if the failure follows good faith effort
or reflects a difference in interpretation, could subject us to restrictions on our business activities, fines and other penalties,
any of which could adversely affect our results of operations, capital base and the price of our securities. Further, any new
laws, rules and regulations could make compliance more difficult or expensive or otherwise adversely affect our business and
financial condition. Please refer to the Section entitled “Business — Regulatory Considerations” in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

We may be subject to more stringent capital and liquidity requirements which would adversely affect our net income and
Sfuture growth.

The Dodd-Frank Act applies the same leverage and risk-based capital requirements that apply to insured depository
institutions to most bank holding companies, which, among other things, will change the way in which hybrid securities, such
as trust preferred securities, are treated for purposes of determining a bank holding company’s regulatory capital. On June 14,
2011, the federal banking agencies published a final rule regarding minimum leverage and risk-based capital requirements for
banks and bank holding companies consistent with the requirements of Section 171 of the Dodd-Frank Act. For a more
detailed description of the minimum capital requirements see “Regulatory Considerations — 1* United Bank — Capital
Regulations”. The Dodd-Frank Act also increased regulatory oversight, supervision and examination of banks, bank holding
companies and their respective subsidiaries by the appropriate regulatory agency. These requirements, and any other new
regulations, could adversely affect our ability to pay dividends, or could require us to reduce business levels or to raise
capital, including in ways that may adversely affect our results of operations or financial condition.

In addition, on September 12, 2010, the Group of Governors and Heads of Supervision, the oversight body of the Basel
Committee on Banking Supervision, announced agreement on the calibration and phase-in arrangements for a strengthened
set of capital requirements, known as Basel III. On December 20, 2011, the Federal Reserve announced its intention to
implement substantially all of the Basel III rules which would generally be applicable to institutions with greater than $50
billion in assets. Banking regulators could implement additional changes to the capital adequacy standards applicable to us
and 1* United in the future. As described in further detail above in the section captioned “Regulatory Considerations —
Proposed Changes to Regulatory Capital Requirements,” the federal banking regulators issued proposed rules that would
create new and increased capital requirements for depository institutions in the U.S. If these rules are adopted, we would be
required to maintain higher regulatory capital levels which could impact our operations, net income and our ability to grow.
Furthermore, our failure to comply with the minimum capital requirements could result in our regulators taking formal or
informal actions against us which could restrict our future growth or operations.

Florida financial institutions, such as 1 United, face a higher risk of noncompliance and enforcement action with the
Bank Secrecy Act and other anti-money laundering statutes and regulations.

Since September 11, 2001, banking regulators have intensified their focus on anti-money laundering and Bank Secrecy Act
compliance requirements, particularly the anti-money laundering provisions of the USA PATRIOT Act. There is also
increased scrutiny of compliance with the rules enforced by the Office of Foreign Assets Control. Since 2004, federal
banking regulators and examiners have been extremely aggressive in their supervision and examination of financial
institutions located in the State of Florida with respect to the institution’s Bank Secrecy Act/Anti-Money Laundering
compliance. Consequently, numerous formal enforcement actions have been issued against financial institutions.

In order to comply with regulations, guidelines and examination procedures in this area, 1* United has been required to adopt
new policies and procedures and to install new systems. If 1* United’s policies, procedures and systems are deemed deficient
or the policies, procedures and systems of the financial institutions that it has already acquired or may acquire in the future
are deficient, 1* United would be subject to liability, including fines and regulatory actions. Such regulatory action may
include restrictions on 1* United’s ability to pay dividends and the necessity to obtain regulatory approvals to proceed with
certain aspects of its business plan, including its acquisition plans. In addition, because 1* United operates in Florida and
because of the recent acquisitions of Old Harbor Bank and the acquisition of AFI, we expect that 1* United will face a higher
risk of noncompliance and enforcement action with the Bank Secrecy Act and other anti-money laundering statutes and
regulations.
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Our eligibility to continue to use a short form registration statement on Form S-3 may affect our ability to
opportunistically access the capital markets.

The ability to conduct primary offerings under a registration statement on Form S-3 has benefits to issuers who are eligible to
use this short form registration statement. Form S-3 permits an eligible issuer to incorporate by reference its past and future
filings and reports made under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act. In addition, Form S-3
enables eligible issuers to conduct primary offerings “off the shelf” under Rule 415 of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, or the Securities Act. The shelf registration process under Form S-3, combined with the ability to incorporate
information on a forward basis, allows issuers to avoid additional delays and interruptions in the offering process and to
access the capital markets in a more expeditious and efficient manner than raising capital in a standard registered offering on
Form S-1. One of the requirements for Form S-3 eligibility is for an issuer to have timely filed its Exchange Act reports
(including Form 10-Ks, Form 10-Qs and certain Form 8-Ks) for the 12- month period immediately preceding either the filing
of the Form S-3, or a subsequent determination date. If, in the future, we fail to meet the eligibility requirements for Form S-3
we will lose our ability for a period of time to efficiently and expeditiously access the capital markets which could adversely
impact our financial condition and capital ratios.

Risks Related to Market Events

Our loan portfolio is heavily concentrated in mortgage loans secured by properties in South and Central Florida which
heightens our risk of loss than if we had a more geographically diversified portfolio.

Our interest-earning assets are heavily concentrated in mortgage loans secured by properties located in South and Central
Florida. As of December 31, 2012, 83.8% of our loans secured by real estate are secured by commercial and residential
properties located in Palra Beach, Miami-Dade, Broward, Hillsborough, Orange and Pasco Counties, Florida. The
concentration of our loans in this region subjects us to risk that a downturn in the area economy, such as the one the area is
currently experiencing, could result in a decrease in loan originations and an increase in delinquencies and foreclosures. As a
result of this concentration, we may face greater risk than if our lending were more geographically diversified. In addition,
since a large portion of our portfolio is secured by properties located in South and Central Florida, the occurrence of a natural
disaster, such as a hurricane, could result in a decline in loan originations, a decline in the value or destruction of mortgaged
properties, and an increase in the risk of delinquencies, foreclosures or loss on loans originated by us. We may suffer further
losses due to the decline in the value of the properties underlying our mortgage loans, which would have an adverse impact
on our operations.

Our concentration in loans secured by real estate may increase our credit losses, which would negatively affect our
financial results.

Due to the relatively close proximity of our geographic markets, we have both geographic concentrations as well as
concentrations in the types of loans funded. Specifically, due to the nature of our markets, a significant portion of the
portfolio has historically been secured with real estate. As of December 31, 2012, approximately 56.3% and 18.2% of our
$904.0 million loan portfolio was secured by commercial real estate and residential real estate (including home equity loans),
respectively. As of December 31, 2012, approximately 4.6% of total loans was secured by property under construction and
land development.

The current downturn in the real estate market, the deterioration in the value of collateral, and the local and national
economic recessions, have adversely affected our clients’ ability to repay their loans. If these conditions persist, or get worse,
our clients’ ability to repay their loans will be further eroded. In the event we are required to foreclose on a property securing
one of our mortgage loans or otherwise pursue our remedies in order to protect our investment, we may be unable to recover
funds in an amount equal to our projected return on our investment or in an amount sufficient to prevent a loss to us due to
prevailing economic conditions, real estate values and other factors associated with the ownership of real property. As a
result, the market value of the real estate or other collateral underlying our loans may not, at any given time, be sufficient to
satisfy the outstanding principal amount of the loans, and consequently, we would sustain loan losses.

Future economic growth in our Florida market area is likely to be slower compared to certain previous years.

The State of Florida’s population growth has historically exceeded national averages. Consequently, the state has experienced
substantial growth in population, new business formation, and public works spending. Due to the moderation of economic
growth and migration into our market area and the downturn in the real estate market, our management believes that growth
in our market area will be restrained in the near-term. We have recently experienced an overall slowdown in the origination
of residential mortgage loans for home sales due to the reduced volume of residential real estate sales activity in our market
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areas. A decrease in existing and new home sales reduces our lending opportunities which negatively affects our net income.
We do not anticipate that the housing market will significantly improve in the near-term which could lead to future valuation
adjustments of our loan portfolios.

The fair value of our investments could decline which would adversely affect our shareholders’ equity.

Our investment securities portfolio as of December 31, 2012 has been designated as available-for-sale pursuant to U.S.
GAAP relating to accounting for investments. Such principles require that unrealized gains and losses in the estimated value
of the available-for-sale portfolio be “marked to market” and reflected as a separate item in shareholders’ equity (net of tax)
as accumulated other comprehensive income.

Shareholders’ equity will continue to reflect the unrealized gains and losses (net of tax) of these investments. The fair value
of our investment portfolio may decline, causing a corresponding decline in shareholders’ equity.

Management believes that several factors will affect the fair values of our investment portfolio. These include, but are not
limited to, changes in interest rates or expectations of changes, the degree of volatility in the securities markets, inflation rates
or expectations of inflation, and the slope of the interest rate yield curve (the yield curve refers to the differences between
shorter-term and longer-term interest rates; a positively sloped yield curve means shorter-term rates are lower than longer-
term rates). These and other factors may impact specific categories of the portfolio differently, and we cannot predict the
effect these factors may have on any specific category.

Concerns of clients over deposit insurance may cause a decrease in our deposits.

With increased concerns about bank failures, clients are increasingly concerned about the extent to which their deposits are
insured by the FDIC. Clients may withdraw deposits from 1% United in an effort to énsure that the amount that they have on
deposit at 1* United is fully insured. Decreases in deposits may adversely affect our funding costs and net income.

Risks Related to an Investment in our Common Stock

Limited trading activity for shares of our common stock may contribute to price volatility.

While our common stock is listed and traded on The NASDAQ Global Select Market, there has been limited trading activity
in our common stock. The average daily trading volume of our common stock in 2012 was approximately 46,426 shares. Due
to the limited trading activity of our common stock, relativity small trades may have a significant impact on the price of our

common stock and thereby, the value of your investment in our common stock.

The market price of our common stock may be highly volatile and subject to wide fluctuations in response to numerous
factors, including, but not limited to, the factors discussed in other risk factors and the following:

. actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operating results;

. changes in interest rates;

. changes in the legal or regulatory environment in which we operate;

. press releases, announcements or publicity relating to us or our competitors or relating to trends in our
industry;

. changes in expectations as to our future financial performance, including financial estimates or
recommendations by securities analysts and investors;

. future sales of our common stock;

. changes in economic conditions in our marketplace, general conditions in the U.S. economy, financial

markets or the banking industry; and
. other developments affecting our competitors or us.

Securities research analysts may not initiate coverage or continue to cover our common stock, and this may have a
negative impact on its market price.
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The trading market for our common stock will depend in part on the research and reports that securities analysts publish
about us and our business. We do not have any control over these securities analysts and they may not cover our common
stock. If securities research analysts do not cover our common stock, the lack of research coverage may adversely affect the
market price of our common stock. If we are covered by securities analysts and our common stock is the subject of an
unfavorable report, our stock price would likely decline. If one or more of these analysts ceases to cover us or fails to publish
regular reports on us, we could lose visibility in the financial markets, which would cause our stock price or trading volume
to decline.

Our Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, and certain laws and regulations may prevent or delay transactions you might
favor, including our sale or merger.

We are registered with the Federal Reserve as a financial holding company under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act and are
registered with the Federal Reserve as a bank holding company under the Bank Holding Company Act. As a result, we are
subject to supervisory regulation and examination by the Federal Reserve. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, the Bank Holding
Company Act, and other federal laws subject financial holding companies to particular restrictions on the types of activities
in which they may engage, and to a range of supervisory requirements and activities, including regulatory enforcement
actions for violations of laws and regulations.

Provisions of our Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, certain laws and regulations and various other factors may make it more
difficult and expensive for companies or persons to acquire control of us without the consent of our Board of Directors. It is
possible, however, that you would want a takeover attempt to succeed because, for example, a potential buyer could offer a
premium over the then prevailing price of our common stock.

For example, our Articles of Incorporation permit our Board of Directors to issue preferred stock without shareholder action.
The ability to issue preferred stock could discourage a company from attempting to obtain control of us by means of a tender
offer, merger, proxy contest or otherwise. We are also subject to certain provisions of the Florida Business Corporation Act
and our Articles of Incorporation that relate to business combinations with interested shareholders. Other provisions in our
Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws that may discourage takeover attempts or make them more difficult include:

. Supermajority voting requirements to remove a director from office;

. Requirement that only directors may fill a Board vacancy;

. Requirement that a special meeting may be called only by a majority vote of our shareholders;
. Provisions regarding the timing and content of shareholder proposals and nominations;

. Supermajority voting requirements to amend our Articles of Incorporation;

. Absence of cumulative voting; and

. Inability for shareholders to take action by written consent.

We are subject to evolving and expensive corporate governance regulations and requirements. Our failure to adequately
adhere to these requirements or the failure or circumvention of our controls and procedures could seriously harm our
business.

As a publicly reporting company, we are subject to certain federal, state and other rules and regulations, including applicable
requirements of the Dodd- Frank Act and Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Compliance with these evolving regulations is costly
and requires a significant diversion of management time and attention, particularly with regard to disclosure controls and
procedures and internal control over financial reporting. Although we have reviewed our disclosure and internal controls and
procedures in order to determine whether they are effective, our controls and procedures may not be able to prevent errors or
frauds in the future. Faulty judgments, simple errors or mistakes, or the failure of our personnel to adhere to established
controls and procedures may make it difficult for us to ensure that the objectives of the control system are met. A failure of
our controls and procedures to detect other than inconsequential errors or fraud could seriously harm our business and results
of operations.
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We may be unable to declare and pay dividends in the future.

We declared a special dividend in December 2012 and also announced that we anticipated commencing a regular quarterly
dividend in 2013. However, the payment of dividends to our shareholders depends largely upon the ability of 1* United to
declare and pay dividends to us, as the principal source of our revenue is from such dividends. Our ability to declare and pay
dividends depend primarily upon earnings, financial condition and need for funds, as well as governmental policies and
regulations applicable to us and 1* United.

1* United is subject to legal limitations on the frequency and amount of dividends that can be paid to us. The Federal Reserve
may restrict the ability of 1% United to pay dividends if such payments would constitute an unsafe or unsound banking
practice. These regulations and restrictions may limit our ability to obtain funds from 1* United for our cash needs, including
funds for acquisitions and the payment of dividends, interest, and operating expenses.

In addition, Florida law also places restrictions on the declaration of dividends from state chartered banks to their holding
companies. Pursuant to the Florida Financial Institutions Code, the board of directors of state-chartered banks, after charging
off bad debts, depreciation and other worthless assets, if any, and making provisions for reasonably anticipated future losses
on loans and other assets, may quarterly, semi-annually or annually declare a dividend of up to the aggregate net profits of
that period combined with the bank’s retained net profits for the preceding two years and, with the approval of the Florida
Office of Financial Regulation and Federal Reserve, declare a dividend from retained net profits which accrued prior to the
preceding two years. Before declaring such dividends, 20% of the net profits for the preceding period as is covered by the
dividend must be transferred to the surplus fund of the bank until this fund becomes equal to the amount of the bank’s
common stock then issued and outstanding. A state-chartered bank may not declare any dividend if (i) its net income (loss)
from the current year combined with the retained net income (loss) for the preceding two years aggregates a loss or (ii) the
payment of such dividend would cause the capital account of the bank to fall below the minimum amount required by law,
regulation, order or any written agreement with the Florida Office of Financial Regulation or a federal regulatory agency.

The Company’s ability to pay cash dividends is further limited by certain restrictions imposed generally on Florida
corporations under the Florida Business Corporation Act, specifically, no cash dividends may be paid if, after payment, (a)
the corporation would not be able to pay its debts as they become due in the usual course of business, or (b) the corporation’s
total assets would be less than the sum of its total liabilities plus the amount that would be needed, if the corporation were to
be dissolved at the time of the distribution, to satisfy the preferential rights upon dissolution of shareholders whose
preferential rights are superior to those receiving the distribution.

As a result of the foregoing laws, regulations and restrictions, we may be unable to pay additional dividends to our
shareholders in the future.

Shares of our common stock are not an insured deposit and may lose value.

The shares of our common stock are not a bank deposit and will not be insured or guaranteed by the FDIC or any other
government agency. Your investment will be subject to investment risk, and you must be capable of affording the loss of
your entire investment.

Sales of a significant number of shares of our common stock in the public markets, or the perception of such sales, could
depress the market price of our common stock.

Sales of a substantial number of shares of our common stock in the public markets and the availability of those shares for sale
could adversely affect the market price of our common stock. In addition, future issuances of equity securities, including
pursuant to outstanding options, could dilute the interests of our existing shareholders, including you, and could cause the
market price of our common stock to decline. We may issue such additional equity or convertible securities to raise
additional capital. The issuance of any additional shares of common or preferred stock or convertible securities could be
substantially dilutive to shareholders of our common stock. Moreover, to the extent that we issue restricted stock units,
phantom shares, stock appreciation rights, options or warrants to purchase our common stock in the future and those stock
appreciation rights, options or warrants are exercised or as the restricted stock units vest, our shareholders may experience
further dilution. Holders of our shares of common stock have no preemptive rights that entitle holders to purchase their pro
rata share of any offering of shares of any class or series and, therefore, such sales or offerings could result in increased
dilution to our shareholders. We cannot predict the effect that future sales of our common stock would have on the market
price of our common stock.
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We may issue debt and equity securities or securities convertible into equity securities, any of which may be senior to our
common stock as to distributions and in liquidation, which could negatively affect the value of our common stock.

In the future, we may attempt to increase our capital resources by entering into debt or debt-like financing that is unsecured or
secured by all or up to all of our assets, or by issuing additional debt or equity securities, which could include issuances of
secured or unsecured commercial paper, medium-term notes, senior notes, subordinated notes, preferred stock or securities
convertible into or exchangeable for equity securities. In the event of our liquidation, our lenders and holders of our debt and
preferred securities would receive a distribution of our available assets before distributions to the holders of our common stock.
Because our decision to incur debt and issue securities in our future offerings will depend on market conditions and other factors
beyond our control, we cannot predict or estimate the amount, timing or nature of our future offerings and debt financings.
Further, market conditions could require us to accept less favorable terms for the issuance of our securities in the future.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item 2. Properties

At December 31, 2012, we operated 22 full service banking centers in Florida, which includes our principal office in Boca

Raton, Florida. In addition, we have an Executive/Operations Center which we lease in West Palm Beach, Florida. The
following table sets forth our banking centers, date opened and whether owned or leased:

Office Name Date Opened/Acquired Own/Lease
Boca Raton (Principal Office) December 2003 Leased
North Palm Beach Banking Center April 2000 Leased
Cooper City Banking Center April 2004 Leased
West Palm Beach Banking Center May 2004 Leased
Palm Beach Banking Center January 2006 Leased
Coral Springs Banking Center August 2007 Leased
Ft. Lauderdale Banking Center February 1987 @ Leased
North Miami Banking Center ‘ June 1992 Leased
Coral Ridge Banking Center November 2004 ¢V Leased
Vero Beach Banking Center August 2008 @ Owned
Sebastian Banking Center August 2008 Owned
Barefoot Bay Banking Center August 2008? Owned
Brickell Bay Banking Center December 11, 2009® Leased
Doral Banking Center December 11, 2009® Leased
Coral Way Banking Ceriter September 2010 Leased
Countryside Banking Center October 2011? Leased
Dunedin Banking Center October 2011® Owned
New Port Richey Banking Center October 2011® Leased
Palm Harbor Banking Center October 2011® Owned
Fort Harrison Banking Center April 1,2012¢ Leased
Winter Park Banking Center April 1, 20129 Owned
Kennedy Blvd Banking Center April 1, 2012¢ Owned

w Represents the original open date of the former Equitable Bank Banking Center. Effective with the
Equitable Merger on February 29, 2008, these banking centers became 1* United offices.

@ Represents banking centers acquired as part of the Citrus acquisition consummated on August 15, 2008.

@ Represents banking centers acquired as part of the Republic Federal acquisition consummated on
December 11, 2009.

@ Represents banking centers acquired as part of the Old Harbor acquisition consummated on October 21,

2011.

® Represents banking centers acquired as part of the AFI acquisition consummated on April 1, 2012.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are periodically a party to or otherwise involved in legal proceedings arising in the normal course of business, such as
claims to enforce liens, claims involving the making and servicing of real property loans, and other issues incident to our
business. Management does not believe that there is any pending or threatened proceeding against us which, if determined
adversely, would have a material adverse effect on our financial position, liquidity, or results of operations.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.

PART 11

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Our common stock has traded on The NASDAQ Global Market since September 18, 2009 under the symbol “FUBC”. Since
January 1, 2012, our common stock has traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market.

In December 2012, the Company declared and paid a special cash dividend of $0.10 per common share. Beginning in the first
quarter of 2013, the Company expects to declare and pay quarterly dividends on common stock. We have restrictions on our
ability to pay dividends. Please see Item 1. Business-Regulatory Considerations-Dividends for a discussion of these
additional restrictions. As of January 31, 2013, our common stock was held by approximately 499 shareholders of record.

High Low

2011

First QUAarter.........cccevoveeeeeenmreeeesreensresssnensnsnes rerersrenssasreseens $ 746 §$ 6.01
SECONd QUATLET .......ccoeueeiiiieeeccnteenssresesesasasessssssseseressesssssssssessesessassasesssssnsessas 7.19 5.18
Third QUATLET ......cccouoreiieieeceereeeeet sttt ere e stet s e e s s sntsssssse e sssaseesssssasesnanns 6.50 4.56
FOurth QUATLET .........cooiuiieeieiiieincnceccenaneseersetsee e essesess et e e e tesensssesssesssesssenens 5.73 444
2012

First QUArter.........ccooecevecrrenrsesensereessesnsessnennanas reretese sttt aenes $ 636 §$ 547
Second QUATLET ........c.cvceiereeereernrerenersressenesesnssssesernssensesens 6.39 5.31
Third QUATTET ....ccoenemiecerereeenscenracscnenrtrestssnesssesstasesetasssssasesssassassensasaes 6.56 5.40
FOUrth QUATLET ........ooeoiierrreeeertenicnseereneriereerats e see e ssseesessssssesassssssessnsneesesens 6.83 5.30

The following graph and table provide a comparison of the cumulative total returns for our common stock, the NASDAQ
Composite Index and the SNL Southeast Bank Index for the periods indicated. The graph assumes that an investor originally
invested $100 in shares of our common stock at its closing price on September 18, 2009, the first day that our shares were
traded. The stock price information below is not necessarily indicative of future price performance.
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Period Ending
Index 09/18/09  12/31/09  06/30/10  12/31/10  06/30/11  12/31/11  06/30/12  12/31/12
1st United Bancorp, Inc. ................. 100.00 125.26 129.12 121.23 109.12 97.37 108.95 111.41
NASDAQ Composite 100.00 106.69 99.63 126.05 132.37 125.05 141.71 147.25
SNL Southeast Bank............ccccceuuu. 100.00 88.40 87.69 85.83 76.35 50.22 68.05 83.42

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table presents our summary consolidated financial data. We derived our balance sheet and income statement
data for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008 from our audited financial statements. The summary
consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with, and are qualified in their entirety by, our financial statements
and the accompanying notes and the other information included elsewhere in this Annual Report.

Use of Non-GAAP Financial Measures

The information set forth below contains certain financial information determined by methods other than in accordance with
generally accepted accounting policies in the United States (“GAAP”). These non-GAAP financial measures are “tangible
assets,” “tangible shareholders’ equity,” “tangible book value per common share,” and “tangible equity to tangible assets,”
Our management uses these non-GAAP measures in its analysis of our performance because it believes these measures are
material and will be used as a measure of our performance by investors.

“Tangible assets” is defined as total assets reduced by goodwill and other intangible assets. “Tangible shareholders’ equity”
is defined as total shareholders’ equity reduced by goodwill and other intangible assets. “Tangible equity to tangible assets”
is defined as tangible shareholders’ equity divided by tangible assets. These measures are important to many investors in the
marketplace who are interested in the equity to assets ratio exclusive of the effect of changes in intangible assets on equity
and total assets.

“Tangible book value per common share” is defined as tangible shareholders’ equity divided by total common shares

outstanding. This measure is important to many investors in the marketplace who are interested in changes from period to
period in book value per share exclusive of changes in intangible assets. Goodwill, an intangible asset that is recorded in a
purchase business combination, has the effect of increasing total book value while not increasing our tangible book value.

These disclosures should not be considered in isolation or a substitute for results determined in accordance with GAAP, and are
not necessarily comparable to non-GAAP performance measures which may be presented by other bank holding companies.
Management compensates for these limitations by providing detailed reconciliations between GAAP information and the non-
GAAP financial measures. A reconciliation table is set forth below following the selected consolidated financial data.
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(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

As of and for the years ended December 31,

2012(a) 2011(b) 2010(c) 2009(d) 2008
BALANCE SHEET DATA
TOtAl @SSELS........ccreerererrerererrrinsereessseiserets v s rerssesssssassaesssssssssneressessaen $1,566,779 $1,421,487 $1,267,181 $1,013,441 $617,821
Tangible assets.........ccccveveveerernennee . 1,505,253 1,365,722 1,218,884 965,388 570,703
TOAl JOANS .....ocoverririrrreeeiier ettt et seassenesesesesesnessatsssnensenesses 913,541 879,536 875,931 667,140 486,247
AlloWanCe fOr 10an 10SSES .......c.c.vvviveeeererieececeerrrsresesseseesessassesessessssssessens 9,788 12,836 13,050 13,282 5,799
Securities available for sale..................... 260,122 201,722 102,289 88,843 35,075
Goodwill and other intangible assets ..............ceivirireeceerererereseeseseseensnens 61,526 55,765 48,297 48,053 47,118
DIEPOSILS ...ooeveeerrrerceneeretetetetere et b bt en s renesesesentstsasesaesenenonnenas 1,303,022 1,181,708 1,064,687 802,808 436,269
Non-interest bearing deposits............cccecereerrurinnns 426,968 329,283 281,285 194,185 100,785
Shareholders’ EQUILY ...........oceeveueuememveeececeer e esceciccreencevesessastessasssesen s 236,690 215,351 173,488 170,594 98,870
Tangible shareholders’ equity ............ccoeverereireineeerererirereeeeeceeerereenes 175,164 159,586 125,191 122,541 51,752
INCOME STATEMENT DATA
INtErest INCOME..........ovoueeeeeeieceiietcececi ettt essaeasesessensnene $ 72,849 $ 60409 $ 45763 $ 28,539 $ 30,250
Interest expense 5,313 6,349 7,745 7,246 9,584
Net INterest iNCOME .........cviveerererieeeeiecreeiteceeeeeeeer e sesee s teeeeeeeseeaee e 67,536 54,060 38,018 21,293 20,666
Provision for 10an 10SSES ........cccevmriririririncriieererenreeseeectsistseeeeensnsnens 6,350 7,000 13,520 13,240 1,910
Net interest income after provision for loan losses ............................. 61,186 47,060 24,498 8,053 18,756
Gain 0N ACQUISTHION ....cceovvverreeierenreteeerit et eeeeseee — — 10,133 20,535 —
Other non-interest income (2,666) 1,739 4,411 2,427 2,037
Non-interest EXpense..........eeveuruereereeserierenereresesesesinns 50,984 42,845 36,429 26,168 22,904
Income (l0ss) before INCOME tAXES............ceerrimirririrsenecceereresesesesessessans 7,536 5,954 2,613 4,847 2,111)
Income tax expense (benefit)...........ccevvveererererenrnnnanes 2,808 2,282 1,015 1,827 (752)
Net income (loss) 4,728 3,672 1,598 3,020 (1,359)
Preferred stock dividends €arned ...............cccoviiveeeeeeeeeeceresnseeserenssenenas — — — (774) (368)
Net income (loss) available to common shareholders.......................... $ 4728 $§ 3672 $§ 1,598 § 2246 $ (1,727)
PER SHARE DATA
Basic earnings (loss) per share reeeretstste st bsas ettt $ 014 §$ 013 § 006 $ 017 $ (0.25)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share.............ccccoeveererrrereenecrereennnn. $ 014 $ 013 § 0.06 $ 017 $ (0.25)
Cash dividends declared .............c.coeeveeueuiemieeeieiiieeee e eeeeeseeeenes $ 0.10 — — — —
Dividend payout ratio . “ 71.43% — — — —
Book value per common share............... .$ 695 $ 7.04 $ 7.00 $ 6.88 $§ 10.87
Tangible book value per common share . .3 514 § 522 % 505 $ 494 § 544
SELECTED OPERATING RATIOS
REtUrn 0N AVETAZE ASSELS..........rvvriemrurenrerrseirinsensesassessrsseessssssssssssisssesesnas 0.31% 0.28% 0.15% 0.46%  (0.25)%
Return on average shareholders’ equity 2.03% 1.80% 0.91% 244%  (1.63)%
Net interest margin...........cccceeveuennenes 5.13% 4.76% 4.06% 3.69% 4.23%
SELECTED ASSET QUALITY DATA, CAPITAL AND ASSET
QUALITY RATIOS
EQUILY/ASSELS ....coovovevrrerercienteresess et besen s rereresssssssseacsassnseserensessans 15.11% 15.15% 13.69% 16.83% 16.00%
Tangible equity/tangible assets................. 11.64% 11.69% 10.27% 12.69% 9.07%
Non-performing loans/total loans 2.56% 4.94% 2.60% 2.34% 1.76%
Non-performing assets/total aSSELS............oeerevrrireeceieereisiressesseererceses 2.74% 4.01% 2.38% 1.60% 1.72%
Allowance for 1oan 10sses/total 10ans............o.veveeeeeererecrenecssesseeeesssannes 1.07% 1.46% 1.49% 1.99% 1.19%
Allowance for loan losses/non-performing loans.... 41.80% 29.52% 57.27% 85.0% 55%
Net charge-offs (recoveries)/average total loans...............cooeevevriueninene. 1.01% 0.87% 2.01% 1.14% 0.21%
REGULATORY CAPITAL RATIOS FOR THE COMPANY
Leverage Ratio.........cccoeercnrennrreeeresenesi e sesesesesens 11.45% 11.75% 11.78% 12.54% 8.15%
Tier 1 Risk-based Capital.............cccvueeeeviciiiinirieeeeiecceissisnsceresesnonnes 21.24% 23.90% 21.02% 23.23% 9.46%
Total Risk-based Capital 22.46% 25.16% 23.08% 2545% 11.69%
REGULATORY CAPITAL RATIOS FOR THE BANK:
Leverage Ratio........ccccoceueevcrerenrevereerensennns - 10.27% 9.11% 9.90% 7.72% 6.91%
Tier 1 Risk-based Capital............c.cceereieinirnnrnrereesesecccnirtesseeesesssesesenes 19.09% 18.61% 17.67% 14.36% 8.03%
Total Risk-based Capital...........c.ccccvvrneee.e. 20.30% 19.87% 19.73% 16.59% 10.26%

(@) Includes the acquisition of Anderen Financial, Inc. effective April 1, 2012.

(b) Includes the acquisition of Old Harbor bank of Florida effective October 1, 2011.

(c) Includes the acquisition of The Bank of Miami, N.A. effective December 17, 2010.
(d) Includes the acquisition of Republic Federal Bank, N.A. effective December 11, 2009.
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GAAP Reconciliation
(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

As of and for the years ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

TOLAl ASSELS ..eovvvereeeeeeeieiee ettt seeeeeresssn b fuen et ererenes $1,566,779 $1,421,487 $1,267,181 $1,013,441 $617,821
GOOAWILL.....vrrrrercreieeeseseeseseseseesesssssisessnssssssssnsnses (58,258) (52,505) (45,008) (45,008)  (45,008)
Intangible assets, Nel.......coccoevuriieriinininserinninenssessesnsnsnes (3,268) (3,260) (3,289) (3,045  (2,110)
Tangible ASSELS.........c.c.ccvecmiiiiiniiiniirisonssesnsssnsssssssens $1,505,253 $1,365,722 $1218,884 $ 965,388 $570,703
SharehOlders’ EqUILY ....c.ocoveerriercmririiiniiresenensstessesasisiens $ 236,690 $ 215351 $ 173,488 $ 170,594 § 98,870
GOOAWILL ..ot ssassss s rnens (58,258) (52,505) (45,008) (45,008) (45,008)
Intangible assets, NEt........cvveivciiesininrieeienenrerressnisssesens (3,268) (3,260) (3,289) (3,045)  (2,110)
Tangible shareholders’ equity .............c..cccovvrerierariennnn. § 175,164 $ 159,586 $ 125,191 § 122,541 $§ 51,752
Book value per commori Share...........cocvvrviecriveiiesinsersnanes $ 695 $ 704 $ 700 $ 688 $ 10.87
Effect of intangible assets.........ceeveeenennieiaeriesncnennes (1.81) (1.82) (1.95) (1.94) (5.43)
Tangible book value per common share........................ $ 514 § 522§ 505 § 494 § 544
Equity t0 total SSets .......cvuviiirivrininiessiesssesnassssssasassesens 15.11% 15.15% 13.69% 16.83%  16.00%
Effect of intangible assets.......covvuvrnverinienieinniisennnncnenes (3.47) (3.46) (3.42) (4.14) (6.93)
Tangible equity/tangible assets ...................cccconrvcenens 11.64% 11.69% 10.27% 12.69% 9.07%

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuits of Operations

Management’s discussion and analysis (“MD&A) provides supplemental information, which sets forth the major factors that
have affected our financial condition and results of operations and should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated
Financial Statements and related notes included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K. The MD&A is divided into subsections
entitled “Business Overview,” “Financial Overview,” “Financial Condition,” “Results of Operations,” “Interest Rate Risk
Management,” “Liquidity and Capital Resources,” “Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements,” and “Critical Accounting Policies.”
The following information should provide a better understanding of the major factors and trends that affect our earnings
performance and financial condition, and how our performance during 2012 compares with prior years. Throughout this
section, 1% United Bancorp, Inc., and its subsidiaries, collectively, are referred to as “Company,” “we,” “us,” or “our.” Unless
the context indicates otherwise, all dollar amounts in this MD&A are in thousands.

CAUTION CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K, including this MD&A section, contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning
of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking statements include, among others, statements
about our beliefs, plans, objectives, goals, expectations, estimates and intentions that are subject to significant risks and
uncertainties and are subject to change based on various factors, many of which are beyond our control. The words “may,”
“could,” “should,” “would,” “believe,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “plan,” “target,” “goal,” and similar
expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements.

All forward-looking statements, by their nature, are subject to risks and uncertainties. Our actual future results may differ
materially from those set forth in our forward-looking statements. Please see the Introductory Note and Item 14 Risk Factors
of this Annual Report for a discussion of factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those in the
forward-looking statements.

However, other factors besides those listed in Item 14 Risk Factors or discussed in this Annual Report also could adversely
affect our results, and you should not consider any such list of factors to be a complete set of all potential risks or
uncertainties. Any forward-looking statements made by us or on our behalf speak only as of the date they are made. We do
not undertake to update any forward-looking statement, except as required by applicable law.
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Business Overview

We are a financial holding company headquartered in Boca Raton, Florida. Our principal subsidiary, 1¥ United, is a Florida-
chartered commercial bank, which operates 22 banking centers in Florida, from Central Florida through the Treasure Coast to
South Florida, including Brevard, Broward, Hillsborough, Indian River, Miami-Dade, Orange, Palm Beach, Pasco, and
Pinellas Counties.

Over the past nine years, we have grown under the stewardship of our highly experienced executive management team,
Specifically, we have

. increased total assets from $66.8 million to $1.567 billion;

. increased total net loans from $39.6 million to $904.5 million;

. grown non-interest bearing deposits from $4.6 million to $427.0 million; and
. expanded our branch network from one location to 22 locations.

We follow a business plan that emphasizes the delivery of commercial banking services to businesses and individuals in our
geographic market who desire a high level of personalized service. The business plan includes business banking, professional
market services, real estate lending and private banking, as well as full community banking products and services. The
business plan also provides for an emphasis on our Small Business Administration lending program, as well as on small
business lending. We focus on the building of a balanced loan and deposit portfolio, with emphasis on low cost liabilities and
variable rate loans.

As is the case with banking institutions generally, our operations are materially and significantly influenced by general
economic conditions and by related monetary and fiscal policies of financial institution regulatory agencies, including the
Federal Reserve Bank and the FDIC. Deposit flows and costs of funds are influenced by interest rates on competing
investments and general market rates of interest. Lending activities are affected by the demand for financing of real estate and
other types of loans, which in turn is affected by the interest rates at which such financing may be offered and other factors
affecting local demand and availability of funds. We face strong competition in the attraction of deposits (our primary source
of lendable funds) and in the origination of loans.

Our lending operations are entirely within the State of Florida, which has been particularly hard hit in the current economic
recession. Evidence of the economic downturn in Florida is particularly reflected in recent unemployment statistics and
realization of real estate devaluation. According to data from the U.S. Department of Labor, the Florida unemployment rate
(seasonally adjusted) at December 2012 was 8.0% which is above the national average of 7.8%. Although the unemployment
rate decreased from 9.9% at the end of 2010 and 12.0% at the end of 2009, Florida continues to have one of the highest
unemployment rates in the United States, which has adversely affected our market areas as evidenced by layoffs and business
closings, as well as wealth reduction due to depressed markets.

We have also experienced a high volume of bankruptcy filings in Florida during recent years. According to the most recent
data available from the U.S. Federal Courts, Florida had the second highest number of bankruptcy filings in the United States
through the first three quarters of 2012. Only California experienced more bankruptcy filings. The majority of the filings in
Florida were non-business bankruptcies.

Based on data from the U.S. Census Bureau, from 2006 through the end of 2010, median household income decreased by
3.1% in Florida. Additionally, real estate property valuations have also been depressed during the recent economic downturn
as evidenced by our higher level of problem assets and credit-related costs. According to the Federal Housing Finance
Agency, Florida has experienced negative trends in single-family home prices (as indicated by negative housing price
indexes) in nearly every quarter since the beginning of 2007 through the end of 2011. High unemployment, high volumes of
non-business bankruptcy filings, decreased median household income, and depressed real estate values all affect the value of
our loan portfolio and the associated risks. An extended continuation of the recession in Florida would likely exacerbate the
adverse effects of these difficult market conditions on our clients, which would likely have a negative impact on our financial
results.

We intend to continue to opportunistically expand and grow our business by building on our business strategy and increasing
market share in key Florida markets. We believe the demographics and growth characteristics within the communities we
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serve will provide significant franchise enhancement opportunities to leverage our core competencies while acquisitive
growth will enable us to take advantage of the extensive infrastructure and scalable platform that we have assembled.

A significant portion of our growth has been through acquisitions. Under our current management team, we have announced
seven transactions since 2004:

Acquired Bank Headquarters Year Acquired
First Western Bank Cooper City, Florida 2004
Equitable Bank Fort Lauderdale, Florida 2008
Citrus Bank, N.A." Vero Beach, Florida 2008
Republic Federal Bank, N.A. @ Miami, Florida 2009
The Bank of Miami, N.A.? Miami, Florida 2010
Old Harbor Bank of Florida ® Clearwater, Florida 2011
Anderen Bank Palm Harbor, Florida 2012

W Branch acquisition
@ FDIC-assisted transaction

Anderen Financial, Inc.

On April 1, 2012, the Company completed its acquisition of AFI, pursuant to the Merger Agreement. Pursuant to the terms of
the Merger Agreement, cach outstanding share of AFI common stock, $0.01 par value per share, was cancelled and
automatically converted into the right to receive cash, common stock of the Company or a combination of cash and common
stock of the Company. AFI shareholders could elect to receive cash, stock, or a combination of 50% cash and 50% stock,
provided, however, that each election was subject to mandatory allocation procedures to ensure the total consideration was
approximately 50% cash and 50% stock. The value of the AFI per share consideration was $7.73 calculated per the Merger
Agreement. The total value of the consideration paid to AFI shareholders was $38.3 million which consisted of
approximately $19.1 million in cash and 3,140,354 shares of the Company’s common stock. The Company’s common stock
was valued at $6.09 per share with a total value of $19.1 million, net of approximately $61,000 of costs. The Company
recorded goodwill of $5.8 million as a result of the merger which is not deductible for tax purposes. Total net deferred tax
assets acquired was $5.9 million, primarily related to loss carry forwards. The Company completed the integration of AFI in
June 2012.

The Company accounted for the transaction under the acquisition method of accounting which requires purchased assets and
liabilities assumed to be recorded at their respective fair values at the date of acquisition. See Note 4 for additional
information related to the fair value of loans acquired. The Company uses third party valuations to determine the fair value of
the core deposit intangible, securities, fixed assets and deposits. The fair value of other real estate owned was based on recent
appraisals of the properties. The estimated fair values are considered preliminary and are subject to refinement as additional
information relative to the closing date fair values becomes available during the measurement period. While additional
significant changes to the closing date fair values are not expected, any information relative to the changes in these fair values
will be evaluated to determine if such changes are due to events and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date.

The acquisition of AFI is consistent with the Company’s plans to continue to enhance its footprint and competitive position
within the state of Florida. This acquisition complemented the initial expansion into the Florida Gulf Coast markets with the
acquisition of Old Harbor. The Company believes it is well-positioned to deliver superior customer service, achieve stronger
financial performance and enhance shareholder value through the synergies of combined operations. All of these factors
contributed to the resulting goodwill in the transaction.

Old Harbor Bank of Florida

On October 21, 2011, the 1* United acquired certain assets and assumed substantially all of the deposits, other than
depository organized - trokered deposits, and certain from the FDIC. Assets acquired included cash and cash equivalents,
investments securities, loans and other real estate owned. A majority of the loans and all other real estate owned are covered
under loss sharing agreements between the FDIC and 1* United.

The deposits were acquired with a 0% premium and assets were acquired at a discount of approximately $8.5 million, subject

to customary adjustments. The FDIC’s obligation to reimburse the Company for losses with respect to Covered Assets begins
with the first dollar of loss incurred. The FDIC will reimburse 1* United for 70% of losses with respect to Covered Assets, up
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to approximately $49 million. 1* United will reimburse the FDIC for 70% of recoveries with respect to losses for which the
FDIC paid 1* United 70% reimbursement under the Loss Sharing Agreements. The loss sharing agreement applicable to
single-family residential mortgage loans provides for FDIC loss sharing and 1* United reimbursement to the FDIC for ten
years. The loss sharing agreement applicable to commercial loans and other real estate owned provides for FDIC loss sharing
for five years and 1¥ United reimbursement for eight years. In addition, on December 15, 2021, 1* United will pay to the
FDIC 50% of the excess, if any, of (1) $9,761 minus (2) the sum of (a) 25% of the asset discount bid made in connection with
the acquisition, (b) 20% of the Cumulative Shared-Loss Payments (as defined below) and (c) 3.5% of the total loans subject
to loss sharing. For the purposes of the above calculation, “Cumulative Shared-Loss Payments” means (i) the aggregate of all
of the payments made or payable to the Company under the loss sharing agreements minus (ii) the aggregate of all of the
payments made or payable to the FDIC under the loss sharing agreements

The Company accounted for the transaction under the acquisition method of accounting which requires purchased assets and
assumed liabilities to be recorded at their respective acquisition date fair values. The estimated fair values were completed in
2012. Changes from our original estimates of fair value were due to additional information related to the fair value over
loans, other real estate and the FDIC loss share receivable. As a result of the transaction, 1* United recorded goodwill of $7.5
million in the consolidated balance sheet for the year ended December 31, 2011.

On the date of acquisition, 1* United did not immediately acquire the furniture or equipment or any of the owned facilities of
Old Harbor. Management assessed each banking location and determined not to assume three branches, two of which were
leased and one of which was owned. Management believes the customers at these closed banking centers can be served at the
retained locations. 1* United agreed to purchase two banking facilities and related furniture and equipment for $2.2 million
and lease two banking facilities.

The Bank of Miami Acquisition

On December 17, 2010, 1* United acquired certain assets and liabilities of TBOM from the FDIC. Assets acquired included
loans, other real estate owned cash and investments. 1* United also assumed all deposits (except certain brokered deposits)
and borrowings.

All of the loans and other real estate owned are covered by two loss sharing agreements between the FDIC and 1% United.
Under these loss sharing agreements, the FDIC will cover 80% of covered loan and other real estate losses for loans and other
real estate owned acquired. The TBOM Loss Sharing Agreements also cover third party collection costs and 90 days of
accrued interest on covered loans. The term for loss sharing and loss recoveries on residential real estate loans is ten years,
while the term for loss sharing and loss recoveries on non-residential real estate loans is five years with respect to losses and
eight years with respect to loss recoveries. The reimbursable losses from the FDIC are based on the book value of the
relevant loan as determined by the FDIC at the date of the transaction. New loans made after that date are not covered by
TBOM the Loss Sharing Agreements. The TBOM Loss Sharing Agreements related to the TBOM acquisition are subject to
certain servicing procedures as specified in the agreements.

The acquisition was accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting. 1* United received a $38 million net discount
on the assets acquired and recorded a receivable from the FDIC of $36.3 million as of December 17, 2010. An acquisition
gain totaling $10.1 million was recorded as a component of non-interest income on the consolidated statement of operations
for the year ended December 31, 2010.

As part of the acquisition, 1% United had the option to acquire the furniture or equipment and any owned facilities from the
FDIC. 1* United also had the option to repudiate or assume all leases entered into by the former TBOM. Two of the former
TBOM banking facilities were leased and one was owned. Management determined not to retain any of the TBOM branches
and services the acquired deposits from existing 1% United banking centers.

Republic Federal Acquisition

On December 11, 2009, 1st United entered into a purchase and assumption agreement (the “Republic Agreement”) with the
FDIC, as receiver for Republic Federal Bank, National Association (“Republic”), Miami, Florida. According to the terms of
the Republic Agreement, 1st United assumed all deposits (except certain brokered deposits) and borrowings, and acquired
certain assets of Republic. Assets acquired included loans and cash and investments. All of Republic’s repossessed or
foreclosed real estate and substantially all non-performing loans were retained by the FDIC. Republic operated four banking
centers in Miami-Dade County, Florida, and had approximately 100 employees. The Company assumed approximately
$349.6 million in deposits in this transaction.
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All of the Republic loans acquired are covered by two loss sharing agreements (the “Republic Loss Sharing Agreements”)
between the FDIC and 1st United, which affords 1st United significant loss protection. Under the Republic Loss Sharing
Agreements, the FDIC will cover 80% of covered loan and foreclosed real estate losses up to $36 million and 95% of losses
in excess of that amount. 1st United received a $34.2 million net discount on the assets acquired. The Republic Loss Sharing
Agreements also cover third party collection costs and 90 days of accrued interest on covered loans. The term for loss sharing
and loss recoveries on residential real estate loans is ten years, while the term for loss sharing and loss recoveries on non-
residential real estate loans is five years with respect to losses and eight years with respect to loss recoveries. The Company
recorded an estimated receivable from the FDIC in the amount of $43.8 million, which represents the fair value of the FDIC’s
portion of the losses thar are expected to be incurred and reimbursed to the Company. The reimbursable losses from the FDIC
are based on the book value of the relevant loan as determined by the FDIC at the date of the transaction.

Financial Overview

. Net earnings for the year ended December 31, 2012 were $4.7 million compared to net earnings of $3.7
million in 2011.

. Net interest margin increased to 5.13% for the twelve months ended December 31, 2012 compared to
4.76% for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011.

. During the year ended December 31, 2012, we incurred approximately $1.8 million in personnel, IT and
facilities costs and merger reorganization expense that related to the integration of AFI and Old Harbor.
During the year ended December 31, 2011, we incurred approximately $1.1 million in personnel, IT,
facilities and merger reorganization expense related to the integration of TBOM.

. The changes in operating results for the year ended December 31, 2012 when compared to the year ended
Deceraber 31, 2011, and for the balance sheet at December 31, 2012 when compared to December 31,
2011, were substantially a result of the AFI Acquisition in April 2012 and Old Harbor in October 2011.

. Non-performing assets at December 31, 2012 represented 2.74% of total assets compared to 4.01% at
Decernber 31, 2011. Non-performing assets not covered by the Loss Sharing Agreements represented
1.17% of total assets at December 31, 2012 compared to 2.39% at December 31, 2011.

. Total assets increased to $1.567 billion at December 31, 2012 from $1.421 billion at December 31, 2011
primarily due to the AFI acquisition.

- Securities available for sale increased by approximately $58.4 million from $201.7 million at December 31,
2011 to $260.1 million at December 31, 2012. The increase was a result of the Company investing excess
liquidity of approximately $194.3 million primarily in residential mortgage backed securities during the
year ended December 31, 2012, as well as the acquisition of $37.7 million of residential mortgage backed
securities from AFI, which was offset by sales of $102.5 million and maturities and principal payments of
$69.7 million.

. Net loans increased by approximately $37.2 million to $904.0 million at December 31, 2012 from $866.8
million at December 31, 2011. The change was due to the acquisition of $132.0 million of loans in
connection with the merger of AFI as well as new loan production which was offset by payoffs and
resolutions during the year.

. Other real estate owned increased by $6.1 million to $19.5 million from $13.5 million at December 31,
2011. The increase was due to the foreclosure of $30.0 million of loans which was partially offset by
OREO sales of $24.1 million, net of a $3.3 million gain for the year ended December 31, 2012. At
December 31, 2012, we had $777,000 in OREO under contract for sale.

. FDIC loss share receivable was reduced by approximately $26.2 million from $72.9 million at December
31, 2011 to $46.7 million at December 31, 2012, The decrease was primarily due to cash receipts from the
FDIC of approximately $11.6 million and approximately $13.7 million related to adjustments resulting
from the disposition of acquired loans at above their discounted carrying values and the impact of changes
in anticipated cash flows offset by accretion of income on the receivable of $1.2 million.
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. Deposits increased by $121.3 million from $1.182 billion at December 31, 2011 to $1.303 billion at
December 31, 2012 due primarily from the acquisition of $161.0 million in deposits from the AFI
Acquisition and overall growth in non-interest bearing deposits offset by a planned reduction of higher cost
acquired deposits. The percentage of non-interest bearing deposits to total deposits was approximately 33%
at December 31, 2012 compared to approximately 28% at December 31, 2011.

. Total shareholders’ equity increased to $236.7 million at December 31, 2012 from $215.4 million at
December 31, 2011 as a result of the acquisition of AFI and the corresponding issuance of $19.1 million in
common shares and the result of net earnings for the year ended December 31, 2012 of $4.7 million.

Financial Condition

At December 31, 2012, our total assets were $1.567 billion and our net loans were $904.0 million or 57.7% of total assets. At
December 31, 2011, our total assets were $1.421 billion and our net loans were $866.9 million or 61.0% of total assets. The
increase in net loans from December 31, 2011 to December 31, 2012 was $37.2 million or 4.3%. This increase was mainly
attributed to the AFI Acquisition which added approximately $132.0 million in net loans. During the year ended December
31, 2012, we had new loan production and fundings of approximately $105.0 million (including loans originated for sale)
which was offset by payoffs, sales, pay downs and charge-offs during the year.

At December 31, 2012, the allowance for loan losses was $9.8 million or 1.07% of total loans. At December 31, 2011, the
allowance for loan losses was $12.8 million or 1.46% of total loans.

At December 31, 2012, our total deposits were $1.303 billion, an increase of $121.3 million (10.3%) over December 31, 2011
of $1.182 billion. The increase was mainly due to the AFI Acquisition in April, 2012, which added approximately $161.0
million in deposits as of December 31, 2012. This was offset by the anticipated runoff of approximately $64.9 million in
higher cost time deposits acquired from the Old Harbor Acquisition in October 2011 and the AFI Acquisition in April 2012,
Non-interest bearing deposits represented 32.8% of total deposits at December 31, 2012 compared to 27.9% at December 31,
2011.

There were no Federal Home Loan Bank advances as of December 31, 2012 which compares to $5 million in Federal Home
Loan Advances at December 31, 2011 that subsequently matured and were repaid in January of 2012.

Refer to Part 1, Item 1. Business for a discussion of our investment portfolio, loan portfolio, deposits and borrowings.
Results of Operations

We recorded net earnings of $4.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to net earnings of $3.7 million for
the year ended December 31, 2011. Income for the year ended December 31, 2012 was impacted by the Old Harbor
acquisition at the end of 2011 as well as the AFI acquisition in April 2012. Income for the year ended December 31, 2012
was also impacted by a reduction in the provision for loan losses year-over year of $650,000 as well as salary, occupancy,
data processing and integration expenses of $1.8 million related to the Old Harbor and AFI acquisitions incurred in the year
ended December 31, 2012 as compared to $1.1 million in such costs incurred in the year ending December 31, 2011 related
to the TBOM and Old Harbor acquisitions. Overall operating expenses increased by $8.1 million primarily as a result of the
Old Harbor acquisition in October 2011 as well as the AFI acquisition in April 2012.

We recorded net earnings of $3.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to net earnings of $1.6 million for
the year ended December 31, 2010. The income for the year ended December 31, 2011 was impacted by the TBOM
acquisition at the end of 2010, a reduction in the provision for loan losses year-over-year as well as well as salary, occupancy,
data processing and integration expenses of $1.1 million related to the TBOM and Old Harbor acquisitions. Overall operating
expenses increased year-over-year primarily as a result of the Old Harbor Acquisition in October 2011, and a full year of
operating costs related to the TBOM acquisition in December 2010.

Net Interest Income
Net interest income, which constitutes the principal source of our income, represents the excess of interest income on
interest-earning assets over interest expense on interest-bearing liabilities. The principal interest-earning assets are federal

funds sold, investment securities, and loans. Interest-bearing liabilities primarily consist of time deposits, interest-bearing
checking accounts (“NOW accounts”), savings deposits, money market accounts, FHLB borrowings, and repurchase
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agreements. Funds attracted by these interest-bearing liabilities are invested in interest-earning assets. Accordingly, net
interest income depends upon the volume of average interest-earning assets and average interest-bearing liabilities and the
interest rates earned or paid on them.

The following table reflects the components of net interest income, setting forth for the periods presented, (1) average assets,
liabilities and shareholders’ equity, (2) interest income earned on interest-earning assets and interest paid on interest-bearing
liabilities, (3) average yields earned on interest-earning assets and average rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities, (4) our net
interest spread (i.e., the average yield on interest-earning assets less the average rate on interest-bearing liabilities) and (5) our
net interest margin (i.e., the net yield on interest earning assets).

Net interest earnings for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are reflected in the following table:

(Dollars in thousands) Year ended
December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Average Average
Interest Rates Interest Rates
Average Income/ Earned/  Average Income/ Earned/
Balance Expense Paid Balance Expense Paid
Assets
Interest-earning assets
Loans (@) ...ccceeveeeereeninseenreninnieisineennennes $ 931,807 § 66,929 7.18%$ 831,830 $ 55,311 6.65%
Investment SECUrItIES.........ccouvveeveerennen. 216,039 5,106 236% 147,608 4,362 2.96%
Federal funds sold and securities
purchased under resale agreements ... 169,909 814 0.48% 156,842 736 0.47%
Total interest earning assets................ 1,317,755 72,849 5.53% 1,136,280 60,409 5.32%
Non-interest earning assets.........coeeeeceenne 225,917 180,407
Allowance for loan losses..........cccceereennene (11,381) (13,438)
Total ASSELS ..voeerererereeeeee s ceeneseeneneene. $ 1,532,291 $1,303,249
Liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities
NOW acCounts.........cceveerreceeeescceeserrenns $ 154,687 $ 233 0.15%8$ 125267 $ 222 0.18%
Money market accounts.........ccoceeuenenne. 338,242 1,569 0.46% 278,104 2,192 0.79%
Savings aCCOUNLS......c.courveeuemiimrricresisnenne. 63,736 194 0.30% 44,696 238 0.53%
Certificates of deposit.........ccceveeueivnenne. 336,970 3,296 0.98% 297,806 3,339 1.12%
REPOS .ot sesinenenan, 11,779 14 0.12% 11,998 16 0.13%
Other borrowings..........cocccevveniinnniienane. 137 7 5.11% 9,053 342 3.78%
Total interest-bearing liabilities.......... 905,551 5,313 0.59% 766,924 6,349 0.83%
Non-interest-bearing liabilities
Demand deposit accounts ..........ccceenen. 385,066 325,277
Other Habilities ........ccceovveerereerenenecnene 8,562 7,187
Total non-interest-bearing liabilities . 393,628 332,464
Shareholders’ EQUItY ......ccoceeevvevereneereennnan. 233,112 203,861
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’
EqQUILY oo, $ 1,532,291 $1,303,249
Net interest spread .........ccoceeeeereereneneeennincas $ 67,536 4.94% $ 54,060 4.49%
Net interest on average earning
assets-Margin (b)........cccccevvvnreiininnne 5.13% 4.76%
(a) Average loans include non-performing loans. Interest on loans includes loan origination fees of 8490 in 2012, and

$301 in 2011.

(b) Net interest margin is net interest income divided by average total interest-earning asselts.
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Our net interest income for the year ended December 31, 2012 was positively impacted by an increase in average earning
assets of $181.5 million or 16.0% as compared to the year ended December 30, 2011 primarily due to increases in loans
acquired in the AFI and Old Harbor acquisitions as well as increases in investments due to net purchases through 2012 and
the acquisition of investments from our merger with AFI. Earnings were also positively impacted by the accretion of
discounts related to loans acquired in the AFI, Old Harbor, TBOM, and Republic acquisitions of approximately $19.7 million
for the year ended December 31, 2012 as compared to $11.8 million for the same period in 2011. Included in the $19.7
million of accretion of discount in 2012 was approximately $10.7 million related to the disposition of assets acquired in the
transactions above the discounted purchase price of the asset. Upon evaluation, we took a charge of approximately $10.4
million as an adjustment to FDIC loss share receivable in total non-interest income within the consolidated statements of
operations substantially related to changes in cash flows of loss share assets. Included in the $11.8 million of accretion of
discount in 2011 was approximately $4.3 million related to the disposition of assets acquired in the transactions above the
discounted purchase price of the asset. Upon evaluation, we took a charge of approximately $3.8 million as an adjustment to
FDIC loss share receivable in total non-interest income due to changes in cash flows of loss share assets.

Net interest income was $67.5 million for year ended December, 2012, as compared to $54.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2011, an increase of $13.5 million or 24.9%. The increase resulted primarily from an increase in average
earning assets of $181.5 million or 16.0% primarily due to the AFI and Old Harbor acquisitions as well as a reduction in our
average cost of funds. In addition, the net interest margin (i.e., net interest income divided by average earning assets)
increased 37 basis points from 4.76% during the year ended December 31, 2011 to 5.13% during the year ended December
31, 2012, due to an increase in the yield earned on assets of 21 basis point coupled with a decrease of our cost of funds during
the year as well as an increase in accretion income during the year. Our cost of funds was approximately 41 basis points for
the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to 58 basis points in 2011, primarily as a result of lower rates in the renewal
of time deposits. Accretion of $19.7 million on acquired loans added approximately 150 basis points to the net interest
margin for the year ended December 31, 2012; of this amount, $10.7 million or 81 basis points related to resolved loss share
assets and changes in cash flows during the year ended December 31, 2012. This compares to accretion of loan discount of
$11.8 million during the year December 31, 2011, which added approximately104 basis points to the December 31, 2011
margin. Of this amount, $4.3 million or 38 basis points related to resolved loss share assets and changes in cash flows during
the year ended December 31, 2011. For the year ended December 31, 2012, average loans represented 70.71% of total
average interest-earning assets and 72.2% of total average deposits and customer repurchase agreements, compared to
average loans to total average interest-earning assets of 73.21% and average loans to total average deposits and customer
repurchase agreements of 76.80% at December 31, 2011.
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Net interest earnings for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are reflected in the following table:

(Dollars in thousands) Year ended
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Average Average
Interest Rates Interest Rates
Average Income/ Earned/  Average Income/ Earned/
Balance Expense Paid Balance Expense Paid
Assets
Interest-earning assets
Loans () .......ccceueunee .$ 831,830 $ 55311 6.65%%$ 685251 $ 41,529 6.06%
Investment Securities............cceurervenenenen. 147,608 4,362 2.96% 92,063 3,263 3.54%
Federal funds sold and securities
purchased under resale agreements ... 156,842 736 0.47% 158,949 971 0.61%
Total interest earning assets................ 1,136,280 60,409 5.32% 936,263 45,763 4.89%
Non-interest earning assets..........c..ccceceeeen. 180,407 132,977
Allowance for loan 10SSes.......c.cccererrecnenne. (13,438) (12,991)
Total ASSEtS ....cccoerueueeineeeeecneneeeceeeannen. $ 1,303,249 $1,056,249
Liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities
NOW accounts........coeeeeeeennscecerssensenn. $ 125267 $ 222 0.18%$ 108,275 $ 200 0.18%
Money market accounts..........coceeeeeenee. 278,104 2,192 0.79% 180,999 1,718 0.95%
Savings aCCOUNLS.......cccceverrrereerenesennes 44,696 238 0.53% 37,270 229 0.61%
Certificates of deposit.........ccoceeeerrieccnnn. 297,806 3,339 1.12% 301,428 5,131 1.70%
REPOS ..ovvrvreneirrinrecanas 11,998 16 0.13% 14,228 23 0.16%
Other bOITOWINgS .......ccvceverurrererreseesacecne. 9,053 342 3.78% 10,141 444 4.38%
Total interest-bearing liabilities.......... 766,924 6,349 0.83% 652,341 7,745 1.19%
Non-interest-bearing liabilities
Demand deposit accounts .........ccooeveuene 325,277 222,970
Other liabilities ...........cccceerercreerecncnns 7,187 6,050
Total non-interest-bearing liabilities . 332,464 229,020
Shareholders’ EQUItY ......ccccecceveervrveeseernane 203,861 174,888
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’
EqQUItY ....ccooiierccnncicseccssnesacnnn. $ 1,303,249 $1,056,249
Net interest spread .........ccoevviererecrecnssecsanees $ 54,060 4.49% $ 38,018 3.70%
Net interest on average earning
assets-Margin (b).......ccceeveeverrerresercneneecnnnns 4.76% 4.06%
(a) Average loans include non-performing loans. Interest on loans includes loan fees of 8301 in 2011, and $499 in
2010.
) Net interest margin is net interest income divided by average total interest-earning assets.

Our net interest income for the year ended December 31, 2011 was positively impacted by an increase in average earning
assets of $200.0 million or 21.36% as compared to the year ended December 30, 2010 primarily due to loans and investments
acquired in the Old Harbor and TBOM acquisitions as well as a decrease of our cost of funds during the year. Earnings were
also positively impacted by the accretion of discounts related to loans acquired in the Old Harbor, TBOM, and Republic
acquisitions of approximately $11.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 as compared to $5.6 million for the same
period in 2010. Included in the $11.8 million of accretion of discount in 2011 was approximately $4.3 million related to the
disposition of assets acquired in the transactions above the discounted purchase price of the asset. A charge of approximately
$3.8 million was recorded as an adjustment to FDIC loss share receivable in total non-interest income within the consolidated
statements of operations related to these assets and cash flow changes on loss share assets.
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Net interest income was $54.1 million for year ended December, 2011, as compared to $38.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2010, an increase of $16.0 million or 42.20%. The increase resulted primarily from an increase in average
earning assets of $200.0 million or 21.36% primarily due to the TBOM and Old Harbor acquisitions as well as a reduction in
our average cost of funds. In addition, the net interest margin (i.e., net interest income divided by average earning assets)
increased 70 basis points from 4.06% during the year ended December 31, 2010 to 4.76% during the year ended December
31, 2011, due to an increase in the yield earned in assets of 43 basis point coupled with a decrease of our cost of funds during
the year as well as an increase in accretion income during the year. Our cost of funds was approximately 36 basis points
lower for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to 2010, primarily as a result of lower rates in the renewal of time
deposits. Accretion of $11.8 million on acquired loans added approximately 104 basis points to the year ended December 31,
2011 net interest margin. Of this $11.8 million, $4.3 million or 38 basis points related to resolved loss share assets during the
year ended December 31, 2011. This compares to accretion of loan discount of $5.6 million during the year December 31,
2010, which added approximately 60 basis points to the December 31, 2010 margin. For the year ended December 31, 2011,
average loans represented 73.21% of total average interest-earning assets and 76.80% of total average deposits and customer
repurchase agreements compared to average loans to total average interest-earning assets of 73.19 % and average loans to
total average deposits and customer repurchase agreements of 79.20% at December 31, 2010.

Rate Volume Analysis
The following table sets forth certain information regarding changes in our interest income and interest expense for the year
ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the year ended December 31, 2011, and the year ended December 31, 2011 as
compared to the year ended December 31, 2010. For each category of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities,
information is provided on changes attributable to changes in interest rate and changes in the volume. Changes in both
volume and rate have been allocated based on the proportionate absolute changes in each category.

Changes in interest earnings for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were as follows:

Years ended

(Dollars in thousands) December 31, 2012 and 2011
Changein Variance Variance
Interest Due to Due to
Income/ Volume Rate
Expense _ Changes _ Changes
Assets
Interest-earning assets
LOBNS.....ccctuieceeeeeuecnceteereceeeeeenenettesene e eeesnenetsensestessasssesenssesssaestssenensessrsnes $ 11,618 §$ 6,968 $ 4,650
Investment SECUTIIES ......oceeermeeercrercereieeecssccestsestsssee st ssesnes 744 1,739 (995)
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements............. 78 62 16
Total interest-earning assets ............. ceeresasreseenenenees $ 12440 $ 8,769 $ 3,671

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Interest-bearing liabilities

NOW GCCOUINLS .....cveverererereesereressesessssessasessesessessssesesssssssessssessssssssesessossssesesses $ 1 $ 47 $ (36)
Money market aCCOUNLS .......ccciviririninnincniiniiensisississsseonsesssasesresmnsssmsssssasones (623) 407 (1,030)
SAVINGS ACCOUNLS.......coeeueeeeeeieeriniistencotesissesierossesessosesasssesessessessasesssssssessssessssess 44) 80 (124)
Certificates Of dEPOSit......cceevrveeerccrrrerrrirercrinis s seesesesscsassesaenes (43) 411 (454)
Federal funds purchased and repos ........cceccceerereererrerennserneneescesemmeneessnesseseesesses ) — )

Other BOTTOWINES .......cccveiiieriririiiineisiinisissisissssessessessessessssessssssssessssnsens (335) (424) 89
Total interest-bearing Habilities......c.cuvececeeerracreererercstrirsnesnestsessesesssssacsess $ (1,036) $ 521 $ (1,557)

Net INErest SPTEAd ...c.ccvvrererererrrreresenserreneenessersssesteresrasressssstessss sessssessessaessssessasns $ 13476 $ 8,248 §$ 5,228
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Changes in interest earnings for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

Years ended
(Dollars in thousands) December 31, 2011 and 2010
Change in Variance Variance
Interest Due to Due to
Income/ Volume Rate
Expense Changes _Changes
Assets
Interest-earning assets
LOAINS.....cviiieveeeeteieeseetsresse e teeste e se e seseesestensssesesseseesestsnssnsssesesessesassesssseesens $ 13,782 § 9477 $§ 47305
Investment SECUTTLIES .......cccoeeveceerrereereesresveseessaseasees . 1,099 1,712 (613)
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements......... (235) (13) (222)
Total iNtereSt-€arning aSSELS .........ceveverieriererrerrisresseresrsssesssssssssrasesasassens $ 14646 §$ 11,176 $ 3,470

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Interest-bearing liabilities

NOW QCCOUNLS.......cveverererereeeieeeteneeresseessesstssesesssssresssssssesassesessssssssensesasnsacs $ 22 3 30 $ 8)
Money market aCCOUNLS .....cc.ccueeurruereererrerreenrerterrrereesnsssssssssstssesssesssssossessones 474 803 (329)
SaVINGS ACCOUNLS.....coccoviririririeiniininsieinersinsssest e eessesnesnessssnsssesenases 9 42 (33)
Certificates Of AEPOSIt.......cccoiiirriieerenerecreriorssessessisssenissumsesisssstsssissssseseos (1,792) (61) (1,731)
Federal funds purchased and repos ..........ccoccceceeereneresencresnnicsssisnsisssncsienns @) 3) @)
Other DOITOWINES .....cccevvirirrirerreirenieeecierceecessisssessesssssessneortssssassssnsssssnesaes (102) (45) (57)

Total interest-bearing Liabilities............ccceeerreererrereevennssennnnsrenessseeesesessnes $ (139) $ 766 $ (2,162)

Net INEETESt SPEAA ..veuveveveerereciieresessetesesteseseese st essaetstesssesseaeessesssssnssesencnsas $ 16,042 $ 10410 $ 5,632

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses is charged to earnings to bring the allowance for loan losses to a level deemed adequate by
management and is based upon anticipated experience, the volume and type of lending conducted by us, the amounts of past
due and non-performing loans, general economic conditions, particularly as they relate to our market area, and other factors
related to the collectability of our loan portfolio. For the year ended December 31, 2012, the provision for loan losses was
$6.4 million as compared to $7.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 and $13.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2010. The decrease in the provision for loan losses between the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 was
primarily due to a reduction in impaired and classified loans period-over-period and some stabilization on changes in the
values on the underlying collateral on impaired loans. During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company strategically
resolved an $11.4 million non-performing loan collateralized by 15 gas stations through acceptance of a bulk sale offer at
below appraised values. The resolution resulted in a $5.4 million charge-off during the year. Total charge-offs for the year
ended December 31, 2012 were $9.8 million as compared to $7.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. In addition,
the reduction in the general reserve of $1.2 million from December 31, 2011 was primarily due to a decrease in special
mention loans of $13.9 million since December 31, 2011 which have a higher allocation of general reserve, coupled with the
improvement in the historic loss factor associated with construction and land development loans.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the allowance for loan losses was 1.07% and 1.46%, respectively, of total loans. As of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, the allowance for loan losses to non-accrual loans was 45.9% and 30.0%, respectively. The
increase in the allowance as a percentage of non-accrual loans over the prior year is primarily due to the continued timely
charge-off of specific assets and resolution of impaired loans and an increase in the overall general reserves of the Company.
The Company obtains new appraisals annually for all non-accruing loans and provides specific reserves when values less
disposal costs are less than the carrying value of the loans. Specific reserves are generally charged off the earlier of resolution
or within one year.
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Non-Interest Income

Following is a schedule of non-interest income for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010:

Year ended
(Dollars in thousands) December 31,
2012 2011 2010

Service charges and fees on deposit ACCOUNLS .......coeereererirecrreenneceeeneenes $ 3451 $ 3,581 $ 3,091
Net gains (losses) on sales of other real estate owned...........ccovvinnninen. 3,278 (264) (113)
Net gains on sales of SECUTILIES .......cccveruerercrercrrerniininiciiiineiee i 1,673 364 435
Net gains on sales of loans held for sale ..., 106 58 73
Increase in cash surrender value of Company owned life insurance........... 498 151 161
Adjustment to FDIC loss share receivable...........c.cccoceevcvirvcnccnnncnnrcnnnnne (12,488) (3,236) —
Gain 0N ACUISIEION ....cueueeeereeerrercriisin sttt eane st es et ennns — — 10,133
OBRET ...ttt ettt e se e see s bbbt sbeae bbb 816 1,085 764

$ (2,666) $ 1,739 $14,544

Year Ended December 31, 2012, compared to Year Ended December 31, 2011

Non-interest income decreased to a net charge of $2.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 from $1.7 million for
the year ended December 31, 2011. The change was due to an increase in adjustments to reduce the FDIC loss share
receivable during the year ended December 31, 2012 as compared to the same period in 2011 due to the resolution, including
sales, payoffs and transfers to other real estate owned, of acquired in excess of fair value and changes in cash flows of loss
share assets offset by an increase in gains on the sales of securities and resolution of OREO and an increase in the interest
income received on Company owned life insurance.

Service charges on deposit accounts decreased by $130,000 or 3.6% for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to
the year ended December 31, 2011. This decrease was primarily due to the change in the mix and level of individual
customer accounts year-over-year offset by an increase in average deposits of 19.4% in 2012 as compared to 2011 due to the
acquisition of $161.0 million in deposits from the AFI merger.

For the year ending December 31, 2012, the Bank sold OREQ properties with a carrying value of $24.1 million and recorded net
gains on the disposition of $3.3 million as compared to sales of OREO with a carrying value of $6.1 million for a net loss of
$264,000 for the year ended December 31, 2011. Net gains related to the resolution of OREO covered under Loss Sharing
Agreements was $3.4 million and $0 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Of this amount, approximately
$3.2 million was recorded as an adjustment to FDIC loss share receivable due to the changes in estimated cash flows.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we sold approximately $102.5 million of securities resulting in a net gain of $1.7
million as compared to 2011 when we sold $20.3 million of securities for a net gain of $364,000.

The adjustment to the FDIC loss share receivable during the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 represented a $13.7
million and $3.8 million expense, respectively, related to increases in cash flows on assets covered by Loss Sharing
Agreement which reduces the FDIC receivable. The $13.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 includes $3.2
million related to resolved OREO covered by loss share assets during the year and the related charges in estimated cash
flows. This amount was partially offset by interest income earned on the FDIC receivable of $1.2 million and $566,000
during the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Year Ended December 31, 2011, compared to Year Ended December 31, 2010

Non-interest income decreased to $1.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 from $14.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2010. The change was due to the acquisition gain from TBOM in 2010, adjustments to reduce the FDIC loss
share receivable in 2011 for the resolution of loans in excess of fair value and changes in cash flows of loss share assets and
an increase in fees earned on deposit accounts.

Service charges on deposit accounts increased by $490,000 or 15.85% for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to
the year ended December 31, 2010. This increase was primarily due to the increase in average deposits of 25.88% in 2011 as
compared to 2010 due primarily from the full year of deposits from the TBOM acquisition and the Old Harbor acquisition in
October 2011.

65



During the year ended December 31, 2011, we sold approximately $20.3 million of securities resulting in a net gain of
$364,000 as compared to 2010 when we sold $39.1 million of securities for a net gain of $435,000.

The adjustment to the FDIC loss share receivable during the year ended December 31, 2011 represented a $3.8 million
expense due to the disposition of assets acquired in FDIC assisted transactions above the discounted carrying value of the
asset, resulting in a lower actual loss on the asset than originally estimated and due to changes in cash flows of loss share
assets, net of interest income earned in the receivable offset by accretion income on the FDIC receivable of $566,000 during
the year ended December 31, 2011.

Non-Interest Expenses

Following is a schedule of non-interest expense for years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010:

Year ended
(Dollars in thousands) December 31,
2012 2011 2010

Salaries and employee benefits..........ccuveeerrererreereereencseeenenens $ 24,303 $ 20,186 $ 16,052
Occupancy and eqUIPMENt...........cccvveereeerrerrerereesenessessesessnsessnne 7,958 7,732 6,237
Data PrOCESSINE. ....couvrrerrerrerrerersrereteresreeeeeseessessessensessessessesseese 3,686 3,481 2,684
TEIEPRONE .....ooeeeeveieiccertitectetectesrrsteceesreeseseesaesaare s essnene 917 814 757
Stationary and SUPPLES ......c.ecevvererecinintreniriereeeererresancesesesesseene 480 387 317
Amortization of intangibles ... 684 514 433
Professional fEes .......ccoiiviviiiviiiiieriiieccre et sis e csresaees 1,631 1,131 1,111
AQVETHSING ...veviireeeeieieeeccieeescsresesseses e s e ssssseesssensensersssnsseses 258 293 165
Merger reorganization EXPENSE. ........erereereererrerseecseereerersessaseenens 1,784 1,076 2,213
Regulatory asseSSMENL..........ccveeereeerereeresesrereriensessserseseesensesnees 1,482 1,395 1,822
Other real estate OWNEd EXPENSE......covererrererenreesieniensesscssessereces 1,245 323 271
LOAn EXPETISE .....eeeieeieianierienieetreeneeeteseessee et rens e s essessenasenas 2,307 1,900 1,228
Other........ eteerteeresseesseseerheesheetesteesaeertesbssaaerasereesrrersterseesterrtert 4,249 3,613 3,139

$ 50,984 § 42,845 $ 36,429

Year Ended December 31, 2012, compared to Year Ended December 31, 2011

Non-interest expense is comprised of salaries and employee benefits, occupancy and equipment expense, and other operating
expenses incurred in supporting our various business activities. During the year ended December 31, 2012, non-interest
expense increased to $51.0 million compared to $42.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, an increase of $8.1
million or 19.0%. A substantial portion of the increase in non-interest expense was due to the acquisition of Old Harbor in
October 2011 as well as the AFI Acquisition in April 2012.

Salary and employee benefit costs were $24.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, an increase of $4.1 million or
20.4%. The increase was primatrily a result of the salaries added in the acquisition of Old Harbor in October 2011 as well as
the AFI Acquisition in April 2012.

Occupancy and equipment increased by $226,000 or 2.9% year-over-year. The Company integrated and closed four banking
centers in May 2011, which were added as part of the TBOM acquisition in 2010. This cost was partially offset by the seven
banking centers added from the AFI Acquisition in April 2012 and Old Harbor acquisition in October 2011.

Data processing costs were $3.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 or an increase of $205,000 compared to 2011,
due to the increase in the number of transactions processed as a result of the acquisitions of Old Harbor in October of 2011
and AFI in April of 2012.

Professional fees were $1.6 million, or an increase of $500,000 compared to 2011 due to an increase in professional services
related to audits and computer consulting due to the expansion of operations period-over-period.

Merger reorganization expenses increased by $708,000 to $1.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 as compared to

$1.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, as a result of the integration of Old Harbor and the merger and
integration of AFI during the year ended December 31, 2012. The $1.1 million of expense for the year ended December 31,
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2011 was the result of the integration of TBOM. Costs include legal and professional, IT integration and conversion,
severance and lease termination fees.

OREO expense increased by $922,000 to $1.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to $323,000 for
the year ended December 31, 2011. The increase is due to an increase in the number of OREO properties (primarily a result
of ORE acquired from the Old Harbor transaction in October 2011) period-over-period and the write down of properties held
within the portfolio by $340,000 during the year ended December 31, 2012 to market values during the year.

Loan expenses primarily include the costs associated with the collection of legacy as well as loss sharing assets. Loan
expenses increased by $407,000 from $1.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 to $2.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2012. The change was primarily due to foreclosure related expenses associated with the increase in loss share
assets as a result of the Old Harbor acquisition.

Increases in other non-interest expenses of $636,000 were primarily due to the AFI merger and the acquisition of Old Harbor.
Year Ended December 31, 2011, compared to Year Ended December 31, 2010

Non-interest expense is comprised of salaries and employee benefits, occupancy and equipment expense, and other operating
expenses incurred in supporting our various business activities. During the year ended December 31, 2011, non-interest
expense increased to $42.8 million compared to $36.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, an increase of $6.4
million or 17.61%. A substantial portion of the increase in non-interest expense was due to the acquisition of TBOM in late
2010 and Old Harbor in October 2011.

Salary and employee benefit costs were $20.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, an increase of $4.1 million or
25.75%. The increase was a result of the acquisition of the TBOM operation, including three banking centers at the end of 2010
(subsequently closed in June 2011) and the addition of Old Harbor salaries from that acquisition. Included in the year end
December 31, 2011 expense is approximately $1.1 million of personnel-related costs that were eliminated by June 30, 2011 due
to the integration of TBOM. In connection with the Old Harbor acquisition, we increased our employee headcount and salary
expense since the date of acquisition on October 21, 2011. Inclusive within salary expense is approximately $158,000 in salary
expense that is anticipated to be eliminated at the end of the first quarter of 2012 as operations are fully integrated.

Occupancy and equipment increased by $1.5 million or 23.97% year over year. The increase was largely due to $620,000 of
expense related to space acquired from TBOM which was eliminated effective June 1, 2011. Additionally, the acquisition of
Old Harbor resulted in additional occupancy expense of approximately $58,000 during the quarter ended December 31, 2011,
which is anticipated to be eliminated in the first quarter of 2012. We also signed a lease in January 2011 for additional space
for an operations area which increased expense by $200,000.

Data processing costs were $3.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 or an increase of $797,000 compared to 2010,
due to the increase in the number of items processed as a result of the TBOM and Old Harbor acquisition.

Regulatory assessments decreased by $427,000 or 23.44% between the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 due to a
change in the regulatory assessment methodology between periods.

Merger reorganization expense of $1.1 million in 2011 related primarily to integration, legal and stay bonus expenses for the
01d Harbor and TBOM acquisitions as well as one-time compensation-related costs. These amounts are comparable to
expenses incurred in 2010 related to the Republic acquisition.

Other non-interest expense of $3.6 million in 2011 increased $474,000 compared to 2010 primarily due to the full year of
operations in 2011 from the TBOM acquisition and two and a half months from the Old Harbor acquisition.

Income Tax Expense (Benefit)

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we recognized income tax expense of $2.8 million due to pre-tax earnings of $7.5
million. During the year ended December 31, 2011, we recognized income tax expense of $2.3 million due to pre-tax
earnings of $6.0 million. The effective tax rate for the year ended December 31, 2012 was 37.3% which compares to 38.3%
for the year ended December 31, 2011.
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Analysis for Three Month Periods ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
Net Interest Income

Net interest income, which constitutes our principal source of income, represents the excess of interest income on interest-
earning assets over interest expense on interest-bearing liabilities. Our principal interest-earning assets are federal funds sold,
investment securities and loans. Our interest-bearing liabilities primarily consist of time deposits, interest-bearing checking
accounts (“NOW accounts”), savings deposits and money market accounts. We invest the funds attracted by these interest-
bearing liabilities in interest-earning assets. Accordingly, our net interest income depends upon the volume of average
interest-earning assets and average interest-bearing liabilities and the interest rates eamed or paid on them.

The following table reflects the components of net interest income, setting forth for the periods presented, (1) average assets,
liabilities and shareholders’ equity, (2) interest income earned on interest-earning assets and interest paid on interest-bearing
liabilities, (3) average yields earned on interest-earning assets and average rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities, (4) our net
interest spread (i.e., the average yield on interest-earning assets less the average rate on interest-bearing liabilities) and (5) our
net interest margin (i.e., the net yield on interest-earning assets).

Net interest earnings for the three-month periods ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are reflected in the following table:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Average Average
Interest Rates Interest  Rates
Average Income/ Earned/ Average Income/ Earned/
(Dollars in thousands) Balance Expense Paid Balance Expense Paid
Assets
Interest-earning assets
LOANS ...cviviiieieicterereirte e eseve e resne s sess b e ennaennas $ 924,306 $ 17,321 7.43%$ 873,094 $ 14,334 6.51%
Investment SECUMHES...........ccvvvererereecreriniiereseeeseeeresaessnens 224,747 1,070 1.90% 212,189 1,322 2.49%
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale
AGIECMENLES ..c.cvveverrerrerirrerranas 182,199 221 0.48% 158,546 180 0.45%
Total interest-earning assets ... . 1,331,252 18,612 5.55% 1,243,839 15,836 5.05%
Non Interest-earning aSSets ..........ccveerreeereerereseseressereresescasens 232,102 159,519
Allowance for 10an 10SSES.........cooveieeeeeeeieeeeeeeececeee s !9,61 8) ( 12,662)
TOtAl ASSELS....veveieieeeeicteeteee ettt ese et erenne $1,553,736 $ 1,390,686
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Interest-bearing liabilities
NOW aCCOUNLS.....oveeeeeiereeiiieriteraeeiees e netereseree s erenesenns $ 165117 $ 57 0.14% $ 129,573 $ 57 0.17%
Money market accounts ... 335,112 293 0.35% 306,453 540 0.70%
Savings accounts.............. 64,069 42 0.26% 56,996 74 0.52%
Certificates of deposit ..........ocoeverecieeriniaesceeennenan 320,394 725 0.90% 319,287 835 1.04%
Fed funds purchased and repurchase agreements............... 15,794 6 0.15% 10,602 4 0.15%
Federal Home Loan Bank advances and
Other BOITOWINES ......c.ccerieririririrreeees e — — —% 7,235 75 4.11%
Total interest-bearing liabilities............c..ccccerrrerinrererienns 900,486 1,123 0.49% 830,146 1,585 0.76%
Non-interest bearing liabilities
Demand deposit aCCOUNLS............c..ocveeeeevirieieeeeere e 405,857 333,558
Other liabilities...........cocccovreirirererenen. 7,115 12,737
Total non-interest-bearing liabilities .... 412,972 346,295
Shareholders’ equity ........ocoveceeececienenriinnene 240,278 214,245
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ............ccceueveeeee.. $1,553,736 $ 1,390,686
Net INterest SPread .......oovovevivveuvierieees et eenns $ 17,489 5.06% $ 14,251 4.29%
Net interest on average earning assets - Margin ..........c.coceeene 5.21% 4.55%

Our net interest income for the three months ended December 31, 2012 was positively impacted by the increase in average
earning assets of $87.4 million as compared to the three months ended December 31, 2011 primarily the result of loans and
investments acquired in the AFI merger and Old Harbor acquisition and the increase in the yield earned on loans. These
increases were offset by a reduction in the overall yield earned on investments quarter-to-quarter. Earnings for the current
quarter were positively impacted by $5.6 million in accretion of discounts related to acquired loans for the three months
ended December 31, 2012 as compared to $3.4 million for the same period in 2011. Included in the $5.9 million of accretion
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of discount in the quarter ended December 31, 2012 was approximately $3.4 million related to the disposition of assets
acquired in the transactions above the discounted carrying value of the asset. Included in the $3.4 million of accretion
discount in 2011 was approximately $1.4 million related to the disposition of assets above the discounted carrying values.

Net interest income was $17.5 million for the three months ended December 31, 2012, as compared to $14.3 million for the
three months ended December 31, 2011, an increase of $3.2 million, or 22.7%. The increase resulted primarily from an
increase in average earning assets of $87.4 million or 7.03% primarily due to the AFI merger and Old Harbor acquisition, an
increase in accretion income of $2.2 million and a reduction of the costs of funds of 20 basis points offset by a decrease in the
yield earned on securities quarter-over-quarter. The net interest margin (i.¢., net interest income divided by average earning
assets) increased 66 basis points from 4.55% during the three months ended December 31, 2011 to 5.21% during the three
months ended December 31, 2012, mainly the result of an increase in interest accretion on acquired loans, the increase in
overall interest earning assets and reduction in cost of funds. Accretion of $5.6 million on acquired loans added
approximately 166 basis points to the net interest margin for the quarter ended December 31, 2012. Of the 166 basis points,
101 basis points related to the accretion on the disposition of assets acquired above the discounted carrying value. This
compares to accretion of loan discount of $3.4 million during the three months ended December 31, 2011, which added
approximately 107 basis points to the December 31, 2011 margin. Of the 107 basis points, 45 basis points related to the
accretion on the disposition of assets acquired above the discounted carrying value. For the three months ended December 31,
2012, average loans represented 59.49% of total average assets and 70.76% of total average deposits and customer
repurchase agreements, compared to average loans of 62.78% of total average assets and average loans of 75.50% to total
average deposits and customer repurchase agreements at December 31, 2011. Our cost of funds was approximately 20 basis
points lower for the three months ended December 31, 2012, as compared to 2011, primarily as a result of lower rates offered
on our deposit products.

Rate Volume Analysis

The following table sets forth certain information regarding changes in our interest income and interest expense for the three
months ended December 31, 2012 as compared to the three months ended December 31, 2011. For each category of interest-
earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, information is provided on changes attributable to changes in interest rate and
changes in the volume. Changes in both volume and rate have been allocated based on the proportionate absolute changes in
each category.

Changes in interest earnings for the three-months ended December 31, 2012 and 2011:
December 31, 2012 and 2011

Change
in Variance Variance
Interest Due to Due to
Income/ Volume Rate
(Dollars in thousands) Expense Changes _Changes
Assets
Interest-earning assets
LOANS. .. viverireeetenneresersssesssseeesssesessesassesssssssonsaseseresstonssessastnssessossasesnessssessrnases $ 2987 $ 876 $ 2,111
INVESTMENT SECUIILIES. .. ecvverreerreererraersesscacossosenscessesssssssessssssessnsesssessnsssnsnsnsssasaeses (252) 75 (327)
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements............... 41 28 13
Total Interest-earning aSSELS ........ovcererresiserirsmsiniesiisisesesernssssssssssssassenssssseses $ 2,776 $ 979 $ 1,797
Liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities
NOW ACCOUNLS....oveveerrnreneerenesrsssssnsssssssssssssesssssessisesasessesssesssssassnsessssenssssssnesees $ — $ 14 $ (14)
MOnEy MAarket CCOUNLS .......ceeririerirmenennentereesesssnsarssessnsessesessnsosssnsessnssssuonsssases (247) 47 (294)
SAVINGS BCCOUNLS...cuverruirerieterrririrerireeiseetersssssstsrsssarssasssssnsnsanessacsesissssessssssnsinnas (32) 8 40)
Certificates of dEPOSit ........cocrevemeeirirismirnnriririieniiiniis i sssssssnssssnsesssasssssssases (110) 3 (113)
Fed funds purchased and repurchase agreements ...........coceeeeemsenceisssesisisninnas 2 2 —
OhEr DOITOWIIIZS .....ovvveeeneneeericsnisesteisnsisssnssessssssessasssnssssssssssnsssssssssnssssassess (75) (75) —
Total interest-bearing Liabilities........cccvvvrrireeesiiiurerennnineneniinretnesnsssnsens (462) (1) (461)
NEt INLETESE SPTEAA ...ecvrvrreererrersercmreremsusisrsensssensinnssssssssssssssssssssssstssssssssssssssasssnsasesse $ 3,238 § 980 $§ 2,258
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Inflation

The impact of inflation on the banking industry differs significantly from that of other industries in which a large portion of
total resources are invested in fixed assets such as property, plant and equipment.

Assets and liabilities of financial institutions are virtually all monetary in nature, and therefore are primarily impacted by
interest rates rather than changing prices. While the general level of inflation underlies most interest rates, interest rates react
more to changes in the expected rate of inflation and to changes in monetary and fiscal policy. Net interest income and the
interest rate spread are good measures of our ability to react to changing interest rates and are discussed in further detail in
the section entitled “Results of Operations.”

Interest Rate Risk Management

Our net income is largely dependent on net interest income. Net interest income is susceptible to interest rate risk to the
degree that interest-bearing liabilities mature or reprice on a different basis than interest-earning assets. When interest-
bearing liabilities mature or reprice more quickly than interest-earning assets in a given period, a significant increase in
market rates of interest could adversely affect net interest income. Similarly, when interest-earning assets mature or reprice
more quickly than interest-bearing liabilities, falling interest rates could result in a decrease in net interest income. Net
interest income is also affected by changes in the portion of interest-earning assets that are funded by interest-bearing
liabilities rather than by other sources of funds, such as non-interest-bearing deposits and shareholders’ equity.

We manage our interest rate risk through 1* United’s Asset Liability Committee (“ALCO”) Board Committee which meets
quarterly and through our internal management committee which meets more frequently. Management closely monitors 1%
United’s interest at risk calculations through model simulations and reports the results of its rate stress testing to ALCO on a
quarterly basis.

We have established policy limits of risk, which are quantitative measures of the percentage change in net interest income (a
measure of net interest income at risk) and the fair value of equity capital (a measure of economic value of equity (“EVE”) at
risk) resulting from a hypothetical change in interest rates for maturities from one day to 30 years. We measure the potential
adverse impacts that changing interest rates may have on our short-term earnings, long-term value, and liquidity by
employing simulation analysis through the use of computer modeling. The simulation model captures optionality factors such
as call features and interest rate caps and floors imbedded in investment and loan portfolio contracts. As with any method of
gauging interest rate risk, there are certain shortcomings inherent in the interest rate modeling methodology used by us. When
interest rates change, actual movements in different categories of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, loan
prepayments, and withdrawals of time and other deposits, may deviate significantly from assumptions used in the model.
Finally, the methodology does not measure or reflect the impact that higher rates may have on adjustable-rate loan
customers’ ability to service their debts, or the impact of rate changes on demand for loan, lease, and deposit products.

Our interest rate risk management goal is to avoid unacceptable variations in net interest income and capital levels due to
fluctuations in market rates. Management attempts to achieve this goal by balancing, within policy limits, the volume of
floating-rate liabilities with a similar volume of floating-rate assets, by keeping the average maturity of fixed-rate asset and
liability contracts reasonably matched, by maintaining a pool of administered core deposits, and by adjusting pricing rates to
market conditions on a continuing basis.

The balance sheet is subject to testing for interest rate shock possibilities to indicate the inherent interest rate risk. Average
interest rates are shocked by plus or minus 100 and 200 basis points (“bp™) and plus 300 bp, although we may elect not to use
particular scenarios that we determined are impractical in a current rate environment. It is management’s goal to structure the
balance sheet so that net interest earnings at risk over a one-year and two-year period and the economic value of equity at risk
do not exceed policy guidelines at the various interest rate shock levels.

1* United has been consistently within policy limits on rates stress test up and down 100, 200, and 300 bp, both for net

interest margin and EVE. Management has closely monitored 1* United’s gap position which has been slightly liability
sensitive during a stable rate environment.
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The following tables illustrate the above measurements at year end December 31, 2012:

Net Interest Margin

Actual Change at (+ or -) hundred-basis point change in interest rates

(Dollars in thousands) -300 -200 -100 0 100 200 300

Net interest income at one year ........ $ 49,036 $ 51,740 $ 54,575 $ 56,205% 57,838 $ 60,064 $ 62,409
Interest change.......c.c.coovvevcuvenverecneen. (7,169) (4,465) (1,630) — 1,633 3,859 6,204
Percentage change............ccceeeeniinnes (12)% (7.9)% (2.9Y% —_ 2.9% 6.9% 11.0%
Net interest income at two years....... $ 44234 $ 48655 $ 52901 $ 552478 57535 $ 60251 $ 63,076
Interest change.........ccccoevvuvveeeeecnnnnns (11,013) (6,592) (2,346) — 2,288 5,004 7,829
Percentage change.............ccceeeeennenee (19.9)% (11.9% 4.2)% — 41% 9.1% 14.2%

Economic Value of Equity
Actual Change at (+ or -) hundred-basis point change in interest rates

(Dollars in thousands) -300 -200 -100 0 100 200 300
Equity value at one year................... $ 287,122 $ 263,714 $ 242,903 $ 227,086 % 213,287 $ 198,720 $ 185,512
Value change at: ..........cooeveeveeeeeeeenes 60,036 36,628 15,817 — (13,779 (28,366) 41,574)
Percent change at:...........eeeevveeeveeeeces 26.4% 16.1% 7.0% — 6.D%  (12.5% (18.3)%

Rate Sensitive Assets over Rate Sensitive Liabilities

At December 31, 2012 the twelve month gap position was at .87.

>3
Upto3 months >1year >3 years

(Dollars in thousands) months <1 year <3 years <Syears >5years Total
Interest bearing dEpoSits .........everreveererrerersereens. $ 161,522 § — 3 — 3 — § — $ 161,522
Federal funds SOld.........cccocerereeenernenceneessennaen. 246 — — — — 246
Auvailable for sale securities.......cccceoevcecreenencnes 14,204 36,732 66,605 37,390 105,191 260,122
Equity Securities........ceoeevrurrnrmrenrnecenrssssssacne 2,431 6,194 8,625
Loans ......cccceeeereerereene 345,072 154,287 141,938 137,538 135,450 914,285
Total interest earning assets...........cceeceeeeeuenrnene $ 523,475 $ 191,019 $ 208,543 $174,928 $246,835 $1,344,800
NOW accounts $ 130,997 $ — $ — $ — 3 — $ 130,997
IOTA accounts.......ccceeeeeeeeerveereennee 45,741 _ — — —_— 45,471
Money market accounts.........ccoveerveervernessennne 320,406 — —_— — — 320,406
Regular savings accounts...........co.cevrvercecencnen. 64,826 — — — — 64,826
Certificate of deposit........ccceeeveververenrereererurreneen. 74,746 164,552 62,840 11,946 — 314,084
Repurchase agreements.............oeeveevererenarerasnn. 19,855 — 3 — § — $ — 19,855
Total interest bearing liabilities ...........cccoeeuenee. $ 656,571 $ 164,518 $ 62,847 $ 11973 $ — $ 895,909
(€1 J R . $(133,09) $§ 26,501 $ 145,696 $162,955 $246,835 $ 448,891
Cumulative Zap......ecoeveeererenueenersernesersnsnsnesnn: $ (133,096) $ (106,595) $ 39,101 $202,056 $448,891

Cumulative gap ratio........ccceveveerereerrsernsersennene. 0.80 0.87 1.04 1.23 1.50

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Liquidity

We manage our liquidity position with the objective of maintaining sufficient funds to respond to the needs of depositors and
borrowers and to take advantage of earnings enhancement opportunities. In addition to the normal inflow of funds from core-
deposit growth together with repayments and maturities of loans and investments, we utilize other short-term funding sources
such as securities sold under agreements to repurchase, overnight federal funds purchased from correspondent banks and the
acceptance of short-term deposits from public entities, Federal Home Loan Bank advances and brokered time deposits.

We monitor and manage our liquidity position on several fronts, which vary depending upon the time period. As the time

period is expanded, other data is factored in, including estimated loan funding requirements, estimated loan payoffs,
investment portfolio maturities or calls, and anticipated depository buildups or runoffs.
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We classify all of our securities as available-for-sale, thereby maintaining liquidity. Our liquidity position is further enhanced
by structuring our loan portfolio interest payments as monthly complemented by retail credit and residential mortgage loans
in our loan portfolio, resulting in a steady stream of loan repayments. In managing our investment portfolio, we provide for
staggered maturities so that cash flows are provided as such investments mature.

Our cash flows are comprised of three classifications: cash flows from operating activities, cash flows from investing
activities, and cash flows from financing activities. Cash flows used in investing activities, offset by those provided by
operating activities and financing activities, resulted in a net increase in cash and cash equivalents of $41.7 million from
December 31, 2011 to December 31, 2012. During the year ended December 31, 2012, we experienced net cash transferred
from acquisitions of $11.2 million, proceeds from sales of securities and maturities and prepayments of $172.2 million offset
by purchases of securities of $194.3 million and proceeds, net of originations, from loans of $79.3 million and the proceeds
from the sale of OREO of $27.4 million.

Our securities portfolio, federal funds sold, and cash and due from bank deposit balances serve as primary sources of
liquidity for us. At December 31, 2012, we had cash and due from bank balances of $207.1 million and available to be
pledged securities in the amount of $231.2 million.

In November 2010, we filed a shelf registration statement on Form S-3 with the SEC through which we may sell from time to
time any combination of common stock, preferred stock, debt securities, warrants, subscription rights, and units, in one or
more offerings. We may seek to obtain debt or equity financings in the future. Such financings, however, may not be
available on terms acceptable to us, or at all. In addition, the Loss Sharing Agreements with the FDIC limit our ability to
raise additional equity if a change of control would occur as defined in the Loss Sharing Agreements.

At December 31, 2012, we had no borrowings from the FHLB. At December 31, 2012, we had commitments to originate
loans totaling $26.6 million. Scheduled maturities of certificates of deposit during the twelve months following December 31,
2012 totaled $239.3 million.

Management believes that we have adequate resources to fund all of our commitments, that substantially all of our existing
commitments will be funded in the subsequent twelve months and, if so desired, that we can adjust the rates on certificates of
deposit and other deposit accounts to retain deposits in a changing interest rate environment. At December 31, 2012, we had
short-term lines of credit available from correspondent banks totaling $64.0 million, Federal Reserve Bank discount window
availability of $59.1 million and borrowing capacity from the FHLB of $36.7 million based on collateral pledged, for a total
credit available of $159.8 million. In addition, being “well capitalized,” 1* United can access the wholesale deposits for
approximately $365.1 million based on current policy limits.

Contractual Obligations

Contractual agreements at December 31, 2012 were as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) Payments Due by Period
Less More
than 1 1-3 3-5 than §
Contractual Obligations Total Year Years Years Years
Certificates of deposit..........c.ccceueverrereerereeeereennns $ 314,084 § 239298 $ 62840 $ 11,946 $ —
Operating leases......covevrvveierrversenseenernesseesesseseeenne 20,395 3,334 8,179 3,210 5,672
17 | R $ 334479 § 242632 § 71019 $ 15156 § 5,672

We discuss our securities portfolio, deposits and borrowings further in Item 1. Business.
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Capital Resources

The following table summarizes the changes in our shareholders’ equity for the periods indicated:

(Dollars in thousands) Year ended December 31,
2012 2011
Balance at beginning of Period .........cccceverevemeercreeencrrvesmveniniiienenns $ 215351 $§ 173,486
Issuance of common stock for acquisition, net of costs of $61............ 19,065 —
Sale of common stock, NEt OF COSES........ccevvvirvirrriririniereccrennersseerrnnnes — 35,090
Stock based cOmMpPensation EXPENSE ...........cccuirvirininrivesnesseresnesssssaenes 1,258 1,072
Dividends paid......c.ccceveeeecrerreeenrcreecrnen e (3,407) —
INEE INCOIME ......eereieeeieeeeeeieeeeeeveeseessesssessesseesessssnsbsestssssssssssnssnssnes 4,728 3,672
Change in unrealized gains (losses) on available for sale securities.... (305) 2,031
Balance at end of period ..........coevevererereneeencncrcncrenreisensnsnsensns $ 236,690 $ 215,351

The Federal banking regulatory authorities have adopted certain “prompt corrective action” rules with respect to depository
institutions. The rules establish five capital tiers: “well capitalized,” “adequately capitalized,” “undercapitalized,”
“significantly undercapitalized,” and “critically undercapitalized.” The various federal banking regulatory agencies have
adopted regulations to implement the capital rules by, among other things, defining the relevant capital measures for the five
capital categories. An institution is deemed to be “well capitalized” if it has a total risk-based capital ratio of 10% or greater,
a Tier I risk-based capital ratio of 6% or greater, and a Tier I leverage ratio of 5% or greater and is not subject to a regulatory
order, agreement, or directive to meet and maintain a specific capital level. At December 31, 2012, 1* United met the capital
ratios of a “well capitalized” financial institution with a total risk-based capital ratio of 20.30%, a Tier 1 risk-based capital
ratio of 19.09%, and a Tier I leverage ratio of 10.27%. Depository institutions which fall below the “adequately capitalized”
category generally are prohibited from making any capital distribution, are subject to growth limitations, and are required to
submit a capital restoration plan. There are a number of requirements and restrictions that may be imposed on institutions
treated as “significantly undercapitalized” and, if the institution is “critically undercapitalized,” the banking regulatory
agencies have the right to appoint a receiver or conservator. The following represents Bancorp’s regulatory capital ratios for
the respective periods:

Well
Capitalized
Regulatory December 31,
Requirement 2012 2011
Total capital to risk-weighted assets............... 10.00% 22.46% 25.16%
Tier I capital to risk-weighted assets .............. 6.00% 21.24% 23.90%
Tier I capital to total average assets................ 5.00% 11.45%®  11.75%

@ Tier I capital to year end assets is 11.35%.

We completed the issuance of 5,750,000 shares during the year ended December 31, 2011 at $6.50 per share for total
additional proceeds of approximately $35.1 million, net of offering costs of $2.3 million. In addition, we have an effective
shelf registration statement, which may be used from time to time when additional capital is required.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not currently engage in the use of derivative instruments to hedge interest rate risks. However, we are a party to
financial instruments with off-balance sheet risks in the normal course of business to meet the financing needs of our clients.

At December 31, 2012, we had $26.6 million in commitments to originate loans and $7.0 million in standby letters of credit.
Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer so long as there is no violation of any condition
established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require
payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment
amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued
by us to guarantee the performance of a client to a third party. We use the same credit policies in establishing commitments
and issuing letters of credit as we do for on-balance sheet instruments.
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If commitments arising from these financial instruments continue to require funding at historical levels, management does
not anticipate that such funding will adversely impact our ability to meet on-going obligations. In the event these
commitments require funding in excess of historical levels, management believes current liquidity, available lines of credit
from the FHLB, investment security maturities and our revolving credit facility provide a sufficient source of funds to meet
these commitments.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Allowance for Loan Losses

Management views critical accounting policies as accounting policies that are important to the understanding of our financial
statements and also involve estimates and judgments about inherently uncertain matters. In preparing the financial
statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the consolidated balance sheets and assumptions
that affect the recognition of income and expenses on the consolidated statements of income for the periods presented. Actual
results could differ significantly from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant
change in subsequent periods are described as follows.

The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a provision for loan losses
charged to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance for loan losses when management believes the
uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance for loan losses.

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon management’s periodic
review of the collectibility of the loans in light of historical experience, the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse
situations that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral and prevailing
economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant
revision as more information becomes available.

The allowance consists of specific and general components. The specific component relates to loans that are individually
evaluated for impairment. For such loans, an allowance for loan losses is established based on either the present value of
expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, the market price of the loan, or, if the loan is
collateral dependent, the fair value of the underlying collateral less estimated costs of sale.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that we will be unable to collect
the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors
considered by management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the probability of
collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and
payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays (loan
payments made within 90 days of the due date) and payment shortfalls (which are tracked as past due amounts) on a case-by-
case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of
the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower’s prior payment record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the
principal and interest owed. Management considers loan payments made within 90 days of the due date to be insignificant
payment delays. Payment shortfalls are traced as past due amounts. Impairment is measured on a loan by loan basis for
commercial and construction and land development loans by either the present value of expected future cash flows
discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, the loan’s obtainable market price, or the fair value of the collateral less
estimated costs of sale if the loan is collateral dependent.

The general component considers the actual historical charge-offs over a rolling two year period by portfolio segment. The
actual historical charge-off ratio is adjusted for qualitative factors including delinquency trends, loss and recovery trends,
classified asset trends, non-accrual trends, economic and business conditions and other external factors by portfolio segment
of loans.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over fair value of assets of business acquired. Goodwill and intangible assets acquired
in a purchase business combination and determined to have an indefinite useful life are not amortized, but instead tested for
impairment at least annually. Intangible assets with estimable useful lives are amortized over their respective estimated useful
lives to their estimated residual values. We acquired First Western Bank, on April 7, 2004, Equitable on February 29, 2008,
Citrus on August 15, 2008, Republic on December 11, 2009, TBOM on December 17, 2010, Old Harbor on October 21, 2011
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and AFI in April of 2012. Consequently, we were required to record the assets acquired, including identified intangible
assets, and liabilities assumed at their fair value, which involves estimates based on third party valuations, such as appraisals,
internal valuations based on discounted cash flow analyses or other valuation techniques. The determination of the useful
lives of intangible assets is subjective, as is the appropriate amortization period for such intangible assets. In addition,
purchase acquisitions typically result in recording goodwill, which is subject to ongoing periodic impairment tests based on
the fair value of the reporting unit compared to its carrying amount, including goodwill. As of December 31, 2012, the
required annual impairment test of goodwill was performed and no impairment existed as of the valuation date. If for any
future period we determine that there has been impairment in the carrying value of our goodwill balances, we will record a
charge to our earnings, which could have a material adverse effect on our net income, but not to our risk based capital ratios.

Income Taxes

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recorded to reflect the tax consequences on future years of temporary
differences between revenues and expenses reported for financial statements and those reported for income tax purposes.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in
which those temporary differences are expected to be realized or settled. A valuation allowances is provided against deferred
tax assets which are not likely to be realized.

Purchased Credit Impaired Loans

We account for acquisitions under the purchase accounting method. All identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
recorded at fair value. We review each loan or loan pool acquired to determine whether there is evidence of a deterioration in
credit quality since inception and if it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due under the
contractual loan agreements. We consider expected prepayments and estimated cash flows including principal and interest
payments at the date of acquisition. The amount in excess of the estimated future cash flows is not accreted into earnings. The
amount in excess of the estimated future cash flows over the book value of the loan is accreted into interest income over the
remaining life of the loan (accretable yield). The Company records these loans on the acquisition date at their net realizable
value. Thus, an allowance for estimated future losses is not established on the acquisition date. We refine our estimates of the
fair value of loans acquired for up to one year from the date of acquisition. Subsequent to the date of acquisition, we update the
expected future cash flows on loans acquired. Losses or a reduction in cash flow which arise subsequent to the date of
acquisition are reflected as a charge through the provision for loan losses. An increase in the expected cash flows adjusts the
level of the accretable yield recognized on a prospective basis over the remaining life of the loan.

FDIC Loss Share Receivable

We have entered into agreements with the FDIC for reimbursement of losses within acquired loan portfolios. The FDIC loss
share receivable is recorded at fair value on the date of acquisition based upon the expected reimbursements to be received
from the FDIC adjusted by a discount rate which reflects counter party credit risk and other uncertainties. Changes in the
underlying credit quality of the loans covered by the FDIC loss share receivable result in either an increase or a decrease in
the FDIC loss share receivable. Deterioration in loan credit quality increases the FDIC loss share receivable; increases in
credit quality decrease the FDIC loss share receivable. Proceeds received for reimbursement of incurred losses reduce the
FDIC loss share receivable.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of economic loss from adverse changes in the fair value of financial instruments due to changes in (2)
interest rates, (b) foreign exchange rates, or (c) other factors that relate to market volatility of the rate, index, or price
underlying the financial instrument. Our market risk is composed primarily of interest rate risk. 1* United has an
Asset/Liability Committee (“ALCO”) which is responsible for reviewing the interest rate sensitivity position, and
establishing policies to monitor and limit the exposure to interest rate risk.

The primary objective of asset/liability management is to provide an optimum and stable net interest margin, after-tax return
on assets and return on equity capital, as well as adequate liquidity and capital. Interest rate risk is measured and monitored
through gap analysis, which measures the amount of repricing risk associated with the balance sheet at specific points in
time. See “Interest Rate Risk Management” and “Liquidity and Capital Resources” presented in Item 7 above for quantitative
disclosures in tabular format, as well as additional qualitative disclosures.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders
1* United Bancorp, Inc.
Boca Raton, Florida

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of 1* United Bancorp, Inc. as of December 31, 2012 and

2011 and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash
flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2012. We also have audited the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s
management is responsible for these financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting,
and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting contained in Item 9A. of the accompanying Form 10-K.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and an opinion on the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

As permitted, the Company has excluded the current year acquisition of Anderen Financial, Inc. from the scope of
management’s report on internal control over financial reporting. As such, this acquired institution has also been excluded
from the scope of our audit of internal control over financial reporting.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of 1* United Bancorp, Inc. as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for
each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2012 in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012, based on criteria established in Internal Control —
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

/s/ Crowe Horwath LLP
Crowe Horwath LLP

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
February 8, 2013
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15T UNITED BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2012 and 2011
(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data)

2012 2011

ASSETS
Cash and due from financial institutions . eteeeeeessteeseesessereseeereeieaeearreeaterantesanessntanan $ 206,871 $ 164,724
Federal fUndS SOIA.......coveveeeeeeeeieeeeeeeeec e ee e cee e ee st s e ve st essasessaeseesansasnessesssssssasaeesns sesssnsnnens 246 700

Cash and cash equivalents 207,117 165,424
Securities available for sale 260,122 201,722
L0ans REld O SALE......ccecuevreiiteeeereereeeerrresrrerreceeeseeterstee e saeemteeeessessseessessasssessnesssanss nsssasasans 524 100
Loans, net of allowance of $9,788 and $12,836 at year end 2012 and 2011 ........ccccoevvvriinncnnne 903,973 866,753
Nonmarketable equity SECUTILIES.........c.viviiriiserinisiiiir s sb et ss s reseenee 8,625 11,207
Premises and eqUIPIMENt, NEL .......c..ocveeveveereiniretininiininiisn st sesesstesessssnesesesnsssssessesssssessnsassnsnes 17,780 12,383
Other real eState OWIIE.........ccoeicieericecer ettt e rvesessaessesessnsssessssssessessessesasessnennsnsnssns 19,529 13,462
Company-owned life iNSUTANCE ..o e b s nees 21,092 5,093
FDIC 10SS Share T€CEIVADIE ......cccccvvvieeeireciiieeeeiieeeerrerrernrreeecsnneeesssssseessssesssssnsssasssasssssasasssns snnes 46,735 72,895
GOOAWINL ...ttt e raer e e e s ses b e e be e se e s be e s e s ese e b et ssesaassansssensessssnsessessernrnsansensssssensosee 58,258 52,505
Core deposit INtANGIDIE ........c.cccivrenniiniiiniiniiie s e 3,268 3,260
Accrued interest receivable and Other @SSEtS...........cuvuveiverieirerrrrreieenrreesireesessneesssseeeesssseesessnenes 19,756 16,683

TOLAL ASSELS ..vvuveneeiivereereeseesisssestosseseossessosssssssssassonsssssssensosnessassesstssossossonsorsosensesssse sassessasasss $ 1,566,779 $ 1,421,487
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Deposits

NON-INLETESE DEATING .....c.eceeeereeeereeeerrieresresesnesessiossossssosescoaeseasessessssestssesseseesssmsssssssasssnsssensssens $ 426,968 $ 329,283

INEETESE DEATING ......eceveuereeereeceeecneece e ctes s e eesrs e saemtssobasonostsrestsrsssa bbbt bbb s s s be b 876,054 852,425

TOAL AEPOSILS .....eeueeeeereereeenrrrererenirersestesetsseseeseseeesaentensesamessesesreseseeesasssnessensensssenssnsnsssonss 1,303,022 1,181,708

Federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements ...........c..ccceeerveeeccininincsiiiniesicnssnn, 19,855 8,746
Federal Home Loan Bank advanCes ..........cccveeereeieeriecrieciereecseeessisssesssessesssesssessesssassssssesssassassses — 5,000
Accrued interest payable and other Liabilities ...........cccovmiiiiirniiiiiiiic e, 7,212 10,682 .

Total liabilities........ccccocerverreraennes teeeeesteserseeseesesseeseesteteseeeeestetontestete e tetataateseeaeeseseaenes 1,330,089 1,206,136
Commitments and contingencies (Note 18)
Shareholders’ equity
Preferred stock — no par, 5,000,000 shares authorized and undesignated at year end,

respectively; no shares issued or OUtStANAING........cocervivereerirersinrinniiinie e — —
Common stock — $0.01 par value; 60,000,000 shares authorized; 34,070,270 and 30,569,032

issued and outstanding at year end 2012 and 2011, respectively .........c.cccovvnnninninsinnsisnennns 341 307
Additional paid-in CAPILAL .........cceceuereiecrereirerieeeetntsrreist et st nenssestessssaesisss st s aeaan 238,089 217,800
ACCUMUIALEA AETICIt..vecvievierirririiriiresrerteeteetestessessestesseesessersessessessssssessassassessessessassessessessass assesneen (3,998) (5,319)
Accumulated other comprehensive iNCOME .........couveieecrninriineniniiinrs s essenes 2,258 2,563

Total SharehOlders’ EQUILY ........ccoceruieicninicsinintnirtirii st sassse e resseressassesas 236,690 215,351

Total liabilities and sharehOlders’ EqUILY.......ccceververcerrrrrirrersrsrieeeeereetcreersres st $ 1,566,779 $ 1,421,487

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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1* UNITED BANCORP, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010
(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Interest income:

Loans, including fees ...ttt crcee st ess et s et

Securities .........coceeverceeeernne

Federal funds sold and other .....
TOtal INEETESE INMCOME .....oceeeiiiiiiieieieieeiteteste st e e sae bt e sbeeateateesbaabeaasaasetesaesabaseeneessesaesse s neeneens
Interest expense:

DIBPOSIES .....oiviiiiiiiiiicr et bbb e a e sh e e e

Federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements....

Federal Home Loan Bank advances.........ccccccecverernnnnee.

Other borrowings .......
TOtal INLETESt EXPEINSE ....v..veuiriiiieeeiiietetsrteterestesrest e reste st ssessee st sbe st sessese st sbs e essensessssrsaesnenene

Net interest income

Provision fOr 0N LOSSES........c.occveiricieiieieciiereeeeciesteeeeese st ssseeseessesssasessesesseaseesnssssessessaessonne

Net interest income after provision for loan losses

Non-interest income:
Service charges and fees 0n dePOSit ACCOUNTS ......vvvvvvvecrerrrniirreereeeernrerreresesstre s sesesressses
Net gains (losses) on sales of other real estate OWNEd............ocoeveerrcirirnciccirrniinenrecvesene e
Net gains on sales of SECUrities ..........ccooverereeverrerereennen
Net gains on sales of loans held for sale .
Gain on acqUISItion ........vcveeveeecerrnrnernennes
Increase in cash surrender value of Company owned life insurance....
Adjustment to FDIC loss share receivable...........cccoevinriinincncninnnne
OTHET ...t ettt st b et e et b e s bbb s e bbbt b bent

Total NONINIETESt INCOMIE ......c.coviireiriieriiitriceet et bbb st s s b sasrersesnan

Non-interest expense:
Salaries and employee benefits............ccccociiniiiiiici
Occupancy and equipment..........
Data processing..........c..........
Telephone ...............c........
Stationery and supplies..........
Amortization of intangibles .....
Professional fees .......c.....ccceee.
AdVertising .........cccccenmeieerecennen.
Merger reorganization expense....
Regulatory assessment.................
Other real estate owned expense ..
Loan expense ................. R
OB .o ettt et r sttt et st et ss
Total NON-INLETEST EXPEIISE .......eeeveererererereerereerrertereeersaeseseesesererssssesasstsbetssnasssssestntriosssisressas

Income before income taxes
INCOME 1AX EXPEINSE ....oeeeeeierieeeiieeeerereeeeeeeseeree e s seassessessessesesaessassesstesesseesessassessensenrenesnsnnsans

Net income

Basic earnings per COMMON ShATE........c.coevuiimeneiininiiinicir et ssesesie et sesseseesuesssnesne

Diluted earnings per common share ....

Year ended
December 31,
2012 2011 2010

66,929 § 55311 $ 41,529
5,106 4,362 3,263
814 736 971
72,849 60,409 45,763
5,292 5,991 7,278
14 16 23
7 230 233
— 112 211
5,313 6,349 7,745
67,536 54,060 38,018
6,350 7,000 13,520
61,186 47,060 24,498
3,451 3,581 3,091
3,278 (264) (113)
1,673 364 435
106 58 73
— — 10,133
498 151 161
(12,488) (3,236) —
816 1,085 764
(2,666) 1,739 14,544
24,303 20,186 16,052
7,958 7,732 6,237
3,686 3,481 2,684
917 814 757
480 387 317
684 514 433
1,631 1,131 1,111
258 293 165
1,784 1,076 2,213
1,482 1,395 1,822
1,245 323 271
2,307 1,900 1,228
4,249 3,613 3,139
50,984 42,845 36,429
7,536 5,954 2,613
2,808 2,282 1,015
4728 § 3,672 8 1,598
0.14 § 0.13 $ 0.06
0.14 § 0.13 $ 0.06

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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1st UNITED BANCORP, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010
(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Years ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Net INCOME.....cveireiiieeeeeeeseeeeaeens rresteeestesnestet e re e ennents $ 4,728 $ 3,672 $ 1,598
Other comprehensive income:
Unrealized gains (losses) on securities available for sale............ 1,181 3,623 1,216
Reclassification adjustment for gains included in net income..... (1,673) (364) (435)
Income tax benefit (EXPEnSse) ......cceeveververnvrcersersrnerninninieinnieenes 187 (1,228) (294)
Other comprehensive income (loss)......... . (305) 2,031 487
ComPrehensive iMCOME..........cuvurerererrrereersmrerecrenmecscnmsmsesesesessssseseses $ 4,423 $ 5,703 $ 2,085

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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1* UNITED BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Accumulated
Additional Other Total
Shares of Common Paid-In  Accumulated Comprehensive Shareholders’
Common Stock Stock Capital Deficit Income Equity

Balance at December 31, 2009 ................ 24,781,660 $ 248 § 180,888 $ (10,589) $ 45 $ 170,592
NEt INCOME ..ot — — — 1,598 — 1,598
Other comprehensive income................... — — — — 487 487
Stock-based compensation expense......... — — 830 — — 830
Restricted stock grants..........cocecceeeerernenen 11,429 — — — — —
Registration costs on issuance of

€coOmMmMmON SOCK ....covevveeercreieiceeeercrennen — — 21) — — (21)
Balance at December 31, 2010 24,793,089 $ 248 $ 181,697 $ 8,991 3 532 § 173,486
Net income ...........cceeveevrvevineernnen. — — — 3,672 — 3,672
Other comprehensive income.................. — — — — 2,031 2,031
Stock-based compensation expense......... — — 1,072 — — 1,072
Restricted stock grants.............coceueeveuennne. 25,943 1 ) —_ —_ —_
Issuance of common stock,

net of cost of $2,285 .......cceeenrivinrnnnn 5,750,000 58 35,032 — — 35,090
Balance at December 31, 2011 ................ 30,569,032 $ 307 $ 217,800 $ (5,319 $ 2,563 $ 215,351
NEt INCOME .......oeovveerirecrireireerrecrveeenreenns — — — 4,728 — 4,728
Other comprehensive 1oss..........cccoeennee — — — — (305) (305)
Stock-based compensation expense......... — — 1,258 — — 1,258
Restricted stock grants..........cccccoennenucnne 360,884 3 3) — — —
Dividends paid ($0.10 per share)............. — — — (3,407) — (3,407)
Issuance of common stock,

net of costs of $61..........cocvverrnnennen. 3,140,354 31 19,034 — — 19,065
Balance at December 31, 2012 ................ 34,070,270 $ 341 § 238,089 § (3,998) $ 2,258 § 236,690

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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1" UNITED BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data)

2012 2011 2010
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income $ 4,728 $ 3,672 $ 1,598
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities.............
Provision for loan losses 6,350 7,000 13,520
Depreciation and @GMOTHZALION ..ottt st e bssss s sase e necas 3,377 2,741 2,011
Net accretion of purchase accounting adjustments (19,101) (8,863) (4,660)
Net amortization of securities 2,636 1,423 780
Adjustment to FDIC receivable serer et e e AR 12,488 3,236 —
Increase in cash surrender value of company-owned life insurance (498) (151) (161)
Stock-based compensation expense 1,258 1,072 830
Net (gains) losses 0n $ales 0f SECUTILIES .......cocecuiriiiiiininiinii bbbt et enes (1,673) (364) (435)
Net (gains) losses on other real estate owned (3,278) 264 113
Net loss on premises and equipment 11 32 58
Net gain on sales of loans held for sale............oirnrin (106) (58) (73)
Write downs on other real estate owned property 340 -— —
Gain on acquisition — — (10,133)
Loans originated fOr SAle ...ttt s (6,483) (3,422) (3,700)
Proceeds from sales of loans held for sale . 6,165 8,180 3,924
Net change in:
Deferred income taxes (6,441) 1,692 (1,362)
Deferred loan fees (63) (164) 277)
Accrued interest receivable and other assets 9,210 (4,826) 6,152
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities (1,464) 2,979 (3,147)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 7,456 14,443 5,038
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sales and calls Of SECUTTLIES. ...........ccovrvevveriseriereeiesieseiiestesseeeresssseereressarsnsnssnsseseesesaens 102,521 20,288 39,124
Proceeds from security maturities and prepayments 69,688 38,975 19,767
Purchases of securities (194,322) (125,522) (42,841)
Loan originations and payments, net 79,262 105,877 (7,267)
Proceeds from sale of other real estate owned 27,350 6,405 5,085
Cash received from FDIC loss sharing agreements 11,559 14,095 6,109
Purchase of nonmarketable equity securities, net . 3,078 7,728 57)
Proceeds from maturity of time deposit — 75 —
Cash transferred in connection with acquisitions (11,188) 33,833 35,102
Additions to premises and equipment, net (1,727) (4,206) (1,863)
Purchase of company-owned life insurance (15,500) (215) —
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 70,721 97,333 53,159
Cash flows from financing activities
Net change in deposits (39,186) (92,304) 7,149
Net change in federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements 11,109 (4,140) (9,457)
Net change in short-term Federal Home Loan Bank advances (5,000) — (71,016)
Net change in other borrowings — (4,750) (341)
Issuance of common stock, net of expense — 35,090 21
Dividends paid (3,407) — —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (36,484) (66,104) (73,686)
Net change in cash and cash €qUIVAIENLS .........ccocuvvriceiiiciit et 41,693 45,672 (15,489)
Beginning cash and cash equivalents 165,424 119,752 135,241
Ending cash and cash equivalents $ 207,117 $ 165424 $ 119,752
Supplemental cash flow information:
Interest paid $ 5429 § 6,701 3 7,823
Income taxes paid 357 — 225
Supplemental disclosures of noncash activities:
Transfer of loans to other real estate owned 29,952 10,503 3,790
Transfer of loans to held for sale POrtfolio ..........ccoviiiiiiictceii s s — — 4,800

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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1* UNITED BANCORP, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollar in thousands, except per share data)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations and Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include 1 United Bancorp, Inc.
(“Bancorp” or “Company”) and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, 1* United Bank (“1* United”) and Equitable Equity Lending,
Inc. (“EEL”), together referred to as “the Company.” Intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated in consolidation.

Bancorp’s primary business is the ownership and operation of 1% United. 1¥ United is a state chartered commercial bank that
provides financial services through its four offices in Palm Beach County, four offices in Broward County, four offices in
Miami-Dade County, onz office each in the cities of Vero Beach, Sebastian and Barefoot Bay, four offices in Pinellas and
one office each in Pasco, Orange and Hillsborough counties. Its primary deposit products are checking, savings, and term
certificate accounts, and its primary lending products are commercial and residential mortgages, commercial, and installment
loans. Substantially all loans are secured by specific items of collateral including commercial and residential real estate,
business assets and consumer assets. Commercial loans are expected to be repaid from cash flow from operations of
businesses. However, the customers’ ability to repay their loans is dependent on the real estate and general market conditions.
Other financial instruments, which potentially represent concentrations of credit risk, include deposit accounts in other
financial institutions and federal funds sold.

EEL is a commercial finance subsidiary that from time to time will hold foreclosed assets, performing loans or non-
performing loans. At December 31, 2012, EEL held $1,080 in non-performing and $2,411in performing loans.

Operating Segments: While the chief decision-makers monitor the revenue streams of the various products and services,
operations are managed and financial performance is evaluated on a Company-wide basis. Operating segments are
aggregated into one as operating results for all segments are similar. Accordingly, all of the financial service operations are
considered by management to be aggregated in one reportable operating segment.

Reclassifications: Certain amounts in the prior year financial statements were reclassified to conform to the current year’s
presentation. These reclassifications had no impact on the prior periods’ net income or shareholders’ equity.

Use of Estimates: To prepare financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, management makes estimates and assumptions based on available information. These estimates and
assumptions affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and the disclosures provided, and actual results could
differ. The allowance for loan losses, carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets, carrying value of deferred tax assets,
FDIC loss share receivable, and fair values of financial instruments are particularly subject to change.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents includes cash, deposits with other financial institutions with original
maturities under 90 days, and federal funds sold. Net cash flows are reported within the statement of cash flows for loan and
deposit transactions, and federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements.

Securities Available for Sale: Debt securities are classified as available for sale when they might be sold before maturity.
Equity securities with readily determinable fair values are classified as available for sale. Securities available for sale are
carried at fair value, with unrealized holding gains and losses reported in other comprehensive income net of tax.

Interest income includes amortization of purchase premium or discount. Premiums and discounts on securities are amortized
on the level-yield method without anticipating prepayments, except for mortgage-backed where prepayments are anticipated.
Gains and losses on sales are recorded on the trade date and determined using the specific identification method.

Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment (“OTTI”) at least on a quarterly basis, and more
frequently when economic or market conditions warrant such evaluation. Consideration is given to (1) the length of time and
the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition and near term prospects of the issuer
including an evaluation of credit ratings, (3) the impact of changes in market interest rates, (4) the intent of the Company to
sell a security, and (5) whether it is more likely than not the Company will have to sell the security before recovery of its cost
basis. If the Company intends to sell an impaired security, or if it is more likely than not the Company will have to sell the
security before recovery of its cost basis, the Company records an other-than-temporary loss in an amount equal to the entire
difference between fair value and amortized cost. Otherwise, only the credit portion of the estimated loss is recognized in
earnings, with the other portion of the loss recognized in other comprehensive income.
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1" UNITED BANCORP, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollar in thousands, except per share data)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Concentration of Credit Risk: Most of the Company’s business activity is with customers located within Palm Beach,

Broward Miami-Dade, Pasco, Pinellas, Orange and Hillsborough counties. Therefore, the Company’s exposure to credit risk
is significantly affected by changes in the economy in these counties.

Loans Held for Sale: Loans held for sale are carried at the lower of aggregate cost or market. Net unrealized losses, if any, are
recorded as a valuation allowance and charged to earnings.

Residential real estate loans held for sale are sold with servicing released. Gains and losses on sales of residential real estate
loans held for sale are based on the difference between the selling price and the carrying value of the related loan sold.

The guaranteed portion of loans originated through certain government guaranteed lending programs are sold while retaining
the unguaranteed portion and servicing. Gains and losses on sales of the guaranteed portion are based on the difference
between the selling price and the allocated carrying value of the portion of the loan being sold. Additionally, the Company
periodically refers government guaranteed loans to third parties. Fees for such referrals are recognized into income at the time
of referral.

Loans: Loans, excluding certain purchased loans which have shown evidence of deterioration since origination, that
management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or payoff are reported at the
principal balance outstanding, net of unearned interest, deferred loan fees and costs, and an allowance for loan losses. Interest
income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance. Loan origination fees, net of certain direct origination costs, are deferred
and recognized in interest income using the level-yield method without anticipating prepayments. The recorded investment in
a loan excludes accrued interest receivable and unearned income as well as net deferred loan fees or cost which are not
significant.

Interest income on commercial, residential and consumer loans is discontinued at the time the loan is 90 days delinquent
unless the loan is well-secured and in process of collection. Past due status is based on the contractual terms of the loan. In all
cases, loans are placed on nonaccrual or charged-off at an earlier date if collection of principal or interest is considered
doubtful.

All interest accrued but not received for loans placed on non-accrual is reversed against interest income. Interest received on
such loans is accounted for on cost-recovery method with cash payments applied as a principle reduction, until qualifying for
return to accrual. Loans are returned to accrual status when all the prmc1pal and interest amounts contractually due are
brought current and future payments are reasonably assured.

Certain Acquired Loans: As part of business acquisitions, the Company evaluated each of the acquired loans under ASC 310-
30 to determine whether (1) there was evidence of credit deterioration since origination, and (2) it was probable that we
would not collect all contractually required payment receivable. The Company determined the best indicator of such evidence
was an individual loan’s payment status and/or whether a loan was determined to be classified by us based on our review of
each individual loan. Therefore, generally each individual loan that should have been or was on nonaccrual at the acquisition
date, loans contractually past due 60 days or more, and each individual loan that was classified as either special mention,
substandard or loss were included subject to ASC 310-30.

Loans which were evaluated under ASC 310-30, and where the timing and amount of cash flows can be reasonably
estimated, were accounted for in accordance with ASC 310-30-35. The Company applies the interest method for these loans
under this subtopic and the loans are excluded from non-accrual. If at acquisition we identified loans that we could not
reasonably estimate cash flows or if subsequent to acquisition such cash flows could not be estimated, such loans would be
included in non-accrual. These acquired loans are recorded at the allocated fair value, such that there is no carryover of the
seller’s allowance for loan losses. Such acquired loans are accounted for individually. The Company estimates the amount
and timing of expected cash flows for each purchased loan, and the expected cash flows in excess of the allocated fair value
is recorded as interest income over the remaining life of the loan (accretable yield). The excess of the loan’s contractual
principal and interest over expected cash flows is not recorded (non-accretable difference). Over the life of the loan, expected
cash flows continue to be estimated. If the present value of expected cash flows is less than the carrying amount, a loss is
recorded through the allowance for loan losses. If the present value of expected cash flows is greater than the carrying
amount, it is recognized as part of future interest income.
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1* UNITED BANCORP, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollar in thousands, except per share data)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Troubled Debt Restructurings. A loan is considered a troubled debt restructured loan based on individual facts and
circumstances. A modification may include either an increase or reduction in interest rate or deferral of principal payments or
both. Loans for which the terms have been modified resulting in a concession, and for which the borrower is experiencing
financial difficulties, are considered troubled debt restructurings. The Company classifies troubled debt restructured loans as
impaired and evaluates the need for an allowance for loan losses on a loan-by-loan basis. An allowance for loan losses is
based on either the present value of estimated future cash flows or the estimated fair value of the underlying collateral. Loans
retain their interest accrual status at the time of modification.

Allowance for Loan Losses: In originating loans, we recognize that credit losses will be experienced and the risk of loss will
vary with, among other things: general economic conditions; the type of loan being made; the creditworthiness of the
borrower over the term of the loan; and, in the case of a collateralized loan, the quality of the collateral for such a loan. The
allowance for loan losses represents our estimate of the allowance necessary to provide for probable incurred losses in the
loan portfolio. In making this determination, we analyze the ultimate collectability of the loans in our portfolio, feedback
provided by internal loan staff, the independent loan review function and information provided by examinations performed
by regulatory agencies.

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated at the portfolio segment level using the same methodology for each segment. The
historical net losses for a rolling two year period is the basis for the general reserve for each segment which is adjusted for
each of the same qualitative factors (i.e., nature and volume of portfolio, economic and business conditions, classification,
past due and non-accrual trends) evaluated by each individual segment. Impaired loans and related specific reserves for each
of the segments are also evaluated using the same methodology for each segment. The qualitative factors added
approximately 11 and 20 basis points to the general reserve of the allowance for loan losses at December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable we will be unable to collect the
scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors
considered by management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the probability of
collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays (loan
payments made within 90 days of the due date) and payment shortfalls (which are tracked as past due amounts) generally are
not classified as impaired. The Company determines the past due status of a loan based on the number of days contractually
past due. Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking
into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of the delay, the
reasons for the delay, the borrower’s prior payment record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and
interest owed.

Charge-offs of loans are made by portfolio segment at the time that the collection of the full principal, in management’s
judgment, is doubtful. This methodology for determining charge-offs is consistently applied to each segment.

On a quarterly basis, management reviews the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. Commercial credits are graded by
risk management and the loan review function validates the assigned credit risk grades. In the event that a loan is
downgraded, it is included in the allowance analysis at the lower grade. Our analysis of the allowance for loan losses consists
of three components: (i) specific credit allocations on individual loans where a loss is expected based on the underlying
collateral value or a cash flow analysis; (ii) general portfolio allocation based on historical loan loss experience for each loan
category; and (iii) qualitative reserves based on general economic conditions as well as specific economic factors in the
markets in which we operate.

The specific credit allocation component of the allowance for loan losses is based on a regular analysis of loans where the
loan is determined to be impaired as determined by management.
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1* UNITED BANCORP, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollar in thousands, except per share data)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The impairment, if any, is determined based on either the present value expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s
effective interest rate, the market price of the loan, or if the loan is collateral dependent, the fair value of the underlying
collateral less estimated cost of sale. The Company may classify a loan as substandard; however, it may not be classified as
impaired. A loan may be classified as substandard by management if, for example, the primary source of repayment is
insufficient, the financial condition of the borrower and/or guarantors has deteriorated or there are chronic delinquencies. For
troubled debt restructured loans that subsequently default, the Company determines the amount of specific reserve in
accordance with our allowance for loan loss policy.

Transfers of Financial Assets: Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales, when control over the assets has been
relinquished. Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when the assets have been isolated from the
Company, the transferee obtains the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or
exchange the transferred assets, and the Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an
agreement to repurchase them before their maturity.

Nonmarketable Equity Securities: Nonmarketable equity securities include Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) and Federal
Reserve Bank (FRB) stock.

The Bank is a member of the FHLB system. Members are required to own a certain amount of stock based on the level of
borrowings and other factors, and may invest on additional amounts. FHLB stock is carried at cost, classified as a restricted
security, and periodically evaluated for impairment based on the ultimate recovery par value. Both cash and stock dividends
are reported as income.

The Bank is a member of its regional Federal Reserve Bank. FRB stock is carried at cost, classified as a restricted security,
and periodically evaluated for impairment based on the ultimate recovery par value. Both cash and stock dividends are
reported as income.

Premises and Equipment: Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed
on a straight line basis over the assets’ useful lives, which range from 3 to 10 years. Amortization of leasehold improvements
is computed utilizing the straight-line method over the shorter of the lease term or the useful life of the asset. Land is carried
at cost.

Premises and equipment and other long-term assets are reviewed for impairment when events indicate their carrying amount
may not be recoverable from future undiscounted cash flows. If impaired, the assets are recorded at fair value and a charge is
recorded in the consolidated statement of operations in the current period.

Other Real Estate Owned: Assets acquired through or instead of loan foreclosure are initially recorded at fair value less costs
to sell when acquired, establishing a new cost basis. These assets are subsequently accounted for at the lower of cost or fair
value less the estimated cost to sell the asset. If fair value declines subsequent to foreclosure, a valuation allowance is
recorded through expense. Costs after acquisition are expensed.

Company-Owned Life Insurance: The Company has purchased life insurance policies on certain key executives. Company-
owned life insurance is recorded at the amount that can be realized under the insurance contract at the balance sheet date,
which is the cash surrender value adjusted for other charges or other amounts due that are probable at settlement.

Goodwill and Core Deposit Intangible: Goodwill resulting from business combinations prior to January 1, 2009 represents
the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets of businesses acquired. Goodwill resulting from business
combinations after January 1, 2009, is generally determined as the excess of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
plus the fair value of any noncontrolling interests in the acquiree, over the fair value of the net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed as of the acquisition date. Goodwill and intangible assets acquired in a purchase business combination and
determined to have an indefinite useful life are not amortized, but tested for impairment at least annually or more frequently
if events and circumstances exist that indicate the necessity for such impairment tests to be performed. The Company has
selected December 31 as the date to perform the annual impairment test. Intangible assets with definite useful lives are
amortized over their estimated useful lives to their estimated residual values. Goodwill is the only intangible asset with an
indefinite life on our balance sheet.
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1* UNITED BANCORP, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollar in thousands, except per share data)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

FDIC Loss Share Receivable. The FDIC Loss Share Receivable represents the estimated amounts due from the FDIC related
to the Loss Sharing Agreements which were booked as of the acquisition dates of Republic, TBOM, and Old Harbor. The
receivable represents the discounted value of the FDIC’s reimbursed portion of estimated losses we expect to realize on loans
and other real estate owned (“Covered Assets”) acquired as a result of these acquisitions. The range of discount rates on the
FDIC Loss Share Receivable was 2.12% to 3.97%. As losses are realized on Covered Assets, the portion that the FDIC pays
the Company in cash for principal and up to 90 days of interest reduces the FDIC Loss Share Receivable.

The FDIC Loss Share Receivable is reviewed quarterly and adjusted for any changes in expected cash flows based on recent
performance and expectations for future performance of the Covered Assets. Prior to October 1, 2012, any increases in cash
flows of Covered Assets would be accreted into income over the life of the Covered Asset and would reduce immediately the
FDIC Loss Share Receivable. Subsequent to October 1, 2012, due to the adoption of new guidance by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) (see “Recently Adopted Accounting Standards™) any increases in cash flows of
Covered Assets will be accreted into income over the life of the covered asset with a reduction to the FDIC Loss Share
Receivable over the shorter of the life of the loan or the remaining term of the respective Loss Share Agreements. Any
decreases in the expected cash flows of the Covered Assets will result in the impairment to the Covered Asset and an increase
in the FDIC Loss Share Receivable to be reflected immediately. Non-cash adjustments to the FDIC Loss Share Receivable
are recorded to non-interest income.

Loan Commitments and Related Financial Instruments: Financial instruments include off-balance sheet credit instruments,
such as commitments to make loans and commercial letters of credit, issued to meet customer financing needs. The face
amount for these items represents the exposure to loss, before considering customer collateral or ability to repay. Such
financial instruments are recorded when they are funded.

Income Taxes: Income tax expense is the total of the current year income tax due or refundable and the change in deferred
tax assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are the expected future tax amounts for the temporary differences
between carrying amounts and tax bases of assets and liabilities, computed using enacted tax rates. A valuation allowance, if
any, reduces deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized.

A tax position is recognized as a benefit only if it is “more likely than not” that the tax position would be sustained in a tax
examination, with a tax examination being presumed to occur. The amount recognized is the largest amount of tax benefit
that is greater than 50% likely of being realized on examination. For tax positions not meeting the “more likely than not” test,
no tax benefit is recorded.

The Company recognizes interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense.

Earnings Per Common Share: Basic earnings per common share is net income available to common shareholders divided by
the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share includes the
dilutive effect of additional potential common shares issuable under stock options and restricted stock grants. Eamnings per
common share is restated for all stock splits and stock dividends through the date of issue of the consolidated financial
statements.

Stock-Based Compensation: Compensation cost is recognized for stock options and restricted stock awards issued to
employees and directors, based on the fair value of these awards at the date of grant. A Black-Scholes model is utilized to
estimate the fair value of stock options, while the market price of the Company’s common stock at the date of grant is used
for restricted stock awards. Compensation cost is recognized over the required service period, generally defined as the vesting
period. For awards with graded vesting, compensation cost is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service
period for the entire award.

Comprehensive Income Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive income. Other
comprehensive income includes unrealized gains and losses on securities available for sale, net of related taxes, which are
also recognized as separate components of shareholders’ equity.

86
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollar in thousands, except per share data)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Loss Contingencies: Loss contingencies, including claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business, are
recorded as liabilities when the likelihood of loss is probable and an amount or range of loss can be reasonably estimated.
Management does not believe there now are such matters that will have a material effect on the financial statements.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: Fair values of financial instruments are estimated using relevant market information and
other assumptions, as more fully disclosed in a separate note. Fair value estimates involve uncertainties and matters of
significant judgment regarding interest rates, credit risk, prepayments, and other factors, especially in the absence of broad
markets for particular items. Changes in assumptions or in market conditions could significantly affect the estimates.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

In October 2012, the FASB issued guidance on the subsequent accounting for an indemnification asset recognized at the
acquisition date as a result of a government assisted acquisition of a financial institution. When an entity recognizes such an
indemnification asset and subsequently a change in the cash flows expected to be collected on the indemnification asset
occurs as a result of a change in the cash flows expected to be collected on the indemnified asset, the guidance requires the
entity to recognize the change in the measurement of the indemnification asset on the same basis as the indemnified assets.
Any amortization of changes in value of the indemnification asset should be limited to the lesser of the term of the
indemnification agreement and the remaining life of the indemnified assets. The amendments are effective for fiscal years
beginning on or after December 15, 2012 and early adoption is permitted. The amendments are to be applied prospectively to
any new indemnification assets acquired after the date of adoption and to indemnification assets existing as of the date of
adoption arising from a government-assisted acquisition of a financial institution. The Company adopted this standard on
October 1, 2012. The effect of adopting this standard did not have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

In September 2011, the FASB amended existing guidance relating to goodwill impairment testing. The amendment permits
an assessment of qualitative factors to determine whether the existence of events or circumstances leads to a determination
that it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If, after assessing these
events or circumstances, it is concluded that it is not more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its
carrying amount, then performing the two-step impairment test is unnecessary. The amendments in this guidance are
effective for annual and interim goodwill impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011.
The effect of adopting this standard did not have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements.

In May 2011, the FASB issued an amendment to achieve common fair value measurement and disclosure requirements
between U.S. and International accounting principles. Overall, the guidance is consistent with existing U.S. accounting
principles; however, there are some amendments that change a particular principle or requirement for measuring fair value or
for disclosing information about fair value measurements. The amendments in this guidance are effective during interim and
annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements.

In September 2011, the FASB amended existing guidance and eliminated the option to present the components of other
comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes in shareholder’s equity. The amendment requires that
comprehensive income be presented in either a single continuous statement or in a two separate consecutive statement
approach and changes the presentation of reclassification items out of other comprehensive income to net income. In
December 2011, the FASB deferred certain provisions related to the reclassifications of items out of accumulated other
comprehensive income and the presentation of the reclassification items. The adoption of this amendment changed the
presentation of the components of comprehensive income for the Company as part of the consolidated statement of
shareholders’ equity effective January 1, 2012, with the components of comprehensive income presented in a separate
statement.
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NOTE 2 -ACQUISITIONS
Anderen Financial Inc.

On April 1, 2012, the Company completed its acquisition of Anderen Financial, Inc., a Florida corporation and its wholly-
owned subsidiary Anderen Bank, a Florida-chartered commercial bank (Anderen Financial, Inc. and Anderen Bank are
subsequently referred to herein collectively as “AFI” or “Anderen”), pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated
October 24, 2011 (the “Merger Agreement”). Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, each share of AFI common
stock, $0.01 par value per share, was cancelled and automatically converted into the right to receive cash, common stock of
the Company or a combination of cash and common stock of the Company. AFI shareholders could elect to receive cash,
stock, or a combination of 50% cash and 50% stock, provided, however, that each such election was subject to mandatory
allocation procedures to ensure the total consideration was approximately 50% cash and 50% stock. The total value of the
consideration paid to AFI shareholders was $38,250 which consisted of approximately $19,125 in cash and 3,140,354 shares
of the Company’s common stock. The Company’s common stock was valued at $6.09 per share, which was determined to be
the fair value of the stock on the date of acquisition, with a total value of $19,065. Included in merger reorganization expense
are costs of $1,309 related to the AFI Acquisition. The Company recorded goodwill of $5,753 as a result of the merger which
is not deductible for tax purposes. Total net deferred tax assets acquired, which are included in other assets, was $5,651,
primarily related to loss carry forwards. Additionally, the Company recorded $4,315 in deferred tax assets, which are
included in other assets, as a result of purchase accounting adjustments. The Company completed the integration of AFI in
June 2012.

The Company accounted for the transaction under the acquisition method of accounting which requires purchased assets and
liabilities assumed to be recorded at their respective fair values at the date of acquisition. See Note 4 for additional
information related to the fair value of loans acquired. The Company determined the fair value of the core deposit intangible,
securities, fixed assets and deposits with the assistance of third party valuations. The fair value of other real estate owned
(“OREQ”) was based on recent appraisals of the properties. The estimated fair values are subject to refinement as additional
information relative to the closing date fair values become available through the measurement period. While additional
significant changes to the closing date fair values are not expected, any information relative to the changes in these fair values
will be evaluated to determine if such changes are due to events and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date.
During the measurement period, any such changes will be recorded as part of the closing date fair value.
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NOTE 2 - ACQUISITIONS (continued)

The acquisition of AFI is consistent with the Company’s plans to continue to enhance its footprint and competitive position
within the state of Florida. This acquisition complemented the initial expansion into the Florida Gulf Coast markets with the
acquisition of Old Harbor. The Company believes it is well-positioned to deliver superior customer service, achieve stronger
financial performance and enhance shareholder value through the synergies of combined operations. All of these factors
contributed to the resulting goodwill in the transaction. The fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed on

April 1, 2012 was as follows:

Preliminary
April 1, 2012 Measurement April 1, 2012
(as initially Period (As
reported) Adjustments adjusted)

CASH ottt ettt e a e et e e e b s e ee e beehsenseratan $ 1,444 $ —  $ 1,444
Federal Funds SOId...........cccvviniiniinineinniieceeeeressesesessssnesssessssosssnens 6,500 — 6,500
Securities available fOr Sale ...........ccoeereeereriereieeee e ssrererennens 37,742 — 37,742
Federal Home Loan Bank stocK...........ccooveivvmeeeeeeeeecreeeereseererscssnns 496 — 496
LLOANS «.eiiicieiteieittetecieectee e eseesteeaesssebesssessesseesssesesses e sensanseensasnses 131,986 — 131,986
Other real estate OWNEd..........ccueeveereereeeieriesiesrecreere e 527 — 527
Core deposit intangible ..........ccoceveeveiieverinrrriene e ersreere e 692 — 692
FiXE @SSELS...cccuiiiiiirrrieiiteieeereeeesereeesssnesssssssssssssseesnnsassssnssssesssssassnmnen 5,595 — 5,595
OFher ASSEIS.....uiuiiieeeereeereeerecereertrersese e e essssese s esesrs s sseseressensanses 10,911 (182) 10,729
TOTAL ASSETS ACQUIRED ...........ccumrerrceiieeeceveveenns $ 195,893 $ (182) $§ 195,711
DIEPOSIES .....eeececececececacrcaesesesentaeneesenese et aenseesasnssessssssesassessesnsssasas $ 160,979 $ — $§ 160,979
(8311 SOOI 2,124 111 2,235
TOTAL LIABILITIES ASSUMED............coooitinviiereeteeneens $ 163,103 $ 111  § 163,214
Excess of assets acquired over liabilities assumed .............ccc.ou......... $ 32,790 $ 293 §$ 32,497
PUIChase PrICE........cuivcrceururcceirieeentststenenesssesessesase st esesssssesessasssnnes 38,250 — 38,250
Goodwill $ 5,460 $ 293 § 5,753

The operating results of the Company for the year ending December 31, 2012 includes the operating results of AFI since the
acquisition date of April 1, 2012. The following summarizes the net interest and other income, net income and earnings per
share as if the merger with AFI was effective as of the beginning of the comparable prior annual reporting period presented.
There was no material, nonrecurring adjustments to the pro forma net interest and other income, net income and earnings per

share presented below:
Year ended
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) December 31,
2012 2011
Net interest and Other INCOME..........ovovveeeeeeeeeeceeereereereerseeeeeeereeeeeeaseseas $ 66903 $ 65,158
NELINCOME ....c.ceeiieiciiectricericrt e teecsseesseresesseseesates sensssesssssssssosstssssen 4,846 4,953
Basic earnings per Share..........coccveeereeeeenencnensseseeseeesisssasesesesseassssns 0.13 0.15
Diluted earnings per share............ccoveveveererereneeinierenesieere s eresssenanes 0.13 0.15
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NOTE 2 - ACQUISITIONS (continued)
0ld Harbor Bank of Florida

On October 21, 2011, the Company through its banking subsidiary entered into a purchase and assumption agreement and
certain loss sharing agreements with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) and the FDIC as receiver, to
acquire certain assets and assume substantially all of the deposits, other than depository organized - brokered deposits, and
certain liabilities of Old Harbor Bank of Florida (“Old Harbor™), located in Clearwater, Florida. Assets acquired included
cash and cash equivalents, investments securities, loans with unpaid principal of $149,186, and other real estate owned. A
majority of the loans and all other real estate owned are covered under loss sharing agreements (“Covered Assets”) between
the FDIC and 1* United.

The deposits were acquired with a 0% premium and assets were acquired at a discount of approximately $8,500, subject to
customary adjustments. The FDIC’s obligation to reimburse the Company for losses with respect to Covered Assets begins
with the first dollar of loss incurred. The FDIC will reimburse the Company for 70% of losses with respect to Covered
Assets, up to approximately $49,000. 1* United will reimburse the FDIC for 70% of recoveries with respect to losses for
which the FDIC paid 1* United 70% reimbursement under the Loss Sharing Agreements. The loss sharing agreement
applicable to single-family residential mortgage loans provides for FDIC loss sharing and 1* United reimbursement to the
FDIC for ten years. The loss sharing agreement applicable to commercial loans and other real estate owned provides for
FDIC loss sharing for five years and the Company reimbursement for eight years. In addition, on December 15, 2021, 1*
United will pay to the FDIC 50% of the excess, if any, of (1) $9,761 minus (2) the sum of (a) 25% of the asset discount bid
made in connection with the acquisition, (b) 20% of the Cumulative Shared-Loss Payments (as defined below) and (c) 3.5%
of the total loans subject to loss sharing. For the purposes of the above calculation, “Cumulative Shared-Loss Payments”
means (i) the aggregate of all of the payments made or payable to the Company under the loss sharing agreements minus (ii)
the aggregate of all of the payments made or payable to the FDIC under the loss sharing agreements.

The Company accounted for the transaction under the acquisition method of accounting which requires purchased assets and
assumed liabilities to be recorded at their respective acquisition date fair value. Previously reported fair values were
preliminary and subject to refinement for up to one year after the closing date of the acquisition as new information relative
to the closing date of the acquisition became available. Specifically, additional information related to the fair value over loans
and other real estate and the FDIC loss share receivable changed as new information became available. As a result, the
Company updated the previously reported consolidated balance sheets and statements of cash flows for the year ended
December 31, 2011 for the final measurement period adjustments. Final valuation and purchase price allocation adjustments
are reflected in the table below:

October Final
21, 2011 Measurement  October 21,
(As initially Period 2011

Assets reported) Adjustments (As adjusted)
Cash and cash eqUIVALENLS ..........ccocveveercreeeerreesisiine e essseses $ 24737 $ — 3 24,737
Securities available for SAle ..........coceciiiieiiiiececceere e 30,975 — 30,975
Federal Home Loan Bank StOCK........cceviereeieeneerennennisesiensssssessnsssissseeens 392 — 392
LLOAIIS .ottt s e eeasessessess e s e st e ebeebesbesbeeseeseere et et ante srn s neRa s be b s benes 118,901 (3,531) 115,370
Other real estate OWNEd.........ocevviiiiiieiiesreesireesrereteesiveessreesrrnseseeseseeseseesnees 2,062 207 2,269
Core deposit Intangible ........oovvvvviiirirrisisnir e 485 — 485
FDIC 108S Share T€CEIVEADIE .....ocoeeeveiieieeeiccieecerereeerreressnreeeesraresessrosassessasss 17,721 1,408 19,129
Accrued interest receivable and other assets.........coviinieniiinnneninnnencnne, 1,244 (246) 998
Total ASSEts ACQUITEd.........cuevrmeeerrerericietrerreeseseest sttt besenanasas $ 196,517 $ (2,162) $ 194,355
Liabilities

DIEPOSIES cu.veovervreereecueeneseeeneaeaceeesessesesssetsrstsesstssas st st et ssssessbassasastasassssases $ 209617 $ — $ 209,617
ONET .ttt ettt te et ts et et e b e b e s e s st et e e e e e e e e et st satonsarssnnsabsunanbans 1,091 240 1,331
Total Liabilities ASSUMEd.........cceeviveecririreieenieeerneenni et esaenees $ 210,708 $ 240 $ 210,948
Excess of liabilities assumed over assets acquired ..........c.cecevevieiiiicnnninnnns 14,191 2,402 16,593
Cash received from the FDIC ........cooiiiiiiiiieriieinieeneerseenesecssssssesssesssesssssin 9,096 9,096
TOtal GOOAWIL.....coviviiviiiiiiieieeeeteteterter e s ee et e st et e s e s e e ssenstentesaaneeseeneesnas $ 5,005 §$ 2,402 $ 7,497
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NOTE 2 -ACQUISITIONS (continued)

The acquisition of Old Harbor is consistent with the Company’s plan to enhance both its footprint and competitive position.
This acquisition provided for the initial expansion into the West Coast of Florida markets specifically Pasco and Pinellas
counties. The Company believes it is well-positioned to deliver superior customer service, achieve stronger financial
performance and enhance shareholder value through the synergies of combined operations, all of which contributed to the
resulting goodwill associated with the transactions.

On the date of acquisition, the Company did not immediately acquire the furniture or equipment or any of the owned
facilities of Old Harbor. Management assessed each banking location and determined not to assume three banking facilities,
two of which were leased and one was owned. The Company has purchased two banking facilities and related furniture and
equipment for $2,200 and assumed two leased banking facilities.

The Bank of Miami, N.A. Acquisition

On December 17, 2010, the Company, through its banking subsidiary 1% United Bank, entered into a purchase and
assumption agreement with the FDIC, as receiver for TBOM. Per the agreement, the Company assumed all deposits, except
certain brokered deposits, and borrowings and acquired certain assets of TBOM including loans, other real estate owned and
cash and investments. All of the loans acquired are covered under two loss sharing agreements. The loss sharing agreements
cover 80% of losses incurred on acquired loan and other real estate as well as third party collection costs and 90 days of
accrued interest on covered loans. The term of the loss sharing and loss recoveries is ten years for residential real estate and
five years with respect to losses on non-residential real estate and eight years with respect to loss recovery. The reimbursable
losses from the FDIC are based on the book value of the relevant loan as determined by the FDIC as the date of the
transaction. New loans made after that date are not covered under the loss share agreement with the FDIC.

The Company received a $38,000 net discount on the assets acquired. TBOM operated three banking facilities in Miami-
Dade County, Florida. None of the centers were retained by the Company and the related deposits were serviced from
existing branch facilities.

The Company accounted for the transaction under the acquisition method of accounting which requires purchased assets and
assumed liabilities to be recorded at their respective acquisition date fair value. Previously reported fair values were
preliminary and subject to refinement for up to one year after the closing date of the acquisition as new information relative
to the closing date of the acquisition became available. Specifically, additional information related to the fair value over loans
and other real estate and the FDIC loss share receivable changed as new information became available. As a result, the
Company updated the previously reported consolidated balance sheets and statements of operations, of changes in
Shareholders’ Equity and of Cash Flows for the year ended December 31, 2010 for the final measurement period
adjustments. An acquisition gain of $10,133 was recorded as a component of noninterest income in the consolidated
statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2010 as a result of the acquisition.
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NOTE 2 -ACQUISITIONS (continued)

Final valuation and purchase price allocation adjustments are reflected in the table below:

December Final
17,2010 Measurement December 17,
(As initially Period 2010
reported) Adjustments (As adjusted)

Cash and cash eqUIVAIENLS .........coceveeereereerreersenssmeerersnrenirerennsenessans $ 74,902 $ —  $ 74,902
Securities available for Sale ...........ooooiiiiiiiiiiiniiee e 29,060 — 29,060
Federal Reserve Bank and Federal Home Loan Bank stock.......... 8,253 — 8,253
LOAINS .ottt et e e sve et er s n et eae e e e e st e e et 203,185 15,054 218,239
Core deposit intangible ..........ccccoevivivvriinnnninniriicre 677 — 677
FDIC loss share receivable .........c.cccceecvnevnniininnnnnninnninen e 48,690 (12,380) 36,310
Other real estate OWNEd........ccveevvvvvieiiiieeeeiieeeeireeeecteeeeerereeseennmneens 9,858 (1,676) 8,182
OheT @SSEIS....cuvevreierieeireieeietirtrree e e st sttt e st esee e seeeessesaennen 3,691 (1,915) 1,776

TOTAL ASSETS ACQUIRED ............cooooeienececeenrceerannns $ 378316 $ 917) $ 377,399
DIEPOSIES «...eeuceeeierieirerssessssesssesesctsasassseseseserssessensessissnssssssnsnen $ 254538 §$ — 254,538
Federal Home Loan Bank advances ...........ccooeveeveerevimncieenieeeeneceennee 71,016 — 71,016
OURET covoo e eeeeseorsessessss s sessssssessssassssssasesssmssasssmassssssseseas 1,921 ) 1,912

TOTAL LIABILITIES ASSUMED.........ccocoviniiiiiieeenene $ 327475 § 9 $ 327,466
Excess of assets acquired over liabilities assumed ..........cccccueuencne. 50,841 (908) 49,933
Cash paid t0 FDIC .......c.ccceieeiieenieeeesesssisesssssesesssisesssrons (39,800) — (39,800)
RECORDED GAIN ON ACQUISITION .........cooevvevrinrerereeecceenne $ 11,041 § 908) $ 10,133

The Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) advances to TBOM were repaid prior to December 31, 2010.

NOTE 3 - SECURITIES

The amortized cost and fair value of securities available for sale and the related gross unrealized gains and losses recognized

in accumulated other comprehensive income were as follows.

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized

Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

2012
MURICIPAL SECUITHIES. ....vverveverrerereerrerirrrerssiessseessaesssensesesssseaence $ 500 $ — 3 3n $ 469
Residential collateralized mortgage obligations............c.cccc..... 3,793 — (34) 3,759
Residential mortgage-backed..........coovvvvnrivniniiiiininnenn, 252,208 3,831 (145) 255,894
$ 256,501 $§ 3831 § (210) $ 260,122

2011
Residential collateralized mortgage obligations...........c..coo..... $ 7,657 $ 100 $ — 3 7,757
Residential mortgage-backed ......ccc.cceveevevencrcciiiiiiiiiniinininnn 189,953 4,023 (11) 193,965
$ 197,610 $ 4,123 § (11) $ 201,722

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, there were no holdings of securities of any one issuer, other than the U.S. Government
agencies, in an amount greater than 10% of shareholders’ equity. All of the residential collateralized mortgage obligations
and residential mortgage-backed securities at December 31, 2012 and 2011 were issued or sponsored by U.S. Government

agencies.
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NOTE 3 - SECURITIES (continued)

The amortized cost and fair value of debt securities at December 31, 2012 by contractual maturity was as follows. Securities

not due at a single maturity date, primarily mortgage-backed securities, are shown separately.

Amortized Fair

Cost Value
Due in 0ne year or 1ess.....cc.ceeririreinininiccieeeneee et seseeene $ — $ —
Due from one to five Years........cccceeecceererrercreererrceersesnesenesesssesceenes — —
Due from five 10 18N YEaIS.....c.cccveerecerrerenirererertereseerseereseeseesessanes — —
Due after ten YEArS .......cccvvecreerrrrereeresssvessssessesessssessssassesessessssessoses 500 469

Residential mortgage-backed and residential collateralized

mortgage ObHZAtiONS .......coevverrerrerrerireerecececeneceneni e esaeeae e 256,001 259,653

$ 256,501 § 260,122

Securities available for sale at December 31, 2012 and 2011 with a fair value of $28,891 and $23,343, respectively, were

pledged to secure public deposits and repurchase agreements.

Securities purchased during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were $194,322, $125,522 and $42,841,

respectively. We purchase securities using excess cash reserves.

Proceeds and gross gains and (losses) from the sale of securities available for sales for the years ended December 31, 2012,

2011 and 2010, respectively, were as follows:

December 31,
2012 2011 2010
Proceeds from sale.........coeveveeveeeveceiriniinnne $ 102,521 $ 20,288 $ 39,124
GIOSS ZAIM ....cucuererererrinrenesrrassesssesesssssesens $ 1,673 $ 364 $ 503
GIOSS 10SS...ucverrerririeerrrrnieeneeneere e eeereens — — (68)
Net gains on sales of securities................... $ 1,673 $ 364 § 435

The income tax expense related to these net gains on sales of securities was $630, $140 and $164, respectively, for the years

ending December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010.

Gross unrealized losses at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, aggregated by investment category and length of time

that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, are as follows.

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss
2012
Municipal Securities..........covvereeereererenennas $ 469§ 3D 3 — $ — 469 $ €1))
Residential collateralized mortgage
obligations..........cccecenernnreceinienrenrennnnen. 3,759 (G4 — — 3,759 (34)
Residential mortgage-backed ................... 35,838 (145) 14 — 35,852 (145)
$ 40,066 $ (210) $ 14 $ — $ 40,080 $ (210)
2011
Residential collateralized mortgage
Obligations.........ccocoveeeeeenraceeeneeenens $ — 3 — § — § — — § —
Residential mortgage-backed...........cco0r.. 7,487 (11) 14 — 7,501 (11)
$ 7,487 § (11) $ 14 § — § 7501 $ (11)
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NOTE 3 - SECURITIES (continued)

In determining other than temporary impairment (“OTTI”) for debt securities, management considers many factors,
including: (1) the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition and
near-term prospects of the issuer, (3) whether the market decline was affected by macroeconomic conditions, and (4) whether
the Company has the intent to sell the debt security or more likely than not will be required to sell the debt security before its
anticipated recovery. The assessment of whether OTT] exists involves a high degree of subjectivity and judgment and is
based on the information available to management at a point in time.

At December 31, 2012, 100% of the residential mortgage mortgage-backed securities and residential collateralized mortgage
obligations held by the Company were issued by the U.S. government and U.S. government sponsored entities and agencies,
primarily Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, and Ginnie Mae, institutions which the government has affirmed its commitment to
support.

At December 31, 2012, there were 15 available for sale securities with unrealized losses of which one was a municipal
security, 3 were residential collateralized mortgage obligations, and 11 were residential mortgage backed securities. At
December 31, 2011 there were 7 available for sale securities with unrealized losses, all of which were residential mortgage
backed securities. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, securities with unrealized losses had depreciated 0.52% and 0.15%,
respectively, from the Company’s amortized cost basis. The decline in fair value is attributable to changes in interest rates
and liquidity, and not credit quality. The Company does not have the intent to sell these mortgage backed securities and it is
likely that it will not be required to sell these securities prior to their anticipated recovery. The Company does not consider
these securities to be other—than—temporarily impaired at December 31, 2012.

NOTE 4 - LOANS

Loans at year end were as follows:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Loans Loans Not Loans Loans Not
Subject to  Subject to Subjectto  Subject to
Loss Share Loss Share Loss Share Loss Share
Agreements Agreements Total Agreements Agreements _ Total
CommMETCIAL .....coverreereeireerrerenrrencserserneesassssenns $ 33,0258 146,473 $179,498 § 44337 § 125,846 $170,183
Real estate:
Residential........cccccvervennen. reerreereerenne 86,981 78,936 165,917 110,346 86,165 196,511
CommeErcial ........cooeevvvenieereeniresieeceesieesseesseenees 198,666 315,908 514,574 233,660 223,616 457,276
Construction and land development.............. 8,426 33,836 42,262 15,637 27,836 43,473
Consumer and Other..........cccoveerereernnecrenecsenerecns 11 11,279 11,290 1,079 11,014 12,093
Total 10anS ......cocueeeeerieieeceecteeeeeeeeeee e $ 327,109% 586,432 913,541 § 405,059 § 474477 879,536
Add (deduct):
Unearned income and net deferred loan
(fe€5) COSES c.vouririnrirenririceereeecrenreensorenenns 220 53
Allowance for loan losses..........c..ccvrveernernne (9,788) (12,836)
Loans, net of allowance..............ccoovevueeeeueeennns $903,973 $866,753

The Company has segregated and evaluates its loan portfolio through five portfolio segments. The five segments are
residential real estate, commercial, commercial real estate, construction and land development, consumer and other. Most of
the Company’s business activity is with customers located in Palm Beach, Broward, Miami-Dade, Pasco, Pinellas, Orange
and Hillsborough counties. Therefore, the Company’s exposure to credit risk is significantly affected by changes in these
counties.
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NOTE 4 - LOANS (continued)

Residential real estate loans are a mixture of fixed rate and adjustable rate residential mortgage loans. As a policy, the
Company holds adjustable rate loans and sells fixed rate loans into the secondary market. Changes in interest rates or market
conditions may impact a borrower’s ability to meet contractual principal and interest payments. Residential real estate loans
are secured by real property.

Commercial loans consist of small-to medium-sized businesses including professional associations, medical services, retail
trade, construction, transportation, wholesale trade, manufacturing and tourism. Commercial loans are derived from our
market areas and underwritten based on the borrower’s ability to service debt from the business’s underlying cash flows. As a
general practice, we obtain collateral such as real estate, equipment or other assets although such loans may be
uncollateralized but guaranteed.

Commercial real estate loans include loans secured by office buildings, warehouses, retail stores and other property located in
or near our markets. These loans are originated based on the borrower’s ability to service the debt and secondarily based on
the fair value of the underlying collateral.

Construction loans include residential and commercial real estate loans and are typically for owner-occupied or pre-sold /
pre-leased properties. The terms of these loans are generaily short-term with permanent financing upon completion. Land
development loans include loans to develop both residential and commercial properties.

Consumer and other loans include second mortgage loans, home equity loans secured by junior liens on residential real estate
and home improvement loans. These loans are originated based primarily on credit scores, debt-to-income ratios and loan-to-
value ratios.

The initial fair value for loans acquired in the AFI Acquisition without specifically identified credit deficiencies was based
primarily on a discounted cash flow methodology that considered factors including the type of loan and related collateral,
classification and accrual status, fixed or variable interest rate, term of loan and whether or not the loan was amortizing, and
current discount rates. Loans were grouped together according to similar characteristics and were treated in the aggregate
when applying various valuation techniques. The discount rates used for loans were based on current market rates for new
originations of comparable loans and included adjustments for liquidity concerns. The discount rate does not include a factor
for credit losses as that has been included in the estimated cash flows. Management prepared the purchase price allocations,
and in part relied on a third party for the valuation of covered non-impaired loans at April 1, 2012. The aggregate contractual
balance was $125,988 with purchase accounting discounts of $3,650 for a net carrying value of $122,338. The fair value
adjustment of $3,650 will be accreted into interest income over the average life of the loans.

The Company has purchased loans as part of its acquisitions of AFI in 2012, Old Harbor from the FDIC in 2011, TBOM

from the FDIC in 2010, and Republic from the FDIC in 2009, for which there was, at acquisition, evidence of deterioration of
credit quality since origination and it was probable, at the time of acquisition that all contractually required payments would
not be collected. The carrying amount of those loans at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was as follows:

2012 2011 2010
COMMETCIAL ...eveerirrerverrerreeresresiessesessessesessessessessessesesnsessessssnestesssnssassessossosnssns $ 27603 $§ 22173 § 10,420
REAI €SLALE......c.veeeeeeceerererereerereeersesesereesesssssssssssbesasesessssssasasssserssnssenseseasassees 126,819 161,947 151,357
Construction and land development............coccociivisnimnsininniniinenseeresssssseennones 12,761 19,411 —
CONSUIMET .....cceereeeeereeecraeereeesnesssneenseessaseesatecssassstssssassssassssassassessasnasssssssasessanes 64 — 3,947
Unpaid principal Balance............ececveeeeececcerertecnsisnsusisressasesessssasscssmsisessassoses $ 167247 $§ 203,531 $ 165,724
CaITYING AMOUNL ......ceeruerrererersencrsaerecnsstasissssssnsisersrsrsasssssssasiosesssesssssessssasassens $ 84,186 $ 104,767 §$ 86,412

For those purchased credit impaired loans disclosed above, the Company increased the allowance for loan losses by $368,
$432, and $84 during 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The allowance for loan losses related to these loans was $1,020,
$652 and $304 at year end 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. No allowance for loan losses was reversed during the years
ended 2012, 2011 or 2010.
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NOTE 4 - LOANS (continued)

Loans purchased during the year for which it was probable at acquisition that all contractually required payments would not

be collected were as follows.

2012 2010

Contractually required payments receivable of loans
purchased during the year: ...........ccocevvvvivvrvenerernrerenrereeennes $ 15339 $ 55,651 $ 119,394

Cash flows expected to be collected at acquisition................. $ 9077 $ 29936 $ 71,790

Fair value of acquired loans at acquiSition.............ccccervrverenens $§ 7927 § 24,178 § 57,163

Accretable yield, or income expected to be collected, was as follows.

Balance at January 1, 2010 ......ccccuvvrverreienrereneneinecsinreninesinesiseeessssesessesssssesssesns 9,171
New 10ans purchased...........cceveerveceeeieiineiene e eseasaesasens 14,627
ACCIEtioN Of INCOME ...t resteereseerts st esee et este e sresassesereraan (2,911)

Balance at December 31, 2010 ......covivviviviereeninreeneeennteseesetessesssnesssessssessans 20,887
New loans purchased..........cccoeeveveeeenenenererncnecrecenierennes 5,758
ACCTEION OF INCOME .......ovieiietieieeteetecctreeeere e esneeressrereeseeseesreesnesseeeeanes (6,421)
Reclassifications from non-accretable difference............cccovevveeeveeereerecrnenens 217

Balance at December 31, 2011 .......ooiiiiiiiiiiienrrieirresrresneceneesseessseessnsssssesenes 20,441
New 10ans purchased............oceeeeeieieieeereeeriesiesseeesstecreseecsrsressesseesessessessessenees 1,150
ACCTEHION Of INCOME ......cvviniieteieiererereeesereseresrresesesssesersssssssesossnssesersasssnnns (7,720)
Reclassifications from non-accretable difference........ooovvvvvevvvveevrevcrerennenne 22,583
Resolution of covered assets ..........covveeeruereerernerriesinnserserenensssenessesssssssseessssenns (4,117)

Balance at December 31, 2012......veivveeieeiieiieeeteeet e ceeereseeeestesssesessesessesssees 32,337

Resolutions of covered assets includes sales, payoffs and transfers to (and sales of) other real estate owned in an amount in

excess of the amount expected.

Income is not recognized on certain purchased credit impaired loans if the Company cannot reasonably estimate cash flows

expected to be collected. The carrying amounts of such loans were as follows:

2010

2012
Loans purchased during the year ..........cccoevvvveveveerrnrereennennes $ 1559 § 4,778 §
Loans at end of year...........cccocecveriveerennererreseeseereesenes 5,487
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NOTE 4 - LOANS (continued)
Activity in the allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was as follows:
Construction

Residential Commercial and Land Consumer
Commercial Real Estate Real Estate Development and Other Total

Beginning balance, January 1, 2012 .......... $ 3,111 8 1,945 § 5302 % 2,409 $§ 69 $ 12,836
Provisions for loan losses.........ccccccennen. 5,229 754 1,145 (700) (78) 6,350
Loans charged off ........c.ccccccccvnnninnnnnn. (5,648) (1,019) 3,159 — —  (9,826)
RECOVETIES ...covvvrerrrenreeeeenicecieescr e 43 189 110 36 50 428
Ending Balance, December 31, 2012 ..... § 2,735 $ 1,869 $ 3,398 $ 1,745 $ 418 9,788

Construction

Residential Commercial and Land Consumer
Commercial Real Estate Real Estate Development and Other Total

Beginning balance, January 1, 2011 ......... $ 3,832 % 3,026 $ 4,145 $ 1,895 $ 152 $ 13,050
Provisions for loan losses..........ccoevennenn 522 1,735 3,059 1,640 44 7,000
Loans charged off ...........ccccoveerirenennnnen, (1,306) (2,829) (1,937) (1,162) (132) (7,366)
RECOVETIES ..ooovveerrecnieeceieeieeeeeereeeeeeeen, 63 13 35 36 5 152
Ending Balance, December 31, 2011 ..... § 3,111 § 1,945 $ 5302 % 2,409 $§ 69 $ 12,836

Construction

Residential Commercial and Land  Consumer
Commercial Real Estate Real Estate Development and Other Total

Beginning balance, January 1, 2010 ......... $ 3,926 $ 1,738 § 4,276 $ 3,046 $ 296 $ 13,282
Provisions for loan losses..........cc.cc...... 1,443 3,331 2,027 5,959 760 13,520
Loans charged off......c.ccccoeeeveeevnnnnnns (1,617) (2,069) (2,204) (7,125) (918) (13,933)
RECOVETIES ...uvrieicrireeeerrereer e reneresnnens 80 26 46 15 14 181
Ending Balance, December 31, 2010.... $ 3,832 § 3,026 $ 4,145 $ 1,895 $ 152 § 13,050

The allocation of the allowance for loan losses by portfolio segment at December 31, 2012 and 2011 was as follows:

Construction
Residential Commercial and Land Consumer
As of December 31, 2012: Commercial Real Estate Real Estate Development and Other Total
Specific Reserves:
Impaired 10ans..........oeveeeveneereereenenccuenrenene $ 5108 474 % 1,128 § 1,002 $ —$ 3,114
Purchase credit impaired loans..................... 355 359 306 — — 1,020
Total specific reserves......coevvnivnsinisiiinnns 865 833 1,434 1,002 — 4,134
GEnEral TESEIVES......ocueeeeeerverreerreeiierrereesseeseennns 1,870 1,036 1,964 743 41 5,654
TOtAL...cveieeeeeeree e $ 2,735 $ 1,869 $ 3,398 § 1,745 $ 413 9,788
Loans individually evaluated for impairment.. $ 4,168 $ 5825% 24,006 $ 6,094 $ —$ 40,093
Purchase credit impaired loans ...........coeoeeuni. 8,923 18,363 52,276 4,594 30 84,186
Loans collectively evaluated for impairment... 166,407 141,729 438,292 31,574 11,260 789,262
TOtAL.....eeveereeteerecicceere e e $ 179,498 165917% 514,574 $ 42,262 % 11,290 $913,541
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NOTE 4 - LOANS (continued)

Construction
Residential Commercial and Land Consumer

As of December 31, 2011: Commercial Real Estate Real Estate Development and Other Total
Specific ReSErves:......ccoccvvvvrrurenrecereceereenenn,

Impaired 10ans...........cceeeeeereeereererenenerenenan. $ 1,719 § 188 $ 2,563 $ 892 % —$ 5,362

Purchase credit impaired loans..................... — 110 542 — — 652
Total Specific Reserves .........cccccceeveeerecrennne. 1,719 298 3,105 892 —_ 6,014
GeNEral TESETVES...ccueeueeeeceeereeeeerreveerresaeesenns 1,392 1,647 2,197 1,517 69 6,822

Total ..o $ 3,111 8 1,945 $ 53028 2,409 $ 698 12,836
Loans individually evaluated for impairment.. $ 13,936 $ 9,231$% 24,826 $ 6,277 $ —9$ 54,270
Purchase credit impaired loans .............ccoeuu... 11,023 24,706 61,839 7,199 — 104,767
Loans collectively evaluated for impairment... 145,224 162,574 370,611 29,997 12,093 720,499

$ 170,1838 196,5118 457,276 $ 43,4738 12,093 $879,536

The following table represents loans individually evaluated for impairment by class of loan as of December 31, 2012,

Recorded Investment in Impaired Loans

With Allowance
Loans Subject to Loss Loans Not Subject to Loss
December 31, 2012 Share Agreements Share Agreements
Allowance Allowance
for Loan for Loan
Unpaid  Recorded Losses Unpaid  Recorded Losses

(Dollars in thousands) Principal Investment Allocated Principal Investment Allocated
Residential Real Estate:

First mortgages........cccceeurervrererrereerenreneans $ 1,823 § 1,414 § 355 § 393 §$ 393 § 62

HELOCSs and equity .........ccceceereerreererennn 40 40 40 156 156 17
Commercial:

Secured — non-real estate..............c.......... 473 473 122 2,337 1,453 388

Secured — real estate.........coveeereerrennennn, — — — — — —

UnSECured.......covevvevenenenmneeneeieneenenvenceansens — — — — — —
Commercial Real Estate:

Owner occupied........ccceveeeereerereecennne. 2,538 2,277 233 2,973 2,540 185

Non-owner occupied .........ccceeeercererereenne 470 353 25 4,680 4,680 437

Multi-family ......cccocevnmvnecnicceee e 1,250 1,250 248 — — —
Construction and Land Development:

ConStrUCtioN .......coveevereerrereereeseeceeeeeeeeneenes — — — — — —_

Improved land .......cccoevevvvvvrnecreerennee — — — 148 148 42

Unimproved land..........cccceoeveveereeererenane. — — — 2,506 2,506 960
Consumer and other..........ccceccoverevrnrvnrereennn. — — — — — —

Total December 31, 2012 ...........ccocuvueunnee. $ 6,594 § 5807 $ 1,023 § 13,193 $§ 11,876 $§ 2,091

98



1* UNITED BANCORP, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollar in thousands, except per share data)

NOTE 4 ~ LOANS (continued)

December 31, 2012

(Dollars in thousands)
Residential Real Estate:

First mortgages

HELOC:S and equity ........

Commercial:

Secured — non-real estate.

Secured — real estate

...........................................................

Unsecured........coeeevveeennneen

Commercial Real Estate:

Owner occupied...............

Non-owner occupied

.........................

Multi-family ......cccocceneeee.

Construction and Land Development:

Construction.....................
Improved land .................
Unimproved land.............

Consumer and other............

Total December 31, 2012

99

Recorded Investment in Impaired Loans

With No Allowance
Loans Loans Not
Subject to Subject to Loss
Loss Share Share
Agreements Agreements
Unpaid Recorded Unpaid Recorded
Principal Investment _Principal Investment
$ 1682 $ 1,065 $ 2,638 % 1,961
59 — 796 796
— — 3,791 1,012
397 — 1,530 1,230
3 — _ —
— — 6,363 6,151
757 648 5,867 5,792
— — 315 315
- — 7,865 3,440
— — 1 —
$ 2898 § 1,713 $§ 29,166 $ 20,697




1* UNITED BANCORP, INC.
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NOTE 4 - LOANS (continued)
The following table presents loans individually evaluated for impairment by class of loan as of December 31, 2011:

Recorded Investment in Impaired Loans

With Allowance
Loans Subject to Loss Loans Not Subject to Loss
December 31, 2011 Share Agreements Share Agreements
Allowance Allowance
for Loan for Loan
Unpaid Recorded Losses Unpaid  Recorded Losses

(Dollars in thousands) Principal Investment Allocated Principal Investment Allocated
Residential Real Estate:

First mortgages........cccceveveveeenrnereeeneeenenns $ 1,588 § 810 $§ 165 $ 2478 § 1,979 $ 10

HELOCs and equity .......c.ccceceueeeeeerrrennnn — — — 13 13 13
Commercial:

Secured — non-real estate...........c.oourneen.. — — — 1,871 710 446

Secured —real estate...........ccooeeerereervvnennns — — — 1,700 1,686 1,273

UnSecured.........ooveeveeriereeneeeeeinneeenseseeieene — — —_ — —_ —
Commercial Real Estate:

Owner occupied......cocoerrrerrecenresrerenreennens 140 81 11 7,849 7,073 666

Non-owner occupied .........cceeeereevrrennenee 633 487 85 6,577 6,577 1,773

Multi-family ........ccccommereneeeceeeerersnees 443 427 28 — — —
Construction and Land Development:

Construction .......coceeeeverserrceeeeecvenneneenns — — — — — —

Improved land ..........ccecevvrrnrereererereneee, — — — — — —

Unimproved land..........cccoevereevereerereerenene. — —_ — 2,516 2,516 892
Consumer and other.............cccocuveurereernneane. — — — — — —

Total December 31, 2011 ......................... $ 2804 § 1,805 $ 289 § 23004 $ 20,554 $ 5,073
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December 31, 2011

(Dollars in thousands)
Residential Real Estate:

1" UNITED BANCORP, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollar in thousands, except per share data)

First MOrtgages........coccovivvivinuiiscsinnninniiinnincsessassesnes
HELOCS and eqUity .........ccoceevcmrviiininniisnninnininnisensesesessnes

Commercial:
Secured — non-real estate

Secured — real €State.........cceervecvieerreeieenieesriceneeeeseeeessssassessusses
UNSECUIEA.....uvviiiirrreeiiirreierireeiieiesiesssesessessssssaesssnsessssnnsasessssasans

Commercial Real Estate:

OWNET OCCUPIEA. ..everrencrrenreccrerecrteertreteeseetsrestsrestssssssssssssnes
NON-OWNET OCCUPIEd .....overirererenrenrennenenereieesceeeeceecaesaesnssnes
Multi-family .....ccocovirninnininii s

Construction and Land Development:
CONSUCHION .....eceeueeecenirreeseiseecsuisnens

Improved land ..........cccevvivemiccnnnnciicn s
Unimproved land...........coivinnniiinicnseinsenenns

Consumer and OtheT .........ccouveereiiiniireinrnrienierciesrreesesesnessssssnsessses

Total December 31, 2011...
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Recorded Investment in Impaired Loans

With No Allowance
Loans Loans Not
Subject to Subject to Loss
Loss Share Share
Agreements Agreements
Unpaid Recorded Unpaid Recorded
Principal Investment Principal Investment
$ 478 $ 423 § 6,008 S 5,362
—_ — 644 644
— — 3,150 2,026
— — 9,563 9,514
— — 476 476
398 345 11,868 8,089
1,271 1,271 — —
— — 8,598 3,761
$ 2147 § 2039 $§ 40307 $§ 29,872
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NOTE 4 - LOANS (continued)

Average recorded investment in impaired loans and related interest income and cash-based interest income for the years
ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2012 Year ended December 31, 2011
Average Average
Recorded Interest Cash Recorded Interest Cash
Investment Income Basis Investment Income Basis
Residential Real Estate
First MOortgages -......coeovvererrvreeereerreseeerenens $ 7981 $ 8 §$ 102 §$ 9,088 $ 29 § 81
HELOC and equity ........ccocecceerumvenrnsnerennens 1,481 18 18 630 1 12
Commercial
Secured non real estate ..........cooevuveeevnnrennnnns 3,375 185 183 8,392 116 77
Secured real estate ........ ereeerressreesreasnreeaaens 6,511 55 57 3,769 67 430
UNSECUTE ... cereceeeesveessveesnaeesnee — — — — — —
Commercial Real Estate
OWwWner 0CCuPied......co.ccceerurenreveneerenrerseennene 12,304 593 599 9,437 161 167
Non-owner occupied........c.cceveeerrerreeserrennnens 14,425 489 474 15,512 429 153
Multifamily .......ceoeoueveeiieeerreeeeceseeeeeeene 1,625 12 12 1,659 — 6
Construction and Land Development
CONSIUCHION. ....c.ceevrieericrreeceneereeesereernrecanee — — — — — —
Improved Land.........ccccovevevevereeeeceeeeee 3,724 59 59 4,387 264 12
Unimproved Land..........ccccceevenirieiennnnnncnnns 2,829 109 114 2,516 111 —_
Consumer and Other................................. 29 — — — — —
TOtAL.......oooeveeeeeeeee e $ 54284 $ 1605 $1618 $ 55,390 $ 1,178 $ 938
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NOTE 4 - LOANS (continued)

(Dollar in thousands, except per share data)

Year ended December 31, 2010

Average
Recorded Interest Cash
Investment Income Basis
Residential Real Estate
FArSt IMOTEZAZES «...vovoreeeeeerrecnesecsseseseesssssersssassessesssssssessasnssasesesasasensess 8,728 $ 132 § 132
HELOC and equity 2,015 1 1
Commercial
Secured NON 1€al €SLALE .........occeeeirreeerereieerieseerereessnesssreessressaeessneessssees 1,640 15 15
SecUred real €SLAL ......ccevveiiireeireerreenrrenirereeertreneseseesirree e sentasestessensesnns 49 — —
UNSECUTEA .....uveevreeireeneirreenresineeesreessreassesssssesssssssssesssssssssarssesssssessssessnns — — —
Commercial Real Estate
OWNET OCCUPIEA .....cccvmceiireceiteee ettt et saese it esesaessnenes 7,424 149 147
NOD-OWNET OCCUPIEA.......cceerreriereerereereerenasseesassassrosesssssssseassensanmensesseseenes 7,959 236 236
MUBtifamily .....c.ccoeeirciceeecir s — — —
Construction and Land Development
COMNSIUCHION. ... veerreeriaeeiaesieeesssesssreesseesssessssesssnessasessanssstassntassasasssnsesssenes 5,631 — —
IMProved Land.........c.cocivceniienienrninieeeeninesrsassesssessnesesnssesssessersesane 6,189 216 216
Unimproved Land.........cccccceeeeerivenrerenrerencessssessssesessceersesacssssessesssserseseese 1,349 — —
Consumer and Other...............oo.vvovioeeieceiimieeteeres e eeseesesaresssenas 290 — —
TORAL........ooveeeerieeeceeteceerteeteesterasesaesaeeaesssessesssessasssaessesrasaseansensnesnenns $ 41274 $ 749 $ 747

Generally, interest on loans accrues and is credited to income based upon the principal balance outstanding. It is
management’s policy to discontinue the accrual of interest income and classify a loan as non-accrual when principal or
interest is past due 90 days or more unless, in the determination of management, the principal and interest on the loan are
well collateralized and in the process of collection. Consumer installment loans are generally charged-off after 90 days of
delinquency unless adequately collateralized and in the process of collection. Loans are not returned to accrual status until
principal and interest payments are brought current and future payments appear reasonably certain. Interest accrued and
unpaid at the time a loan is placed on non-accrual status is charged against interest income. During the years ended December
31,2012, 2011 and 2010, interest income not recognized on non-accrual loans was approximately $1,346, $1,545, and $858

respectively.

Non-accrual loans represent loans which are 90 days and over past due and loans for which management believes collection
of contractual amounts due are uncertain of collection. Nonperforming loans represent loans which are not performing in
accordance with the contractual loan agreements. Included in the tables that follow are loans in non-accrual and 90 days and
over past due categories with a carrying value of $23,416 and $43,476 as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
Loans which are 90 days or greater past due and accruing interest income were $2,108 and $647 at December 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively. Nonperforming loans and impaired loans are defined differently. As such, some loans may be included in
both categories, whereas other loans may only be included in one category.
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NOTE 4 - LOANS (continued)

The following tables surnmarize past due and non-accrual loans by the number of days past due as of December 31, 2012 and

2011:

December 31, 2012

(Dollars in thousands)

Residential Real Estate:
First mortgages........... .
HELOCs and equity....................

Commercial:
Secured — non-real estate.............
Secured - real estate... .
Unsecured...........ccccoeveemrirrerennenn.

Commercial Real Estate:
Owner occupied ..........cceveeennne
Non-owner occupied.. .
Multi-family ..........c.coooviriinnnnane

Construction and Land
Development:
Construction............cooevcvuereenee
Improved land ...
Unimproved land

Consumer and other ............ccc.........
Total December 31, 2012............

Non-Accrual/Accrual and

Accruing 30 - 59 Accruing 60-89 90 days and over past due Total

Loans Loans Not Loans Loans Not Loans Loans Not Loans Loans Not
Subjectto  Subject to Subject to  Subject to Subject to Subject to Subjectto  Subject to
Loss Share Loss Share  Loss Share Loss Share  Loss Share  Loss Share  Loss Share Loss Share
Agreements Agreements Agreements Agreements Agreements Agreements Agreements Agreements
$ 1,013 § 95 $ 1,207 $ — 8 4,085 $ 2019 $ 6,305 § 2,114
— 197 — — 103 796 103 993
e 200 — 94 147 805 147 1,099
— — — — 424 — 424 —
— 1,873 — — 2,820 2,487 2,820 4,360

581 — — 1,707 2,242 2,085 2,823 3,792

— — — — 1,331 315 1,331 315

— — — — — 3,440 288 3,440
— 2,767 — — 288 — — 2,767

— 99 — — — 29 — 128

$ 1,594 § 5231 §$ 1,207 $ 1,801 § 11,440 § 11,976 $ 14,241 § 19,008
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NOTE 4 - LOANS (continued)

December 31, 2011
Non-Accrual/Accrual
and
90 days and over past
(Dollars in thousands) Accruing 30 - 59 Accruing 60-89 due Total
Loans Not
Loans Loans Not Loans Subject to Loans Loans Not Loans Not
Subjectto  Subjectto  Subject to Loss Subjectto  Subjectto Loans Subject Subject to
Loss Share Loss Share Loss Share Share Loss Share Loss Share to Loss Share Loss Share
Agreements Agreements Agreements _Agreements Agreements Agreements _Agreements Agreements

Residential Real Estate:

First mortgages.........coveveeecuemrencne $ 1,864 $ 402 § — § — 3 4,622 $ 5,103 § 6,486 $ 5,505

HELOCsS and equity ........ccouvieee — — — — 323 644 323 644
Commercial:

Secured — non-real estate 666 479 — 146 228 1,882 894 2,507

Secured — real estate........ — _— — — 1,013 9,930 1,013 9,930

Unsecured — — — — — — — —
Commercial Real Estate:

Owner occupied .........cooveeccrrneene — 272 — —_ 798 4,781 798 5,053

Non-owner occupied... — —_ —_ — 2,737 8,904 2,737 8,904

Multi-family ......ccocoecrvcninecicnnnns 356 — — 318 2,077 — 2,433 318
Construction and Land

Development:

Construction.... — — — — 87 — 87 —

Improved land ..... — — — — — 264 — 264

Unimproved land ..........c.oooceeennc. — — — — 80 — 80 —
Consumer and other .............ccocunn.. — — — — — 3 — 3

Total December 31, 2011............ $ 2,886 $ 1,153 $ — § 464 § 11,965 $ 31,511 § 14,851 $ 33,128

Maodifications of terms for our loans and their inclusion as troubled debt restructurings are based on individual facts and
circumstances. Loan modifications that are included as troubled debt restructurings may involve a reduction of the stated
interest rate of the loan, an extension of the maturity date at a stated rate of interest lower than the current market rate for new
debt with similar risk, or deferral of principal payments, regardless of the period of the modification. Generally, we will
allow interest rate reductions for a period of less than two years after which the loan reverts back to the contractual interest
rate. Each of the loans included as troubled debt restructurings at December 31, 2012 had either an interest rate modification
from 6 months to 2 years before reverting back to the original interest rate or a deferral of principal payments which can
range from 6 to 12 months before reverting back to an amortizing loan. All of the loans were modified due to financial stress
of the borrower. In order to determine if a borrower is experiencing financial difficulty, an evaluation is performed to
determine the probability that the borrower will be in payment default on any of its debt in the foreseeable future with the
modification. This evaluation is performed under the Company’s internal underwriting policy. During the year ended
December 31, 2012, the Company modified $6,391 in commercial real estate loans, $1,831 in commercial loans, $450 in
residential real estate loans and $149 in land loans. During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company modified $5,992
in commercial real estate loans, $1,527 in commercial loans, $1,894 in residential real estate loans and $2,516 in land loans.
All troubled debt restructurings are classified as either special mention or substandard by the Company. The following is a
summary of our performing troubled debt restructurings as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, all of which were
performing in accordance with the restructured terms.
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NOTE 4 - LOANS (continued)

December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
Residential real estate ..........ccccocvevevievienieniineeneeeenene, $ 605 $ 2,306
Commercial real estate...........ccoceeeeeeeererreneeecenrenennenne. 17,315 11,394
Construction and land development.............cccoceecenene. 2,654 6,013
CommETCIal .......oooneveviiieieeceeceee e 3,699 2,124
Tl et s e nnens $ 24,273 $ 21,837

Of the $24,273 of performing trouble debt restructurings at December 31, 2012, $12,416 was classified as special mention
and $11,857 was classified as substandard. Of the $21,837 of performing trouble debt restructurings at December 31, 2011,
$8,135 was classified as special mention and $13,702 was classified as substandard. Total nonperforming troubled debt
restructured loans were $5,676 and $7,083 at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The Company monitors the
performance of loans modified monthly. A modified loan will be reclassified to non-accrual and is in default if the loan is not
performing in accordance with the modification agreement, the loan becomes contractually past due in accordance with the
modification agreement or other weaknesses are observed which makes collection of principal and interest unlikely. Loans
modified within the last twelve months and defaulted within that period are comprised of five residential real estate loans for
$306 and two commercial loan for $65. These loans are included in non-accrual loans at December 31, 2012 with a specific
reserve in the allowance for loan losses of $66. Loans modified within the twelve months ending December 31, 2011 and
defaulted within that period are comprised of one residential real estate loan for $1,752, two commercial real estate loans for
$4,781, one commercial loans for $285 and one land development loan for $264. These loans were included in non-accrual
loans at December 31, 2011 with a specific reserve in the allowance for loans losses of $684. Loans retain their accrual status
at the time of their modification. As a result, if a loan is on non-accrual at the time it is modified, it stays as non-accrual, and
if a loan is on accrual at the time of the modification, it generally stays on accrual. A loan on non-accrual will be individually
evaluated based on sustained adherence to the terms of the modification agreement prior to being reclassified to accrual
status. The average yield on the performing loans classified as troubled debt restructurings was 4.76% and 4.63% as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Troubled debt restructuring loans are considered impaired.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company lowered the interest rate on $11,775 of loans prior to maturity
which we did not consider to be troubled debt restructurings. Due to the borrowers’ significant deposit balances and/or
overall quality of the loans, these loans were not included in troubled debt restructurings. In addition, each of these borrowers
were not considered to be in financial distress and the modified terms matched current market terms for borrowers with
similar risk characteristics. We had no other loans where we extended the maturity or forgave principal that were not already
included in troubled debt restructurings or otherwise impaired.

The Company had no commitments to lend additional funds for loans classified as troubled debt restructurings at December
31, 2012. The Company has allocated $2,030 and $1,843 of specific reserves to customers whose loan terms have been
modified in troubled debt restructurings as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Credit Quality Indicators:

The Company categorizes loans into risk categories based on relevant information about the ability of borrowers to service
their debt such as: current financial information, historical payment experience, credit documentation, public information,
and current economic trends, among other factors. The Company analyzes loans individually by classifying the loans as to
credit risk. Loans classified as substandard or special mention are reviewed quarterly by the Company for further
deterioration or improvement to determine if appropriately classified and impairment. All other loans greater than $1,000,
commercial and personal lines of credit greater than $100, and unsecured loans greater than $100 are specifically reviewed at
least annually to determine the appropriate loan grading. In addition, during the renewal process of any loan, as well if a loan
becomes past due, the Company will evaluate the loan grade.

Loans excluded from the scope of the annual review process above are generally classified as pass credits until: (a) they
become past due; (b) management becomes aware of deterioration in the credit worthiness of the borrower; or (c) the
customer contacts the Company for a modification. In these circumstances, the loan is specifically evaluated for potential
classification as to special mention, substandard or doubtful. The Company uses the following definitions for risk ratings:
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NOTE 4 - LOANS (continued)

Special Mention. Loans classified as special mention have a potential weakness that deserves management’s close
attention. If left uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the repayment prospects for
the loan or of the institution’s credit position at some future date.

Substandard. Loans classified as substandard are inadequately protected by the current net worth and payment
capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans so classified have a well-defined weakness or

weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. They are characterized by the distinct possibility that the
institution will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected.

Doubtful. Loans classified as doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in those classified as substandard, with the
added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of currently existing
facts, conditions, and values, highly questionable and improbable.

Loans Subject to Loss Share
Agreements

Loans Not Subject to Loss Share
Agreements

Special

Special

(Dollars in thousands) Total Pass Mention Substandard Pass Mention Substandard
December 31, 2012
Residential Real Estate:
First mortgages.......cccceecevecrnees $109,562 § 71,487 $ 2,547 $ 4,085 $ 26,304 $ 2552 § 2,587
HELOCs and equity ................. 56,355 8,728 31 103 39,180 5,375 2,938
Commercial:
Secured — non-real estate.......... 127,514 19,801 405 115 99,537 4,346 3,310
Secured —real estate.................. 43,613 12,199 —_ 425 28,227 2,030 732
Unsecured..........ccoveeeveennveenneens 8,371 80 — — 7,724 140 427
Commercial Real Estate:
Owner occupied..........ccoueveeeennee 187,007 37,696 7,943 2,820 123,106 6,285 9,157
Non-owner occupied................ 290,858 123,224 2,321 2,242 147,104 11,278 4,689
Multi-family .......ccocceneeerennennne 36,709 21,089 — 1,331 13,974 — 315
Construction and Land
Development:
Construction ..........cceevveerveennnns 3,481 — — — 3,481 —_ —
Improved land ..........ccccveenenee. 20,117 4,033 — — 9,071 3,138 3,875
Unimproved land...................... 18,664 3,888 — 505 11,765 — 2,506
Consumer and other..................... 11,290 11 — — 10,552 584 143
Total December 31, 2012......... $913,541 $302,236 $ 13,247 $ 11,626 $520,025 §$ 35,728 § 30,679
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NOTE 4 - LOANS (continued)

Loans Subject to Loss Share Loans Not Subject to Loss Share

Agreements Agreements
Special Special
(Dollars in thousands) Total Pass Mention Substandard Pass Mention Substandard
December 31, 2011
Residential Real Estate:
First mortgages.......ccccceevceuenceuenes $139,896 $ 94919 $§ 1363 $ 4,622 $ 26,156 $§ 5,567 $ 7,269
HELOCs and equity .......cccccceueue.e. 56,615 9,119 — 323 39,774 5,449 1,950
Commercial:
Secured - non-real estate............... 116,561 25,196 748 228 81,132 6,160 3,097
Secured —real estate.........ccceeeuvennne 43,198 13,948 251 1,013 15,639 1,663 10,684
Unsecured.......oeeeveeveveenneeenneeeireens 10,424 2,953 — — 7,029 — 442
Commercial Real Estate:
Owner occupied.........ccceeeereerernene 172,733 45,401 8,478 798 97,428 10,036 10,592
Non-owner occupied ...........ccee..... 244,178 135,098 6,277 2,737 76,072 12,776 11,218
Multi-family ......cccoceeeccenneeereecnnns 40,365 30,890 1,904 2,077 4,817 677 —
Construction and Land
Development:
Construction ........ccceeiuenieeneeneriuenns 8,173 3,246 — 87 4,840 —_ —
Improved land ...........ccocoueernennnee. 18,342 5,638 — — 7,203 1,290 4,211
Unimproved land..........c..cccceeeee.n. 16,958 6,364 222 80 7,777 — 2,515
Consumer and other...........ccoccuuun.... 12,093 1,079 — — 10,877 5 132
Total December 31, 2011 ............... $879,536 $373,851 $ 19,243 §$ 11,965 $378,744 §$ 43,623 $ 52,110

NOTE 5 - OTHER REAL ESTATE OWNED

The following is a summary of other real estate owned as of December 31, 2012 and 2011:

December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
Assets Not Assets Not
Subject Assets Subject to Subject Assets Subject
to Loss Share Loss Share to Loss Share  to Loss Share
(Dollars in thousands) _Agreements Agreements Total _Agreements _ Agreements Total
Commercial real estate............. $ 5,708 $ 10,372 $ 16,080 $ 1,922 § 8,067 $ 9,989
Residential real estate .............. 646 2,803 3,449 532 2,941 3,473
Total.....coeieeereeeeceeceeeeene $ 6,354 § 13,175 $19,529 § 2,454 § 11,008 $§ 13,462

At December 31, 2012, other real estate owned measured at fair value less costs to sell, had a carrying amount of $19,529 net
of the valuation allowance of $0. At December 31, 2011, other real estate owned had a carrying amount of $13,462, net of the
valuation of $0.
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NOTE 6 - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, premises and equipment were as follows:

2012 2011
| 571V« F OO S R ORTORTROTN $ 3,600 $ 900
BUIIAINGS.....ccveviererierirreenireetrresresereesssessestses st snessessssesssssesessessersssessssensesensensane 7,798 5,278
Buildings and leasehold improvements .............ccoeeeeveeenrinnreenseseeesseresenenss 6,406 6,754
Furniture, fixtures and eqUIPIMENL............ccccceeevereerereesnereenersrreseeressesseesnesesnns 8,983 7,381

26,787 20,313
Less accumulated depreciation ...........cceeeereeeeecerieccincesiesscesseseesecssesessseseens 9,007 7,930
Premises and equipment, NEt ..........c.occvecireveiierreieseseensersnnersesesnesssesersessesenes $ 17,780 §$ 12,383

Depreciation expense was $1,914, $1,614, and $1,210, for the years ended 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively.

The Company leases several of its office facilities under operating leases. Rent expense was $3,354, $3,596, and $3,359 for
the years ended 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively.

Rent commitments under these non-cancelable operating leases were as follows, before considering renewal options that
generally are present.

2013 e enns $ 3,334
2014 .eeeeeeeeeirereereeere ettt e e 3,196
2015t renrnen 2,778
2006 e et e e e eaeraesaenees 2,205
2017 et e r e rresaenaes 1,768
Thereafter ........covvevicvinreiciieiercer e 7,114

$ 20,395

NOTE 7 - FDIC LOSS SHARE RECEIVABLE

The activity in the FDIC Loss Share Receivable which resulted from the acquisition of financial institutions covered under
loss sharing agreements with the FDIC is as follows:

2012 2011
Beginning of YEar .........ccouoieieiieieneieieinresesnectces e cene e e ns $72,895 § 74,332
Effect of aCqUISILION.......cccerrerenrerererseressereresrresserensesesssssssesessesessessesessesssseses — 19,130
CaSN TECEIVEU. .....coueeuieiiieiiectecee et st et stssesesneses s ensesessseseessensans (11,559) (17,331)
DiSCOUNT ACCTELION ....eevevvreiritrieeinreeieseesiriieeeesaeeeeesarereesessseeesasseesssssesssessesessnns 1,224 566
Reduction for changes in cash flow estimate.............cccovveerrerrernnseriesnsesennens (13,712)  (3,802)
OFRET ...ttt et re st et sssessesesbaebe e ese s e e sa e e sae s st e e sannee (2,113) —
ENd Of YEAT......uoeeieiriireeneenieenrerses e s s sesestetesssstes s sesessesesesessesesasasssassnsasns $ 46,735 $ 72,895

As of the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company has determined that the FDIC loss share receivable is
collectible. The reduction for changes in cash flow estimates is primarily due to resolutions of covered assets in excess of the
amount expected, which includes sales, payoffs and transfers to (and sales of) other real estate owned as well as a reduction
due to changes in expected cash flows of the remaining covered assets.
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NOTE 8 - GOODWILL AND CORE DEPOSIT INTANGIBLE
Goodwill: The change in the balance for goodwill during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was as follows:

2012 2011 2010

BegINNiNg O YEAT .....c.ccececuermurieererersuniniinsiisisinssessssnsemsessssessssssssns $52,505 $45,008 $45,008
Effect of aCqUISIHONS «.....cvevruereinriiiiiiiiiseneenssesetssessesenssasans 5,753 7,497 —
TMPAITMENL........cirieiiiiiiicirriiisiescee st st ssss e sn e e sasees — — —
ENA Of YEAT....cuceeureriicericeeeesenensereeerenessistsissasssssessstssssasassssensssasasans $58,258 $52,505 $45,008

Impairment exists when the carrying value of goodwill exceeds its fair value, which is determined through a two-step
impairment test. The first step includes the determination of the carrying value of the Company’s single reporting unit,
including the existing goodwill and intangible assets, and estimating the fair value of the reporting unit. The Company
performed a qualitative assessment to determine if it was more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting unit
exceeded its carrying value, including goodwill at December 31, 2012. Qualitative factors that were considered included, but
not limited to, business strategy, customer base, financial performance and market and regulatory dynamics. The results of
the qualitative assessment indicated that the fair value of the reporting unit exceeded its carrying amount. Consequently, no
additional impairment test was necessary.

The amount of goodwill remaining to be deducted for tax purposes was $15,688 at December 31, 2012.

Core Deposit Intangible: The gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization for core deposit intangible was as follows
as of December 31, 2012 and 2011:

2012 2011
Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated
Cost Amortization Cost Amortization

Core deposit intangible............cccecvevevcererennriresnseenennns $5934 § 2,666 $5242 $ 1,982
Amortization expense was $684, $514, and $433 for the years ending December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively.

Estimated amortization expense for each of the next five years is as follows.

2013 ceeeeeeeeeetrrres st ssis s tesresaressasssesnresasee s e baaebsenaraseere s nesaaesatssasstens $ 666
2014 oottt et e ee st sess e st as et s et e saasta s bt saa e et e s s n e aeesasssae st aan 591
2015 ettt et et e s e s es e nr e s b e s s e e baen b e e aesenaennnenneeaenen 537
2016 ceeeeeeteetieireeetreeste s e sbas e ar e seraessaa s et e s ra e s b e e s rne e et assatsarasaaes 483
D007 et eeeeet e te st e st e oo vt e et e s st st e s e e s e e s e e st esnanteentaaasaeens 436
TRETEALIET.....ccvveiirriiriiiieicieeruressereesssneassenssssesssasssessasassseesssssssusssnes 555

$3,268
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NOTE 9 - DEPOSITS
Time deposits of $100 or more were $207,843 and $191,579 at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Scheduled maturities of time deposits for the next five years are as follows.

2003 s bbb $239,298
2014 o 48,333
2005 e sa e eaes 14,507
2016 vt s e asasas s nens e 8,384
2017 e 3,562

$314,084

NOTE 10 - FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES

The Company has a credit line with the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”). This credit line is collateralized by $74,955 of
residential first mortgage and commercial real estate loans under a blanket lien arrangement. At December 31, 2012, the
Bank had borrowing capacity from the FHLB of $36,682 based on eligible pledged collateral. At December 31, 2012 the
company had no FHLB advances. At December 31, 2011, FHLB advances consisted of a $5,000 convertible advance at a rate
of 4.6% which matured on January 11, 2012 and was paid in full on that date.

NOTE 11 - OTHER BORROWINGS

On July 7, 2008, 1* United entered into a Subordinated Capital Note Purchase Agreement (“Note Purchase Agreement”) with
a correspondent bank (“Lender”). Pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement, 1* United issued to Lender an unsecured
Subordinated Capital Note (the “Debenture”) in the principal amount of $5,000. The Debenture bore interest at a fixed rate of
5.69% until May 16, 2010, after which time the fluctuating interest rate is equal to the three month British Bankers
Association LIBOR Daily Floating Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 245 basis points per annum. 1* United began repaying principal of
$125 each quarter on September 15, 2010. In November 2011, 1* United repaid the Debenture in full and in conjunction with
this transaction received a two percent discount. The Company recorded a gain on the extinguishment of the debt of $87,
which was recorded as other income in the consolidated statement of operations. 1* United paid $112 in interest during the
year ended December 31, 2011. For the year ended December 31, 2010, the Debenture was included in total capital for
purposes of computing total capital to risk weighted assets for both the Company and 1* United.

NOTE 12 - BENEFIT PLANS AND EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS

401(k) Plan: A 401(k) benefit plan allows employee contributions up to 15% of their compensation, which are matched equal
to 25% of the first 6.0% of the compensation contributed. As of January 1, 2012 employee contributions up to 15% of total
compensation are matched at 33% of the first 6.0%. Employee benefit expense related to this plan was $211, $115, and $93
for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Employment Agreements: The Company has entered into rolling three-year employment agreements with three of its
executive officers. The agreements provide for a base salary, supplemental retirement benefits and cash and equity bonuses,
which are tied to certain growth and/or profitability targets. Expense under the associated supplemental retirement plans is
allocated over years of service and totaled $961, $301, and $255 for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.
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NOTE 13 - INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense was as follows:

Years ending December 31,
2012 2011 2010

Current Provision
FEACTAL.......eeeeeeece ettt st es bt s s ne s nenenes $ 176 $ 209 $§ —
1] 721 < IOUUPPORt — —_ —
TOAL..ceeeeee ettt eteesresseesbeersesressasassnssseeneesaenssesssanss 176 209 —
Deferred Provision
FEAEral........oeeeeeerecieerececrecreneeesrssenre e sssessstsetesssssasssnssnsanees 2,247 1,740 867
SALE....c.veeereeieereireecteeteeereseeesesseebessbassaesnresbesasseessasseasensenanenenes 385 333 148
TOAL....cevieeeeee it eeer e aee e e e e esvessbesssasensessaesensaeneensennne 2,632 2,073 1,015
Total Provision
FEAETAL.........ooeeieeeeeeteeecteeete et e e eeeeeessssosassasaessasssassensanas 2,423 1,949 867
SHALE......ueereereerresrecierseessnessersssssessesnsesenssesssesassesssessesssesssessesnaens 385 333 148
INCOME tAX EXPENSE.....cceoererrararasassrersrsesressrassarsrsssrarrosersrssesess $ 2808 $ 228 §$ 1,015

The balance of deferred tax assets and liabilities at the December 31, 2012 and 2011 follows:

2012 2011
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss and credit carryforward ............cevvuennnaae $ 4,943 $ 4,173
Allowance for 10an LOSSES........ocuurvenreriisseeireeccressensssnesesssserees 3,800 5,154
Fair value adjustment of loans and other real estate owned ... 16,923 15,294
ACCIUEA EXPEIISES ...cuviriirirrsiosriessestssesnssessssssssissessssassasssseseans 505 526
DEPreciation ..........cccverereerenrerenrerenienereseessseeseestenesessessesssnessoss — 126
Deferred compensation.............ccccoceverinerssssnssssessissssensssssssinens 2,131 1,377
OHBET.....cocvircreerereiennresteresssesteressessssesaseesssssssassssesssssnsessessnsns 363 803
28,665 27,453
Deferred tax liabilities:
Deferred gain...........ccoeovierienenieinnieenreninessessesessersessessseesens 2,175) (3,487)
FDIC loss share receivable...........covcurrerrrreneencesinncccmsisvesissssanns (17,586) (21,249)
Tax deductible goodwill and other intangibles....................... (954) (2,180)
Depreciation ...........cccceecvcnceenencnieenncctsennsseseseenessssssssenne (493) —
Prepaid EXPEnSes .......ccccceecremnieeminsnsinnninenis s (169) (624)
Net unrealized gain on securities available for sale................ (1,362) (1,549)
(22,745) (29,089)
Net deferred tax asset (liability)........cooevnivniniinnniincninnnnnne, $ 5,920 $ (1,636)

112



1* UNITED BANCORP, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollar in thousands, except per share data)

NOTE 13 - INCOME TAXES (continued)

The deferred tax liability related to the gain on the Republic and TBOM transactions will reverse ratably over six years. The
remainder will be realized as the applicable assets are recovered, sold or mature.

The Company continues to assess its earnings history, its estimate of future earnings, the expected reversal of differences in
book and taxable income, and the expiration dates of its net operating loss carryforwards to determine that it was more likely
than not that the deferred tax assets will be realized. The Company has determined that the realization of the deferred tax
assets continues to be more likely than not and no valuation allowance was recorded for at December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Also, due to the issuance of additional stock in September of 2009, the Company underwent a “change of ownership” as that
term is defined in the Internal Revenue Code. This change of ownership also resulted in a limitation of the amount of net
operating losses that can be utilized by the Company, annually, under Internal Revenue Code Section 382. As of December
31, 2012, the Company has utilized all of the federal net operating loss carryforwards which were subject to this limitation.
However, $11,057 of the Company’s state net operating loss carryforwards remain subject to this limitation.

As part of the merger with AFI, the Company acquired federal and state net operating loss carryforwards of $10,928 which
begin to expire starting in 2028. The use of these net operating loss carryforwards are also subject to an annual limitation by
Internal Revenue Code Section 382.

At December 31, 2012, the Company has Federal and State net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $10,061 and
$25,748, respectively, which begin to expire in 2028. Inclusive within these amounts is $9,994 of remaining federal and state
net operating loss carryforwards which were acquired as part of the merger with AFI. It is anticipated that these
carryforwards, both Federal and State, will be utilized prior to their expiration, and the limitations under Internal Revenue
Code Section 382 will not materially impact the Company. ’

Effective tax rates differ from federal statutory rate of 34% applied to income before income taxes due to the following:

2012 2011 2010
Federal statutory rate times financial statement income........ $ 2562 § 2,024 $ 888
Effect of:
SALE tAXES...ceeeeereererecrerrossessesaesesssesresasorssrassessnesessessssssessens 250 219 94
Earnings from company owned life insurance ................... (169) 1) (55)
Incentive stock Option EXPENSE.......ccvvevrreresrersecserssnssnssnsaes 74 49 37
OhET, NEL....covieiterieniectenenienaeeeseeensesesesnssssssseesansssssssnases 91 41 51
TOMAL....eceeeeeeererereeeneteresersssesessnssnsserassesssesenssnaresaasaanes $ 2808 $ 2282 § 1,015

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to U.S. federal income tax, as well as income tax within the State of Florida.
The Company is no longer subject to examination by taxing authorities for years before 2009.

There were no significant unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2012, and the Company does not expect any significant
increase in unrecognized tax benefits in the next twelve months.
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NOTE 14 - RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Loans to principal officers, directors, and their affiliates for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were as follows

Year ended December 31,

2012 2011
Beginning Balance .............ccoeeciererienreeneisseenssnasreseresssssssasseens $ 9,693 $ 11,809
New [0ans and adVances.........cvoveeiniiineeinrenneenesreoeecseesneoes 4,549 26
REPAYMENLS ... et eeecreecaeessesassusssssone (1,266) (2,142)
Ending balance............cccoceveeeereeeeessessssssssesssssssesssssses $ 12,976 $ 9,693

Deposits held within our banking subsidiary from principal officers, directors, and their affiliates at December 31, 2012 and
2011 were $13,583 and $11,279, respectively.

Additionally, the Company paid $456, $892, and $489, for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively,
to various entities owned by directors of the Company or 1¥ United Bank for architectural design services and furniture
related to its office facilities, insurance services and legal services. The Company entered into a lease that commenced in
2006 and can be renewed every 5 years on a property owned by a director, for which it has made lease payments of $133,
$136, and $158 during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

NOTE 15 - STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company had a non-executive officer stock option plan (the “2003 Plan”) whereby up to 5% of the outstanding shares of
the Company’s common stock may be issued under the plan. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, 62,712 shares had been issued
and no options were available to be issued under the plan. No additional shares can be issued under the 2003 Plan.

In May 2008, the Company’s shareholders approved a new Stock Incentive Plan (the “2008 Incentive Plan™). The 2008
Incentive Plan allows for up to 5% of outstanding shares to be issued to employees, executive officers or Directors in the
form of stock options, restricted stock, Phantom Stock units, stock appreciation rights or performance share units. At
December 31, 2012, 1,029,472 awards were issued and outstanding under the 2008 Incentive Plan. Up to an additional
674,042 awards may be issued under the 2008 Incentive Plan.

Additionally, 3,059,322 options to purchase the Company’s common stock were outstanding at December 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2011, respectively, to executive officers under employment agreements.

Lastly, the Company has entered into separate agreements with its non-executive directors and executive council members
whereby these individuals have been granted options to purchase the Company’s common stock. At December 31, 2012 and
2011, 107,800 options and 62,000 options, respectively, were outstanding under these agreements.

Under each of the above plans and agreements, the exercise price is the market price at date of grant. The maximum option
term is ten years and the vesting period ranges from immediate vesting to up to ten years. The Company issues new shares to
satisfy share option exercises. Total compensation costs that have been charged against income for these plans and
agreements were $964, $816, and $830, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010.

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using a closed form option valuation (Black-Scholes)
model that uses the assumptions noted in the table below. Expected volatilities are based on historical volatilities of an
appropriate bank peer group. The Company uses historical data to estimate option exercise and post-vesting termination
behavior. The expected term of options granted represents the period of time that options granted are expected to be
outstanding, which takes into account that the options are not transferable. The risk-free interest rate for the expected term of
the option is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of the grant.
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NOTE 15 - STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION (continued)

The fair value of options granted during 2012, 2011 and 2010 was determined using the following weighted-average

assumptions as of grant date.
2012 2011 2010
Risk-free interest rate 1.77% 2.17% 2.42%
Expected term ........c.cocieeeuincnccenincnininnnnininscneenens 8.5 years 5.5 years 7 years
Expected stock price volatility..........ccoevuvnivvenennn 40% 30% 30%
Dividend yield .......c.coerevcnicnnincnininncncnsniaeninns — —

A summary of stock option activity for the year ended 2012 follows:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Price Term Value
Outstanding at beginning of year. 3,568975 $ 7.56 7.1 years $ 1,897,448
GIaNted ........cccovererecerrerereeenesnrcceeressesetsesseaesesssesessssens 423,100 597
EXErCiSed ...oeveveneriecmemeencrisien st senis —
Forfeited, exchanged or expired .............ccccoeurnncninnnnnee (8,504) 6.41
Outstanding at end of year 3,983,571 7.40 6.4 years 1,053,745
Fully vested and expected to vest .........cccovvunvriicnirennns 3,983,571 7.40 6.4 years 1,053,745
Exercisable at end of year............cccevvrcrnniinninencinnnnninienne 1,545,322 9.12 4.8 years 313,135
Information related to stock options granted during each year follows:
2012 2011 2010
Intrinsic value of OPtions €XEICISEd .........cceuecrerenrenrsinmiienisiirinsessinsisssessssssssnssseses $ — 3 — 3 —
Cash received from OPtiON EXEICISES .......cceverrerereraereeriernsriresissssisssissssessessssesssssssnes — — —
Tax benefit realized from option eXercises........coveernrcviseivenincs — — -—
Weighted average fair value of options granted $ 28 $ 2.12 1.83

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, there were $5,038 and $4,789, respectively, of total unrecognized compensation cost
related to non-vested stock options granted under the Plan. The cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average
period of 5.96 years.

In 2009, the Company granted 84,000 shares of its common stock to non-employee directors pursuant to the terms of the
2008 Incentive Plan. The grant price was $7.15 per share. Under the terms of the agreement, the restricted shares will vest
one-seventh immediately and one-seventh equally at the end of the next six years, subject to accelerated vesting upon a
change of control. The fair value of restricted stock award at the grant date was $601, which one-seventh immediately vested
with the remaining being amortized into expense over the six-year vesting period on the straight-line method. Amortization
expense was $86, $81 and $81 for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010. At December 31, 2012, 48,000 shares
had vested and 36,000 shares were non-vested.

In 2011, the Company granted 101,600 shares of its common stock to non-employee directors of the Company and 1% United.
The fair value of the stock award was $640, which vest one-seventh at the date of grant and one-seventh each year thereafter
over the following six years. The grant price at the date of grant was $6.30. Amortization expense for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011 was $91 and $175. At December 31, 2012, 29,028 shares had vested and 72,572 shares were
non-vested.
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NOTE 15 - STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION (continued)

In 2012, the Company granted 124,500 shares of its common stock to non-employee directors of the Company and 1* United.
The fair value of the stock award was $735, which vest one-tenth each year over a ten year period. The grant price at the date
of grant was $5.90. Amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2012 was $61. At December 31, 2012, 124,500
shares were non-vested.

In 2012, the Company granted 83,835 shares of its common stock to executive officers of the Company and 1% United. The
fair value of the stock award was $495, which vest one-tenth each year over a ten year period. The grant price at the date of
grant was $5.90. Amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2012 was $41. At December 31, 2012, 83,835
shares were non-vested.

In 2012, the Company granted 15,750 shares of its common stock to new directors of the Company and 1% United. The fair
value of the stock award was $95, which vest one-tenth each year over a ten year period. The grant price at the date of grant
was $6.05. Amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2012 was $7. At December 31, 2012, 15,750 shares were
non-vested.

NOTE 16 - COMMON STOCK OFFERING
In April 2012, the Company completed the acquisition of AFI and issued 3,140,354 in common stock. See Note 2.

In March 2011, the Company issued 5,000,000 shares of common stock at $6.50 per share. The total proceeds of the common
stock offering were $30,458, net of offering costs of $2,042. In April 2011, the underwriter exercised its full over-allotment
option and 750,000 common shares were issued at $6.50 per share for additional proceeds of $4,632, net of offering costs of
$243.

NOTE 17 - CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS ON RETAINED EARNINGS

Banks and bank holding companies are subject to regulatory capital requirements administered by federal banking agencies.
Capital adequacy guidelines and, additionally for banks, prompt corrective action regulations, involve quantitative measures
of assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet times calculated under regulatory accounting practices. Capital amounts
and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by regulators. Failure to meet capital requirements can initiate
regulatory action.

Management believes as of December 31, 2012, the Company and 1* United meet all capital adequacy requirements to which
they are subject.

Prompt corrective action regulations provide five classifications: well capitalized, adequately capitalized, undercapitalized,
significantly undercapitalized, and critically undercapitalized, although these terms are not used to represent overall financial
condition. If adequately capitalized, regulatory approval is required to accept brokered deposits. If undercapitalized, capital
distributions are limited, as is asset growth and expansion, and capital restoration plans are required. At December 31, 2012
and 2011, the most recent regulatory notifications categorized 1* United as well capitalized under the regulatory notifications
framework for prompt corrective action. There are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes
have changed the institution’s category.
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NOTE 17 — CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS ON RETAINED EARNINGS (continued)

The Company’s and 1* United’s actual and required capital amounts and ratios at year end are presented.

Minimum Capital Minimum for
Actual Adequacy ‘Well Capitalized
Amount Y% Amount % Amount %
As of December 31, 2012
Total Capital to risk-weighted assets
Consolidated.........c.oeeeeeiererereseseenneerereccnnnne $ 180,383 22.46% $ 64,260 8.00% $ 80,325 10.00%
| R 011127, (RPN 162,124 20.30% 63,902 8.00% 79,878 10.00%
Tier I capital to risk-weighted assets
Consolidated........cccovvevveoecicrinsincriininienes 170,595 21.24% 32,130 4.00% 48,195 6.00%
1 URDItEd....eorvereeneeeseesiesissesisesesesessnsssanes 152,520 19.09% 31,951 4.00% 47,927 6.00%
Tier I capital to total average assets
Consolidated.........cccoeereereinnruveiiinrenenianns 170,595 11.45% 59,596 4.00% 74,495 5.00%
1 UDItEd ..o seeseceenesessesnesesssesesassens 152,520 10.27% 59,411 4.00% 74,264 5.00%
As of December 31, 2011
Total Capital to risk-weighted assets
Consolidated..........ocevverreererererercrerenereenenenes $ 165,291 25.16% $ 52,552 8.00% $ 65,690 10.00%
1 UDItEd .c..eoeeeereeereeseeseenaenassassansesssnensans 129,471 19.87% 52,127 8.00% 65,159 10.00%
Tier I capital to risk-weighted assets
Consolidated.........cooovueervevereremnciniierinenns 157,023 23.90% 26,276 4.00% 39,414 6.00%
T UNIEd ...vorveerereerenresereereseresesesnesnesesesenes 121,274 18.61% 26,064 4.00% 39,095 6.00%
Tier I capital to total average assets
Consolidated..........covrnmrsrnsirerernernnnes 157,023 11.75% 53,445 4.00% 66,806 5.00%
1 UDIEd ....ooreoeveceeeeceeraenieneseese s s s snenes 121,274 9.11% 53,237 4.00% 66,546 5.00%

Dividend Restrictions—The Company’s principal source of funds for dividend payments is dividends received from 1*
United. Banking regulations limit the amount of dividends that may be paid without prior approval of regulatory agencies.
Under these regulations, the amount of dividends that may be paid in any calendar year is limited to the current year’s net
profits, combined with the retained net profits of the preceding two years, subject to the capital requirements described above.
During the year ended December 31, 2012, 1* United declared and paid dividends of $5,000 to the Company. At

December 31, 2012, 1* United could have, without prior approval, declared additional net dividends of $5,875. During
December 31, 2012, the Company paid a $0.10 special dividend of $3,407 to holders of common shares as of the record date.

NOTE 18 - LOAN COMMITMENTS AND OTHER RELATED ACTIVITIES

Some financial instruments, such as loan commitments, credit lines, letters of credit, and overdraft protection, are issued to
meet customer’s financing needs. These are agreements to provide credit or to support the credit of others, as long as
conditions established in the contract are met, and usually have expiration dates. Commitments to make loans are generally
made for periods of 60 days or less and may expire without being used. Off-balance-sheet risk to credit loss exists up to the
face amount of these instruments, although material losses are not anticipated. The same credit policies are used to make such
commitments as are used for loans, including obtaining collateral at exercise of the commitment.

The contractual amount of financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk was as follows at year end.

2012 2011
Fixed Variable Fixed Variable
Rate Rate Rate Rate
Commitments t0 MAKE 10ANS...........coevirieriverereeerrrrereesessesessesessssanes $ 23661 $ 2958 §$ 2,520 $ 5,903
Unused 1ines of Credit .......ccovvveeriierrecrerneenuecseroeeresnessensiennonnenenees 664 72,103 600 60,020
Stand-by letters of credit.........ccovevvviiiiiinininne e, 5,349 1,610 3,990 1,110

Commitments to make loans are generally made for periods of 60 days or less. The fixed rate loan commitments have interest
rates ranging from 3.0% to 8.25% and the underlying loans have maturities ranging from one month to 30 years.
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NOTE 19 - FAIR VALUES
Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received on the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The accounting guidance establishes a fair value hierarchy
which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when
measuring fair value. The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

. Level I: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the entity has the
ability to access as of the measurement date.

. Level II: Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be
corroborated by observable market data.

. Level III: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect a reporting entity’s own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

The fair values of securities available for sale are determined by obtaining quoted prices on nationally recognized securities
exchanges (Level I inputs) or matrix pricing, which is a mathematical technique widely used in the industry to value debt
securities without relying exclusively on quoted prices for the specific securities but rather by relying on the securities’
relationship to other benchmark quoted securities (Level II inputs).

The fair value of impaired loans with specific allocations of the allowance for loan losses and other real estate owned is based
on recent real estate appraisals less estimated costs of sale. For residential real estate impaired loans and other real estate
owned, appraised values are based on the comparative sales approach. For commercial and commercial real estate impaired
loans and other real estate owned, appraisers may use cither a single valuation approach or a combination of approaches such
as comparative sales, cost or the income approach. A significant unobservable input in the income approach is the estimated
income capitalization rate for a given piece of collateral. At December 31, 2012, the range of capitalization rates utilized to
determine the fair value of the underlying collateral ranged from 8% to 12%. Adjustments to appraisals may be made by the
appraiser to reflect local market conditions or other economic factors and may result in changes in the fair value of a given
assets over time. As such, the fair value of impaired loans and other real estate owned are considered a Level III in the fair
value hierarchy.

The Company recovers the carrying value of other real estate owned through the sale of the property. The ability to affect
future sales prices is subject to market conditions and factors beyond our control and may impact the estimated fair value of a

property.

Appraisals for impaired loans and other real estate owned are performed by certified general appraisers whose qualifications
and licenses have been reviewed and verified by the Company. Once reviewed, a member of the appraisal department
reviews the assumptions and approaches utilized in the appraisal as well as the overall resulting fair value in comparisons to
independent data sources such as recent market data or industry wide-statistics. On an annual basis, the Company compares
the actual selling price of collateral that has been sold to the most recent appraised value to determine what additional
adjustments, if any, should be made to the appraisal value to arrive at fair value. Based on our most recent analysis, no
discounts to current appraisals have been warranted.
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NOTE 19 - FAIR VALUES (continued)

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2012 and 201 1are summarized below.

Fair value measurements at December 31, 2012 using

Significant

Quoted prices other Significant

December in active markets observable unobservable
31, for identical assets inputs inputs
2012 (Level I) (Level I) (Level IIT)
Available for Sale Securities:

Municipal SECUTTHES ...c.vvenrnrerercrcrenersisereniniasesenins $ 469 $ — $ 469 $ —
Residential collateralized mortgage obligations..... 3,759 — 3,759 —
Residential mortgage-backed.............ccoeeveirnininnnns 255,894 — 255,894 —
$ 260,122 $ — $ 260,122 § —

Fair value measurements at December 31, 2011 using

Significant
Quoted prices other Significant

in active markets  observable unobservable

December 31, for identical assets inputs inputs
2011 (Level D (Level ID) (Level IIT)

Available for Sale Securities:

Residential collateralized mortgage obligations..... $ 7,757 $ — 8 1,757 $ —
Residential mortgage-backed...........coccrvercerennnnne 193,965 — 193,965 —
$ 201,722 $ — $ 201,722 § —

There were no recurring liabilities measured at fair value at December 31, 2012 and 2011.
Assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis are summarized below.

Fair value measurements at December 31, 2012 using
Quoted prices in Significant

active markets other Significant
for identical observable  unobservable
December 31, assets Inputs inputs
2012 (Level I) (Level IT) (Level ITI)
Assets:
Impaired loans
Residential $ 1,529 § — 3 — 3 1,529
Commercial.... 1,416 — — 1,416
Commercial real estate..........coccvereeereerererrevenenns 9,972 — — 9,972
Construction and land development.................. 1,652 — — 1,652
Consumer and other..... . — — — —
$ 14,569 $ — $ — $ 14,569
Other real estate:
COMMETCIAL....ceeeeererierereereereereereeresressersesesees $ 16,080 $ — 3 — 3 16,080
Residential ...... 3,449 — — 3,449
$ 19,529 $ — 3 — $ 19,529

At December 31, 2012 , impaired loans, which had a specific allowance for loan losses allocated, had a carrying amount of
$17,683, with a valuation allowance of $3,114 resulting in an additional provision for loan losses of $3,778 for the year
ending December 31, 2012.
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NOTE 19 - FAIR VALVUES (continued)

Other real estate owned, which are measured for impairment using the fair value of the collateral less estimated cost to sell,
had a carrying amount of $19,529, with no valuation allowance for the year ending December 31, 2012.

Fair value measurements at December 31, 2011 using

Significant
Quoted prices in other Significant
active markets observable  unobservable
December 31, for identical assets Inputs inputs
2011 (Level D (Level ID (Level IIT)
Assets:
Impaired loans
Residential ...........cocvueiemievieeiiierieeneseseanes $ 2,614 § — 3 — 3 2,614
Commercial.......cocevveverienerrenesececeseeseennes 677 — — 677
Commercial real estate.............ccccveeneerennen. 12,082 — — 12,082
Construction and land development............. 1,624 — — 1,624
Consumer and other ..........cccceveverrerrerveeencens — — — —
$ 16,997 § — $ — 16,997
Other real estate:
ComMETCial.......coveveeeereeeeeereeerreeeseeeeesaens $ 9,908 § —  $ — 3 9,989
Residential .......coceeeereeceerenrecrrnrenreneeneensennenne 3,473 — — 3,473
$ 13,462 §$ — 3 — $ 13,462

At December 31, 2011, impaired loans, which had a specific allowance for loan losses allocated, had a carrying amount of
$22,359, with a valuation allowance of $5,362 resulting in an additional provision for loan losses of $6,116 for the year
ending December 31, 2011.

Other real estate owned, which are measured for impairment using the fair value of the collateral, had a carrying amount of
$13,462 with no valuation allowance for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Transfers of assets and liabilities between levels within the fair value hierarchy are recognized when an event or change in
circumstance occurs. There have been no transfers between levels for 2012 and 2011.

The carrying amount and estimated fair values of financial instruments were as follows at December 31, 2012 and 2011.

2012 2011
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents.............cceeeeeeeeereeereeenneneenreeensnerrerssenen. $ 207,117 $ 207,117 $ 165,424 $ 165,424
Securities available for sale.............cocevvevirirenernennireneiiereseeeenean, 260,122 260,122 201,722 201,722
Loans, net, including loans held for sale............coccereeerrerrereereennnen, 904,497 911,134 866,853 865,754
Nonmarketable equity SECUIIHES ..........coererereereerereererserenserssaraneecns 8,625 N/A 11,207 N/A
Company owned life insurance..... erreereenateerresares . 21,092 21,092 5,093 5,093
FDIC loss share receivable...........ccouvvvevieriereeneriecicseseeseesecneneane. 46,735 46,735 72,895 72,895
Accrued interest receivable ............ eeeeeesreeraereresaresreesrraeenreseensesanes 3,428 3,428 2,947 2,947
Financial liabilities
DIEPOSIES c..ueenreciierreee et eesteeeeeesrestesassesrenesasassssessesssaese s s enesenen, $1,303,022 $1,299,140 $1,181,708 $1,181,841
Federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements..............c......... 19,855 19,855 8,746 8,747
Federal Home Loan Bank advances.........ccovevveveerevieesveereeeeseessessesen: — — 5,000 5,000
Accrued interest payable ..............c..... . 314 314 430 430
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NOTE 19 - FAIR VALUES (continued)

Fair value methods and assumptions are periodically evaluated by the Company. The methods and assumptions used to
estimate fair value are described as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate the fair value and are classified as either Level I in the fair
value hierarchy.

Loans, net

The fair value of variable rate loans that reprice frequently and with no significant change in credit risk is based on the
carrying value and results in a classification of Level III within the fair value hierarchy. Fair value for other loans are
estimated using discounted cash flows analysis using interest rates currently being offered for loans with similar terms to
borrowers of similar credit quality resulting in a Level I1I classification in the fair value hierarchy. The methods used to
estimate the fair value of loans do not necessarily represent an exit price.

Nonmarketable equity securities

Nonmarketable equity securities include Federal Home Loan Bank Stock and Federal Reserve Bank Stock. It is not
practicable to determine the fair value of nonmarketable equity securities due to restrictions placed on their transferability.

FDIC Loss Share Receivable

The fair value of the FDIC Loss Share Receivable represents the discounted value of the FDIC’s reimbursed portion of
estimated losses the Company expects to realize on loans and other real estate owned covered under Loss Sharing
Agreements. As a result, the fair value is considered a Level III classification in the fair value hierarchy.

Deposits

The fair value of demand deposits (e.g. interest and non-interest bearing, savings and certain types of money market
accounts) are, by definition, equal to the amount payable in demand at the reporting date (i.e. carrying value) resulting in a
Level II classification in the fair value hierarchy. The carrying amounts of variable rate, fixed-term money market accounts
and certificate of deposits approximates their fair value at the reporting date in a Level II classification in the fair value
hierarchy. Fair values for fixed rate certificates of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash flows calculation that applies

interest rates currently being offered on certificates to a schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities on time deposits
resulting in a Level II classification.

Federal Funds purchased and repurchase agreements

The carrying amounts of federal funds and repurchase agreements generally mature within ninety days and approximate their
fair value resulting in a Level II classification in the fair value hierarchy.

Federal Home Loan Advances

The fair value of Federal Home Loan Bank Advances are estimated using a discounted cash flow analysis based on the
current borrowing rates for similar types of borrowings and are classified as a Level II in the fair value hierarchy.

Accrued interest receivable/ payable

The carrying amounts of accrued interest receivable approximate fair value resulting in a Level III classification. The
carrying amounts of accrued interest payable approximate fair value resulting in a Level II classification.
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NOTE 19 - FAIR VALUES (continued)

Off-balance sheet instruments

The fair value of off-balance-sheet instruments is based on the current fees that would be charged to enter into or terminate
such arrangements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the counterparties’ credit standing. The

fair value of commitments is not material.
NOTE 20 - EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

The factors used in the ¢arnings per share computation follow:

2012 2011 2010
Basic
NELINCOMIE ...c.veuvenvirrerrieerereestesesseessesssssessessessesseessessesssssessosssosssssassassasssnsans $ 4,728 $ 3672 $ 1,598
Weighted average cornmon shares outstanding............cceeeveeavrreververnerenrenees 32,947,752 29,240,932 24,781,660
Basic earnings per COMMON SKare ............cocovurervereririsroerirenserssseseresseseseseans $ 014 § 0.13 § 0.06
Diluted
NELINCOME .....oeeeveeeereereeteeteee et ess s ebe e e sbe st erestesemsesessesssennessanen $ 4,728 § 3672 $ 1,598
Weighted average common shares outstanding for basic earnings per
COMIMNON SHATE.......coorminiiriiciinrerretrteraeestesssasessssesesnssssssasassarssssensens 32,947,752 29,240,932 24,781,660
Add: Dilutive effects of assumed exercise of stock options and
vesting Of TeStricted STOCK ......cvevueirerrrieneiresarneressersssessssessessesesesssesnes 5,311 14,990 98,912
Average shares and dilutive potential common shares.........c.cccecevveevenurennne 32,953,063 29,255,922 24,880,572
Diluted earnings per cOmmon Share .............cceureererernrererssereseserssesesesseenes $ 0.14 § 013 § 0.06

Stock options for 3,983,571, 3,568,975, and 1,069,177 shares of common stock were not considered in computing diluted

earnings per share for 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively, because they were antidilutive.

NOTE 21 - PARENT COMPANY ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Condensed financial information of Bancorp follows:

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31

ASSETS
Cash and cash EQUIVAIENLS .......c.cceereeerrceerrsenereeeseneresenenesestesseetsistsestsesesesesesesssssssssssasssss sessss
Investment in SUDSIAIATIES.......ccccevierreerreeerenereeeriieeeieesrsesie s sseseeseesssesssentossesssessesssesnsesseessesnene
Oher @SSELS.........coieiicieeieererreereeneenrereeeseeeseseeeseesssessessesssesnanes

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Oher HADILLIES .......coveviieiiieicicrcrcrcrir et et et ssseseeessssesssssssossasessssssssossossossonsonsone sassnssesasnee
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2012 2011
$ 10,028 $ 27,828
223,378 186,562
3,298 1,001
$ 236,704 $ 215,391
$ 14 3 40
236,690 215,351
$ 236,704 $ 215,391
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NOTE 21 - PARENT COMPANY ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued)

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years ended December 31
2012 2011 2010
Interest income. rreeerietereaetsaereaeaesbebersasesesaras $ 30 $ 210 $ 228
Equity in subsidiary inCome ..........coocceveevreriresmnnireicseercacissenes 5,373 4,036 1,803
Professional fEes .........covurrrerrrerierneennenrrrintisssssnsnsenesssennnsanes (173) (206) 271)
Other nON-INErest EXPENSE ........ceverreeercerirerscrecsesesesessesseseenesee (891) (588) (285)
Income before iNCOME tAXES .....ceeeeeererereerrrressvreneereeerecsereares 4,339 3,452 1,474
Income tax benefit .... reeeeeeereereestesrsbeset s st etesensrsnasbes (389 (220) (124)
NEtIICOME..........cviviririririeeereereeeressesseesensessassesssessssassenses $ 4,728 $ 3,672 $ 1,598

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Cash flows from operating activities
NELINCOMIE «...eveeieteierierierieaeeaeessesessessesaeseeseessesasssessesssssrasensassrastsssssnssnsnesnsons $ 4728 § 3,672 $ 1,598
Adjustments:
Equity in undistributed subsidiary income..........cccccoeevinirenrenrinneersresnseennen, (5,373) (4,036) (1,803)
Stock based cOMPENSALION EXPENSE .....cvevriinremscsmirisresiornensssnsnssessssesssassen: 1,258 1,072 830
Net change in other assets and liabilities ...........ocourveeeeieeervenininnneeen (783) (291) (396)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities............oceversrsreiasnnrnnann, (170) 417 229
Cash flows from investing activities
Investment in SUBSIAIATY ......ccccocemrerrmereniniiineiiiii et st 4,902 (20,815) (27,749)
Cash paid in connection With METEET, NEL......cccoerereriiririreiereisneieneinnnnsseesnssenanne, (19,125) — —
Net cash provided by (used in) investing aCtivVities .......c.ceovrveerereereenseaianne, (14,223) (20,815) (27,749)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends Paid........ccoeeeecrccecsencissiviriiverimiisssiseserissssssassnssssesssesssassssssssarssase: (3,407) — —
Issuance Of COMMON SLOCK .....ccccerreerriereerernseessessisssiissesseessneossssssesssessnnssnssansans — 35,090 (21)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ......cecereeeererererersrarerennnn, (3,407) 35,090 21
Net change in cash and cash eqUIValEnts ..........ccooeeeevieeinriresesesininn s (17,800) 14,692 (27,541)
Beginning cash and cash equivalents............oociieirernnnriieicnnineeesssssns 27,828 13,136 40,677
Ending cash and cash eqUIVAIENtS............covuviiiniisrmirisnsesssncsensiesnsessssenssssnans $ 10,028 $ 27828 § 13,136
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NOTE 22 - QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter® Quarter  Quarter
Year ended December 31, 2012
Total INtETESt INCOME ......c.eeeerrererereeeiirri et rereeresresseesssteessarsseveseessessnsan $ 15888 % 19,166 $ 19,183 § 18612
Total INTETESt EXPEISE .....veveerererereniestistesiiesierieeeeeresessesnsssssesnnesssseneens 1,437 1,476 1,277 1,123
Net INEIESt IMCOIME. ......cceeiieeeereeerresreernrerereesssreesaeeesteseeesssseessseessssseses 14,451 17,690 17,906 17,489
Provision for 10an 10SSES ......cc.evrreerreeererieeeerciriesseeeeseeeesnessreseseeseneens 1,300 3,100 1,050 900
Net interest income after provision for loan 10sses ..........c.ccccccevvevueennnenn 13,151 14,590 16,856 16,589
Net gain (loss) on other real estate owned..........ccceeuevvecerveecinveesvenceesiesennns 735 1,218 1,020 305
Gain on sale Of SECUTILIES .....eevieieeiiieiecieeie e eecreene e e e 498 1,175 — —
Adjustment to FDIC loss share receivable............cccvvevrvineceneserereneenennes (2,075) (3,042) (4,150) (3,221)
Other NONINLEreSt INCOME........covvvieireierreierereriessrieareessrerssessssresessneresssssaes 1,122 1,240 1,261 1,248
Merger reorganization EXPENSE..........vevueerrerererseresseressessseseasaessesersessesenes 451 1,309 24 —
Noninterest eXpense (D) .......ocueveevereereriririerenrerieenieresieresiesessessesseeseessenes 11,725 12,853 12,429 12,193
Income befOre INCOME LAXES.......ccuveecvieeenrrereereeereeereeeeereeeeseeeeeseesesesssees 1,255 1,019 2,534 2,728
INCOME tAX EXPENSE......oviireierrireienetricteeeeeseeseereseesanssasessessessassssessesenses 475 372 960 1,001
INEEIICOMIL. ...t vttt ee e eeeeeneesesmeensenesnneaneaseeseessesneeens $ 780 $ 647 $ 1,574 $§ 1,727
Earnings per Share — Basic ..........ccevevereveeieinviieniiiereceieieee e ereve e seereseeens $ 003 $ 0.02 § 005 $§ 0.05
Earnings per share — diluted............cccoeurieninininniniiicnieecee et 0.03 0.02 0.05 0.05
(@

includes acquisition of AFI

®)
Old Harbor and AFI acquisitions.

Noninterest expense for the first and second quarter were impacted by additional expenses incurred as a result of the

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter  Quarter®
Year ended December 31, 2011
Total INtEIrESt INCOMIE ........coceveeieeeerrereceecereetereereeseeseeesseeseecsseessossesessans $ 14681 $ 16,302 $ 13,590 $ 15,836
Total INEETESt EXPEIISE ....c.coveveuererererirrrisresintseriesesessssesesrsessasaeseresseresesssssses 1,724 1,588 1,452 1,585
Net INtEreSt INCOME.......c.ceueeieeeeieeieecieeeeereeereeesteeesesensesrnessessasssans 12,957 14,714 12,138 14,251
Provision for 10an L0SSES..........cceeerreeeeesieeieerernrerseresssesssessessnsensonsesens 1,900 1,450 1,450 2,200
Net interest income afier provision for loan losses ...........ccoeevrverennee. 11,057 13,264 10,688 12,051
Net gain (loss) on other real estate owned..........ccccceeeeecerecerirenenenreenes (224) — 29) 1
Gain on sale Of SECUMIES .......cccevieiireciniirieee e et ereees e — — — 364
Adjustment to FDIC loss share receivable............ccccoverirveirveeceecrnveiennne (244) (1,506) (205) (1,281)
Other NONINTETESt INCOME.......cooveieeeeeveeeeeieeeeesteesaeeeseeeoreeessueessossassssessnees 1,197 1,138 1,145 1,395
Merger reorganization EXPENSE.........c.ceurueueuceeruereererteresenteseeresastsseensnssses 450 300 — 326
NODINETESt EXPENSE...cu.eeeercrerererircreniereseeensesesseresresssvesseserssssessssessssenes 10,741 10,858 9,367 10,803
Income Defore INCOME tAXES.......cueevrvvieeeervrereererieeseisessessssesssssrsesssenne 595 1,738 2,232 1,389
INCOME tAX EXPENSE......ecvereeeeeeieeeiireeteraerrnneesirserrsesessessesessesesssessssessensans 240 674 836 532
NELIMCOIMIE. ...ttt et eseeeste et esaeeseasontesasassanas $ 355 $§ 1,064 $§ 139 $ 857
Earnings per Share — basic .........oecvveeeirieieieirenenrnenniesssssesessssssssssssssans $ 0.01 § 0.03 § 0.05 $ 0.03
Earnings per share — diluted...........cccoveivmmmrinnennenereneneceneesesssesienenns 0.01 0.03 0.05 0.03

(c) includes acquisition of Old Harbor
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. As of December 31, 2012, the end of the period covered by this Annual
Report on Form 10-K, our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(¢) under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934). Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer each concluded that as of
December 31, 2012, the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we maintained effective disclosure
controls and procedures.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting. Internal control over financial reporting is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting based on the framework
in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. Based on this evaluation under the framework in Internal Control-Integrated Framework, our management has
concluded we maintained effective internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 Rule 13a-15(f), as of December 31, 2012.

Internal control over financial reporting cannot provide absolute assurance of achieving financial reporting objectives
because of its inherent limitations. Internal control over financial reporting is a process that involves human diligence and
compliance and is subject to lapses in judgment and breakdowns resulting from human failures. Internal control over
financial reporting can also be circumvented by collusion or improper management override. Because of such limitations,
there is a risk that material misstatements may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis by internal control over
financial reporting. However, these inherent limitations are known features of the financial reporting process. Therefore, it is
possible to design into the process safeguards to reduce, though not eliminate, this risk. As permitted, the Company has
excluded the current year acquisition of AFI (represents approximately 13% of total assets at December 31, 2012) from the
scope of management’s report on internal control over financial reporting.

Management is also responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements and other
financial information contained in this report. The accompanying consolidated financial statements were prepared in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and include, as necessary, best estimates and judgments by
management.

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012 has been audited by Crowe
Horwath LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, and the firm’s attestation report on this matter is included in
Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control. Our management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has

reviewed our internal control. There have been no significant changes in our internal control during our most recently
completed fiscal quarter that materially affected, or is likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

On February 8, 2013, we announced via press release our financial results for the quarter and fiscal year ended December 31,
2012. A copy of our press release is included herein as Exhibit 99.1 and incorporated herein by reference.

The information furnished under Part II, Item 9B of this Annual Report, including Exhibit 99.1, shall not be deemed “filed”

for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, nor shall it be deemed incorporated by reference in any
filing under the Securities Act of 1933, except as shall be expressly set forth by specific reference in such filing.
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PART II1

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by Item 10 of Form 10-K with respect to identification of directors and officers is incorporated by
reference from the information contained in the sections captioned “Proposal —1 - Election of Directors,” “Executive
Officers,” and “Corporate Governance — Codes of Ethics and Code of Conduct” in our Proxy Statement for the Annual
Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 28, 2013 (the “Proxy Statement”), a copy of which we intend to file with the SEC
within 120 days after the end of the year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Section 16 Compliance

Information appearing under the captions “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the Proxy
Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 11 of the Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from the information contained in the
sections captioned “Executive Compensation” and “Election of Directors - Directors’ Fees” in the Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

Our shareholders approved the Officers’ and Employees’ Stock Option Plan at the 2003 Annual Meeting. Our shareholders
approved the 2008 Incentive Plan at the 2008 Annual Meeting. The 2008 Incentive Plan replaced the Officers’ and
Employees’ Stock Option Plan. We no longer grant equity compensation pursuant to the Officers’ and Employees’ Stock
Option Plan. The following table provides certain information regarding our equity compensation plans as of December 31,
2012.

Number of
securities
remaining

available for
future issuance
Number of under
securities to be equity
issued upon Weighted-average compensation
exercise exercise price of plans (excluding
of outstanding outstanding securities
options, warrants options, reflected in
and rights warrants and rights column (a))
Plan Category (a) (b) (c)

Equity Compensation Plans Approved by @
Securities Holders..................cccoovveeiercruencnrennene 656,449 § 6.97 674,042
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by )
Securities Holders..............cccccoevvvvevvveveeecerennnnnn 3,327,122 § 7.48 —
Total.......ccoiiiiicccccrr s 3,983,571 § 7.40 674,042

(1) Messrs. Orlando, Schupp, and Marino were granted stock options from time to time pursuant to a written employment
agreement. Please see section captioned “Executive Compensation” in our Proxy Statement.

(2) Total securities available for future issuance includes the impact of issuance of 435,735 common shares which vest over
either a 7 or 10 year period to its directors.

126



The other information required by Item 12 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from the information contained in the
sections captioned “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” in our Proxy Statement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by Item 13 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from the information contained in the
sections captioned “Transactions with Management and Related Persons” and “Proposal 1 Election of Directors —
Committees of the Board of Directors” in the Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by Item 14 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from the information in the section captioned
“Audit Fees and Related Matters” in the Proxy Statement.

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
The following documents are filed as part of this report

1. Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets at the end of Fiscal Y-ears 2012 and 2011

Consolidated Statements of Operations for Fiscal Years 2012, 2011, and 2010

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for Fiscal Years 2012, 2011, and 2010
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity for Fiscal Years 2012, 2011, and 2010
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for Fi;cal Years 2012, 2011, and 2010

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Financial Statement Schedules

Other schedules and exhibits are omitted because the required information either is not applicable or is
shown in the financial statements or the notes thereto.

3. Exhibits Required to be Filed by Item 601 of Regulation S-K
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EXHIBIT
NO.

DESCRIPTION

2.1

22

2.3

24

25

3.1

3.2

33

3.4

4.1

42

10.1

10.2

10.3

Purchase and Assumption Agreement — Whole Bank; All Deposits, among the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation, receiver of Republic Federal Bank, N.A., Miami, Florida, the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation, and 1* United Bank, dated as of December 11, 2009 — incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 2.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (filed 12/17/09) (No. 001-34462)

Amendment to Purchase and Assumption Agreement, among the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation,
receiver of Republic Federal Bank, N.A., Miami, Florida, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, and 1*
United Bank, effective as of December 17, 2010 — incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.2 of the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (filed 12/17/09) (No. 001- 34462)

Purchase and Assumption Agreement — Whole Bank; All Deposits, among the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation, receiver of The Bank of Miami, N.A., Miami, Florida, the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation, and 1* United Bank, dated as of December 17, 2010 — incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 2.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (filed 12/20/10) (No. 001-34462)

Purchase and Assumption Agreement — Whole Bank; All Deposits, among the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation, receiver of Old Harbor Bank, Clearwater Florida, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation,
and 1* United Bank, dated as of October 21, 2011 — incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (filed 10/24/11) (No. 001-34462)

Agreement and Plan of Merger, By and among Anderen Financial, Inc., Anderen Bank, and 1* United
Bancorp, Inc., dated as of October 24, 2011 — incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (filed 10/24/11) (No. 001-34462)

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant - incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (filed 7/22/08) (No. 001-34462)

Amendment to the 1* United Bancorp, Inc. Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation — incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (filed 5/28/09) (No. 001-
34462)

Amendment to the 1* United Bancorp, Inc. Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation— incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (filed 12/9/09) (No. 001-
34462)

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant — incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (filed 1/30/12) (No. 001-34462)

See Exhibits 3.1 through 3.4 for provisions of the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of the Registrant
defining rights of the holders of common stock of the Registrant

Form of Indenture — incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the Registrant’s Registration
Statement of Form S-3 (filed 11/23/10) (No. 333-070789)

Third Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with Warren S. Orlando, dated as of January 24, 2012
— incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Form 8-K (filed 1/30/12) (No. 001-
34462)

Third Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with Rudy E. Schupp, dated as of January 24, 2012 —
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Registrant’s Form 8-K (filed 1/30/12) (No. 001-
34462)

Third Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with John Marino, dated as of January 24, 2012 ~

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Registrant’s Form 8-K (filed 1/30/12) (No. 001-
34462)
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10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

12.1

21.1

23.1

311

31.2

32.1

99.1

101.INS

101.SCH

101.CAL

101.LAB

101.PRE

101.DEF

Second Amended and Restated Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan Agreement for Warren S. Orlando,
dated as of December 20, 2011 — incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Registrant’s Form 8-
K (filed 12/23/11) (No. 001-34462)

Second Amended and Restated Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan Agreement for Rudy E. Schupp,
dated as of December 20, 2011 — incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Registrant’s Form 8-
K (filed 12/23/11) (No. 001-34462)

Second Amended and Restated Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan Agreement for John Marino, dated
as of December 20, 2011 — incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the Registrant’s Form 8-K
(filed 12/23/11) (No. 001-34462)

2008 Incentive Plan — incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K (filed 5/30/08) (No. 001-34462)

Employment Agreement by and between the Registrant and Wade A. Jacobson, effective as of December 22,
2009 — incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K
(filed 12/23/09) (No. 001-34462)

Statement re Computation of Per Share Earnings*

Statement re Computation of Ratios**

Subsidiaries of the Registrant**

Consent of Crowe Horwath LLP, independent registered public accounting firm**

Certification of CEO pursuant to Securities and Exchange Act Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002**

Certification of CFO pursuant to Securities and Exchange Act Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002**

Certification of CEO and CFO pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002**

Press release to announce earnings, dated February 8, 2013**
XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

*%

Information required to be presented in Exhibit 11 is provided in Note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements under Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K in accordance with the provisions of U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

Filed electronically herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirernents of Section 13 or 15(d) the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this

report to be signed on February 8, 2013, its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

13T UNITED BANCORP, INC.
(Registrant)

By:/s/ John Marino

JOHN MARINO

PRESIDENT AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed on February 8, 2013, by the

following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated.

/s/ Rudy E. Schupp

Rudy E. Schupp
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ John Marino

John Marino
President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

/s/ Paula Berliner

/s/ Thomas E. Lynch

Paula Berliner, Director

/s/ Derek C. Burke

Thomas E. Lynch, Director

/s/ Carlos Morrison

Derek C. Burke, Director

/s/ Jeffery L. Carrier

Carlos Morrison, Director

/s/ Joseph W. Veccia, Jr.

Jeffery L. Carrier, Director

/s/ Ronald A. David

Joseph W. Veccia, Jr., Director

/s/ John Marino

Ronald A. David, Director

/s/ James D. Evans

John Marino, Director

/s/ Warren S. Orlando

James D. Evans, Director

/s/ Arthur S. Loring

Warren S. Orlando, Director

/s/ Rudy E. Schupp

Arthur S. Loring, Director
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EXHIBIT INDEX

EXHIBIT
NO. DESCRIPTION

2.1 Purchase and Assumption Agreement — Whole Bank; All Deposits, among the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation, receiver of Republic Federal Bank, N.A., Miami, Florida, the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation, and 1* United Bank, dated as of December 11, 2009 — incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 2.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (filed 12/17/09) (No. 001-34462)

22 Amendment to Purchase and Assumption Agreement, among the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation,
receiver of Republic Federal Bank, N.A., Miami, Florida, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, and 1*
United Bank, effective as of December 17, 2010 — incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.2 of the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (filed 12/17/09) (No. 001- 34462)

23 Purchase and Assumption Agreement — Whole Bank; All Deposits, among the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation, receiver of The Bank of Miami, N.A., Miami, Florida, the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation, and 1* United Bank, dated as of December 17, 2010 — incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 2.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (filed 12/20/10) (No. 001-34462)

24 Purchase and Assumption Agreement — Whole Bank; All Deposits, among the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation, receiver of Old Harbor Bank, Clearwater Florida, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, and
1* United Bank, dated as of October 21, 2011 — incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (filed 10/24/11) (No. 001-34462)

2.5 Agreement and Plan of Merger, By and among Anderen Financial, Inc., Anderen Bank, and 1* United
Bancorp, Inc., dated as of October 24, 2011 — incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (filed 10/24/11) (No. 001-34462)

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant - incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (filed 7/22/08) (No. 001-34462)

3.2 Amendment to the 1* United Bancorp, Inc. Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation — incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (filed 5/28/09) (No. 001-
34462)

3.3 Amendment to the 1* United Bancorp, Inc. Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation— incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (filed 12/9/09) (No. 001-
34462)

34 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant — incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (filed 1/30/12) (No. 001-34462)

4.1 See Exhibits 3.1 through 3.4 for provisions of the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of the Registrant
defining rights of the holders of common stock of the Registrant

42 Form of Indenture — incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the Registrant’s Registration Statement
of Form S-3 (filed 11/23/10) (No. 333-070789)

10.1 Third Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with Warren S. Orlando, dated as of January 24, 2012
— incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Form 8-K (filed 1/30/12) (No. 001-
34462)

10.2 Third Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with Rudy E. Schupp, dated as of January 24, 2012 —
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Registrant’s Form 8-K (filed 1/30/12) (No. 001-34462)

103 Third Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with John Marino, dated as of January 24, 2012 —
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Registrant’s Form 8-K (filed 1/30/12) (No. 001-34462)
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10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

12.1

21.1

23.1

31.1

31.2

32.1

99.1

101.INS

101.SCH

101.CAL

101.LAB

101.PRE

101.DEF

Second Amended and Restated Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan Agreement for Warren S. Orlando,
dated as of December 20, 2011 — incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Registrant’s Form 8-
K (filed 12/23/11) (No. 001-34462)

Second Amended and Restated Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan Agreement for Rudy E. Schupp,
dated as of December 20, 2011 — incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Registrant’s Form 8-
K (filed 12/23/11) (No. 001-34462)

Second Amended and Restated Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan Agreement for John Marino, dated
as of December 20, 2011 ~ incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the Registrant’s Form 8-K
(filed 12/23/11) (No. 001-34462)

2008 Incentive Plan — incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K (filed 5/30/08) (No. 001-34462)

Employment Agreement by and between the Registrant and Wade A. Jacobson, effective as of December 22,
2009 — incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (filed
12/23/09) (No. 001-34462)

Statement re Computation of Per Share Earnings*

Statement re Computation of Ratios**

Subsidiaries of the Registrant**

Consent of Crowe Horwath LLP, independent registered public accounting firm**

Certification of CEO pursuant to Securities and Exchange Act Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002**

Certification of CFO pursuant to Securities and Exchange Act Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002**

Certification of CEO and CFO pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002**

Press release to announce earnings, dated February 8, 2013**
XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

*ok

Information required to be presented in Exhibit 11 is provided in Note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements under Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K in accordance with the provisions of U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

Filed electronically herewith.
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Rudy E. Schupp, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of 1% United Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made,
not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 8, 2013 /s/ Rudy E. Schupp
Rudy E. Schupp
Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, John Marino, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of 1* United Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made,
not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 8, 2013 /s/ John Marino
John Marino
President and Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)




EXHIBIT 32.1
CERTIFICATION UNDER SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, each of the undersigned certifies that this periodic
report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that
information contained in this periodic report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the issuer.

Dated: February 8, 2013 /s/ Rudy E. Schupp
Rudy E. Schupp
Chief Executive Officer
/s/ John Marino
John Marino

President and Chief Financial Officer
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